
NOTICE OF 

STAR CITY 

COUNCIL MEETING 

Star City Hall 

November 17, 2020 

7:00 pm 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.  CALL TO ORDER (Welcome/Pledge of Allegiance) 
 

2.  INVOCATION 

 

3.   ROLL CALL 
 

4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Approval of Agenda as it stands/Amend Agenda) Action Item 
 

5.  CONSENT AGENDA Action Items 
*All matters listed within the Consent Agenda have been distributed to each member of the Star City Council for reading and 

study, they are considered to be routine, and will be enacted by one motion of the Consent Agenda or placed on the Regular 

Agenda by request. 

A.  Regular Meeting Minutes of: August 18, 2020, September 1, 2020, September 15, 2020, and  

      Special Meeting Minutes of October 1, 2020 

B.  Claims Against the City for October 2020 

C.  Final Plats 

 1.  Rosti Farms Subdivision Phases 1 & 2 (FP-20-17/FP-20-19) 

 2.  Parkstone (Heron River) Subdivision Phase 14 (FP-20-20) 

D.  Findings of Fact & Conclusions of Law for:  Gary Saunders Annexation & Zoning (AZ-20-13) 

 

6.  OLD/NEW BUSINESS Action Items 

A.  Gift Card Drawings 

B.  Public Hearing:  Canvasback Subdivision Annexation & Zoning, Development Agreement,  

      Preliminary Plat (AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11) continued from October 6, 2020 

C.  Public Hearing:  Sunfield Subdivision Annexation & Zoning, Development Agreement, 

      Preliminary Plat (AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13) continued from October 20, 2020 

D.  Public Hearing:  Greyloch Custom Cabinetry/Mink Creek Subdivision Rezone, Conditional 

       Use Permit, Preliminary Plat Modification (RZ-20-09/DA-20-20/CU-20-04/PP-19-02 MOD) 

E.  Public Hearing:  Davis Property 1133 S. Main Street Rezone (RZ-20-10/DA-20-21) 

F.  Public Hearing:  Comprehensive Plan Amendment (CPA-20-02) 

G.  Ordinance No. 321 Gary Saunders Property Annexation & Zoning 

H.  Star Lions Pie Throw 
 

7.  REPORTS 
 

8.  ADJOURNMENT Action Item 
 

Limited seating is available at the City Council Meeting at City Hall due to  

COVID-19.  The meeting can be viewed via a link posted to the City of Star website at staridaho.org.  

This link will be posted by Tuesday, November 17, 2020. Information on how to participate in a public 

hearing remotely will be posted to staridaho.org under the November 17th meeting information. The 

public is always welcome to submit comments in writing.   

 

 

 



  

  

STAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING AUGUST 18, 2020 1 

 
 
 
 

STAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
 

August 18, 2020 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:   
The regular meeting of the Star City Council was held on Tuesday, August 18, 2020 at Star City Hall, 10769 W. 
State Street in Star, Idaho. Mayor Trevor Chadwick called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm and all stood for the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
Led by the Daughters of the Republic and Children of the Republic 
 

3. ROLL CALL:   
Council Present: David Hershey, Jennifer Salmonsen, Kevin Nielsen 
Council Absent: Michael Keyes 
 

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:   
 Salmonsen moved to approve the agenda. Hershey seconded the motion. All ayes. Motion carried. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA:   
 Hershey moved to approve the consent agenda. Salmonsen seconded the motion. The Mayor read the 
Woman’s Vote Proclamation from exactly 100 years ago on this day.  All ayes. Motion carried. 
 

6. OLD/NEW BUSINESS   
 

A)  Ordinance No 311, Annual Appropriations  
Nielsen moved to dispense with the rules to be able to approve the ordinance after reading once by title only. 
Hershey read the Ordinance and moved to approve. Nielsen seconded the motion. All ayes. Motion carried.  
 

B)  Public Hearing – 864 N Star Road/Wilson Property Rezone 

Councilman Michael Keyes is a manager for this project and has a financial interest, so he was not present. 

Salmonsen went on record that Keyes was her campaign treasurer, but she has no affiliation with this project. To 

make sure there was no perception, she recused herself from participating in this hearing. City Attorney, Chris 

Yorgason clarified that when there is a conflict of interest, you must disclose it and not participate in the 

process. Keyes satisfied all the legal requirements.  
 

Applicant: Chris Todd, 10497 W Deep Canyon Dr, Star ID 83669. The Applicant is seeking approval of a Rezone 

(from RT to Residential R-7-DA) and a Development Agreement for a proposed residential development with up 

to 67 single-family residential lots. The property is located at 864 N Star Road and consists of 9.8 acres with a 

proposed density of up to 6.87 dwelling units per acre. Todd presented a detailed summary of the revised plan 

based on recommendations from Council, staff and the neighborhood and went through project features. 
 

Public Testimony: 

Mark Butler, 1675 E Bishop Way, Star ID 83669. Butler is a Land Planner who worked on the comp plan, 
specifically infield properties, wanting to concentrate on properties within the CBD. He believes in mixing 
housing types and believes this is a good use of the land.  
 

John Osmond, 10982 W Rose Lake St, Star ID 83669. Osmond mentioned that he has a map and there is no R7; 
the whole area is an R4 rural subdivision, not high density. He expressed concern for children walking next to a 
canal even with a fence and green space easement and questioned the need for a path leading to nowhere. He 
mentioned that the houses don’t seem to fit and was concerned with the increased traffic.  



  

  

STAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING AUGUST 18, 2020 2 

 
 
 
 

 

Ballard Larson, 10637 W Kyoga St, Star ID 83669. Larson stated that a walkway is useless if no one is going to 
walk on it, that R4 matches with both sides and blends with theirs and expressed concern regarding the open 
canal.  
 

Michael Heck, 1102 W Little Camas Ave, Star ID 83669. Heck expressed concern about the open canal and asked 
if Middleton Water District requires it to remain open. He stated that high density housing does not fit with 
Waterview Estates and the development to the South and said that residents around this property would agree 
to no more than 49 houses in the development.  
 

Ginny Broughton, 10988 W Hidden Brook Dr, Star ID 83669. Broughton expressed concern that traffic would 
increase, that they can’t accommodate that much traffic in the small space, and it should be zoned R5 at the 
maximum with no 2-story houses.  
 

George Otto, 10789 W Hidden Brook Dr, Star ID 83669. Otto expressed concern with the canal and the danger 
to kids and his grandkids and asked that something be done with it.  
 

Sally Otto, 10789 W Hidden Brook Dr, Star ID 83669. Otto stated that they already have traffic issues and the 
extra traffic will be harmful for kids, people walking dogs and the neighborhood.  
 

Len Stalling, 11121 W Box Canyon Ct, Star ID 83669. Stalling expressed concern about the open canal and asked 
that an easement between his house be required. He also spoke of traffic concerns and asked for a clarification 
regarding the easement behind his house on Box Canyon Ct.  
 

Rebuttal: Todd addressed the concerns of the open canal, zoning, density, setbacks, traffic calming, usable open 
spaces, pathways and fencing. The Mayor closed the public hearing and went into deliberations. Nielsen and 
Hershey discussed high density housing, that R5 would fit better with the restrictions, a need to have a safe 
route for the children to go to school, tilling of the ditch, traffic calming and more usable open space. It was 
agreed that the Council would take a detailed look when the Preliminary Plat comes in. Hershey moved to 
approve. Nielsen seconded the motion with negotiating other setback options. All ayes. Motion carried.  
 

SHORT RECESS  
 

C)  Public Hearing – Greiner’s Hope Springs 

No ex parte contact from Council members 

Applicant: Tucker Johnson, 372 S Eagle Rd Suite 328, Eagle ID 83616. The Applicant is requesting approval of a 

vacation of existing utility easements no longer necessary on the property previously approved as the Greiner’s 

Hope Springs Subdivision. There was discussion regarding an easement for a private road which would also be 

vacated, relocating a water line, providing a new utility easement, deenergizing the old line, and that there are 

no pedestrian pathways in the easement.  Building/Zoning Administrator, Shawn Nickel confirmed that the 

umbrella approval means that there is no need for further public hearings and meetings.  
 

Public Testimony:  
Chris Todd, 53 N Plummer Road, Star ID 83669. Todd is helping out Landon Cooley with 6245 Brandon Road, 
who was under the impression he was going to tap into the water line and Todd and wanted to make sure that 
Johnson has open communication and working with Breckon Land Design on what that connection would look 
like.  
 

Rebuttal: Johnson stated that they will continue the conversation with their engineer and will coordinate what is 
best for both and work with Star Sewer and Water, making sure the connection remains viable. The Mayor 
closed the public hearing and went into deliberations. Nielsen moved to approve. Hershey seconded the motion 
with the reassurance that upon execution the affected parties would be in agreeance. All ayes. Motion carried.  
 

 

 

 



  

  

STAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING AUGUST 18, 2020 3 

 
 
 
 

D)  Star River Holdings Development Agreement Modification for Crystal Springs Apartments 

Nielsen moved to table this public hearing indefinitely at the request of the applicant and added a condition that 

the Applicant will be responsible for all financial impacts of re-noticing and rescheduling of public hearing. 

Salmonsen seconded the motion. All ayes. Motion carried.  
 

E)  Public Hearing – Norterra Subdivision (Sample Property) 

Hershey moved to table this public hearing to September 1, 2020. Nielsen seconded the motion. All ayes. 

Motion carried. 
 

F)  Adopt response to ACHD 5-year Integrated Work Plan 

The Transportation Committee looked at the ACHD 5-year Integrated Work Plan and helped developed a letter. 

The Mayor pointed out a few items to be included in the letter and there was a discussion with Kristy Enselman, 

with ACHD regarding the letter, with the requests from the City and the timeline and priorities for the requests. 

Nielsen moved to make the necessary changes to the letter and send it. Hershey seconded the motion. All ayes. 

Motion carried.  
 

7. REPORTS 
  

Shawn Nickel, Staff – Plans to have two workshops and an open house in September. Dates to come.  
 

Councilman Hershey – His committees are not really meeting yet but reported that the Star Outreach served 
1100 people during the summer lunch program.  
 

Councilwoman Salmonsen – The Air Quality Board met and adopted the next year’s budget. Salmonsen let 
citizens know that if they had concerns about taking their vehicles in, they could file for extensions. The 
Pathways and Beautification Committee met, and they have an Eagle Scout who is working on a project down by 
the river, taking out barbed-wire and creating benches. They are also working on the 3rd annual “Make Star 
Shine” Day and still waiting for the dog park.  
 

Councilman Nielsen – No committee reports but he expressed appreciation for the new chairs and the City staff 
maintenance crews stating that the parks have never looked better and the attention to detail shows. 
 

Mayor Chadwick – Met with Don Hubble and spoke at one of their Hubble Hero houses, where they build Hero 
Houses and make donations to organizations. At the Mayor’s request they made a $10,000 donation to Star 
Outreach. The City put in for a grant for fiber from Hunter’s Creek to 960 Main and received $395,000 to be 
approved by the Council. The completion date is scheduled for December 15, 2020. Demo has begun on 960 
Main and Republic Services has donated dumpsters and fees.  
 

8. ADJOURNMENT:  The Mayor adjourned the meeting at 9:28 pm. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted:                                                                        Approved: 
  
 
 
Meredith Hudson, Deputy City Clerk     Trevor A Chadwick, Mayor   
  
         



  

STAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING SEPTEMBER 01, 2020 1 

 
 
 

STAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
 

September 1, 2020 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:   
The regular meeting of the Star City Council was held on Tuesday, September 1, 2020 at Star City Hall, 10769 W. 
State Street in Star, Idaho. Mayor Trevor Chadwick called the meeting to order at 7:01 pm and all stood for the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2. ROLL CALL:   
Council Present: David Hershey, Michael Keyes, Jennifer Salmonsen, Kevin Nielsen.  
Council Absent: None 
 

3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:   
Keyes moved to approve the agenda with the following changes: 6A - the Public Hearing for Amazon Falls will be 
tabled to 09/15/20, 6C - Craftsman Estates rezone has been removed, and 6D - the Public Hearing for Norterra 
Subdivsion will be tabled to 09/15/20. Nielsen seconded the motion. All ayes. Motion carried. 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA:   
Nielsen moved to approve the consent agenda. Salmonsen seconded the motion. Keyes was absent for the 
Greiner’s Hope Springs Subdivision Easement Vacation, so he abstained from that item only. All ayes. Motion 
carried. 
 

5. PRESENTATIONS/PUBLIC INPUT:   
 

Presentation: Crime Stoppers – Kenny Pittman This scheduled presentation did not occur. 
 

6. OLD/NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A) Public Hearing – Amazon Falls Subdivision Development Agreement Modification 
Hershey moved to table the Public Hearing for Amazon Falls to September 15, 2020. Nielsen seconded the 
motion. All ayes. Motion carried.  
 

B) Public Hearing – Star River Ranch Private Street (Gate) 
No ex parte contact from Council members 
Applicant: Tim Eck, 6152 W Half Moon Ln, Eagle ID 83616. The Applicant is seeking approval of a Private Street 
application for a private gate at the entrance to an existing private street (Buena Vista Lane) within the existing 
Star River Ranch development. Eck summarized his request. Keyes asked if the Sportsman’s access would be 
reopened after excavation is finished and asked when they intend to go vertical on the project. The Mayor 
closed the public hearing and went into deliberations. Nielsen moved to approve the Star Ranch Private Road 
with the conditions of the staff report. Keyes seconded the motion. All ayes. Motion carried.  
 

C) Public Hearing – Craftsman Estates North Rezone & Preliminary Plat 
No ex parte contact from Council members.  
Applicant: Stephanie Leonard with KM Engineering, 9233 W State St, Boise ID 83714. The Applicant withdrew 
the application for the N Craftsman Estates for Commercial and Rezone to C-1 District and is now seeking 
approval of a Preliminary Plat for a proposed residential subdivision consisting of 24 single family residential lots 
and 3 common lots. Leonard detailed the project including access points, usable open space, lot type, size and 
density. Council members mentioned concerns from the neighborhood regarding traffic calming, clubhouses, 
greenways, light intrusion, garbage and construction pick up, privacy for the street and there was a discussion 
about pathways.  The Mayor asked for clarification about having a secondary Fire emergency access and asked if 



  

STAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING SEPTEMBER 01, 2020 2 

 
 
 

there would be a new plat for the commercial area to make it residential. Planning/Zoning Administrator, Shawn 
Nickel confirmed that Star Fire is not requiring a secondary access.   
 

Public Testimony: 
Carl Hughes, 32274 W Pavo St, Star ID 83669. Hughes inquired about road improvements and was concerned 
about an increase in traffic. He asked if there would be low income housing and was concerned that it would 
cause the subdivision to decrease in value. He mentioned that the clubhouse and swimming pool were not as 
expected and wondered if the other subdivision would have access to their amenities.  
 

Bret Hormuth, 2990 N Can Ada, Star ID 83669. He was signed up to testify regarding the Commercial but 
because it has been removed, all his issues and objections have been resolved.   
 

Rebuttal: 
Leonard addressed the road improvements, the range of homes, and amenities. The Mayor closed the hearing 
and went into deliberations. The Council members all expressed their support for this proposal with all the 
changes that have been suggested and encouraged citizens to participate in the workshop for the 
Comprehensive Plan Map and have their voices heard. Nielsen moved to approve with conditions of approval 
with a pathway provided if possible, traffic calming, ADA compliant surfacing of any trails, to participate in ITD’s 
proportionate share and work with the Weaver’s on trying to find a solution for light mitigation. Keyes seconded 
the motion. All ayes. Motion carried.  
  

D) Public Hearing – Norterra Subdivision (Sample Property) Annexation & Zoning 
Hershey moved to table the Public Hearing for Norterra Subdivision to September 15, 2020. Salmonsen 
seconded the motion. All ayes. Motion carried.  
 

E) Ordinance No 312 – Canopi Estates Annexation & Zoning 
Hershey moved to dispense with the rules to be able to approve the ordinance after reading once by title only. 
Keyes seconded the motion. Roll call. All ayes. Nielsen moved to approve Ordinance 312. Keyes seconded the 
motion. All ayes. Motion carried. 
 

F) Ordinance No 313 – Rosti Farms Annexation & Zoning 
Nielsen moved to dispense with the rules to be able to approve the ordinance after reading once by title only. 
Hershey seconded the motion. Roll call. All ayes. Nielsen moved to approve Ordinance 313. Hershey seconded 
the motion. All ayes. Motion carried. 
 

G) Ordinance No 314 – Rosti Farms Rezone 
Keyes moved to dispense with the rules to be able to approve the ordinance after reading once by title only. 
Hershey seconded the motion. Roll call. All ayes. Keyes moved to approve Ordinance 314. Nielsen seconded 
the motion. All ayes. Motion carried. 
 

H) Resolution 20-07 Valley Regional Transit Representatives 
Hershey is the primary representative and The Mayor is the back up. Nielsen moved to adopt the resolution. 
Salmonsen seconded the motion. All ayes. Motion carried.  
 

I) Approval of the Governor’s Public Safety Grant Award 
The City applied for a grant to run fiber from Hunters Creek to 960 Main, to open up public Internet access for 
children to be able to do schoolwork. Keyes moved to approve the Master Service Agreement. Hershey 
seconded the motion. Nielsen asked if there was any obligation for Internet safety. The Mayor and City 
Attorney, Chris Yorgason responded that there would be firewalls and content filters set up and the terms are 
still being worked out. Keyes amended his motion to include filtering. Hershey amended his second. All ayes. 
Motion carried. 
 

J) Approval of Dude Solutions Contract 
Dude Solutions is our online platform and we have only been using a portion of what it is capable of. This  



  

STAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING SEPTEMBER 01, 2020 3 

 
 
 

proposal will allow us to utilize the full benefits and allow us to streamline our process. Keyes confirmed that 
this is Enterprise wide and will help all the departments, not just the building department. Keyes moved to 
approve the contract. Nielsen seconded the motion. All ayes. Motion carried.  
 

7. REPORTS: 
 

Shawn Nickel, Staff – We received 3 proposals for the RFP South Area and will have the recommendations ready 
for the September 15th Council Meeting agenda. Dates for the upcoming workshops are Tuesday, September 8 
at 6:30 pm and Tuesday, September 29 at 6:30 pm, with an Open House on Tuesday, September 22 at 6:30 pm. 
Nickel introduced our new City Planner, Ryan Field who will also be helping with Code Enforcement.  
 

Councilman Hershey – His committees are meeting later this month but wanted to wish his daughter, Amber a 
Happy Birthday.  
 

Councilman Keyes – He was excited to see the progress of 960 Main. He attended a meeting with Star Sewer 
and Water and had a few items to share. The district just activated 2 new wells and abandoned one. The one 
they abandoned they believe was responsible for a lot of the water issues and they believe that the two new 
ones will improve the water quality. There are plans in the next few months for a new lift station at Kingsbury 
and are still on track to get the lift station South of the River online in the March timeframe.  
 

Councilwoman Salmonsen – The Pathways and Beautification Committee is meeting next Wednesday. They do a 
quarterly service award and are opening it up to the citizens to nominate a person or business. She attended the 
Ada and Canyon County trails group meeting. One of the Pathway committee members will be going on a tour 
with an Eagle employee who manages their trail system. An equestrian representative sits on the committee 
and will be making a presentation to possibly make the trail accessible to horses. Keyes asked for an update on 
the fairgrounds. Salmonsen met with the Expo Idaho Citizens Advisory Committee and there was a developer 
who put a plan for the fairgrounds out to the news media. The committee has separated into sub committees 
and are looking at three vision plans; agriculture and outdoor, sports and outdoor recreation, and mixed use.  
 

Councilman Nielsen – His committees are not meeting currently but he will be meeting with The Mayor on some 
potential economic development activities. Nielsen called attention to the passing of Irene Wilson and 
acknowledged her accomplishments and service over her lifetime in Star.  
 

Mayor Chadwick – The 960 Main demo is completed, and construction is on track. Plans are still going forward 
for the Pavilion Dog Park and they have received a $5000 grant from the Realtors Association. Plans for Hunters 
Creek improvements are on track to be completed this Fall and ADA improvements at Blake Park are going 
forward as well. We will be getting the Traffic Impact Study shortly. The Mayor thanked Staff for all their hard 
work and mentioned economic opportunities to come. 
 

8. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Nielsen moved to enter into Executive Session. Salmonsen seconded the motion. Roll Call.  
 

9. ADJOURNMENT:  The Mayor adjourned the meeting at 8:21 pm. 
 

Executive Session adjourned at 9:02 pm. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted:                                                                        Approved: 
  
 
 
Meredith Hudson, Deputy City Clerk     Trevor A Chadwick, Mayor   
  
         



  

STAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 1 

 
 
 

STAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
 

September 15, 2020 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:   
The regular meeting of the Star City Council was held on Tuesday, September 15, 2020 at Star City Hall, 10769 
W. State Street in Star, Idaho. Mayor Trevor Chadwick called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm and all stood for 
the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. ROLL CALL:   
Council Present: David Hershey, Michael Keyes, Jennifer Salmonsen, Kevin Nielsen 
Council Absent: None 
 

3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:   
Keyes moved to approve the agenda. Nielsen seconded the motion. All ayes. Motion carried. 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA:   
Hershey moved to approve the consent agenda. Salmonsen seconded the motion. Keyes and Salmonsen 
abstained from voting on item 4Aa. Keyes read the Domestic Violence Proclamation. Salmonsen read the 
Constitution Week Proclamation. All ayes. Motion carried. 
 

5. PRESENTATIONS/PUBLIC INPUT:   
 

A) 2018-2019 Audit: Jordan Zwygart, CPA, Auditor – via Zoom 
Zwygart went over the Balance Sheet, Income Statement, Financial Statements, Budget VS Actuals and Internal 
Controls. He confirmed that it was a good audit report, they were able to get everything they needed, and 
everything was materially correct with no issues. Nielsen clarified that we did not have a loan with Star Fire 
Department, but a lease with option to purchase. 
 

B) PERSI: Mr. Hampton 
Hampton gave an overview of the year. There was discussion regarding the details of the PERSI plan, including 
457 transfer, the risk for municipalities, staff’s interest in the plan, the benefits of the plan, vesting time, 
investment return, options for elected officials, and eligibility. It was determined that we were one of the only 
Employers in Idaho not participating, that staff and The Mayor were in support of participating, that the Council 
members could opt out, and the City would ensure that there was fair compensation for any employees who 
may be negatively affected.   

 

6. OLD/NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A)  Motion by Council to approve the 2018-2019 Audit Report 
Keyes moved to approve the report. Hershey seconded. Salmonsen requested to see a report more frequently. 
All ayes. Motion carried. 
 

B)  PERSI Discussion/Decision  
Nielsen asked about contribution levels. The Mayor said they budgeted in PERSI at 11% for employees. There 
was some concern with the benefit for the Council, but the previous presentation addressed those concerns. 
There was discussion on the various ways to work out the details for the impacted employees. City Attorney, 
Chris Yorgason said the Auditor would need to be involved to make sure there was no negative impact. Nielsen 
moved to keep the City Council as is and provide PERSI for The Mayor and staff and work out the details with the 
auditor. Keyes seconded the motion. The Mayor asked for January 1, 2021 start date. All ayes. Motion carried.  
 



  

STAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 2 

 
 
 

 
C)  Amended Intergovernmental Agreement with Star Fire District 
Yorgason explained the agreement. Keyes moved to adopt the amended agreement. Hershey seconded the 
motion. Roll Call. All ayes. Motion carried.  
 

D)  South of the River Sub Area Bid and Contract Approval 
Planning/Zoning Administrator, Shawn Nickel met with staff Ryan Field, The Mayor and Council President 
Hershey and reviewed the proposals, compared costs, services, extra services and made a recommendation to 
Council. Proposals were from three companies: Kimley-Horn and Associates, Logan Simpson Design and MAKERS 
Architecture and Urban Design. Staff recommended that they accept the proposal for MAKERS Design as the 
preferred consultant plan. Nielsen asked if they could show the proposals in a side by side comparison and go 
into detail on why they made their recommendation. Nickel replied that they looked at Idaho and Treasure 
Valley project experience, budget range, and the teams as a whole, and offered several examples of MAKERS 
Design’s previous work.  
 

FIVE MINUTE RECESS  
 

Restarted the Council Meeting 7:54 
 

Nielsen continued his questioning about how staff came to their recommendation. There was a discussion that 
concluded that the Council would like to have more time to review the proposals and to see some further 
presentations from the consultants. It was determined that we could have a special meeting and invite each 
group to make a separate timed presentation to the Council with all having the same scoring criteria and 
guidelines. The Mayor suggested October 1 for a Special Meeting and to have the approval at the regular Council 
Meeting on October 6.  

 

E)  Public Hearing – Norterra Subdivision Annexation & Zoning, DA, Preliminary Plat & Private Street 
Keyes moved to table this public hearing until October 6, 2020. Hershey seconded. All ayes. Motion carried. 
 

F)  Public Hearing – Canvasback Subdivision Annexation & Zoning, Preliminary Plat 
Keyes moved to table this public hearing until October 6, 2020. Hershey seconded. All ayes. Motion carried. 
 

G)  Public Hearing – Amazon Falls Subdivision DA Modification  

No exparte contact from Council members.  
Applicant: Chris Todd, on behalf of AF Investments, 53 N Plummer Rd, Star ID 83669. The Applicant is seeking a 
Development Agreement Modification for Amazon Falls Subdivision to add language regarding proportionate 
share collection with the Idaho Transportation Department. In attendance with Todd, was Maxine Schvaneveldt, 
4505 Hwy 16, Eagle ID 83616. The Mayor closed the public hearing and went into deliberations. Keyes moved to 
approve the modification with a provision for the proportionate share with ITD. Hershey seconded. All ayes. 
Motion carried.   
 

H) Public Hearing – Gary Saunders Annexation & Zoning 
No ex parte contact from Council members. 
Applicant: Gary Saunders, 3254 N Wing Road, Star ID 83669. The Applicant is seeking approval of an Annexation 
and Zoning and a Development Agreement. The Mayor closed the public hearing and went into deliberations. 
Nickel confirmed that both the ACHD report and ITD agreement would be part of the Development Agreement. 
Nielsen moved to approve the application. Hershey seconded the motion. All ayes. Motion carried.  
 

 
 
 



  

STAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 3 

 
 
 

 
REPORTS: 
 

Jake Vogt, Chief of Police – The radar trailer was delivered and should be registered and up by next week. Vogt 
detailed some of the features of the Radar Trailer, including providing speed compliance reports and having a 
two-directional data collection. He envisions that they do the study, collect the data, and provide the 
information to the public. There was a discussion on data storage, retention and distribution. It was decided that 
they would meet with an IT specialist and decide on the most effective way to manage the data. Vogt received 
two applicants for the Detective position. They will be interviewing candidates and a decision will be made by 
next week.  

Councilman Nielsen – Nothing to report. 

Councilwoman Salmonsen – The Pathways and Beautification Committee has selected its Second Quarter 
Service Award recipient and nominations are open for the third quarter. The committee is also working on a 
design element plan that will connect with the Sub Area Plan. The Eagle Scout project has been funded. He is 
cleaning up the river, taking down some barbed wire and putting together some fences.  “Make Star Shine” will 
be on November 7, which provides yardwork assistance for the elderly or disabled. Volunteers are needed and 
can register on the website. The Committee is working on a bird habitat at the River Walk and may need 
funding. They would like to have more dog clean-up stations at the river. The Mayor confirmed that 2 more 
stations were being put up.   

Councilman Keyes – The Transportation committee has been working on the Impact Fee Study, had a 
presentation with Canyon County and anticipates that it will be adopted about January 1. Keyes had a tour of 
960 Main with The Mayor and Nielsen.  

Councilman Hershey – Nothing to report. 

Mayor Chadwick – Will be meeting with The Mayor of Middleton to continue discussing the impact area 
between them. The Mayor reminded everyone to be fire wise, that we have a lot of dry grass in our foothills and 
we need to be careful to protect our properties and citizens.  

ADJOURNMENT:  The Mayor adjourned the meeting at 8:45 pm. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted:                                                                        Approved: 
  
 
 
Meredith Hudson, Deputy City Clerk     Trevor A Chadwick, Mayor   
  
         



  

STAR CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING OCTOBER 01, 2020 1 

 
 
 

STAR CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
 

October 01, 2020 
 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:   
The special meeting of the Star City Council was held on Thursday, October 1, 2020 at Star City Hall, 
10769 W. State Street in Star, Idaho. Mayor Trevor Chadwick called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm and 
all stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2. ROLL CALL:   
Council Present: David Hershey, Michael Keyes, Jennifer Salmonsen  
Council Absent: Kevin Nielsen  
 

3. ORAL PRESENTATIONS FROM BIDDERS ON THE SOUTH OF THE RIVER RFP:   
Three firms submitted proposals in response to the City’s RFP. Each firm was allotted 20 mins to present 
an oral and visual proposal and were then given 10 minutes for questions and answers by the City 
Council and Mayor. The firms were not allowed to observe or hear each other’s presentations. Each 
company had in-person representatives as well as team members who attended remotely. The firms 
were given the same selection criteria which consisted of: 
1. Cost 

2. Reference from other clients attesting to firm’s quality of work and compliance with performance   schedules 

3. Experience of the firm with this particular type of project 

4. Experience of the firm with other type Comprehensive Plan projects 

5. Current capacity to accomplish the work in the required time 
 

Attendees: In order of Presentation: 
 

LOGAN SIMPSON  
In Person 

• Bruce Meighen, Project Principal In Charge with Logan Simpson – Primary Speaker 
Via Zoom 

• Megan Moore, Project Manager with Logan Simpson 

• Ted Kamp, Real Estate Market Analyst with Leland Consulting 

• Nick Foster, Transportation Planner with Kittleson & Associates 
 

5 MINUTE RECESS 
 

KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES 
In Person 

• Steven Chester, Project Manager – Primary Speaker 
Via Zoom 

• Brandon McDougald, Boise Office Lead 

• Brad Lonberger, Project Principal 

• Troy Russ, Strategic Advisor 
 

5 MINUTE RECESS 
 



  

STAR CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING OCTOBER 01, 2020 2 

 
 
 

MAKERS ARCHITECTURE AND URBAN DESIGN, LLP 
In Person 

• Jay Gibbons, Planner with South Beck & Baird 

• John Roters, Project Manager with South Beck & Baird 

• Jim Mihan with South Beck & Baird 

• Amber Morales with South Beck & Baird 

• Ryan Morgan, Civil Engineer with Keller Associates 
Via Zoom 

• John Owen, Principal Architect with Makers – Primary Speaker 
 
 The Mayor concluded the presentations.  
 

5. DISCUSSION/DECISION  
 

The council was not able to make a decision at the conclusion of the presentations as the agenda was 
not listed as an action item. The decision was tabled until the next Council meeting on 10/06/2020. 
 

5. ADJOURNMENT:  The Mayor adjourned the meeting at 9:01 pm. 
 

















File # FP-20-17, FP-20-19 Page 1 
Rosti Farms Subdivision 
Final Plat – Phase I & II 

 

             CITY OF STAR 
 

                   LAND USE STAFF REPORT 
 

 
TO:   Mayor & Council 

FROM:   Ryan B. Field, Assistant City Planner  

MEETING DATE: November 17, 2020 

FILE(S) #: FP-20-17, FP-20-19 Final Plat, Rosti Farms Subdivision Phase I & II 

 

REQUEST 

 

Applicant requests approval of the Rosti Farms Subdivision Final Plat, Phase I & II.  The subject 

property is generally located at the southeast corner of N. Pollard Lane and W. Floating Feather 

Road in Star, Idaho. Ada County Parcel Numbers S040434700, S0409212400, S0409120800, 

S0409131300, S0409244305 and S0409244575.  

APPLCIANT/REPRESENTATIVE:         OWNER: 

 

Sabrina Durtschi      Toll Southwest, LLC 

3103 W. Sheryl Drive      313 W. Sheryl Drive 

Meridian, Idaho 83642     Meridian, Idaho 83642   

 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

 

Land Use Designation - Residential R-3-PUD-DA 

 

Phase I   Phase II    

Acres -    20.76 acres   9.07 acres   

Residential Lots -  48    36 

Common Lots -  11    5  

     

HISTORY   

 

June 16, 2020 Council approved applications for Annexation and Zoning (AZ-20-03) and 

Preliminary Plat/PUD (PP-20-02) for Rosti Farms Subdivision. The 

preliminary plat was approved for 426 single family residential lots, 60 

common lots and 7 commercial lots.   

 

 

     

 



File # FP-20-17, FP-20-19 Page 2 
Rosti Farms Subdivision 
Final Plat – Phase I & II 

GENERAL DISCUSSION 

 

The Final Plat layouts for Phase I & II complies with the approved Preliminary Plat. 

 

Staff Reviewed Comments from the Preliminary Plat Approval/Findings of Fact: 

 

Lot sizes as listed on the preliminary plat range in size from the smallest at 6,000 sq. feet with an 

average lot size of 8,832 sq. feet. The subdivision is proposed to develop in ten phases.  The 

Applicant has provided a variety of lot widths and depths for several different housing plans and 

types. 

 

Common/open space for the development consists of 31.53 acres (18.26%) total open space 

within common lots. The development is required to provide a minimum of 15% open space, 

10% usable. The open space provided by the applicant currently includes large open space areas 

and amenities including a community pool and pool house, multiple tot-lots, multiple plazas 

with picnic shelters with benches and pathways and natural areas throughout the development.   

 

The current Zoning Ordinance requires one site amenity for each 20-acres of development area 

(total of 9 amenities is required). Proposed amenities within the development include the 

following: 

 

1. Swimming Pool & Pool House 

2. Tot Lot #1 (Children’s Play Structure Amenity) 

3. Tot Lot #2 (Children’s Play Structure Amenity) 

4. Picnic Area 

5. Plaza #1 (Quality of Life Amenity) 

6. Plaza #2 with Shelter (Quality of Life Amenity) 

7. Pocket Park #1 (Quality of Life Amenity) 

8. Pocket Park #2 (Quality of Life Amenity) 

9. Pocket Park #3 (Quality of Life Amenity) 

10. Pathways throughout ((Pedestrian or Bicycle Circulation Amenity) 

11. Open Style Fencing Along Drains and Canals ((Quality of Life Amenity) 

 

 

As part of the landscape plan provided to the City, landscaping is depicted in the open space 

areas and along the exterior roadways within common area lots, with street trees being 

proposed within the front yards of the residential lots. The proposed street tree locations are 

consistent with the UDC, Chapter 4, Section B-7 C-3 Street Trees, requiring a minimum density 

of one (1) tree per thirty-five (35) linear feet.   

 

 

 

 

 



File # FP-20-17, FP-20-19 Page 3 
Rosti Farms Subdivision 
Final Plat – Phase I & II 

 

The subdivision has been approved with the following dimensional standards: 

 

Proposed Setbacks: 

 

• Minimum Residential Lot Frontage: 35 feet 

• Front Setbacks (Measured from the back of sidewalk or property line): 20 feet 

• Rear Setbacks: 15 feet 

• Interior Setbacks: 5 feet (for one and two-stories) – Deviation from current 

standards 

• Local Street Side Setbacks: 20 feet 

• Street Landscape Buffers: 

o Arterial Roadway:  35 feet 

o State Highway 16:  50 feet 

o Residential Collectors: 20 feet 

• Maximum Building Height: 35 feet 

• Minimum Lot Size: 6,000 Square Feet 

• Average Lot Size: 8,832 Square Feet 

 

Staff analysis of Final Plat Submittal: 

 

Lot Layout – The gross density of Phase I is 2.31 du/acre, with lots ranging in size from 7,546 

square feet to 19,000 square feet. Phase II has a gross density of 3.97 du/acre, with lot sizes 

ranging from 6,600 square feet to 13,044 square feet.  

 

Common/Open Space and Amenities - To be completed as part of phase 1 and phase 2: 

• Pool 

• Pool-House 

• Playground Area 

• Gazebo 

 

Streetlights – Streetlight plan has been submitted with the final plat application. The streetlight 

plan shows the minimum requirement of 1 streetlight at each intersection and each radius in 

phase 1 and 2. A Streetlight design has not been provided with the final plat application and 

must be submitted and approved before the final plat can be signed. The streetlight design 

must meet the dark sky standards consistent with the intent of the City. Streetlights shall be 

consistent throughout the remaining phases of the subdivision. 

 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATIONS 

 

Notifications of this application were sent to agencies having jurisdiction on October 20, 2020.    

 

October 15 & 26, 2020 Keller Associates   Review Checklist 

October 30, 2020 DEQ    Standard Review 



File # FP-20-17, FP-20-19 Page 4 
Rosti Farms Subdivision 
Final Plat – Phase I & II 

November 2, 2020 Central District Health  Standard Review 

      

FINDINGS 

 

The Council may approve, conditionally approve, deny or table this request.  In order  

to approve this Final Plat, the Unified Development Code requires that Council must find  

the following: 

 

A.  The Plat is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

The Council finds that this subdivision upon Preliminary Plat approval was in conformance with 

the Comprehensive Plan; no changes have been made to change this status. 

 

B. Public services are available or can be made available and are adequate to accommodate the 

proposed development. 

Staff finds that all public services are available and able to accommodate this development. 

 

C.  There is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed development. 

Staff knows of no financial hardship that would prevent services from being provided. 

 

D.  The development will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare; and, 

Staff finds no facts to support that this subdivision phase will be detrimental to the public 

health, safety or general welfare. 

 

E.  The development preserves significant natural, scenic or historic features. 

Staff finds that existing conditions have not substantially changed from the approved 

Preliminary Plat of this subdivision. 

 
 

 

 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 

1. Per the Development Agreement and prior to signing the final plat, developer is to pay 

the traffic mitigation fee required by the Idaho Transportation Department. The 

developer will pay the City $2053.11 per buildable lot within each phase prior to 

signature on the final plat for the applicable phase, capped at $874,625. The City will 

allocate funds to roadway improvements in the vicinity of the project. Phase 1 has 36 

residential lots for a fee of $73,911.96 (36 x $2053.11). Phase 2 has 48 residential lots 

for a fee of $98,549.28 (48 x $2053.11. Total for phases 1 & 2 is $172,461.24.  

2. The approved Preliminary Plat for Rosti Farms Subdivision shall comply with all statutory 

requirements of applicable agencies and districts having jurisdiction in the City of Star. 



File # FP-20-17, FP-20-19 Page 5 
Rosti Farms Subdivision 
Final Plat – Phase I & II 

3. The property associated with this approved Final Plat, in addition to the property of all future 

phases shall be satisfactorily weed abated at all times, preventing a public nuisance, per Star 

City Code Chapter 3, Section 3-1-1 through 3-1-7. 

4. All signed Irrigation District Agreements with the Irrigation Districts shall be provided to the 

City of Star with each subsequent Final Plat application. 

5. Pressurized irrigation systems shall comply with the Irrigation District(s) and the City of Star 

Codes.  Plans for pressurized irrigation systems shall be submitted to, and approved by the 

City of Star Engineer, prior to installation.   

6. The approved Preliminary Plat shall comply with the City of Star Unified Development Code 

regarding landscaping, both internal buffers and frontages. (See Section 8-4 B Landscaping 

Requirements) 

7. A plat note supporting the “Right to Farm Act” as per Idaho Code Title 22, Chapter 45, shall 

be shown on the Final Plat. 

8. A streetlight design must be submitted prior to signature of the final plat. The design 

must meet the dark sky standards consistent with the intent of the City. Streetlights shall be 

consistent throughout the remaining phases of the subdivision. 

9. A plat note shall state that development standards for residential development shall comply 

with the effective building and zoning requirements at time of building permit issuance. 

10. The subsequent Final Plats shall comply with and be in accordance with the current City of 

Star Code, with the exception of any waivers granted by Council. 

11. Requested surety shall be required at 150% of the total estimated installed cost, as approved 

by the City Engineer or Administrator.  The term of approval shall not exceed 180 days. (See 

Section 8-1 C-1 of the Unified Development Code for a list of eligible items.)  

12. A letter from the US Postal Service shall be given to the City at Final Plat stating the 

subdivision is in compliance with the Postal Service. 

13. A form signed by the Star Sewer & Water District shall be submitted to the City prior to the 

signature of the Final Plat stating that all conditions of the District have been met. 

14. A separate sign application is required for any subdivision sign. 

15. As built plans for pressurized irrigation systems shall be submitted to the City of Star prior 

to signature of the final plat. 

16. Applicant shall provide the City with two (2) full size and two (1) 11”x17” copy of the signed 

recorded final plat with all signatures, prior to any building permits being issued.  

17. Development standards for single family residential units shall comply with effective building 

and zoning requirements at time of building permit issuance, or as approved through the 

Development Agreement or as stated herein. 

18. The mylar/final plat shall be signed by the owner, Surveyor, Central District Health, ACHD 

and City Engineer, prior to being delivered to the City of Star for City Clerk’s signature. 

19. A copy of signed irrigation agreements shall be submitted to the City prior to signature of 

the final plat. 

20. All common areas shall be maintained by the Homeowners Association. 

21. The applicant shall provide a sign, to be located at all construction entrances, indicating the 

rules for all contractors that will be working on the property starting at grading and running 

through home sales that addresses items including but not limited to dust, music, dogs, 



File # FP-20-17, FP-20-19 Page 6 
Rosti Farms Subdivision 
Final Plat – Phase I & II 

starting/stopping hours for contractors (7a.m. start time). Sign shall be approved by the 

City prior to start of construction. 

22. A copy of the recorded CC&R’s shall be submitted to the City of Star prior to any building 

permits being issued. 

23. Prior to signature of the final plat, a signed Irrigation District Agreement with the 

Irrigation Districts shall be provided to the City of Star. This requirement shall be with each 

subsequent Final Plat application. 

24. Any additional Condition of Approval as required by Staff and City Council. 

 

COUNCIL DECISION 

 

The Star City Council Approved File # FP-20-17/FP-20-19 Rosti Farms Subdivision, Final Plat, 

Phase I & II on _____________________, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 



1
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. POLLARD LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. BRANDON RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. STATE ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. FLOATING FEATHER RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHWAY 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. BEACON LIGHT RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. FLOATING FEATHER RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. PLUMMER RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. PALMER LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. FLOATING FEATHER RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTRAL VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 EXPRESS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
KL

AutoCAD SHX Text
JB

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/17/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
4705

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSTI FARMS SUBDIVISION PHASE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT  LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION



1
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. POLLARD LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. BRANDON RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. STATE ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. FLOATING FEATHER RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHWAY 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. BEACON LIGHT RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. FLOATING FEATHER RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. PLUMMER RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. PALMER LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. FLOATING FEATHER RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTRAL VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 EXPRESS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
KL

AutoCAD SHX Text
JB

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/25/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
4705

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSTI FARMS SUBDIVISION PHASE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT  LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION





ROSTI FARMS SUBDIVISION NO. 1

(208) 288-2040   fax (208) 288-2557

MERIDIAN, ID  83642

231 E. 5TH ST., STE. A

www.landsolutions.biz

BOOK ____ , PAGE _____

SHEET 1 OF 4

Land Surveying and Consulting

LOCATED IN THE N 1/2 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST, B.M.

CITY OF STAR, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO

2020

CLINTON W. HANSEN

PLS 11118

SURVEYOR'S NARRATIVE

THE BOUNDARY FOR THIS SUBDIVISION WAS DEVELOPED FROM SURVEYED TIES

TO CONTROLLING SECTION CORNER MONUMENTATION, INFORMATION FROM

RECORD OF SURVEY NUMBERS 109, 111, 2649, 4288, 6767, 7072, 11174, AND

CURRENT DEEDS OF RECORD.  THE SURVEYED MONUMENTATION AND

CONTROLLING BOUNDARIES FIT THE RECORDS WELL AND WERE ACCEPTED TO

ESTABLISH THE BOUNDARY FOR THIS SUBDIVISION SHOWN HEREON.

50' 200'100'0'

SCALE: 1" = 100'

SEE SHEET 2 OF 4 FOR DETAIL, NOTES

AND CURVE AND LINE DATA

LOT NUMBER

SET 1/2"x24" REBAR w/PLASTIC CAP

SET 5/8"x30" REBAR w/PLASTIC CAP

FOUND ALUMINUM CAP MONUMENT

LOT LINE

CENTERLINE

SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY

SECTION LINE

FOUND 5/8" REBAR AS NOTED

OTHER EASEMENT LINE AS NOTED

 PERMANENT SIDEWALK EASEMENT,

 INSTRUMENT NO. ____-______

EXISTING ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT

PUBLIC UTILITY, PRESSURE IRRIGATION

 & LOT DRAINAGE EASEMENT LINE -

 SEE NOTES 1 & 2

CALCULATED POINT, NOT SET

FOUND BRASS CAP MONUMENT

LEGEND

FOUND 1/2" REBAR AS NOTED

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen



ROSTI FARMS SUBDIVISION NO. 1

(208) 288-2040   fax (208) 288-2557

MERIDIAN, ID  83642

231 E. 5TH ST., STE. A

www.landsolutions.biz

BOOK ____ , PAGE _____

SHEET 2 OF 4

Land Surveying and Consulting

NOTES

CLINTON W. HANSEN

PLS 11118

SET 1/2"x24" REBAR w/PLASTIC CAP

SET 5/8"x30" REBAR w/PLASTIC CAP

FOUND ALUMINUM CAP MONUMENT

1. ALL LOT LINES COMMON TO PUBLIC STREETS ARE HEREBY DESIGNATED TO HAVE A TEN (10)

FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES, IRRIGATION AND LOT DRAINAGE,

UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN. THIS EASEMENT SHALL NOT PRECLUDE THE CONSTRUCTION OF

PROPER HARD-SURFACED DRIVEWAYS AND WALKWAYS FOR ACCESS TO EACH INDIVIDUAL

LOT.

2. ALL LOTS ARE HEREBY DESIGNATED AS HAVING A FIVE (5) FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT ON

EACH SIDE OF THE INTERIOR SIDE LOT LINES, AND TWELVE (12) FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT

CONTIGUOUS TO ALL REAR LOT LINES, FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES, PRESSURE IRRIGATION, AND

LOT DRAINAGE, UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN. ALL OTHER EASEMENTS ARE AS SHOWN.

3. MINIMUM BUILDING SETBACKS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF STAR

APPLICABLE ZONING AND SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS AT THE TIME OF ISSUANCE OF

INDIVIDUAL BUILDING PERMITS OR AS SPECIFICALLY APPROVED AND/OR REQUIRED, OR AS

SHOWN ON THIS PLAT.

4. ANY RE-SUBDIVISION OF THIS PLAT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE APPLICABLE ZONING

REGULATIONS IN EFFECT AT THE TIME OF THE RESUBDIVISION.

5. IRRIGATION WATER HAS BEEN PROVIDED BY THE MIDDLETON IRRIGATION ASSOCIATION, INC.

AND FOOTHILLS DITCH COMPANY IN COMPLIANCE WITH IDAHO CODE SECTION 31-3805(1)(b).

LOTS WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION SHALL BE ENTITLED TO IRRIGATION WATER FROM THESE

IRRIGATION ENTITIES, TO BE DELIVERED TO LOTS THROUGH A PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION

SYSTEM OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE HOMEOWNER ASSOCIATION. THE HOMEOWNER

ASSOCIATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO ASSESSMENTS BY THESE IRRIGATION ENTITIES.

6. MAINTENANCE OF ANY IRRIGATION OR DRAINAGE PIPE OR DITCH CROSSING A LOT SHALL BE

THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE LOT OWNER UNLESS SUCH RESPONSIBILITY IS ASSUMED BY AN

IRRIGATION/DRAINAGE ENTITY OR THE HOMEOWNER ASSOCIATION.

7. LOT 1, BLOCK 1; LOTS 1 & 7, BLOCK 2; LOT 2, BLOCK 3; LOT 2, BLOCK 4; LOTS 1 & 12, BLOCK 5;

LOTS 1 & 7, BLOCK 6 AND LOTS 1, 9 AND 13, BLOCK 7 ARE DESIGNATED AS COMMON LOTS AND

SHALL BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE ROSTI FARMS SUBDIVISION HOMEOWNER'S

ASSOCIATION, OR ITS ASSIGNS.  SAID LOTS ARE COVERED BY BLANKET EASEMENTS FOR

PUBLIC UTILITIES, IRRIGATION AND LOT DRAINAGE.

8. THIS DEVELOPMENT RECOGNIZES IDAHO CODE SECTION 22-4503, RIGHT TO FARM ACT, WHICH

STATES "NO AGRICULTURAL OPERATION, AGRICULTURAL FACILITY OR EXPANSION THEREOF

SHALL BE OR BECOME A NUISANCE, PRIVATE OR PUBLIC, BY ANY CHANGED CONDITIONS IN

OR ABOUT THE SURROUNDING NONAGRICULTURAL ACTIVITIES AFTER IT HAS BEEN IN

OPERATION FOR MORE THAN ONE (1) YEAR, WHEN THE OPERATION, FACILITY OR EXPANSION

WAS NOT A NUISANCE AT THE TIME IT BEGAN OR WAS CONSTRUCTED. THE PROVISIONS OF

THIS SECTION SHALL NOT APPLY WHEN A NUISANCE RESULTS FROM THE IMPROPER OR

NEGLIGENT OPERATION OF AN AGRICULTURAL OPERATION, AGRICULTURAL FACILITY OR

EXPANSION THEREOF."

9. THIS SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS OF A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED

AS INSTRUMENT NO. ____-______, RECORDS OF ADA COUNTY, IDAHO.

10. LOT 7, BLOCK 2; LOT 12, BLOCK 5; LOT 1, BLOCK 6 AND A PORTION OF LOT 1, BLOCK 7 AS

SHOWN HEREON ARE SERVIENT TO AND CONTAIN THE ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT

STORM WATER DRAINAGE SYSTEM. THESE LOTS ARE ENCUMBERED BY THAT CERTAIN

MASTER PERPETUAL STORM WATER DRAINAGE EASEMENT RECORDED ON NOVEMBER 10,

2015 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2015-103256, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF ADA COUNTY, AND

INCORPORATED HEREIN BY THIS REFERENCE AS IF SET FORTH IN FULL (THE "MASTER

EASEMENT"). THE MASTER EASEMENT AND THE STORM WATER DRAINAGE SYSTEM ARE

DEDICATED TO ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT PURSUANT TO SECTION 40-2302, IDAHO

CODE THE MASTER EASEMENT IS FOR THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE STORM

WATER DRAINAGE SYSTEM.

11. THIS SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS OF AN ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT

LICENSE AGREEMENT RECORDED AS INSTRUMENT NO. ____-______, RECORDS OF ADA

COUNTY, IDAHO.

CALCULATED POINT, NOT SET

DETAIL LEGEND

FOUND 1/2" REBAR AS NOTED

DETAIL

N.T.S.

LOT LINE

CENTERLINE

SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY

SECTION LINE

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen



SHEET 3 OF 4

BOOK ____ , PAGE _____

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEYOR

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERS

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF IDAHO

COUNTY OF ADA

S.S.

NOTARY PUBLIC FOR THE STATE OF IDAHO

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

RESIDING AT

I, CLINTON W. HANSEN, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR IN THE

STATE OF IDAHO, AND THAT THIS PLAT AS DESCRIBED IN THE "CERTIFICATE OF OWNERS" WAS DRAWN FROM

THE FIELD NOTES OF A SURVEY MADE ON THE GROUND UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND ACCURATELY

REPRESENTS THE POINTS PLATTED THEREON, AND IS IN CONFORMITY WITH THE STATE OF IDAHO CODE

RELATING TO PLATS AND SURVEYS.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:   THAT WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, ARE THE OWNERS OF THE REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED BELOW IN

ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, AND THAT WE INTEND TO INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY IN THIS PLAT OF ROSTI FARMS

SUBDIVISION NO. 1;

A PARCEL BEING A PORTION OF THE N ½ OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN, CITY OF STAR, ADA

COUNTY, IDAHO, AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT AN ALUMINUM CAP MONUMENT MARKING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 9, FROM WHICH AN ALUMINUM

CAP MONUMENT MARKING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NW ¼ OF SAID SECTION 9 (W ¼ CORNER) BEARS S 0°30'24” W A DISTANCE OF

2640.51 FEET;

THENCE ALONG THE NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF THE NW ¼ OF THE NW ¼ OF SAID SECTION 9 S 89°39'06” E A DISTANCE OF 1318.80 FEET

TO AN ALUMINUM CAP MONUMENT MARKING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE NE ¼ OF THE NW ¼ OF SAID SECTION 9;

THENCE ALONG THE NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID NE ¼ OF THE NW ¼ S 89°32'00” E A DISTANCE OF 1317.23 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST

CORNER OF THE NW ¼ OF SAID SECTION 9;

THENCE ALONG THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID NW ¼ S 0°38'55” W A DISTANCE OF 59.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE LEAVING SAID BOUNDARY S 89°32'00” E A DISTANCE OF 35.21 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 45°24'06” W A DISTANCE OF 26.91 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 0°28'00” W A DISTANCE OF 256.27 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 44°32'00” E A DISTANCE OF 25.46 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 0°28'00” W A DISTANCE OF 51.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 45°28'00” W A DISTANCE OF 25.46 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 0°28'00” W A DISTANCE OF 266.88 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE;

THENCE A DISTANCE OF 271.60 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 1025.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE LEFT, SAID CURVE HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF

15°10'56” AND A LONG CHORD BEARING S 7°07'28” E A DISTANCE OF 270.81 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 61°12'55” E A DISTANCE OF 25.50 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 17°08'49” E A DISTANCE OF 50.33 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 26°55'01” W A DISTANCE OF 25.50 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE;

THENCE A DISTANCE OF 227.11 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 1025.00 FOOT RADIUS NON-TANGENT CURVE LEFT, SAID CURVE HAVING A

CENTRAL ANGLE OF 12°41'43” AND A LONG CHORD BEARING S 25°55'35” E A DISTANCE OF 226.65 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 57°43'34” W A DISTANCE OF 70.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 15°14'57” W A DISTANCE OF 214.27 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 81°44'52” W A DISTANCE OF 655.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 8°15'08” W A DISTANCE OF 441.50 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 81°44'52” W A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 8°15'08” W A DISTANCE OF 308.50 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 81°44'52” W A DISTANCE OF 9.23 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 8°15'08” W A DISTANCE OF 47.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 8°35'54” W A DISTANCE OF 141.43 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 0°28'00” E A DISTANCE OF 125.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 89°32'00” W A DISTANCE OF 28.31 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 0°28'00” E A DISTANCE OF 177.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 89°32'00” E A DISTANCE OF 266.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 86°10'02” E A DISTANCE OF 232.39 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 89°32'00” E A DISTANCE OF 47.01 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 0°28'00” E A DISTANCE OF 40.44 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 89°32'00” E A DISTANCE OF 47.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 44°32'00” E A DISTANCE OF 28.28 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 89°32'00” E A DISTANCE OF 111.50 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 45°28'00” E A DISTANCE OF 28.28 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 0°28'00” E A DISTANCE OF 268.21 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 44°32'00” W A DISTANCE OF 10.05 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 89°32'00” E A DISTANCE OF 40.91 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

THIS PARCEL CONTAINS 20.76 ACRES MORE OR LESS

ALL THE LOTS IN THIS SUBDIVISION WILL BE ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE WATER SERVICE FROM THE STAR SEWER AND WATER DISTRICT.  THE

STAR SEWER AND WATER DISTIRCT HAS AGREED IN WRITING TO SERVE ALL THE LOTS IN THIS SUBDIVISION.

THE PUBLIC STREETS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE HEREBY DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC.  PUBLIC UTILITY, IRRIGATION AND DRAINAGE

EASEMENTS ON THIS PLAT ARE NOT DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC, BUT THE RIGHT OF ACCESS TO, AND USE OF, THESE EASEMENTS IS

HEREBY RESERVED FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES, DRAINAGE AND FOR ANY OTHER USES AS MAY BE DESIGNATED HEREON AND NO PERMANENT

STRUCTURES OTHER THAN FOR SAID USES ARE TO BE ERECTED WITHIN THE LIMITS OF SAID EASEMENTS.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF WE HAVE HEREUNTO SET OUR HAND THIS ____ DAY OF _________________________ , 20___.

TOLL SOUTHWEST LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

____________________________________________________________

BY SUSAN STANLEY, DIVISION PRESIDENT

(208) 288-2040   fax (208) 288-2557

MERIDIAN, ID  83642

231 E. 5TH ST., STE. A

www.landsolutions.biz

Land Surveying and Consulting

ROSTI FARMS SUBDIVISION NO. 1

ON THIS ____ DAY OF ____________ , 20___, BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED, A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND

FOR SAID STATE PERSONALLY APPEARED SUSAN STANLEY, KNOWN TO ME TO BE THE DIVISION

PRESIDENT OF TOLL SOUTHWEST LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, WHO SUBSCRIBED

SAID LIMITED LLIABILITY COMPANY'S NAME TO THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT, AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO

ME THAT SHE EXECUTED THE SAME IN SAID LIABILITY COMPANY'S NAME.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL THE DAY AND

YEAR IN THIS CERTIFICATE FIRST ABOVE WRITTEN.

CLINTON W. HANSEN

PLS 11118

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen



BOOK ____ , PAGE _____

(208) 288-2040   fax (208) 288-2557

MERIDIAN, ID  83642

231 E. 5TH ST., STE. A

www.landsolutions.biz

SHEET 4 OF 4

Land Surveying and Consulting

APPROVAL OF ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT

PRESIDENT, ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT

CERTIFICATE OF THE COUNTY TREASURER

CERTIFICATE OF THE COUNTY SURVEYOR

ADA COUNTY SURVEYOR

DATE: ______________________              ______________________________________________

COUNTY TREASURER

CERTIFICATE OF COUNTY RECORDER

STATE OF IDAHO

COUNTY OF ADA

S.S.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS INSTRUMENT WAS FILED FOR RECORD AT THE REQUEST OF

LAND SOLUTIONS, P.C., AT ____ MINUTES  PAST ___ O'CLOCK __ .M. ON

DEPUTY EX-OFFICIO RECORDER

THIS ____ DAY OF __________________ , 20___, IN BOOK ____ OF PLATS AT PAGES _______________.

INSTRUMENT NO. ______________________

APPROVAL OF CITY COUNCIL

CITY CLERK

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, CITY ENGINEER IN AND FOR THE CITY OF STAR, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, HEREBY

APPROVE THIS PLAT.

CITY ENGINEER ~ STAR, IDAHO

APPROVAL OF THE CITY ENGINEER

HEALTH CERTIFICATE

CENTRAL DISTRICT HEALTH, EHS                DATE

SANITARY RESTRICTIONS AS REQUIRED BY IDAHO CODE, TITLE 50, CHAPTER 13, HAVE BEEN SATISFIED

ACCORDING TO THE LETTER TO BE READ ON FILE WITH THE COUNTY RECORDER OR HIS AGENT LISTING THE

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL.  SANITARY RESTRICTIONS MAY BE RE-IMPOSED, IN ACCORDANCE WITH

SECTION 50-1326, IDAHO CODE, BY THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF DISAPPROVAL.

FEE:  ______________________

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, CITY CLERK IN AND FOR THE CITY OF STAR, ADA COUNTY ,IDAHO, DO HEREBY

CERTIFY THAT AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL HELD ON THE ____ DAY OF ____________ ,

20___, THIS PLAT WAS DULY ACCEPTED AND APPROVED.

THE FOREGOING PLAT WAS ACCEPTED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY

DISTRICT COMMISSIONERS ON THE ____ DAY OF ___________ , 20___.

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR FOR ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I

HAVE CHECKED THIS PLAT AND FIND THAT IT COMPLIES WITH THE STATE OF IDAHO CODE RELATING TO

PLATS AND SURVEYS.

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, COUNTY TREASURER IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ADA, STATE OF  IDAHO, PER THE

REQUIREMENTS OF I.C. 50-1308, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ANY AND ALL CURRENT AND OR DELINQUENT

COUNTY PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE PROPERTY INCLUDED IN THIS SUBDIVISION HAVE BEEN PAID IN FULL.

THIS CERTIFICATION IS VALID FOR THE NEXT THIRTY (30) DAYS ONLY.

CLINTON W. HANSEN

PLS 11118

ROSTI FARMS SUBDIVISION NO. 1

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen



ROSTI FARMS SUBDIVISION NO. 2

(208) 288-2040   fax (208) 288-2557

MERIDIAN, ID  83642

231 E. 5TH ST., STE. A

www.landsolutions.biz

BOOK ____ , PAGE _____

SHEET 1 OF 3

Land Surveying and Consulting

LOCATED IN THE NE 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST,

B.M., CITY OF STAR, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO

2020

CLINTON W. HANSEN

PLS 11118

SURVEYOR'S NARRATIVE

THE BOUNDARY FOR THIS SUBDIVISION WAS DEVELOPED FROM SURVEYED TIES

TO CONTROLLING SECTION CORNER MONUMENTATION, INFORMATION FROM

RECORD OF SURVEY NUMBERS 109, 111, 2649, 4288, 6767, 7072, 11174, AND

CURRENT DEEDS OF RECORD.  THE SURVEYED MONUMENTATION AND

CONTROLLING BOUNDARIES FIT THE RECORDS WELL AND WERE ACCEPTED TO

ESTABLISH THE BOUNDARY FOR THIS SUBDIVISION SHOWN HEREON.

50' 200'100'0'

SCALE: 1" = 100'

LOT NUMBER

SET 1/2"x24" REBAR w/PLASTIC CAP

SET 5/8"x30" REBAR w/PLASTIC CAP

FOUND ALUMINUM CAP MONUMENT

LOT LINE

CENTERLINE

SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY

SECTION LINE

FOUND 5/8" REBAR AS NOTED

OTHER EASEMENT LINE AS NOTED

 PERMANENT SIDEWALK EASEMENT,

 INSTRUMENT NO. ____-______

EXISTING ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT

PUBLIC UTILITY, PRESSURE IRRIGATION

 & LOT DRAINAGE EASEMENT LINE -

 SEE NOTES 1 & 2

CALCULATED POINT, NOT SET

FOUND BRASS CAP MONUMENT

LEGEND

FOUND 1/2" REBAR AS NOTED

NOTES

1. ALL LOT LINES COMMON TO PUBLIC STREETS ARE HEREBY DESIGNATED TO HAVE

A TEN (10) FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES, IRRIGATION AND

LOT DRAINAGE, UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN. THIS EASEMENT SHALL NOT

PRECLUDE THE CONSTRUCTION OF PROPER HARD-SURFACED DRIVEWAYS AND

WALKWAYS FOR ACCESS TO EACH INDIVIDUAL LOT.

2. ALL LOTS ARE HEREBY DESIGNATED AS HAVING A FIVE (5) FOOT PERMANENT

EASEMENT ON EACH SIDE OF THE INTERIOR SIDE LOT LINES, AND TWELVE (12)

FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT CONTIGUOUS TO ALL REAR LOT LINES, FOR PUBLIC

UTILITIES, PRESSURE IRRIGATION, AND LOT DRAINAGE, UNLESS OTHERWISE

SHOWN. ALL OTHER EASEMENTS ARE AS SHOWN.

3. MINIMUM BUILDING SETBACKS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF

STAR APPLICABLE ZONING AND SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS AT THE TIME OF

ISSUANCE OF INDIVIDUAL BUILDING PERMITS OR AS SPECIFICALLY APPROVED

AND/OR REQUIRED, OR AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT.

4. ANY RE-SUBDIVISION OF THIS PLAT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE APPLICABLE

ZONING REGULATIONS IN EFFECT AT THE TIME OF THE RESUBDIVISION.

5. IRRIGATION WATER HAS BEEN PROVIDED BY THE MIDDLETON IRRIGATION

ASSOCIATION, INC. AND FOOTHILLS DITCH COMPANY IN COMPLIANCE WITH IDAHO

CODE SECTION 31-3805(1)(b). LOTS WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION SHALL BE ENTITLED

TO IRRIGATION WATER FROM THESE IRRIGATION ENTITIES, TO BE DELIVERED TO

LOTS THROUGH A PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION SYSTEM OWNED AND MAINTAINED

BY THE HOMEOWNER ASSOCIATION. THE HOMEOWNER ASSOCIATION WILL BE

SUBJECT TO ASSESSMENTS BY THESE IRRIGATION ENTITIES.

6. MAINTENANCE OF ANY IRRIGATION OR DRAINAGE PIPE OR DITCH CROSSING A

LOT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE LOT OWNER UNLESS SUCH

RESPONSIBILITY IS ASSUMED BY AN IRRIGATION/DRAINAGE ENTITY OR THE

HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION.

7. LOTS 9, 17 AND 25, BLOCK 2 AND LOTS 1 & 13, BLOCK 8 ARE DESIGNATED AS

COMMON LOTS AND SHALL BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE ROSTI FARMS

SUBDIVISION HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION, OR ITS ASSIGNS.  SAID LOTS ARE

COVERED BY BLANKET EASEMENTS FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES, IRRIGATION AND LOT

DRAINAGE.

8. THIS DEVELOPMENT RECOGNIZES IDAHO CODE SECTION 22-4503, RIGHT TO FARM

ACT, WHICH STATES "NO AGRICULTURAL OPERATION, AGRICULTURAL FACILITY

OR EXPANSION THEREOF SHALL BE OR BECOME A NUISANCE, PRIVATE OR

PUBLIC, BY ANY CHANGED CONDITIONS IN OR ABOUT THE SURROUNDING

NONAGRICULTURAL ACTIVITIES AFTER IT HAS BEEN IN OPERATION FOR MORE

THAN ONE (1) YEAR, WHEN THE OPERATION, FACILITY OR EXPANSION WAS NOT A

NUISANCE AT THE TIME IT BEGAN OR WAS CONSTRUCTED. THE PROVISIONS OF

THIS SECTION SHALL NOT APPLY WHEN A NUISANCE RESULTS FROM THE

IMPROPER OR NEGLIGENT OPERATION OF AN AGRICULTURAL OPERATION,

AGRICULTURAL FACILITY OR EXPANSION THEREOF."

9. THIS SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS OF A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

RECORDED AS INSTRUMENT NO. ____-______, RECORDS OF ADA COUNTY, IDAHO.

10. LOT 17, BLOCK 2; LOT 13, BLOCK 8 A PORTION OF LOT 1, BLOCK 8 AS SHOWN

HEREON ARE SERVIENT TO AND CONTAIN THE ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT

STORM WATER DRAINAGE SYSTEM. THESE LOTS ARE ENCUMBERED BY THAT

CERTAIN MASTER PERPETUAL STORM WATER DRAINAGE EASEMENT RECORDED

ON NOVEMBER 10, 2015 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2015-103256, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF

ADA COUNTY, AND INCORPORATED HEREIN BY THIS REFERENCE AS IF SET FORTH

IN FULL (THE "MASTER EASEMENT"). THE MASTER EASEMENT AND THE STORM

WATER DRAINAGE SYSTEM ARE DEDICATED TO ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT

PURSUANT TO SECTION 40-2302, IDAHO CODE THE MASTER EASEMENT IS FOR

THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE STORM WATER DRAINAGE SYSTEM.

11. THIS SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS OF AN ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY

DISTRICT LICENSE AGREEMENT RECORDED AS INSTRUMENT NO. ____-______,

RECORDS OF ADA COUNTY, IDAHO.

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen



SHEET 2 OF 3

BOOK ____ , PAGE _____

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEYOR

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERS

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF IDAHO

COUNTY OF ADA

S.S.

NOTARY PUBLIC FOR THE STATE OF IDAHO

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

RESIDING AT

I, CLINTON W. HANSEN, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR IN THE

STATE OF IDAHO, AND THAT THIS PLAT AS DESCRIBED IN THE "CERTIFICATE OF OWNERS" WAS DRAWN FROM

THE FIELD NOTES OF A SURVEY MADE ON THE GROUND UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND ACCURATELY

REPRESENTS THE POINTS PLATTED THEREON, AND IS IN CONFORMITY WITH THE STATE OF IDAHO CODE

RELATING TO PLATS AND SURVEYS.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:   THAT WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, ARE THE OWNERS OF THE REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED BELOW

IN ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, AND THAT WE INTEND TO INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY IN THIS PLAT OF ROSTI FARMS

SUBDIVISION NO. 1;

A PARCEL BEING A PORTION OF THE NE ¼ OF THE NW ¼ OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN, CITY OF

STAR, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT AN ALUMINUM CAP MONUMENT MARKING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 9, FROM WHICH AN ALUMINUM

CAP MONUMENT MARKING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NW ¼ OF SAID SECTION 9 (W ¼ CORNER) BEARS S 0°30'24” W A DISTANCE

OF 2640.51 FEET;

THENCE ALONG THE NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF THE NW ¼ OF THE NW ¼ OF SAID SECTION 9 S 89°39'06” E A DISTANCE OF 1318.80 FEET

TO AN ALUMINUM CAP MONUMENT MARKING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE NE ¼ OF THE NW ¼ OF SAID SECTION 9;

THENCE ALONG THE NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID NE ¼ OF THE NW ¼ S 89°32'00” E A DISTANCE OF 1317.23 FEET TO THE

NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NW ¼ OF SAID SECTION 9;

THENCE ALONG THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID NW ¼ S 0°38'55” W A DISTANCE OF 59.89 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY

BOUNDARY OF ROSTI FARMS SUBDIVISION NO. 1, AS SHOWN IN BOOK ____ OF PLATS ON PAGES _______ THROUGH _______, RECORDS

OF ADA COUNTY, IDAHO;

THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHERLY BOUNDARY N 89°32'00” W A DISTANCE OF 40.91 FEET TO AN ANGLE POINT ON SAID BOUNDARY BEING

THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTHERLY BOUNDARY THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES:

THENCE S 44°32'00” E A DISTANCE OF 10.05 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 0°28'00” W A DISTANCE OF 268.21 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 45°28'00” W A DISTANCE OF 28.28 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 89°32'00” W A DISTANCE OF 111.50 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 44°32'00” W A DISTANCE OF 28.28 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 89°32'00” W A DISTANCE OF 47.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 0°28'00” W A DISTANCE OF 40.44 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 89°32'00” W A DISTANCE OF 47.01 FEET TO A POINT;

 THENCE N 86°10'02” W A DISTANCE OF 232.39 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE ALONG SAID BOUNDARY, AND LEAVING SAID BOUNDARY AND ALONG THE EXTENSION THEREOF, N 89°32'00” W A DISTANCE OF

631.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 0°28'00” E A DISTANCE OF 28.29 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 89°32'00” W A DISTANCE OF 140.49 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 0°35'48” E A DISTANCE OF 197.63 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 43°00'00” E A DISTANCE OF 86.97 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 0°28'00” E A DISTANCE OF 23.21 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE;

THENCE A DISTANCE OF 15.81 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 837.00 FOOT RADIUS NON-TANGENT CURVE LEFT, SAID CURVE HAVING A

CENTRAL ANGLE OF 1°04'55” AND A LONG CHORD BEARING N 88°39'20” E A DISTANCE OF 15.81 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY;

THENCE N 88°06'52” E A DISTANCE OF 259.56 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE;

THENCE A DISTANCE OF 31.32 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 763.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE RIGHT, SAID CURVE HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE

OF 2°21'07” AND A LONG CHORD BEARING N 89°17'26” E A DISTANCE OF 31.32 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY;

THENCE S 89°32'00” E A DISTANCE OF 853.31 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 44°32'00” E A DISTANCE OF 32.37 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

THIS PARCEL CONTAINS 9.07 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

ALL THE LOTS IN THIS SUBDIVISION WILL BE ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE WATER SERVICE FROM THE STAR SEWER AND WATER DISTRICT.

THE STAR SEWER AND WATER DISTIRCT HAS AGREED IN WRITING TO SERVE ALL THE LOTS IN THIS SUBDIVISION.

THE PUBLIC STREETS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE HEREBY DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC.  PUBLIC UTILITY, IRRIGATION AND DRAINAGE

EASEMENTS ON THIS PLAT ARE NOT DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC, BUT THE RIGHT OF ACCESS TO, AND USE OF, THESE EASEMENTS IS

HEREBY RESERVED FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES, DRAINAGE AND FOR ANY OTHER USES AS MAY BE DESIGNATED HEREON AND NO

PERMANENT STRUCTURES OTHER THAN FOR SAID USES ARE TO BE ERECTED WITHIN THE LIMITS OF SAID EASEMENTS.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF WE HAVE HEREUNTO SET OUR HAND THIS ____ DAY OF _________________________ , 20___.

TOLL SOUTHWEST LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

____________________________________________________________

BY SUSAN STANLEY, DIVISION PRESIDENT

(208) 288-2040   fax (208) 288-2557

MERIDIAN, ID  83642

231 E. 5TH ST., STE. A

www.landsolutions.biz

Land Surveying and Consulting

ROSTI FARMS SUBDIVISION NO. 2

ON THIS ____ DAY OF ____________ , 20___, BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED, A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND

FOR SAID STATE PERSONALLY APPEARED SUSAN STANLEY, KNOWN TO ME TO BE THE DIVISION

PRESIDENT OF TOLL SOUTHWEST LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, WHO SUBSCRIBED

SAID LIMITED LLIABILITY COMPANY'S NAME TO THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT, AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO

ME THAT SHE EXECUTED THE SAME IN SAID LIABILITY COMPANY'S NAME.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL THE DAY AND

YEAR IN THIS CERTIFICATE FIRST ABOVE WRITTEN.

CLINTON W. HANSEN

PLS 11118

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen



BOOK ____ , PAGE _____

(208) 288-2040   fax (208) 288-2557

MERIDIAN, ID  83642

231 E. 5TH ST., STE. A

www.landsolutions.biz

SHEET 3 OF 3

Land Surveying and Consulting

APPROVAL OF ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT

PRESIDENT, ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT

CERTIFICATE OF THE COUNTY TREASURER

CERTIFICATE OF THE COUNTY SURVEYOR

ADA COUNTY SURVEYOR

DATE: ______________________              ______________________________________________

COUNTY TREASURER

CERTIFICATE OF COUNTY RECORDER

STATE OF IDAHO

COUNTY OF ADA

S.S.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS INSTRUMENT WAS FILED FOR RECORD AT THE REQUEST OF

LAND SOLUTIONS, P.C., AT ____ MINUTES  PAST ___ O'CLOCK __ .M. ON

DEPUTY EX-OFFICIO RECORDER

THIS ____ DAY OF __________________ , 20___, IN BOOK ____ OF PLATS AT PAGES _______________.

INSTRUMENT NO. ______________________

APPROVAL OF CITY COUNCIL

CITY CLERK

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, CITY ENGINEER IN AND FOR THE CITY OF STAR, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, HEREBY

APPROVE THIS PLAT.

CITY ENGINEER ~ STAR, IDAHO

APPROVAL OF THE CITY ENGINEER

HEALTH CERTIFICATE

CENTRAL DISTRICT HEALTH, EHS                DATE

SANITARY RESTRICTIONS AS REQUIRED BY IDAHO CODE, TITLE 50, CHAPTER 13, HAVE BEEN SATISFIED

ACCORDING TO THE LETTER TO BE READ ON FILE WITH THE COUNTY RECORDER OR HIS AGENT LISTING THE

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL.  SANITARY RESTRICTIONS MAY BE RE-IMPOSED, IN ACCORDANCE WITH

SECTION 50-1326, IDAHO CODE, BY THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF DISAPPROVAL.

FEE:  ______________________

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, CITY CLERK IN AND FOR THE CITY OF STAR, ADA COUNTY ,IDAHO, DO HEREBY

CERTIFY THAT AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL HELD ON THE ____ DAY OF ____________ ,

20___, THIS PLAT WAS DULY ACCEPTED AND APPROVED.

THE FOREGOING PLAT WAS ACCEPTED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY

DISTRICT COMMISSIONERS ON THE ____ DAY OF ___________ , 20___.

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR FOR ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I

HAVE CHECKED THIS PLAT AND FIND THAT IT COMPLIES WITH THE STATE OF IDAHO CODE RELATING TO

PLATS AND SURVEYS.

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, COUNTY TREASURER IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ADA, STATE OF  IDAHO, PER THE

REQUIREMENTS OF I.C. 50-1308, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ANY AND ALL CURRENT AND OR DELINQUENT

COUNTY PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE PROPERTY INCLUDED IN THIS SUBDIVISION HAVE BEEN PAID IN FULL.

THIS CERTIFICATION IS VALID FOR THE NEXT THIRTY (30) DAYS ONLY.

CLINTON W. HANSEN

PLS 11118

ROSTI FARMS SUBDIVISION NO. 2

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen



15'-0"

SPECIFICATIONS:

SCALE:  1/2" = 1'-0"

H O U S I N G - H E A V Y W A L L A L U M I N U M C O N S T R U C T I O N                              
REFLECTOR  -   HEAVY WALL ALUMINUM CONSTRUCTION. 

SEALED LED OPTICAL MODULE. LOW COPPER A356 ALLOY (<.2% 
COPPER) CAST ALUMINUM HOUSING. INTEGRATED CLEAR TEMPERED 
3/16” GLASS LENS SEALED WITH A CONTINUOUS SILICONE GASKET 
PROTECTS EMITTERS (LED’S) AND EMITTER REFLECTOR-PRISM 
OPTICS, AND SEALS THE MODULE FROM WATER INTRUSION AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS. ENTIRE MODULE MEETS IP67 
RATING

48 EMITTERS (LED’S) DRIVEN AT 350mA FOR 55 TOTAL INPUT WATTS. 
HIGH OUTPUT, WARM WHITE NOMINAL 3000K CCT FOR THE ENTIRE 
M O D U L E . E A C H E M I T T E R I S O P T I C A L L Y C O N T R O L L E D B Y A 
REFLECTOR-PRISM INJECTION MOLDED FROM H12 ACRYLIC (3 TYPES 
PER MODULE; ONE FROM 0°-50°; ONE FROM 50°-65°; ONE FROM 
65°-70°). THE REFLECTOR-PRISMS ARE ARRAYED TO PRODUCE IES 
TYPE III LIGHT DISTRIBUTION. THE ENTIRE OPTICAL MODULE IS FIELD 
ROTATABLE IN THE LUMINAIRE IN 90° INCREMENTS.  

CONSTANT CURRENT  LED DRIVER OPERATES ON INPUT VOLTAGES 
F R O M 1 2 0 - 2 7 7 V . , 5 0 / 6 0 H z . F A C T O R Y W I R E D D R I V E R I S 
INDEPENDENTLY SEALED AND UL LISTED FOR WET LOCATION. 20KA 
SURGE PROTECTOR WITH “ON” LED OPERATIONAL INDICATOR AND 
END OF LIFE OPEN CIRCUIT PROTECTION FOR LUMINAIRE.

DURABLE CORROSION RESISTANT, CAST AND EXTRUDED ALUMINUM 
CONSTRUCTION. 

4" DIA. EXTRUDED FROM 6063  ALLOY ALUMINUM. SHAFT IS HEAT 
TREATED TO PRODUCE A T6 TEMPER. SHAFT IS CIRCUMFERENTIALLY 
WELDED  TO BASE. 

ONE PIECE CORROSION RESISTANT, DURABLE CAST ALUMINUM 
CONSTRUCTION, MINIMUM .225 WALL THICKNESS. BASE CONSISTS 
OF A 19 " D IA .  SMOOTH TAPERED BOTTOM SECTION WITH A 
CONTOURED FLUSH HAND HOLE AND A DECORATIVE TAPERED 
FLUTED SECTION.
  
(4) 3 /4"X24" FULLY GALVANIZED ANCHOR BOLTS. EACH BOLT 
SUPPLIED WITH TWO NUTS AND TWO WASHERS.

POLYESTER POWDER COAT 
(COLOR: BLACK TEXTURED,  RAL-9005-T.)                                  

FIXTURE:

V LED OPTICAL
MODULE:

V LED EMITTERS
AND OPTICS:

V LED DRIVER:

ARM:

SHAFT:

 BASE:

ANCHORAGE:

FINISH:
19"

NOM.

45"
NOM.

ANCHOR
RING 1"
ABOVE 
GRADE

15" DIA. 
BOLT CIRCLE

HAND 
HOLE

C
S

-7486
R

E
V

.   1
 

660 W. AVENUE O, PALMDALE, CA. 93551   (661) 233-2000    FAX NO. (661) 233-2001  www.sunval leyl ight ing.com

CUSTOMER APPROVAL:

A signed approval will be required with the released order

X DATE:

PROPRIETARY SUBMITTAL, DO NOT MODIFY.

22"

34"

20½"

15"

PHOTOCELL

LDENNISO
Line

LDENNISO
Text Box
DARK BRONZE



        Revised 5/29/08                10/26/2020 Page 1 of 6

CITY OF STAR 
FINAL PLAT AND CONSTRUCTION DRAWING REVIEW CHECKLIST

Subdivision: Rosti Farms Subdivision No 1 Phase: 1    Date: 10/15/2020

Developable Lots: 48 Review No: 1

Developer: Toll Southwest LLC

Tel: 208.424.0020 Fax:      Email:      

Engineer: ESE Consultants

Tel: 208.955.6555 Fax:      Email:      

Property Address: Floating Feather and Pollard Rd

Reviewed By: Kelsie Styrlund, E.I., Keller Associates

Review Check By: Ryan Morgan, P.E., Keller Associates

FINAL PLAT REVIEW
ITEM OK NEED N/A FINAL PLAT APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

1 X    
Submit two (2) copies of final engineering construction 
drawings showing streets, sidewalk, water, sewer, 
pressure irrigation, street lighting, landscaping, and other 
public improvements.       

2     X
Submit one (1) 8½ x 11 map showing property in relation 
to floodplain and/or floodway.  Provide Floodplain 
Development Permit Application as required.       

3 X     Provide (1) copy of the “Preliminary Plat Findings of Fact 
and Conclusions of Law”.       

4   X  

Landscape plan provided. Confirm consistent with 
approved preliminary plat.  Landscape plans for storm 
drainage facilities are not consistent with 
construction drawings.  Need Landscape Plans 
approved with Preliminary Plat for comparison. 

5 X     Verified written legal description.       

6   X  
Letter of credit for outstanding pressure irrigation and 
landscaping improvements only when weather 
conditions precludes construction of improvements prior 
to signature of mylar.       

ITEM OK NEED N/A FINAL PLAT REVIEW

7   X  

Public and private easements are shown on plat for open 
spaces, access drives, drainage facilities, floodway 
maintenance boundaries, offsite storage areas and 
connecting piping for detached flood water storage 
impoundments, existing irrigation ditches, new irrigation 
ditches or pipelines, bicycle / pedestrian pathways 



        Revised 5/29/08                10/26/2020 Page 2 of 6

(connectivity to adjacent developments), and irrigation 
piping.  Clarify on plat that the front lot easement for 
utilities is 10 feet, some of the dimensions say 8’.  It 
appears the 8’ easement is for the ACHD sidewalk.  
Please designate these on the plans. 

8 X     Right to Farm Act Note on face of plat.       

9     X

Note on face of plat:  “This subdivision is located within 
zone AE as shown on the firm panel 125 of 875, Ada 
County, Idaho and Incorporated Areas.  A building permit 
shall not be issued for any lot that is located within the 
mapped floodplain until a Flood Plain Development 
Permit is obtained for the individual lot.  Each lot within 
the mapped floodplain shall require an individual Flood 
Plain Development Permit.”       

10   X  
10-foot utility and irrigation easements are shown, or 
noted, along the front lot lines, rear lot lines, and side lot 
lines as required.  See item 7.

11 X    

Note is shown on  the final plat:  “Minimum building 
setbacks shall be in accordance with the City of Star 
applicable zoning and subdivision regulations at the 
time of issuance of individual building permits or as 
specifically approved and / or required, or as shown 
on the this plat.”       

12 X     Seal of Professional Land Surveyor is displayed, dated, 
and signed on face of plat.       

13   X  

Water and sewer easements shown on face of plat.  
(Note to Plan Reviewer:  Provide plat to Justin Walker for 
easement water and sewer easement verification.)  
Please add “and sewer” after water in the owner 
certification.

14   X  

On the signature page of the plat please include the 
following 
“I, THE UNDERSIGNED, CITY ENGINEER IN AND 
FOR THE CITY OF STAR, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, ON 
THIS DAY,
                                      , HEREBY APPROVE THIS 
PLAT.” underneath the APPROVAL OF CITY 
ENGINEER line, and before the signature line.  Provide 
entire signature language.

15   X   “Change of Ownership” document filed with the IDWR to 
the HOA for all conveyable water rights.       

CONSTRUCTION DRAWING REVIEW
ITEM OK NEED N/A GENERAL

16 X    
Construction drawings are stamped, signed, & dated by 
a professional engineer licensed in the State of Idaho.  
     



        Revised 5/29/08                10/26/2020 Page 3 of 6

17   X  
Natural features map showing all existing site features 
and 1-foot contour elevations is provided in accordance 
with the City’s code.  See item 7.

18   X  
Each sheet has north arrow, graphic scale, date, title 
block and sheet number.  It appears that the north 
arrow on page C3.2 is pointing the wrong way.

19 X     All profiles are drawn to the same horizontal scale as 
plan views.       

20 X  

Street lighting plans are provided showing pole locations 
and luminary types.  All street lighting shall be in 
accordance with the current edition of the ISPWC and 
the City of Star Supplemental Specifications.  Move 
streetlight near the corner of Kenora Pl. and 
Shumard St and corner of Kenora Ave and Purple 
Martin St. closer to the street signs. 

ITEM OK NEED N/A FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

21     X Floodplain and floodway boundaries and elevations are 
shown on the grading plans.       

22     X
Building finished floor elevations are greater than or 
equal to 2-feet above the base flood elevation, or 
verification is provided of flood proofing.       

23     X
Roadway centerline elevations and manhole and other 
minor structure rim elevations are 0.5-feet above the 
base flood elevation.       

24     X

All buildings are set back a minimum of 50-feet from the 
floodway boundary line except that when the area of 
special flood hazard boundary is 50-feet or less from the 
flood way line, the boundary line shall be the setback 
line.       

25     X
Easements and conveyance provisions have been made 
for connection between the floodway and any detached 
floodwater storage impoundment.       

26     X
Calculations are provided and show 48-hour max time 
period for 100% utilization of detached storage 
impoundment.       

ITEM OK NEED N/A GRADING PLAN

27 X    
Grading plans are provided and are stamped, dated, and 
signed by a professional engineer licensed in the State 
of Idaho.       

28   X   Grading plans show finished, existing, and base flood 1-
foot contour elevations.  See item 7.

29 X     Drainage facilities and easements are shown.       

30 X  
Plan and profile sheets show proposed and existing 
utilities (rim elevations, pipe invert elevations, etc.), 
finished centerline roadway grades, existing grade, and 
base flood elevations.  

31 X   Existing irrigation ditches, canals, and easements are 
shown.  



        Revised 5/29/08                10/26/2020 Page 4 of 6

32   X   Cut and fill slopes are no steeper that 2H:1V.  (Spot 
checked by City Engineer)  See item 17

33 X    
Tops and toes of all cut and fill slopes are set back from 
property boundary at least 3-feet plus 1/5 the height of 
the cut or fill but need not exceed 10-feet. (Spot checked 
by City Engineer)       

34 X    

Tops and toes of cut and fill slopes are set back from 
structures 6-feet plus 1/5 of the height of the cut or fill but 
need not exceed 10-feet. (Spot checked by City 
Engineer)       

35   X  
Provisions have been made for erosion control at pipe 
outfalls, along steep earth slopes, and within drainage 
ditches. 

36     X
The vertical datum used for elevations shown on grading 
and drainage plans is NAVD 88 for all developments that 
are fully or partially within the floodplain.       

37 X     Existing and proposed elevations match at property 
boundaries.       

ITEM OK NEED N/A DRAINAGE PLAN 

38 X    
Drainage plans are provided and stamped, dated, and 
signed by a professional engineer licensed in the State 
of Idaho.       

39 X    
Drainage calculations are provided and stamped, dated, 
and signed by a professional engineer licensed in the 
State of Idaho.       

40   X   Narrative is provided that describes the proposed 
method of stormwater retention.       

41 X     Drainage calculations contain no arithmetic errors.  (Spot 
checked by City Engineer)       

42   X  

The design storm, percolation rate, or other design 
criteria are within accepted limits. (ITD Zone A—IDF 
Curve;  Storage designed for 100 year storm;  Primary 
conveyance designed for 25-year storm)  Will check 
once sand and grease traps are provided.

43   X  
Peak discharge rate and velocity through sand and 
grease traps calculated and are less than 0.5 ft/sec.  See 
item 49.

44   X   Section view of drainage facility provided.  Provide for 
basins without fore bays.

45 X     Able to determine drainage directions from information 
given.       

46 X     Drainage facilities do not conflict with other utilities.  
(Spot check by City Engineer)       

47     X Provision for conveyance or disposal of roof drainage 
provided for commercial developments.       

48     X Building finished floor elevation shown is above possible 
max water surface elevation and 2-feet above base flood 



        Revised 5/29/08                10/26/2020 Page 5 of 6

elevation.       

49   X  

Storm water pretreatment provided.  BMP facilities are 
designed in conformance with the “State of Idaho 
Catalog of Stormwater Best Management Practices”.  
Ponds with fore bays should not have pipe 
connecting fore bay to primary infiltration basin. 
Infiltrations without fore bays need sand and grease 
traps.

50 X   5-foot setback from property line maintained for drainage 
facilities.       

51 X     Drainage basin / pond dimensions listed or noted.       

52 X     Drainage facilities drawn to scale on grading and 
drainage plan.       

53   X   Drain rock, ASTM C33 sand, or pond liner specified.  

54   X  

3-foot separation from bottom of drainage facility to 
maximum seasonal high groundwater elevation shown 
on detail.  Provide groundwater elevations for all 
storm ponds, it appears not all are provided a 
groundwater elevation.

55 X   Vegetative cover shown over biofiltration facilities.  
     

56   X
Appropriate license agreements have been executed 
and are provided for offsite discharge of storm water.  
     

ITEM OK NEED N/A GRAVITY IRRIGATION

57     X Plan approval letter is provided from the appropriate 
irrigation district.       

ITEM OK NEED N/A PRESSURE IRRIGATION

58 X  
Plans for a pressure irrigation system are provided 
(Required only if development contains more than four 
lots).  Provide pump station design. Revise note 4 to 
provide purple indicator tape for PI lines. 

59 X     The pressure irrigation system is not connected to the 
potable water system.       

60   X   Design provides a minimum of 15 gpm @ 45 PSI to each 
destination point.       

61 X   Easements are provided for all pressure irrigation piping.  
(Note on face of plat).       

62 X     Main line distribution piping is 3-inches in diameter or 
greater.       

63   X Provisions are made for diversion and flow measurement 
from a gravity irrigation source ditch.       

64   X  
Applicant provided verification with a signed contract 
indicating written assurance that provisions have been 
made for ownership, operation, and maintenance of the 
irrigation system.       

65   X   Provide written verification and plan approval from Star 
Sewer and Water District if potable water is planned to 



        Revised 5/29/08                10/26/2020 Page 6 of 6

be used as a secondary irrigation source.       

66   X   Provided verification that water rights will be transferred 
to the association managing entity.       

67   X  
If pressure irrigation will not be available to each lot at all 
times, provide rotation schedule for irrigation system 
usage identifying times and days that pressure irrigation 
will be available to each lot.       

ITEM OK NEED N/A RE-SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS*

68   X  
Return (1) one revised plan set in pdf format with the 
redlined set for review and/or approval to Keller 
Associates.  Unbound or un-collated plan sets will not be 
accepted.       

69   X  
Provide a response letter, referencing the City of Star, 
with the revised plan set that highlights what actions 
were taken to correct any outstanding items.       

*All re-submittals should be returned to the City of Star for re-review.

Notes:

Additional Final Plat Comments:

      

Additional Construction Drawing Comments:

      



        Revised 5/29/08                10/26/2020 Page 1 of 6

CITY OF STAR 
FINAL PLAT AND CONSTRUCTION DRAWING REVIEW CHECKLIST

Subdivision: Rosti Farms No. 2 Phase: 2    Date: 10/26/2020

Developable Lots: 37 Review No: 1

Developer: Toll Southwest LLC

Tel: 208.424.0020 Fax:      Email:      

Engineer: ESE Consultants, Inc

Tel: 208.955.6555 Fax:      Email:

Property Address: W Floating Feather and N Pollard Ln

Reviewed By: Kelsie Styrlund, E.I., Keller Associates

Review Check By: Ryan Morgan, P.E., Keller Associates

FINAL PLAT REVIEW
ITEM OK NEED N/A FINAL PLAT APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

1 X    
Submit two (2) copies of final engineering construction 
drawings showing streets, sidewalk, water, sewer, 
pressure irrigation, street lighting, landscaping, and other 
public improvements.       

2     X
Submit one (1) 8½ x 11 map showing property in relation 
to floodplain and/or floodway.  Provide Floodplain 
Development Permit Application as required.       

3 X     Provide (1) copy of the “Preliminary Plat Findings of Fact 
and Conclusions of Law”.       

4      
Landscape plan provided. Confirm consistent with 
approved preliminary plat.  Please provide a copy of 
the landscape plans approved with the preliminary 
plat.

5 X     Verified written legal description.       

6   X  
Letter of credit for outstanding pressure irrigation and 
landscaping improvements only when weather 
conditions precludes construction of improvements prior 
to signature of mylar.       

ITEM OK NEED N/A FINAL PLAT REVIEW

7   X  

Public and private easements are shown on plat for open 
spaces, access drives, drainage facilities, floodway 
maintenance boundaries, offsite storage areas and 
connecting piping for detached flood water storage 
impoundments, existing irrigation ditches, new irrigation 
ditches or pipelines, bicycle / pedestrian pathways 
(connectivity to adjacent developments), and irrigation 



        Revised 5/29/08                10/26/2020 Page 2 of 6

piping.  Clarify on plat that the front lot easement for 
utilities is 10 feet, some of the dimensions say 8’.  It 
appears the 8’ easement is for the ACHD sidewalk.  
Please designate these on the plans.

8 X     Right to Farm Act Note on face of plat.       

9     X

Note on face of plat:  “This subdivision is located within 
zone AE as shown on the firm panel 125 of 875, Ada 
County, Idaho and Incorporated Areas.  A building permit 
shall not be issued for any lot that is located within the 
mapped floodplain until a Flood Plain Development 
Permit is obtained for the individual lot.  Each lot within 
the mapped floodplain shall require an individual Flood 
Plain Development Permit.”       

10 X    
10-foot utility and irrigation easements are shown, or 
noted, along the front lot lines, rear lot lines, and side lot 
lines as required.       

11 X    

Note is shown on  the final plat:  “Minimum building 
setbacks shall be in accordance with the City of Star 
applicable zoning and subdivision regulations at the 
time of issuance of individual building permits or as 
specifically approved and / or required, or as shown 
on the this plat.”       

12 X     Seal of Professional Land Surveyor is displayed, dated, 
and signed on face of plat.       

13   X  

Water and sewer easements shown on face of plat.  
(Note to Plan Reviewer:  Provide plat to Justin Walker for 
easement water and sewer easement verification.)  
Please add “and sewer” after water in owner 
certification.

14   X  

On the signature page of the plat please include the 
following 
“I, THE UNDERSIGNED, CITY ENGINEER IN AND 
FOR THE CITY OF STAR, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, ON 
THIS DAY,
                                      , HEREBY APPROVE THIS 
PLAT.” underneath the APPROVAL OF CITY 
ENGINEER line, and before the signature line.  Update 
to include full note.

15   X   “Change of Ownership” document filed with the IDWR to 
the HOA for all conveyable water rights.       

CONSTRUCTION DRAWING REVIEW
ITEM OK NEED N/A GENERAL

16 X    
Construction drawings are stamped, signed, & dated by 
a professional engineer licensed in the State of Idaho.  
     

17   X   Natural features map showing all existing site features 



        Revised 5/29/08                10/26/2020 Page 3 of 6

and 1-foot contour elevations is provided in accordance 
with the City’s code.  Provide 1-foot contours. Provide 
labels on existing contours.

18   X  
Each sheet has north arrow, graphic scale, date, title 
block and sheet number.  It appears that the north 
arrows on pg 4 & 5 are pointing the wrong direction, 

19 X     All profiles are drawn to the same horizontal scale as 
plan views.       

20 X    
Street lighting plans are provided showing pole locations 
and luminary types.  All street lighting shall be in 
accordance with the current edition of the ISPWC and 
the City of Star Supplemental Specifications.       

ITEM OK NEED N/A FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

21     X Floodplain and floodway boundaries and elevations are 
shown on the grading plans.       

22     X
Building finished floor elevations are greater than or 
equal to 2-feet above the base flood elevation, or 
verification is provided of flood proofing.       

23     X
Roadway centerline elevations and manhole and other 
minor structure rim elevations are 0.5-feet above the 
base flood elevation.       

24     X

All buildings are set back a minimum of 50-feet from the 
floodway boundary line except that when the area of 
special flood hazard boundary is 50-feet or less from the 
flood way line, the boundary line shall be the setback 
line.       

25     X
Easements and conveyance provisions have been made 
for connection between the floodway and any detached 
floodwater storage impoundment.       

26     X
Calculations are provided and show 48-hour max time 
period for 100% utilization of detached storage 
impoundment.       

ITEM OK NEED N/A GRADING PLAN

27 X    
Grading plans are provided and are stamped, dated, and 
signed by a professional engineer licensed in the State 
of Idaho.       

28   X   Grading plans show finished, existing, and base flood 1-
foot contour elevations.  See item 17.

29 X     Drainage facilities and easements are shown.       

30 X    
Plan and profile sheets show proposed and existing 
utilities (rim elevations, pipe invert elevations, etc.), 
finished centerline roadway grades, existing grade, and 
base flood elevations.       

31 X     Existing irrigation ditches, canals, and easements are 
shown.       

32 X     Cut and fill slopes are no steeper that 2H:1V.  (Spot 
checked by City Engineer)       

33 X     Tops and toes of all cut and fill slopes are set back from 



        Revised 5/29/08                10/26/2020 Page 4 of 6

property boundary at least 3-feet plus 1/5 the height of 
the cut or fill but need not exceed 10-feet. (Spot checked 
by City Engineer)       

34 X    

Tops and toes of cut and fill slopes are set back from 
structures 6-feet plus 1/5 of the height of the cut or fill but 
need not exceed 10-feet. (Spot checked by City 
Engineer)       

35 X    
Provisions have been made for erosion control at pipe 
outfalls, along steep earth slopes, and within drainage 
ditches.  

36     X
The vertical datum used for elevations shown on grading 
and drainage plans is NAVD 88 for all developments that 
are fully or partially within the floodplain.       

37 X     Existing and proposed elevations match at property 
boundaries.       

ITEM OK NEED N/A DRAINAGE PLAN 

38 X    
Drainage plans are provided and stamped, dated, and 
signed by a professional engineer licensed in the State 
of Idaho.       

39 X    
Drainage calculations are provided and stamped, dated, 
and signed by a professional engineer licensed in the 
State of Idaho.       

40   X  
Narrative is provided that describes the proposed 
method of stormwater retention.  Please provide 
explanation of facilities and areas that will be 
captured in this stormwater system.

41 X     Drainage calculations contain no arithmetic errors.  (Spot 
checked by City Engineer)       

42 X    
The design storm, percolation rate, or other design 
criteria are within accepted limits. (ITD Zone A—IDF 
Curve; Storage designed for 100-year storm; Primary 
conveyance designed for 25-year storm)       

43   X  
Peak discharge rate and velocity through sand and 
grease traps calculated and are less than 0.5 ft/sec.  
     

44 X     Section view of drainage facility provided.       

45 X     Able to determine drainage directions from information 
given.       

46 X     Drainage facilities do not conflict with other utilities.  
(Spot check by City Engineer)       

47     X Provision for conveyance or disposal of roof drainage 
provided for commercial developments.       

48     X
Building finished floor elevation shown is above possible 
max water surface elevation and 2-feet above base flood 
elevation.       

49 X     Storm water pretreatment provided.  BMP facilities are 
designed in conformance with the “State of Idaho 



        Revised 5/29/08                10/26/2020 Page 5 of 6

Catalog of Stormwater Best Management Practices”.  
     

50 X     5-foot setback from property line maintained for drainage 
facilities.       

51 X     Drainage basin / pond dimensions listed or noted.       

52 X     Drainage facilities drawn to scale on grading and 
drainage plan.       

53 X     Drain rock, ASTM C33 sand, or pond liner specified.  

54 X  
3-foot separation from bottom of drainage facility to 
maximum seasonal high groundwater elevation shown 
on detail.  Please provide test pit locations from 
Geotech report and logs.

55     X Vegetative cover shown over biofiltration facilities.  
     

56     X
Appropriate license agreements have been executed 
and are provided for offsite discharge of storm water.  
     

ITEM OK NEED N/A GRAVITY IRRIGATION

57     X Plan approval letter is provided from the appropriate 
irrigation district.       

ITEM OK NEED N/A PRESSURE IRRIGATION

58 X    
Plans for a pressure irrigation system are provided 
(Required only if development contains more than four 
lots).       

59 X     The pressure irrigation system is not connected to the 
potable water system.       

60   X   Design provides a minimum of 15 gpm @ 45 PSI to each 
destination point.       

61 X     Easements are provided for all pressure irrigation piping.  
(Note on face of plat).       

62 X     Main line distribution piping is 3-inches in diameter or 
greater.       

63 X     Provisions are made for diversion and flow measurement 
from a gravity irrigation source ditch.       

64   X  
Applicant provided verification with a signed contract 
indicating written assurance that provisions have been 
made for ownership, operation, and maintenance of the 
irrigation system.       

65     X
Provide written verification and plan approval from Star 
Sewer and Water District if potable water is planned to 
be used as a secondary irrigation source.       

66   X   Provided verification that water rights will be transferred 
to the association managing entity.       

67   X  
If pressure irrigation will not be available to each lot at all 
times, provide rotation schedule for irrigation system 
usage identifying times and days that pressure irrigation 
will be available to each lot.       

ITEM OK NEED N/A RE-SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS*



        Revised 5/29/08                10/26/2020 Page 6 of 6

68   X  
Return (1) one revised plan set in pdf format with the 
redlined set for review and/or approval to Keller 
Associates.  Unbound or un-collated plan sets will not be 
accepted.       

69   X  
Provide a response letter, referencing the City of Star, 
with the revised plan set that highlights what actions 
were taken to correct any outstanding items.       

*All re-submittals should be returned to the City of Star for re-review.

Notes:

Additional Final Plat Comments:

      

Additional Construction Drawing Comments:

      



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
1445 North Orchard Street • Boise, ID 83706 • (208) 373-0550  Brad Little, Governor 
www.deq.idaho.gov Jess Byrne, Director 

STATE OF IDAHO 

DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

 

October 30, 2020 

 

 

By e-mail: snickel@staridaho.org  

 

Shawn L. Nickel 

Planning Director and Zoning Administrator 

P.O Box 130 

Star, Idaho 83669 

 

Subject: Rosti Farms Subdivision Final Plat Phase 1 & 2, FP-20-17, and FP-20-19 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to your request for comment.  While DEQ does not review 

projects on a project-specific basis, we attempt to provide the best review of the information provided.  

DEQ encourages agencies to review and utilize the Idaho Environmental Guide to assist in addressing 

project-specific conditions that may apply.  This guide can be found at: deq.idaho.gov/assistance-

resources/environmental-guide-for-local-govts.  

 

The following information does not cover every aspect of this project; however, we have the following 

general comments to use as appropriate: 

 

1. AIR QUALITY 

 Please review IDAPA 58.01.01 for all rules on Air Quality, especially those regarding fugitive 

dust (58.01.01.651), trade waste burning (58.01.01.600-617), and odor control plans 

(58.01.01.776). 

 All property owners, developers, and their contractor(s) must ensure that reasonable controls to 

prevent fugitive dust from becoming airborne are utilized during all phases of construction 

activities per IDAPA 58.01.01.651. 

 DEQ recommends the city/county require the development and submittal of a dust prevention 

and control plan prior to final plat approval.  Dust prevention and control plans incorporate 

appropriate best management practices to control fugitive dust that may be generated at sites.  

Information on fugitive dust control plans can be found at: 

http://www.deq.idaho.gov/media/61833-dust_control_plan.pdf  

 Citizen complaints received by DEQ regarding fugitive dust from development and construction 

activities approved by cities or counties will be referred to the city/county to address under their 

ordinances. 

 Per IDAPA 58.01.01.600-617, the open burning of any construction waste is prohibited. The 

property owner, developer, and their contractor(s) are responsible for ensuring no prohibited 

mailto:snickel@staridaho.org
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/assistance-resources/environmental-guide-for-local-govts
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/assistance-resources/environmental-guide-for-local-govts
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/media/61833-dust_control_plan.pdf


Response to Request for Comment  

October 30, 2020 

Page 2 
 

open burning occurs during construction. 

 For questions, contact David Luft, Air Quality Manager, at (208) 373-0550. 

2. WASTEWATER AND RECYCLED WATER 

 DEQ recommends verifying that there is adequate sewer to serve this project prior to approval.  

Please contact the sewer provider for a capacity statement, declining balance report, and 

willingness to serve this project.   

 IDAPA 58.01.16 and IDAPA 58.01.17 are the sections of Idaho rules regarding wastewater and 

recycled water.  Please review these rules to determine whether this or future projects will 

require DEQ approval.  IDAPA 58.01.03 is the section of Idaho rules regarding subsurface 

disposal of wastewater.  Please review this rule to determine whether this or future projects will 

require permitting by the district health department.  

 All projects for construction or modification of wastewater systems require preconstruction 

approval.  Recycled water projects and subsurface disposal projects require separate permits as 

well. 

 DEQ recommends that projects be served by existing approved wastewater collection systems 

or a centralized community wastewater system whenever possible.  Please contact DEQ to 

discuss potential for development of a community treatment system along with best 

management practices for communities to protect ground water. 

 DEQ recommends that cities and counties develop and use a comprehensive land use 

management plan, which includes the impacts of present and future wastewater management in 

this area.  Please schedule a meeting with DEQ for further discussion and recommendations for 

plan development and implementation.   

For questions, contact Valerie Greear, Water Quality Engineering Manager at (208) 373-0550. 

3. WASTEWATER AND RECYCLED WATER 

 DEQ recommends verifying that there is adequate water to serve this project prior to approval.  

Please contact the water provider for a capacity statement, declining balance report, and 

willingness to serve this project. 

 IDAPA 58.01.08 is the section of Idaho rules regarding public drinking water systems.  Please 

review these rules to determine whether this or future projects will require DEQ approval. 

 All projects for construction or modification of public drinking water systems require 

preconstruction approval.   

 DEQ recommends verifying if the current and/or proposed drinking water system is a regulated 

public drinking water system (refer to the DEQ website at: deq.idaho.gov/water-

quality/drinking-water.aspx).  For non-regulated systems, DEQ recommends annual testing for 

total coliform bacteria, nitrate, and nitrite. 

 If any private wells will be included in this project, we recommend that they be tested for total 

coliform bacteria, nitrate, and nitrite prior to use and retested annually thereafter. 

 DEQ recommends using an existing drinking water system whenever possible or construction of 

http://www.deq.idaho.gov/water-quality/drinking-water.aspx
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/water-quality/drinking-water.aspx


Response to Request for Comment  

October 30, 2020 

Page 3 
 

a new community drinking water system.  Please contact DEQ to discuss this project and to 

explore options to both best serve the future residents of this development and provide for 

protection of ground water resources. 

 DEQ recommends cities and counties develop and use a comprehensive land use management 

plan which addresses the present and future needs of this area for adequate, safe, and sustainable 

drinking water.  Please schedule a meeting with DEQ for further discussion and 

recommendations for plan development and implementation.   

For questions, contact Valerie Greear, Water Quality Engineering Manager at (208) 373-0550. 

4. SURFACE WATER 

 A DEQ short-term activity exemption (STAE) from this office is required if the project will 

involve de-watering of ground water during excavation and discharge back into surface water, 

including a description of the water treatment from this process to prevent excessive sediment 

and turbidity from entering surface water.  

 Please contact DEQ to determine whether this project will require a National Pollution 

Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit. A Construction General Permit from EPA may 

be required if this project will disturb one or more acres of land, or will disturb less than one 

acre of land but are part of a common plan of development or sale that will ultimately disturb 

one or more acres of land.   

 If this project is near a source of surface water, DEQ requests that projects incorporate 

construction best management practices (BMPs) to assist in the protection of Idaho’s water 

resources.  Additionally, please contact DEQ to identify BMP alternatives and to determine 

whether this project is in an area with Total Maximum Daily Load stormwater permit 

conditions. 

 The Idaho Stream Channel Protection Act requires a permit for most stream channel alterations.  

Please contact the Idaho Department of Water Resources (IDWR), Western Regional Office, at 

2735 Airport Way, Boise, or call (208) 334-2190 for more information.  Information is also 

available on the IDWR website at: https://idwr.idaho.gov/streams/stream-channel-alteration-

permits.html  

 The Federal Clean Water Act requires a permit for filling or dredging in waters of the United 

States.  Please contact the US Army Corps of Engineers, Boise Field Office, at 10095 Emerald 

Street, Boise, or call 208-345-2155 for more information regarding permits.   

For questions, contact Lance Holloway, Surface Water Manager, at (208) 373-0550. 

5. HAZARDOUS WASTE AND GROUND WATER CONTAMINATION 

 Hazardous Waste.  The types and number of requirements that must be complied with under the 

federal Resource Conservations and Recovery Act (RCRA) and the Idaho Rules and Standards 

for Hazardous Waste (IDAPA 58.01.05) are based on the quantity and type of waste generated.  

Every business in Idaho is required to track the volume of waste generated, determine whether 

each type of waste is hazardous, and ensure that all wastes are properly disposed of according to 

federal, state, and local requirements. 

 No trash or other solid waste shall be buried, burned, or otherwise disposed of at the project site.  

https://idwr.idaho.gov/streams/stream-channel-alteration-permits.html
https://idwr.idaho.gov/streams/stream-channel-alteration-permits.html


Response to Request for Comment  

October 30, 2020 

Page 4 
 

These disposal methods are regulated by various state regulations including Idaho’s Solid Waste 

Management Regulations and Standards, Rules and Regulations for Hazardous Waste, and Rules 

and Regulations for the Prevention of Air Pollution. 

 Water Quality Standards.  Site activities must comply with the Idaho Water Quality Standards 

(IDAPA 58.01.02) regarding hazardous and deleterious-materials storage, disposal, or 

accumulation adjacent to or in the immediate vicinity of state waters (IDAPA 58.01.02.800); and 

the cleanup and reporting of oil-filled electrical equipment (IDAPA 58.01.02.849); hazardous 

materials (IDAPA 58.01.02.850); and used-oil and petroleum releases (IDAPA 58.01.02.851 and 

852).  

 Petroleum releases must be reported to DEQ in accordance with IDAPA 58.01.02.851.01 and 04.  

Hazardous material releases to state waters, or to land such that there is likelihood that it will 

enter state waters, must be reported to DEQ in accordance with IDAPA 58.01.02.850. 

 Ground Water Contamination.  DEQ requests that this project comply with Idaho’s Ground 

Water Quality Rules (IDAPA 58.01.11), which states that “No person shall cause or allow the 

release, spilling, leaking, emission, discharge, escape, leaching, or disposal of a contaminant into 

the environment in a manner that causes a ground water quality standard to be exceeded, injures a 

beneficial use of ground water, or is not in accordance with a permit, consent order or applicable 

best management practice, best available method or best practical method.”   

For questions, contact Albert Crawshaw, Waste & Remediation Manager, at (208) 373-0550. 

6. ADDITIONAL NOTES 

 If an underground storage tank (UST) or an aboveground storage tank (AST) is identified at the 

site, the site should be evaluated to determine whether the UST is regulated by DEQ.  EPA 

regulates ASTs.  UST and AST sites should be assessed to determine whether there is potential 

soil and ground water contamination.  Please call DEQ at (208) 373-0550, or visit the DEQ 

website deq.idaho.gov/waste-mgmt-remediation/storage-tanks.aspx for assistance. 

 If applicable to this project, DEQ recommends that BMPs be implemented for any of the 

following conditions:  wash water from cleaning vehicles, fertilizers and pesticides, animal 

facilities, composted waste, and ponds.  Please contact DEQ for more information on any of these 

conditions. 

We look forward to working with you in a proactive manner to address potential environmental impacts 

that may be within our regulatory authority.  If you have any questions, please contact me, or any of our 

technical staff at (208) 373-0550. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

 

Aaron Scheff 

Regional Administrator 

DEQ-Boise Regional Office  

 

ec: EDMS#2020AEK241 

http://www.deq.idaho.gov/waste-mgmt-remediation/storage-tanks.aspx




File # FP-20-20 Page 1 
Parkstone Subdivision 
Final Plat – Phase 14 

 

             CITY OF STAR 
 

                   LAND USE STAFF REPORT 
 

 
MEETING DATE:  November 17, 2020 

 

REQUEST:   The Applicant is seeking approval of a Final Plat for Parkstone Subdivision Phase 14 

consisting of 48 residential lots, 6 common lots and 1 City Park lot on 83.53 acres. The phase is 

located in the southwest corner of the approved preliminary plat, south of W. Gloxinia Street in 

Star, Idaho. 

 

FILE #:  FP-19-09 - Final Plat, Phase 14 for the Parkstone Subdivision 

 

APPLICANT/OWNER – REPRESENTATIVE: 
Applicant/Owner    Representative 

River Stone, LLC    Becky McKay 

1500 W. Bannock    Engineering Solutions  

Boise, Idaho 83702    1029 N. Rosario Street, Ste. 100 

      Meridian, Idaho 83642 

PROPERTY INFORMATION: 

Land Use Designation - Residential (R2-DA) 

Acres -    83.53 

Residential Lots -  48 

Common Lots -  6  

Other –    1 (City Park Propertyh) 

     

PROPERTY HISTORY: 

June 1, 2004  Annexation/Zoning approved for the Dudley River Ranch property (314  

   acres), establishing a zoning classification of R-2-DA. 

March 15, 2005 Preliminary Plat and Conditional Use Permit approved for a Planned Unit 

   Development for Heron River at Parkstone Subdivision with 17 conditions  

   of approval.  The conditions of approval included a waiver of the 500 foot  

   minimum block length for two blocks and a waiver from dimensional  

   standards of the R-2 zone. 

March 7, 2006  Approval of Phase 1 Final Plat with special setbacks 

August 15, 2006 Approval of Phase 2 Final Plat 

December 11, 2006 Phase 2 Variance Request for rear setbacks were approved 

February 20, 2007 Approval of Phase 3 Final Plat (later changed to Phase 4) 

May 1, 2007  Approval of Phase 4 Final Plat (later changed to Phase 3) 

November 20, 2007 Approval of Condominium Plat – Phase 1 (4 commercial condo units) 

 



File # FP-20-20 Page 2 
Parkstone Subdivision 
Final Plat – Phase 14 

January 15, 2008 Approval of a Comp Plan Amendment/Amended PP & DA 

1- Changed residential lots to commercial 

2- Changed lot sizes, locations, vacation of ROW 

3- Development Agreement 

4- Waived 500 ft. block length for two blocks only 

May 13, 2010  First Amended Development Agreement 

   576 residential lots – 9 commercial lots – 129.01 open space 

February 15, 2011 Approval of Phase 5 Final Plat 

April 10, 2013  Unbuildable Lots – Phase 2 Block 7, Lots 4-30, 51 and 52; 

   Block 9, Lots 1, 19, 20, 21 

June 5, 2013  Phase 6 Final Plat approved (portion of Ph. 4, previously approved) 

October 29, 2014 Phase 7 Final Plat approved (portion of Ph. 2, previously approved) 

May 3, 2016  Approval of Phase 8 Final Plat 

November 15, 2016 Approval of Phase 9 Final Plat 

June 6, 2017  Approval of Phase 10 Final Plat 

September 19, 2017 Approval of Phase 11 Final Plat 

February 19, 2019 Approval of Phase 12 Final Plat 

August 20, 2019 Approval of Phase 13 Final Plat  

 

GENERAL DISCUSSION: 

 

The Final Plat complies with the approved Preliminary Plat. 

 

This subdivision is in a special flood hazard area and a Flood Hazard Application has been 

submitted. 

 

Special setbacks were required for this subdivision as follows: 

 Front – 15’ 

 Rear – 15’ 

 Side – 5’ for all stories, not just per story 

 Street-side – 20’ 

 

Common/Open Space and Amenities – Open space is approximately 71.2 acres or 85.28% of the 

total site.   This phase includes the dedication of the two ponds and open space that was being 

donated to the City on behalf of the developer. 

 

Landscaping - As required by the Unified Development Code, Chapter 4, Section B-7-C-3 Street 

Trees; the minimum density of one (1) tree per thirty-five (35) linear feet is required. The 

landscaping plan submitted appears to meet this requirement.  (Please see “Tree Selection 

Guide for Streets and Landscapes throughout Idaho”, as adopted by the Unified Development 

Code.) 

 

Streetlights – Streetlight design shall be the same and continuous throughout the subdivision. 

 



File # FP-20-20 Page 3 
Parkstone Subdivision 
Final Plat – Phase 14 

Surety Agreements – See Unified Development Code, Chapter 1, Article C – An irrevocable letter 

of credit or cash shall be issued to the City if landscaping, site amenities, pressurized irrigation 

or fencing cannot be completed.   The amount of the surety shall be equal to not less than one 

hundred twenty (120) percent of the cost of completing the required improvements.  The 

estimated cost for all items shall be provided by the applicant and reviewed and approved by 

the City Engineer.     

 

Fencing – Shall conform to conditions approved with the Preliminary Plat. 

 

NOTIFICATIONS: 

 

Notifications of this application were sent to agencies having jurisdiction on October 29, 2020.   

 

October 26, 2020 Keller Associates   Checklist with Conditions 

November 2, 2020 CDH    Standard Review 

November 4, 2020 IDWR    Standard Review 

November 6, 2020 DEQ    Standard Review 

      

FINDINGS: 

 

The Council may approve, conditionally approve, deny or table this request.  In order  

to approve this Final Plat, the Unified Development Code requires that Council must find  

the following: 

 

A.  The Plat is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Staff finds that this subdivision upon Preliminary Plat approval was in conformance with the 

Comprehensive Plan; no changes have been made to change this status. 
 

B. Public services are available or can be made available and are adequate to accommodate the 

proposed development. 

Staff finds that all public services are available and able to accommodate this development. 

 

C.  There is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed development. 

Staff knows of no financial hardship that would prevent services from being provided. 

 

D.  The development will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare; and, 

Staff finds no facts to support that this subdivision phase will be detrimental to the public 

health, safety or general welfare. 
 

E.  The development preserves significant natural, scenic or historic features. 

Staff finds that existing conditions have not changed from the approved Preliminary Plat of this 

subdivision. 

 

 



File # FP-20-20 Page 4 
Parkstone Subdivision 
Final Plat – Phase 14 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

 

1.   The final plat shall comply with all requirements of the applicable agencies providing services   

      to this subdivision.  

2.   As built plans for pressurized irrigation systems shall be submitted to the City of Star. 

3.   Applicant shall provide the City with one (1) full size and one (1) 11”x17” copy of the signed  

      recorded final plat with all signatures, prior to any building permits being issued.  

4.   Mylar’s/final plats must include the statement supporting the “Right to Farm Act” as per  

      Idaho Code Title 22, Chapter 45. 

5.   Development standards for single family residential units shall comply with effective building  

      and zoning requirements at time of building permit issuance. 

6.   The mylar/final plat shall be signed by the owner, Surveyor, Central District Health, ACHD  

      and City Engineer, prior to being delivered to the City of Star for City Clerk’s signature.   

7.   A copy of signed irrigation agreements shall be sent to the City prior to mylar/final plat  

      signature. 

8.   All common areas shall be maintained by the Parkstone Homeowners Association. 

9.   Streetlights shall be continuous throughout the subdivision and shall be maintained by the  

      Parkstone HOA.  Streetlights shall be installed prior to any building occupancy. 

10. Street trees shall be installed per Chapter 4, Section B-7-C-3 Street Trees. 

11. A letter from the US Postal Service shall be given to the City prior to final mylar signature 

      stating the subdivision is in compliance with the Postal Service. 

12. A form signed by the Star Sewer & Water District shall be submitted to the City prior to final  

      mylar signature stating that all conditions have been met. 

13. The Applicant should follow the recommendations and guidelines from the  Idaho 

      Department of Fish and Game regarding development within sensitive areas adjacent to the   

      Boise River. 

14. The Applicant shall work with Boise River Flood Control District #10 to ensure all necessary 

      maintenance and access easements are obtained. 

15. The Applicant shall make arrangements to dedicate the open space with the two ponds 

      to the City with this phase. The applicant shall contact the City for details prior to the 

      signing of the final plat. 

       

 

 

COUNCIL DECSION:  

 

The Star City Council approved File # FP-20-20 Parkstone Subdivision, Final Plat, Phase 14 on 

November 17, 2020. 

 

 

 
 

 



VICIN

V
IC

IN
IT

Y
 M

A
P

LLPSE OLUTIONS
NGINEERING

P
A

R
K

S
T

O
N

E
 S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
 N

O
. 1

4

SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLUMMER RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. STATE STREET    (HWY 44)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOISE RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILDBRANCH DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAR RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. SENECA SPRINGS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOISE RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. CARIBEE INLET DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. BREAKWATER AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. ASPEN LAKES WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. OTTER ROCK DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. DELPHINUM AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. BELL FOUNTAIN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. LOTHBURY DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. OTTER ROCK DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 600'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG.DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJ. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MERIDIAN, IDAHO  83642

AutoCAD SHX Text
1029 N. ROSARIO STREET, SUITE 100

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phone (208) 938-0980  Fax (208) 938-0941

AutoCAD SHX Text
/MISC/PARKSTONE-14_VIC MAP.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATED IN SECTIONS 16 & 17, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST, B.M. CITY OF STAR, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO

AutoCAD SHX Text
200518

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/02/20





NGINEERING
OLUTIONS

ES
LLP

11118

R
O

Y

E

L

C

.
W

N

O

H

A

D

I

F
O

E

T

A

T

S

D

E

R

E
T

S

I

G

E

R

A

H

O

T

N

I

L

A

N

V

R

U

S

D

N

AL

O

I

S

S

E

F

O
R

P

N

N

E

S

100' 400'200'0'

SCALE: 1" = 200'

BOOK ____ , PAGE ________

PARKSTONE SUBDIVISION NO. 14

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen



NGINEERING
OLUTIONS

ES
LLP

11118

R
O

Y

E

L

C

.
W

N

O

H

A

D

I

F
O

E

T

A

T

S

D

E

R

E
T

S

I

G

E

R

A

H

O

T

N

I

L

A

N

V

R

U

S

D

N

AL

O

I

S

S

E

F

O
R

P

N

N

E

S

50' 200'100'0'

SCALE: 1" = 100'

BOOK ____ , PAGE ________

PARKSTONE SUBDIVISION NO. 14

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen



NGINEERING
OLUTIONS

ES
LLP

11118

R
O

Y

E

L

C

.
W

N

O

H

A

D

I

F
O

E

T

A

T

S

D

E

R

E
T

S

I

G

E

R

A

H

O

T

N

I

L

A

N

V

R

U

S

D

N

AL

O

I

S

S

E

F

O
R

P

N

N

E

S

PARKSTONE SUBDIVISION N0. 14

CLINTON W. HANSEN

PLS 11118

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

BOOK ____ , PAGE ________

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen



NGINEERING
OLUTIONS

ES
LLP

11118

R
O

Y

E

L

C

.
W

N

O

H

A

D

I

F
O

E

T

A

T

S

D

E

R

E
T

S

I

G

E

R

A

H

O

T

N

I

L

A

N

V

R

U

S

D

N

AL

O

I

S

S

E

F

O
R

P

N

N

E

S

PARKSTONE SUBDIVISION NO. 14 BOOK ____ , PAGE ________

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen



        Revised 5/29/08                11/6/2020 Page 1 of 6

CITY OF STAR 
FINAL PLAT AND CONSTRUCTION DRAWING REVIEW CHECKLIST

Subdivision: Parkstone No. 14 Phase: 14    Date: 10/26/2020

Developable Lots: 49 Review No: 1

Developer: River Stone LLC

Tel: 208.794.7694 Fax:      Email:      

Engineer: Engineering Solutions LLP, Kathy Stroschein

Tel: 208.938.0980 Fax:      Email:

Property Address: Main St and W Otter Rock Dr.

Reviewed By: Kelsie Styrlund, E.I., Keller Associates

Review Check By: Ryan Morgan, P.E., Keller Associates

FINAL PLAT REVIEW
ITEM OK NEED N/A FINAL PLAT APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

1 X    
Submit two (2) copies of final engineering construction 
drawings showing streets, sidewalk, water, sewer, 
pressure irrigation, street lighting, landscaping, and other 
public improvements.       

2   X  
Submit one (1) 8½ x 11 map showing property in relation 
to floodplain and/or floodway.  Provide Floodplain 
Development Permit Application as required.       

3 X     Provide (1) copy of the “Preliminary Plat Findings of Fact 
and Conclusions of Law”.       

4   X   Landscape plan provided. Confirm consistent with 
approved preliminary plat.       

5   X  
Verified written legal description.  It appears that C1 
does not match between the plat and legal 
description.

6   X  
Letter of credit for outstanding pressure irrigation and 
landscaping improvements only when weather 
conditions precludes construction of improvements prior 
to signature of mylar.       

ITEM OK NEED N/A FINAL PLAT REVIEW

7   X  

Public and private easements are shown on plat for open 
spaces, access drives, drainage facilities, floodway 
maintenance boundaries, offsite storage areas and 
connecting piping for detached flood water storage 
impoundments, existing irrigation ditches, new irrigation 
ditches or pipelines, bicycle / pedestrian pathways 
(connectivity to adjacent developments), and irrigation 



        Revised 5/29/08                11/6/2020 Page 2 of 6

piping.  It appears that Lot 1, Block 36 doesn’t exist, 
please update. It appears that note 10 is incomplete, 
please update. (plans have 2 lot 34s)

8 X   Right to Farm Act Note on face of plat.       

9 X    

Note on face of plat:  “This subdivision is located within 
zone AE as shown on the firm panel 125 of 875, Ada 
County, Idaho and Incorporated Areas.  A building permit 
shall not be issued for any lot that is located within the 
mapped floodplain until a Flood Plain Development 
Permit is obtained for the individual lot.  Each lot within 
the mapped floodplain shall require an individual Flood 
Plain Development Permit.”  Cover, note 12.

10 X    
10-foot utility and irrigation easements are shown, or 
noted, along the front lot lines, rear lot lines, and side lot 
lines as required.       

11   X  

Note is shown on  the final plat:  “Minimum building 
setbacks shall be in accordance with the City of Star 
applicable zoning and subdivision regulations at the 
time of issuance of individual building permits or as 
specifically approved and / or required, or as shown 
on the this plat.”   Please update note to include full 
note.    

12 X     Seal of Professional Land Surveyor is displayed, dated, 
and signed on face of plat.       

13   X  
Water and sewer easements shown on face of plat.  
(Note to Plan Reviewer:  Provide plat to Justin Walker for 
easement water and sewer easement verification.)  Add 
“and sewer” after water in owner certification.

14   X  

On the signature page of the plat please include the 
following 
“I, THE UNDERSIGNED, CITY ENGINEER IN AND 
FOR THE CITY OF STAR, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, ON 
THIS DAY,
                                      , HEREBY APPROVE THIS 
PLAT.” underneath the APPROVAL OF CITY 
ENGINEER line, and before the signature line.  Update 
to include full note.

15   X   “Change of Ownership” document filed with the IDWR to 
the HOA for all conveyable water rights.       

CONSTRUCTION DRAWING REVIEW
ITEM OK NEED N/A GENERAL

16 X    
Construction drawings are stamped, signed, & dated by 
a professional engineer licensed in the State of Idaho.  
     

17 X   Natural features map showing all existing site features 
and 1-foot contour elevations is provided in accordance 



        Revised 5/29/08                11/6/2020 Page 3 of 6

with the City’s code.  

18 X     Each sheet has north arrow, graphic scale, date, title 
block and sheet number.       

19 X     All profiles are drawn to the same horizontal scale as 
plan views.       

20 X    
Street lighting plans are provided showing pole locations 
and luminary types.  All street lighting shall be in 
accordance with the current edition of the ISPWC and 
the City of Star Supplemental Specifications.       

ITEM OK NEED N/A FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

21 X   Floodplain and floodway boundaries and elevations are 
shown on the grading plans.       

22 X  
Building finished floor elevations are greater than or 
equal to 2-feet above the base flood elevation, or 
verification is provided of flood proofing.       

23 X  
Roadway centerline elevations and manhole and other 
minor structure rim elevations are 0.5-feet above the 
base flood elevation.  Show BFE on all utility profiles. 

24 X  

All buildings are set back a minimum of 50-feet from the 
floodway boundary line except that when the area of 
special flood hazard boundary is 50-feet or less from the 
flood way line, the boundary line shall be the setback 
line.       

25 X  
Easements and conveyance provisions have been made 
for connection between the floodway and any detached 
floodwater storage impoundment.       

26 X  
Calculations are provided and show 48-hour max time 
period for 100% utilization of detached storage 
impoundment.       

ITEM OK NEED N/A GRADING PLAN

27 X    
Grading plans are provided and are stamped, dated, and 
signed by a professional engineer licensed in the State 
of Idaho.       

28 X   Grading plans show finished, existing, and base flood 1-
foot contour elevations.  

29 X     Drainage facilities and easements are shown.       

30 X    
Plan and profile sheets show proposed and existing 
utilities (rim elevations, pipe invert elevations, etc.), 
finished centerline roadway grades, existing grade, and 
base flood elevations.       

31 X   Existing irrigation ditches, canals, and easements are 
shown

32 X   Cut and fill slopes are no steeper that 2H:1V.  (Spot 
checked by City Engineer)  

33   X  
Tops and toes of all cut and fill slopes are set back from 
property boundary at least 3-feet plus 1/5 the height of 
the cut or fill but need not exceed 10-feet. (Spot checked 
by City Engineer)  See comment below.



        Revised 5/29/08                11/6/2020 Page 4 of 6

34 X    

Tops and toes of cut and fill slopes are set back from 
structures 6-feet plus 1/5 of the height of the cut or fill but 
need not exceed 10-feet. (Spot checked by City 
Engineer)       

35 X  
Provisions have been made for erosion control at pipe 
outfalls, along steep earth slopes, and within drainage 
ditches.       

36 X    
The vertical datum used for elevations shown on grading 
and drainage plans is NAVD 88 for all developments that 
are fully or partially within the floodplain.       

37 X   Existing and proposed elevations match at property 
boundaries.  

ITEM OK NEED N/A DRAINAGE PLAN 

38 X    
Drainage plans are provided and stamped, dated, and 
signed by a professional engineer licensed in the State 
of Idaho.       

39 X    
Drainage calculations are provided and stamped, dated, 
and signed by a professional engineer licensed in the 
State of Idaho.       

40 X     Narrative is provided that describes the proposed 
method of stormwater retention.       

41 X     Drainage calculations contain no arithmetic errors.  (Spot 
checked by City Engineer)       

42 X    
The design storm, percolation rate, or other design 
criteria are within accepted limits. (ITD Zone A—IDF 
Curve;  Storage designed for 100 year storm;  Primary 
conveyance designed for 25-year storm)       

43 X  
Peak discharge rate and velocity through sand and 
grease traps calculated and are less than 0.5 ft/sec.  
     

44 X     Section view of drainage facility provided.       

45 X   Able to determine drainage directions from information 
given.  

46 X     Drainage facilities do not conflict with other utilities.  
(Spot check by City Engineer)       

47     X Provision for conveyance or disposal of roof drainage 
provided for commercial developments.       

48 X    
Building finished floor elevation shown is above possible 
max water surface elevation and 2-feet above base flood 
elevation.       

49 X    
Storm water pretreatment provided.  BMP facilities are 
designed in conformance with the “State of Idaho 
Catalog of Stormwater Best Management Practices”.  
     

50 X     5-foot setback from property line maintained for drainage 
facilities.       

51 X     Drainage basin / pond dimensions listed or noted.       



        Revised 5/29/08                11/6/2020 Page 5 of 6

52 X     Drainage facilities drawn to scale on grading and 
drainage plan.       

53 X     Drain rock, ASTM C33 sand, or pond liner specified.  
     

54      
3-foot separation from bottom of drainage facility to 
maximum seasonal high groundwater elevation shown 
on detail.  DT-2

55     X Vegetative cover shown over biofiltration facilities.  
     

56   X  
Appropriate license agreements have been executed 
and are provided for offsite discharge of storm water.  
Overflow discharge to Lawrence-Kennedy Lateral 
will require a license agreement. 

ITEM OK NEED N/A GRAVITY IRRIGATION

57   X Plan approval letter is provided from the appropriate 
irrigation district.       

ITEM OK NEED N/A PRESSURE IRRIGATION

58 X    
Plans for a pressure irrigation system are provided 
(Required only if development contains more than four 
lots).       

59 X     The pressure irrigation system is not connected to the 
potable water system.       

60   X   Design provides a minimum of 15 gpm @ 45 PSI to each 
destination point.       

61 X     Easements are provided for all pressure irrigation piping.  
(Note on face of plat).       

62 X     Main line distribution piping is 3-inches in diameter or 
greater.       

63     X Provisions are made for diversion and flow measurement 
from a gravity irrigation source ditch.       

64 X  
Applicant provided verification with a signed contract 
indicating written assurance that provisions have been 
made for ownership, operation, and maintenance of the 
irrigation system.       

65     X
Provide written verification and plan approval from Star 
Sewer and Water District if potable water is planned to 
be used as a secondary irrigation source.       

66 X   Provided verification that water rights will be transferred 
to the association managing entity.       

67   X  
If pressure irrigation will not be available to each lot at all 
times, provide rotation schedule for irrigation system 
usage identifying times and days that pressure irrigation 
will be available to each lot.       

ITEM OK NEED N/A RE-SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS*

68   X  
Return (1) one revised plan set in pdf format with the 
redlined set for review and/or approval to Keller 
Associates.  Unbound or un-collated plan sets will not be 
accepted.       



        Revised 5/29/08                11/6/2020 Page 6 of 6

69   X  
Provide a response letter, referencing the City of Star, 
with the revised plan set that highlights what actions 
were taken to correct any outstanding items.       

*All re-submittals should be returned to the City of Star for re-review.

Notes:

Additional Final Plat Comments:

      

Additional Construction Drawing Comments:

 Wall by pond construction – Ryan to look into



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
1445 North Orchard Street • Boise, ID 83706 • (208) 373-0550  Brad Little, Governor 
www.deq.idaho.gov Jess Byrne, Director 

STATE OF IDAHO 

DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

 

November 6, 2020 

 

By e-mail:  snickel@staridaho.org  

 

Shawn L. Nickel  

City Planner and Zoning Administrator 

City of Star 

P.O. Box 130 

Star, Idaho 83669 

 

Subject: Parkstone Subdivision Final Plat Phase 14, FP-20-20 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to your request for comment.  While DEQ does not review 

projects on a project-specific basis, we attempt to provide the best review of the information provided.  

DEQ encourages agencies to review and utilize the Idaho Environmental Guide to assist in addressing 

project-specific conditions that may apply.  This guide can be found at: deq.idaho.gov/assistance-

resources/environmental-guide-for-local-govts.  

 

The following information does not cover every aspect of this project; however, we have the following 

general comments to use as appropriate: 

 

1. AIR QUALITY 

 Please review IDAPA 58.01.01 for all rules on Air Quality, especially those regarding fugitive 

dust (58.01.01.651), trade waste burning (58.01.01.600-617), and odor control plans 

(58.01.01.776). 

 All property owners, developers, and their contractor(s) must ensure that reasonable controls to 

prevent fugitive dust from becoming airborne are utilized during all phases of construction 

activities per IDAPA 58.01.01.651. 

 DEQ recommends the city/county require the development and submittal of a dust prevention 

and control plan prior to final plat approval.  Dust prevention and control plans incorporate 

appropriate best management practices to control fugitive dust that may be generated at sites.  

Information on fugitive dust control plans can be found at: 

http://www.deq.idaho.gov/media/61833-dust_control_plan.pdf  

 Citizen complaints received by DEQ regarding fugitive dust from development and construction 

activities approved by cities or counties will be referred to the city/county to address under their 

ordinances. 

 Per IDAPA 58.01.01.600-617, the open burning of any construction waste is prohibited. The 

property owner, developer, and their contractor(s) are responsible for ensuring no prohibited 

mailto:snickel@staridaho.org
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/assistance-resources/environmental-guide-for-local-govts
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/assistance-resources/environmental-guide-for-local-govts
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/media/61833-dust_control_plan.pdf


Response to Request for Comment  

November 6, 2020 

Page 2 
 

open burning occurs during construction. 

 For questions, contact David Luft, Air Quality Manager, at (208) 373-0550. 

2. WASTEWATER AND RECYCLED WATER 

 DEQ recommends verifying that there is adequate sewer to serve this project prior to approval.  

Please contact the sewer provider for a capacity statement, declining balance report, and 

willingness to serve this project.   

 IDAPA 58.01.16 and IDAPA 58.01.17 are the sections of Idaho rules regarding wastewater and 

recycled water.  Please review these rules to determine whether this or future projects will 

require DEQ approval.  IDAPA 58.01.03 is the section of Idaho rules regarding subsurface 

disposal of wastewater.  Please review this rule to determine whether this or future projects will 

require permitting by the district health department.  

 All projects for construction or modification of wastewater systems require preconstruction 

approval.  Recycled water projects and subsurface disposal projects require separate permits as 

well. 

 DEQ recommends that projects be served by existing approved wastewater collection systems 

or a centralized community wastewater system whenever possible.  Please contact DEQ to 

discuss potential for development of a community treatment system along with best 

management practices for communities to protect ground water. 

 DEQ recommends that cities and counties develop and use a comprehensive land use 

management plan, which includes the impacts of present and future wastewater management in 

this area.  Please schedule a meeting with DEQ for further discussion and recommendations for 

plan development and implementation.   

For questions, contact Valerie Greear, Water Quality Engineering Manager at (208) 373-0550. 

3. WASTEWATER AND RECYCLED WATER 

 DEQ recommends verifying that there is adequate water to serve this project prior to approval.  

Please contact the water provider for a capacity statement, declining balance report, and 

willingness to serve this project. 

 IDAPA 58.01.08 is the section of Idaho rules regarding public drinking water systems.  Please 

review these rules to determine whether this or future projects will require DEQ approval. 

 All projects for construction or modification of public drinking water systems require 

preconstruction approval.   

 DEQ recommends verifying if the current and/or proposed drinking water system is a regulated 

public drinking water system (refer to the DEQ website at: deq.idaho.gov/water-

quality/drinking-water.aspx).  For non-regulated systems, DEQ recommends annual testing for 

total coliform bacteria, nitrate, and nitrite. 

 If any private wells will be included in this project, we recommend that they be tested for total 

coliform bacteria, nitrate, and nitrite prior to use and retested annually thereafter. 

 DEQ recommends using an existing drinking water system whenever possible or construction of 

http://www.deq.idaho.gov/water-quality/drinking-water.aspx
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/water-quality/drinking-water.aspx


Response to Request for Comment  

November 6, 2020 

Page 3 
 

a new community drinking water system.  Please contact DEQ to discuss this project and to 

explore options to both best serve the future residents of this development and provide for 

protection of ground water resources. 

 DEQ recommends cities and counties develop and use a comprehensive land use management 

plan which addresses the present and future needs of this area for adequate, safe, and sustainable 

drinking water.  Please schedule a meeting with DEQ for further discussion and 

recommendations for plan development and implementation.   

For questions, contact Valerie Greear, Water Quality Engineering Manager at (208) 373-0550. 

4. SURFACE WATER 

 A DEQ short-term activity exemption (STAE) from this office is required if the project will 

involve de-watering of ground water during excavation and discharge back into surface water, 

including a description of the water treatment from this process to prevent excessive sediment 

and turbidity from entering surface water.  

 Please contact DEQ to determine whether this project will require a National Pollution 

Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit. A Construction General Permit from EPA may 

be required if this project will disturb one or more acres of land, or will disturb less than one 

acre of land but are part of a common plan of development or sale that will ultimately disturb 

one or more acres of land.   

 If this project is near a source of surface water, DEQ requests that projects incorporate 

construction best management practices (BMPs) to assist in the protection of Idaho’s water 

resources.  Additionally, please contact DEQ to identify BMP alternatives and to determine 

whether this project is in an area with Total Maximum Daily Load stormwater permit 

conditions. 

 The Idaho Stream Channel Protection Act requires a permit for most stream channel alterations.  

Please contact the Idaho Department of Water Resources (IDWR), Western Regional Office, at 

2735 Airport Way, Boise, or call (208) 334-2190 for more information.  Information is also 

available on the IDWR website at: https://idwr.idaho.gov/streams/stream-channel-alteration-

permits.html  

 The Federal Clean Water Act requires a permit for filling or dredging in waters of the United 

States.  Please contact the US Army Corps of Engineers, Boise Field Office, at 10095 Emerald 

Street, Boise, or call 208-345-2155 for more information regarding permits.   

For questions, contact Lance Holloway, Surface Water Manager, at (208) 373-0550. 

5. HAZARDOUS WASTE AND GROUND WATER CONTAMINATION 

 Hazardous Waste.  The types and number of requirements that must be complied with under the 

federal Resource Conservations and Recovery Act (RCRA) and the Idaho Rules and Standards 

for Hazardous Waste (IDAPA 58.01.05) are based on the quantity and type of waste generated.  

Every business in Idaho is required to track the volume of waste generated, determine whether 

each type of waste is hazardous, and ensure that all wastes are properly disposed of according to 

federal, state, and local requirements. 

 No trash or other solid waste shall be buried, burned, or otherwise disposed of at the project site.  

https://idwr.idaho.gov/streams/stream-channel-alteration-permits.html
https://idwr.idaho.gov/streams/stream-channel-alteration-permits.html


Response to Request for Comment  

November 6, 2020 

Page 4 
 

These disposal methods are regulated by various state regulations including Idaho’s Solid Waste 

Management Regulations and Standards, Rules and Regulations for Hazardous Waste, and Rules 

and Regulations for the Prevention of Air Pollution. 

 Water Quality Standards.  Site activities must comply with the Idaho Water Quality Standards 

(IDAPA 58.01.02) regarding hazardous and deleterious-materials storage, disposal, or 

accumulation adjacent to or in the immediate vicinity of state waters (IDAPA 58.01.02.800); and 

the cleanup and reporting of oil-filled electrical equipment (IDAPA 58.01.02.849); hazardous 

materials (IDAPA 58.01.02.850); and used-oil and petroleum releases (IDAPA 58.01.02.851 and 

852).  

 Petroleum releases must be reported to DEQ in accordance with IDAPA 58.01.02.851.01 and 04.  

Hazardous material releases to state waters or to land such that there is likelihood that it will enter 

state waters, must be reported to DEQ in accordance with IDAPA 58.01.02.850. 

 Ground Water Contamination.  DEQ requests that this project comply with Idaho’s Ground 

Water Quality Rules (IDAPA 58.01.11), which states that “No person shall cause or allow the 

release, spilling, leaking, emission, discharge, escape, leaching, or disposal of a contaminant into 

the environment in a manner that causes a ground water quality standard to be exceeded, injures a 

beneficial use of ground water, or is not in accordance with a permit, consent order or applicable 

best management practice, best available method or best practical method.”   

For questions, contact Albert Crawshaw, Waste & Remediation Manager, at (208) 373-0550. 

6. ADDITIONAL NOTES 

 If an underground storage tank (UST) or an aboveground storage tank (AST) is identified at the 

site, the site should be evaluated to determine whether the UST is regulated by DEQ.  EPA 

regulates ASTs.  UST and AST sites should be assessed to determine whether there is potential 

soil and ground water contamination.  Please call DEQ at (208) 373-0550, or visit the DEQ 

website deq.idaho.gov/waste-mgmt-remediation/storage-tanks.aspx for assistance. 

 If applicable to this project, DEQ recommends that BMPs be implemented for any of the 

following conditions:  wash water from cleaning vehicles, fertilizers and pesticides, animal 

facilities, composted waste, and ponds.  Please contact DEQ for more information on any of these 

conditions. 

We look forward to working with you in a proactive manner to address potential environmental impacts 

that may be within our regulatory authority.  If you have any questions, please contact me, or any of our 

technical staff at (208) 373-0550. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

 

Aaron Scheff 

Regional Administrator 

DEQ-Boise Regional Office  

 

ec: EDMS#2020AEK251 

http://www.deq.idaho.gov/waste-mgmt-remediation/storage-tanks.aspx






  

GARY AND CAROL SAUNDERS ANNEXATION & ZONING FFCL                                        
FILE NO. AZ-20 - 13 

1 

  

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Gary Saunders ANNEXATON & ZONING 

FILE NO. AZ-20-13 

                

The above-entitled Annexation & Zoning land use application came before the Star City Council 

for their action on September 15, 2020, at which time public testimony was taken and the public 

hearing was closed.  The Star City Council, having requested and taken oral and written testimony, 

and having duly considered the matter, does hereby make the following Findings of Fact and 

Conclusions of Law; 

 

Procedural History: 

 

A.  Project Summary: 

 

Gary Saunders, 3245 N Wing Road, Star, ID 83669, owner, requested approval of an Annexation 

with Zoning to Residential (R-2-DA). The 5.29 -acre site is generally located on the west side of 

N. wing Road, north of Beacon Light Road in Star, Idaho. Ada County Parcel # S0332343710. 

 

B.  Application Submittal: 

 

A neighborhood meeting was held on July 11, 2020 in compliance with the application submittal 

requirement of the Star Unified Development Code (Section 8-1 A-6 C).  The Land Use application 

was deemed complete on August 13, 2020.   

 

C.   Notice of Public Hearing: 

  

Notice of Public Hearing on the application for the City of Star Council was published in 

accordance with the requirements of Title 67, Chapter 65, Idaho Code and the Star Unified 

Development Code on September 4, 2020. Notice of this public hearing was mailed to property 

owners within three-hundred feet (300’) of the subject property in accordance with the 

requirements of Title 67, Chapter 65, Idaho Code and Star Unified Development Code on August 

13, 2020. Notice was sent to agencies having jurisdiction in the City of Star on August 13, 2020.   

The property was posted in accordance with the Star Unified Development Code on September 

4, 2020.  

 

D.  History of Previous Actions: 

 

There have been no previous Land Use Actions on this property. 

 

E.  Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map and Zoning Map Designations: 

 

 

 



  

GARY AND CAROL SAUNDERS ANNEXATION & ZONING FFCL                                        
FILE NO. AZ-20 - 13 

2 

  

 

 

COMP PLAN 

DESIGNATION 

ZONING 

DESIGNATION 

 

LAND USE 

Existing Neighborhood Residential RUT Single Family Residential  

Proposed Neighborhood Residential R-2-DA Single Family Residential  

 

North of site 

 

Neighborhood Residential 

 

RUT 

 

Agriculture 

 

South of site 

 

Neighborhood Residential 

R-3  

 

 

Greendale Subdivision 

 

East of site 

 

Neighborhood Residential 

R-3  

 

 

Greendale Grove 

Subdivision  

 

West of site 

 

Neighborhood Residential 

 

R-3  

 

Collina Vista Preliminary 

Plat 

 

F.  Site Data: 
 

     Total Acreage of Site – 5.29 acres 

  

G.  Development: 

 

The applicant is requesting approval of an annexation and rezone application to change the 

zoning designation on 5.29 acres from Rural Urban Transitional Residential (RUT) to low density 

Neighborhood Residential (R-2). This zoning district would allow for a maximum residential 

density of 2 dwelling units per acre.  The property is currently serviceable with central sewer and 

water provided by Star Sewer and Water District. Two stub streets are provided to the property 

(N. Cherry Grove Way & N. Greengate Way) and the property has access onto N. Wing Road 

with approximately 174 feet of frontage. The rezone request includes a development agreement 

that will address future density and development standards for any future subdivision plat that 

is submitted by the applicant.  

 

The applicant has submitted a conceptual site plan that shows a layout of 5 residential lots, or a 

density of 1.02 dwelling units per acre.  

 

It appears that the existing single-family dwelling will be retained along N. Wing Road and may 

be requested to be split from the remaining subdivision property as part of a future Lot Line 

Adjustment. Staff will recommend that the remaining parcel with the existing house be required 

to be part of the future preliminary plat or be required to provide sidewalk and landscaping 

through the one-time division depending on ACHD requirements along N. Wing Road.  

 

 

 

 



  

GARY AND CAROL SAUNDERS ANNEXATION & ZONING FFCL                                        
FILE NO. AZ-20 - 13 

3 

  

A future preliminary plat will need to provide details regarding the following: 

 

ACHD approval of N Wing Road Access and stub street/turn around requirements. 

• Landscape Plan – Street Trees, Buffer Landscaping 

• Streetlights 

• Fire District Approval. 

 

A future preliminary plat will need to provide details regarding the following: 

 

• Open Space – 15% (10 % usable) 

• 1 Amenity 

• Canyon Hwy Dist. approval of Can-Ada Road Access and internal street improvements 

• Pressurized Irrigation 

• Landscape Plan – Street Trees, Buffer Landscaping 

• Other concerns of Staff and Council as necessary 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

 

Through the Development Agreement process, the applicant is proposing to work with the City 

to provide further insurances that the development will be built as presented and/or modified 

by the Council through the review process. Items that can be considered by the applicant and 

Council include the following:  

 

• Density 

• Future Property Division and Required Improvements 

• ITD Proportionate Share Fees 

• Existing Home Parcel 

 

H.  On-Site Features: 

 

 Areas of Critical Environmental Concern – No known areas. 

 Evidence of Erosion – No evidence. 

 Fish Habitat – No known areas. 

 Floodplain – Property is not in a Special Flood Hazard area. 

 Mature Trees – Several existing mature trees. 

 Riparian Vegetation – None. 

 Steep Slopes – None. 

 Stream/Creek – None. 

 Unique Animal Life – No unique animal life has been identified. 

 Unique Plant Life – No unique plant life has been identified. 

 Unstable Soils – No known issues. 

 Wildlife Habitat – No wildlife habitat has been developed or will be destroyed. 



  

GARY AND CAROL SAUNDERS ANNEXATION & ZONING FFCL                                        
FILE NO. AZ-20 - 13 

4 

  

 Historical Assets – No historical assets have been observed.   

 

I.  Agencies Responding: 

 

The following agencies responded, and correspondence was attached to the staff report.   

  

Date           Agency 

 

August 31, 2020   Star Fire District 

September 4, 2020   HRM Pipeline 

 

J.  Letters from the Public:  None received. 

 

K.  Comprehensive Plan and Unified Development Code Provisions: 

 

Comprehensive Plan: 

 

8.2.3 Land Use Map Designations: 

 

Neighborhood Residential 

 

Suitable primarily for single family residential use. Densities in the majority of this land 

use area are to range from 3 units per acre to 5 units per acre. Densities not exceeding 1 

to 2 units per acre are to be encouraged in areas of the floodplain, ridgeline developable 

areas, hillside developable areas, and where new residential lots are proposed adjacent 

to existing residential lots of one acre and larger where those existing larger lots are not 

likely to be subdivided in the future. 

 

8.3 Goal: 

 

Encourage the development of a diverse community that provides a mix of land uses, 

housing types, and a variety of employment options, social and recreational 

opportunities, and where possible, an assortment of amenities within walking distance of 

residential development. 

 

8.4 Objectives: 

 

• Implement the Land Use Map and associated policies as the official guide for 

development. 

• Manage urban sprawl in order to minimize costs of urban services and to protect 

rural areas. 

• Encourage land uses that are in harmony with existing resources, scenic areas, 

natural wildlife areas, and surrounding land uses. 



  

GARY AND CAROL SAUNDERS ANNEXATION & ZONING FFCL                                        
FILE NO. AZ-20 - 13 

5 

  

8.5.3 Policies Related Mostly to the Urban Residential Planning Areas: 

 

• The Neighborhood Residential Land Use is to encourage urban style 

development densities to limit urban sprawl. 

 

8.5.9 Additional Land Use Component Policies: 

 

• Encourage flexibility in site design and innovative land uses. 

• Encourage landscaping to enhance the appearance of subdivisions, structures, 

and parking areas. 

• Require more open space and trees in subdivisions. 

• Work with Ada County Highway District (ACHD), Canyon Highway District #4 

(CHD4), and Idaho Department of Transportation (ITD) for better coordination of 

roadway and access needs. 

• Support well-planned, pedestrian-friendly developments. 

• Dark sky provision should be adopted within the code to assure down style 

lighting in all developments and Star should consider joining the International 

Dark Sky Association. 

• The City should utilize the 2018 Treasure Valley Tree Selection Guide when 

requiring trees within developments. 

 

Unified Development Code: 

 

Residential District Purpose Statement 8-3B-1 – The purpose of the residential districts is to 

provide for a range of housing opportunities consistent with the Star Comprehensive Plan.  

Connection to the Star Sewer and Water District is a requirement for all residential districts.  

Residential districts are distinguished by the allowable density of dwelling units per acre and 

corresponding housing types that can be accommodated within the density range. 

 

Low Density Residential (R2) – Up to two units per acre. 

 

The standards for rezoning a piece of property are as follows: 

 

- The subject property shall meet the minimum dimensional standards of the proper 

district. 

- The City may require a development agreement in conjunction with the rezone, pursuant 

to Idaho Code Section 67-6511A. 

- The termination of a development agreement shall result in the reversal of the official 

zoning map amendment approval and applicable development approval for any 

undeveloped portion of the property subject to the development agreement.  The 

undeveloped property subject to the development agreement shall be rezoned to the 



  

GARY AND CAROL SAUNDERS ANNEXATION & ZONING FFCL                                        
FILE NO. AZ-20 - 13 

6 

  

district classification as designated by the development agreement.  When no 

designation is provided the property shall revert to RT. 

- Any action by the City Council to amend or terminate a previously recorded 

development agreement shall be recorded in the office of the county recorder by the 

clerk. 

 

TABLE 8-3B-6(a)  

DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS FOR DEVELOPMENT IN THE LOW-DENSITY NEIGHBORHOOD 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT R-2  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Note: 

1. Measured from back of sidewalk or property line where there is no adjacent sidewalk 

 

Required Findings for Annexation and Rezoning (UDC §8-1B-1E): 

 

1.  The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 The Council finds that the purpose of the Star Comprehensive Plan is to promote the 

health, safety, and general welfare of the people of the City of Star and its Impact Area.  

Some of the prime objectives of the Comprehensive Plan include: 

✓ Protection of property rights. 
✓ Adequate public facilities and services are provided to the people at reasonable 

cost. 

R-2 Standard(s)   Requirement   

Minimum street frontage   35 feet   

Front setback1   20 feet    

Rear setback   20 feet   

Interior side setback   10 feet  

Street side setback1:     

  Local   20 feet   

  Arterial and collector   20 feet   

Street landscape buffer:     

  Arterial and collector   35 feet   

  Entryway corridor   40 feet   

Maximum building height   35 feet 



  

GARY AND CAROL SAUNDERS ANNEXATION & ZONING FFCL                                        
FILE NO. AZ-20 - 13 

7 

  

✓ Ensure the local economy is protected. 

✓ Encourage urban and urban-type development and overcrowding of land. 

✓ Ensure development is commensurate with the physical characteristics of the 

land. 

The goal of the Comprehensive Plan for Residential Districts is to encourage the 
development of a diverse community that provides a mixture of land uses, housing 

types, and a variety of employment options, social and recreational opportunities, and 

where possible provides an assortment of amenities within walking distance of a 

residential development. 

 

2.  The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed district,  

     specifically, the purposes statement. 

 The Council finds that the residential purpose statement states that the purpose of the 

residential districts is to provide for a range of housing opportunities consistent with the 

Star Comprehensive Plan. Connection to the Star sewer and water district is a 

requirement for all residential districts, when available. Residential districts are 
distinguished by the allowable density of dwelling units per acre and corresponding 

housing types that can be accommodated within the density range. This request is 

consistent with the statement. 

 

3.  The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and  

     welfare; and 

 The Council finds that there is no indication from the material submitted by any political 

agency stating that this annexation and zoning of this property will be materially 

detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare.   

 

4.  The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services by  

     any political subdivision providing public services within the city including, but not limited to,  

     school districts. 

The Council finds that the City has not been presented with any information from 

agencies having jurisdiction that public services will be adversely impacted other than 

traffic, which will continue to be impacted as the City grows. 

 

5.  The annexation is in the best interest of the city. 

The Council finds this annexation is reasonably necessary for the orderly development of the 

City. 

 

Public Hearing of the Council: 

 

a.  A public hearing on the application was held before the City Council on September 15, 2020, 

at which time testimony was heard and the public hearing was closed.  The City Council made 

their decision at that time. 

 



  

GARY AND CAROL SAUNDERS ANNEXATION & ZONING FFCL                                        
FILE NO. AZ-20 - 13 

8 

  

b.  Oral testimony in favor of the application was presented to the City Council by:  

Gary Saunders – 3245 N. Wing Rd., Star, ID  83669 

 

c.  Oral testimony in opposition to the application was presented to the Council by: 

 None 

 

d. Oral testimony uncommitted to the application was presented to the Council by: 

 None 

 

e.  Written testimony in favor of or opposing the application was presented to the City Council 

by: 

 No written testimony was presented in favor or opposing the application. 

  

Deliberations and Conclusions of Law: 

 

The Council reviewed the particular facts and circumstances of this proposed annexation and 

zoning application in accordance with the City of Star Title 8 (Unified Development Code), 

deliberated on the matter, resulting in discussions on the annexation and platting of the 

development. Discussion included future development with a preliminary plat and compliance 

with Comp Plan.  

 

Statement of Compliance: 

 

Council finds the Applicant has met all requirements of the Unified Development Code and the 

intent and purpose of the Comprehensive Plan and Map requirements. 

 

The Owner requested the annexation and rezone from Rural Urban Transition (RUT) to 

Residential (R-2) which fits within the neighboring properties 

 

Council Decision: 

 

The Council voted unanimously to approve the Annexation and Zoning to Residential (R-2) and 

Development Agreement for Gary Saunders on September 15, 2020.  

 

Dated this _______ day of ____________________, 2020. 

 

      Star, Idaho 

 

      By: ____________________________ 

ATTEST:                         Trevor A. Chadwick, Mayor 

 

___________________________ 

Cathy Ward, City Clerk    



  

 1 

 

  

             CITY OF STAR 
 

                   LAND USE STAFF REPORT 

             MEMO 
 

 
TO:   Mayor & Council 

FROM:   Shawn L. Nickel, City Planner  

MEETING DATE: November 17, 2020 

FILE(S) #: AZ-20-11 Annexation and Zoning 

DA-20-11 Development Agreement 

 PP-20-11 Preliminary Plat for Canvasback Subdivision 

   

PROJECT SUMMARY/UDPATE 

 

On October 6, 2020, the City Council tabled the Canvasback Subdivision application and 

requested that the applicant redesign the development to address concerns by neighbors and 

Council at the hearing. Items included: 

 

• Transitional lots/buffers adjacent to the eastern boundary of the property (along Wing 

Road); 

• New Home Setbacks; 

• Stub Street Location onto Wing Road; 

 

The applicant has resubmitted a revised preliminary plat and letter addressing each of the issues 

brought up in the previous hearing. 

 

Copies of each are attached to this memo for Council reference. 

 

 







PHASE 1

PHASE 2

L

YE

IABA.DIVAD

PR
OFESSIO ENGINEER

NAL

REGISTERED

S
TAT E OF I DAHO

8 2 72NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

TE
L 

  2
08

-9
38

-0
01

3
w

w
w

.b
ai

le
ye

ng
in

ee
rs

.c
om

11
19

  E
. S

TA
TE

 S
T.

, S
U

IT
E 

21
0

EA
G

LE
, I

D
  8

36
16

CI
VI

L E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

|P
LA

NN
IN

G|
CA

DD

ai
le

y E
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 In
c.

DEVELOPMENT FEATURES

ACREAGE
TOTAL PARCEL - 30.49 ACRES
TOTAL LOTS - 123
BUILDABLE LOTS - 112
    RESIDENTIAL - 112
    COMMON LOTS - 11
    DENSITY  DU/ACRE - 3.67
COMMON AREA - 5.30 ACRES - 17.4%
USEABLE OPEN SPACE - 4.57 ACRES 15.0%

PHASES
PHASE 1 - 82
  BUILDABLE - 76
  COMMON -      6

PHASE 2 - 41
  BUILDABLE - 36
  COMMON -      5

ZONING
EXISTING - RUT/RT
PROPOSED - R-4

SEWAGE DISPOSAL
STAR SEWER AND WATER DISTRICT

WATER SUPPLY
STAR SEWER AND WATER DISTRICT

CITY
STAR

SCHOOL DISTRICT
STAR

FIRE DISTRICT
STAR

IRRIGATION DISTRICT
FARMERS UNION DITCH COMPANY
LTD

OWNERS
HYNES PATRICK & RHONDA TRUST
4835 HWY 20
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

DEVELOPER
TRILOGY DEVELOPMENT, INC.
9839 W. CABLE CAR ST.
BOISE ID 83709

ENGINEER
DAVID A. BAILEY, P.E.
BAILEY ENGINEERING, INC.
1119 E. STATE ST., SUITE 210
EAGLE, ID  83616
208-938-0013

PLANNER/CONTACT
JANE SUGGS
9840 W. OVERLAND RD., SUITE 120
BOISE, ID  83709
208-602-6941

11/03/2020



L

YE

IABA.DIVAD

PR
OFESSIO ENGINEER

NAL

REGISTERED

S
TAT E OF I DAHO

8 2 72NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

TE
L 

  2
08

-9
38

-0
01

3
w

w
w

.b
ai

le
ye

ng
in

ee
rs

.c
om

11
19

  E
. S

TA
TE

 S
T.

, S
U

IT
E 

21
0

EA
G

LE
, I

D
  8

36
16

CI
VI

L E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

|P
LA

NN
IN

G|
CA

DD

ai
le

y E
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 In
c.

DEVELOPMENT FEATURES

ACREAGE
TOTAL PARCEL - 30.49 ACRES
TOTAL LOTS - 123
BUILDABLE LOTS - 112
    RESIDENTIAL - 112
    COMMON LOTS - 11
    DENSITY  DU/ACRE - 3.67
COMMON AREA - 5.30 ACRES - 17.4%
USEABLE OPEN SPACE - 4.57 ACRES 15.0%

PHASES
PHASE 1 - 82
  BUILDABLE - 76
  COMMON -      6

PHASE 2 - 41
  BUILDABLE - 36
  COMMON -      5

ZONING
EXISTING - RUT/RT
PROPOSED - R-4

SEWAGE DISPOSAL
STAR SEWER AND WATER DISTRICT

WATER SUPPLY
STAR SEWER AND WATER DISTRICT

CITY
STAR

SCHOOL DISTRICT
STAR

FIRE DISTRICT
STAR

IRRIGATION DISTRICT
FARMERS UNION DITCH COMPANY
LTD

OWNERS
HYNES PATRICK & RHONDA TRUST
4835 HWY 20
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

DEVELOPER
TRILOGY DEVELOPMENT, INC.
9839 W. CABLE CAR ST.
BOISE ID 83709

ENGINEER
DAVID A. BAILEY, P.E.
BAILEY ENGINEERING, INC.
1119 E. STATE ST., SUITE 210
EAGLE, ID  83616
208-938-0013

PLANNER/CONTACT
JANE SUGGS
9840 W. OVERLAND RD., SUITE 120
BOISE, ID  83709
208-602-6941

11/03/2020



  
A 

 

CANVASBACK SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11 1 

 

  

             CITY OF STAR 
 

                   LAND USE STAFF REPORT 
 

 
TO:   Mayor & Council 

FROM:   Shawn L. Nickel, Planning Director & Zoning Administrator  

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2020 – PUBLIC HEARING 

FILE(S) #: AZ-20-11 Annexation and Zoning 

DA-20-11 Development Agreement 

 PP-20-11 Preliminary Plat for Canvasback Subdivision 

             

OWNER/APPLICANT/REPRESENTATIVE 

  

Property Owner:      

Patrick and Rhonda Hynes Trust 

4835 NE Hwy 20 

Corvallis, Oregon 97330 

 

Applicant/Representative: 

Jane Suggs, Gem State Planning 

9840 W. Overland Road Suite 120 

Boise, Idaho 83709   

           

REQUEST 

  

Request:  The Applicant is seeking approval of an Annexation and Zoning (R-3), a Development 

Agreement, and a Preliminary Plat for a proposed residential subdivision consisting of 112 

residential lots and 11 common lots.  The property is located at the southwest corner of W. New 

Hope Road and N. Wing Road and consists of 20.6 acres with a proposed density of 3.67 

dwelling units per acre. 

            

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

 

Property Location:   The subject property is generally located on the south side of W. New 

Hope Road between N. Brandon Road and N. Wing Road in Star, Idaho.  

Ada County Parcel No. S0405244200 & S0405244700. 

 

Existing Site Characteristics:  The property is currently in agricultural production 

 

 



  
A 

 

CANVASBACK SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11 2 

 

Irrigation/Drainage District(s):  - Farmer’s Union Ditch Company, LTD 

     P.O. Box 1474, Eagle, ID  83616     

    

Flood Zone:  This property is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area. 

Special On-Site Features: 

 Areas of Critical Environmental Concern – No known areas. 

 Evidence of Erosion – No known areas. 

 Fish Habitat – No known areas. 

 Mature Trees – No. 

 Riparian Vegetation – No known areas. 

 Steep Slopes – No. 

 Stream/Creek – None. 

 Unique Animal Life – No unique animal life has been identified. 

 Unique Plant Life – No unique plant life has been identified. 

 Unstable Soils – No known issues. 

 Wildlife Habitat – No wildlife habitat has been developed or will be destroyed. 

 Historical Assets – No historical assets have been observed.   

 

APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 

 

 Pre-Application Meeting Held   December 18, 2019   

 Neighborhood Meeting Held     February 12, 2020    

 Application Submitted & Fees Paid   July 30, 2020 

 Application Accepted     July 30, 2020   

 Residents within 300’ Notified   August 03, 2020 

 Agencies Notified     August 03, 2020 

 Legal Notice Published    August 04, 2020    

 Property Posted      September 25, 2020    

  

HISTORY   

               

Request previously scheduled for public hearing on September 15, 2020 and tabled to October 

06, 2020. There have been no previous requests through the City for development of this 

property. 

 

SURROUNDING ZONING/COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP/LAND USE DESIGNATIONS 

 

 Zoning Designation Comp Plan Designation Land Use 

Existing County Rural 

Transitional (RUT) 

Neighborhood Residential Agricultural 

Proposed R-4-DA Neighborhood Residential Neighborhood 

Residential  

North of site R-3 Neighborhood Residential Greendale Grove Sub. 



  
A 

 

CANVASBACK SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11 3 

 

South of site County Rural 

Transitional (RUT) 

Neighborhood Residential Single Family Dwelling / 

Agriculture 

East of site County Rural 

Transitional (RUT) 

 

Rural Residential / Special 

Transition Overlay 

Single Family Dwelling / 

Agriculture 

West of site County Rural 

Transitional (RUT) 

Neighborhood Residential Single Family Dwelling / 

Agriculture 

 

CODE DEFINITIONS / COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE: 

 

8-1B-1: ANNEXATION AND ZONING; REZONE:  

B. Standards: 

1. The subject property shall meet the minimum dimensional standards of the proper district. 

2. The city may require a development agreement in conjunction with the annexation and 

zoning, or rezone, pursuant to Idaho Code section 67-6511A, which may include a concept plan.  

In addition to other processes permitted by city and state code, exceptions or waivers of 

standards, other than use, may be permitted through execution of a development 

agreement.  A development agreement and concept plan shall be required for any rezone to 

a mixed-use zone, high density zone or land which includes steep slope (land over 25%) or 

floodway. 

3. The termination of a development agreement shall result in the reversal of the official zoning 

map amendment approval and applicable development approval for any undeveloped portion 

of property subject to the development agreement. The undeveloped property subject to the 

development agreement shall be rezoned to the district classification as designated by the 

development agreement. When no designation is provided, the property shall revert to its 

original zoning or, if the original designation no longer exists, to the closest current equivalent 

zoning as determined by the current Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map designation. 

4. An amendment or termination of a previously recorded development agreement shall be 

recorded in the office of the county recorder by the clerk. 

5. An approved development agreement must be executed within ninety (90) days of the 

meeting at which the development agreement is approved by the city council.  A one-time 

administrative extension of maximum thirty (30) days may be granted by the zoning 

administrator.  Additional extensions may be approved by majority vote of the city council. 

Failure to execute the development agreement within the required timeframe will result in the 

denial of all related applications. 

C. Required Findings: The council shall review the application at the public hearing. In order to 



  
A 

 

CANVASBACK SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11 4 

 

grant an annexation and zoning or rezone, the council shall make the following findings: 

1. The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the comprehensive plan; 

2. The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed district; 

3. The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and 

welfare; and 

4. The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services by 

any political subdivision providing public services within the city. 

5. The annexation (as applicable) is in the best interest of city. 

8-3A-1: ZONING DISTRICTS AND PURPOSE ESTABLISHED:  

 

R RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT: To provide regulations and districts for various residential 

neighborhoods. Gross density in a Residential (R) district shall be determined according to the 

numeral following the R. The numeral designates the maximum number of dwelling units per 

acre. In zoning designations of R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4 and R-5, housing shall be single family 

detached unless approved with a PUD or development agreement.  Connection to municipal 

water and sewer facilities are required for all subdivision and lot split applications submitted 

after the effective date hereof in all districts exceeding one dwelling unit per acre. Wells and 

septic systems may be permitted for larger lots in this land use designation that are not adjacent 

to municipal services, as determined by the Sewer District, and if approved by the applicable 

Health Department. Private streets may be approved in this district for access to newly 

subdivided or split property. This district does allow for some non-residential uses as specified in 

8-3A-3. 

DA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT: This designation, following any zoning designation noted on 

the official zoning map of the city (i.e., C-2-DA), indicates that the zoning was approved by the 

city with a development agreement, with specific conditions of zoning. 

8-3A-3:  USES WITHIN ZONING DISTRICTS 

The following table lists principal permitted (P), accessory uses (A), conditional (C), or prohibited 

(N) uses. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
A 

 

CANVASBACK SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11 5 

 

8-3A-4: ZONING DISTRICT DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS: 

 

 

Notes: 

1. Front yard setback shall be measured from the face of the garage to the face of the sidewalk, 

allowing for 20’ of parking on the driveway without overhang onto the sidewalk. 

2. Interior side yard setbacks for lots with 50’ or less of lot width shall be allowed 5’ interior 

side yard setbacks for one and two-story structures. 

 

8-4E-2: STANDARDS FOR COMMON OPEN SPACE AND SITE AMENITY REQUIREMENTS: 

 

A. Open Space and Site Amenity Requirement (see also Chapter 8 “Architectural Review”): 

1. The total land area of all common open space shall equal or exceed fifteen percent (15%) of 

the gross land area of the development.  Ten percent (10%) of that area shall be usable open 

space. 

2.  Each development is required to have at least one site amenity. 

3. One additional site amenity shall be required for each additional twenty (20) acres of 

development area, plus one additional amenity per 75 residential units.  

B. Qualified Open Space: The following may qualify to meet the common open space 

requirements: 

1. Any open space that is active or passive in its intended use, and accessible or visible by all 

ZONING DISTRICT USES 

 

A R-R R 

Accessory structure A A A 

Dwelling:    

Multi-family 1 N N C 

Secondary 1 A A A 

Single-family attached N N C 

Single-family detached P P P 

Two-family duplex N N P 



  
A 

 

CANVASBACK SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11 6 

 

residents of the development, including, but not limited to: 

a. Open grassy area of at least fifty feet by one hundred feet (50' x 100') in area; 

b. Qualified natural areas; 

c. Ponds or water features where active fishing, paddle boarding or other activities are provided 

(50% qualifies towards total required open space, must be accessible by all residents to qualify.) 

ponds must be aerated; 

d. A plaza. 

2. Additions to a public park or other public open space area. 

3. The buffer area along collector and arterial streets may be included in required overall 

common open space for residential subdivisions. 

4. Parkways along local residential streets with detached sidewalks that meet all the following 

standards may count toward the common open space requirement: 

a. The parkway is a minimum of eight feet (8') in width from street curb to edge of sidewalk and 

includes street trees as specified otherwise herein. 

b. Except for alley accessed dwelling units, the area for curb cuts to each residential lot or 

common driveway shall be excluded from the open space calculation. For purposes of this 

calculation, the curb cut area shall be a minimum area of twenty-six feet (26') by the width of the 

parkway. 

c. Stormwater detention facilities do not qualify to meet the common area open space 

requirements, unless all of the following is met: 

1. Must be at least fifty feet by one hundred feet (50' x 100') in area; 

2. Specifically designed as a dual use facility, as determined by the administrator, to include 

minimal slopes, grass throughout, and guarantee of water percolation within 24 hours of 

storm event. 

3.  Is located in a development that has a second usable open space area that contains a 

qualified site amenity as herein defined. 

 

5. Visual natural space, including open ditches, wetlands, slopes or other areas that may not be 

readily accessible to residents, and is provided with open style fencing, may qualify for up to 

20% of the required open space total.  

C. Qualified Site Amenities: Qualified site amenities shall include, but not be limited to, the 

following: 

1. Clubhouse; 

2. Fitness facilities, indoors or outdoors; 



  
A 

 

CANVASBACK SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11 7 

 

3. Public art; 

4. Picnic area; or 

5. Recreation amenities: 

a. Swimming pool. 

b. Children's play structures. 

c. Sports courts. 

d. Additional open space in excess of 5% usable space. 

e. RV parking for the use of the residents within the development. 

f. School and/or Fire station sites if accepted by the district. 

g. Pedestrian or bicycle circulation system amenities meeting the following requirements: 

(1) The system is not required for sidewalks adjacent to public right of way; 

(2) The system connects to existing or planned pedestrian or bicycle routes outside the 

development; and 

(3) The system is designed and constructed in accord with standards set forth by the city of Star; 

D. Location:  The common open space and site amenities shall be located on a common lot or 

an area with a common maintenance agreement. 

E. Maintenance: 

1. All common open space and site amenities shall be the responsibility of an owners' 

association for the purpose of maintaining the common area and improvements thereon. 

8-1E-1: DEFINITIONS - TERMS DEFINED 

TRANSITIONAL LOT OR PROPERTY: The size of a new residential lot when being proposed 

adjacent to an established residential use. The ratio for lots adjacent to properties shall be 

determined on a case by case basis, when considering the size of the development potential for 

the existing use. This shall not be required if separated by an existing roadway or large canal 

where the distance between new structures and existing structures equal or exceed 100 feet.  

8-3B-3: ADDITIONAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT STANDARDS - RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS: 

B. When development is planned with lots that directly abut existing lots within a Rural 

Residential area, or “Special Transition Overlay Area” as shown on the Comprehensive 

Plan Land Use map, an appropriate transition shall be provided for the two abutting 

residential lot types.  A transition shall take into consideration site constraints that may 

exist and may include clustering of the urban lots in order to provide an open space area 

avoiding urban lots directly abutting rural residential lots, or may include the provision of 



  
A 

 

CANVASBACK SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11 8 

 

a buffer strip avoiding urban lots directly abutting rural residential lots, or may include 

setbacks within the urban lots similar to the rural residential lots directly abutting, or may 

include the provision of one half to one acre size lots directly abutting the rural 

residential lots. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  

 

8.2.3 Land Use Map Designations: 

 

Neighborhood Residential: 

 

Suitable primarily for single family residential use. Densities in the majority of this land 

use area are to range from 3 units per acre to 5 units per acre. Densities not exceeding 1 

to 2 units per acre are to be encouraged in areas of the floodplain, ridgeline developable 

areas, hillside developable areas, and where new residential lots are proposed adjacent 

to existing residential lots of one acre and larger where those existing larger lots are not 

likely to be subdivided in the future. 

 

Special Transition Overlay Area 

 

Development adjacent to, and potentially within, this area is to provide for an 

appropriate transition between existing and new home sites where new urban 

development is being planned adjacent to previously approved and constructed rural 

county developments of years past. Site layout is to provide for a transition in density 

and lot sizing. 

 

8.3 Goal: 

 

Encourage the development of a diverse community that provides a mix of land uses, 

housing types, and a variety of employment options, social and recreational 

opportunities, and where possible, an assortment of amenities within walking distance of 

residential development. 

 

8.4 Objectives: 

 

• Manage urban sprawl in order to minimize costs of urban services and to protect 

rural areas. 

• Retain and encourage rural areas where it will not result in increased costs for 

urban service.  

• Encourage land uses that are in harmony with existing resources, scenic areas, 

natural wildlife areas, and surrounding land uses. 

 

8.5.3 Policies Related Mostly to the Urban Residential Planning Areas: 

 



  
A 

 

CANVASBACK SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11 9 

 

A. The Neighborhood Residential Land Use is to encourage urban style development 

densities to limit urban sprawl.  

B. Low densities within the Neighborhood Residential Land Use are to be designed 

within the floodplain, ridgeline developable areas, hillside developable areas and  

where new residential lots are proposed adjacent to existing residential lots of one 

acre and larger where 

C. Site layout within the Special Transition Overlay Area is to provide for a transition 

in density and lot sizing. Base densities may be significantly reduced or home sites 

may be clustered to increase open space within a portion of a site when property is 

within this overlay. 

 

8.5.4 Policies Related to The Special Transition Overlay Areas: 

   

A. Development adjacent to and within the Special Transition Overlay Area is to provide 

for an appropriate transition between existing and new home sites where new urban 

development is being planned adjacent to previously approved and constructed rural 

county developments of years past. This may include new abutting lots to be one acre in 

size or may include buffering. 

 B. Site layout is to provide for a transition in density and lot sizing with all policies 

regarding compatibility herein applying.  

C. Modified street sections, such as with no curbs gutters or sidewalks, should be 

encouraged for adjacent compatibility where determined appropriate.  

D. When an urban density residential development is planned with lots that directly abut 

lots within a Special Transition Overlay Area an appropriate transition is to be provided 

for the two abutting residential lot types. A transition must take into consideration site 

constraints that may exist and may include clustering of the urban lots in order to 

provide an open space area avoiding urban lots directly abutting Special Transition 

Overlay Area lots, or may include the provision of a buffer strip avoiding urban lots 

directly abutting Special Transition Overlay Area lots, or may include setbacks within the 

urban lots similar to the Special Transition Overlay Area lots directly abutting, or may 

include the provision of one half to one acre size lots directly abutting the Special 

Transition Overlay Area lots.  

E. Larger setbacks should be required for new lots planned to abut existing Special 

Transition Overlay Area lots. 

  

8.5.9 Additional Land Use Component Policies: 

 

• Encourage flexibility in site design and innovative land uses. 

• Encourage landscaping to enhance the appearance of subdivisions, structures, 

and parking areas. 

• Require more open space and trees in subdivisions. 

• Work with Ada County Highway District (ACHD), Canyon Highway District #4 

(CHD4), and Idaho Department of Transportation (ITD) for better coordination of 

roadway and access needs. 



  
A 

 

CANVASBACK SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11 10 

 

• Support well-planned, pedestrian-friendly developments. 

• Dark sky provision should be adopted within the code to assure down style 

lighting in all developments and Star should consider joining the International 

Dark Sky Association. 

• The City should utilize the 2018 Treasure Valley Tree Selection Guide when 

requiring trees within developments. 

 

18.4 Implementation Policies: 

 

E. Development Agreements allow the city to enter into a contract with a developer upon 

rezoning. The Development Agreement may provide the city and the developer with 

certain assurances regarding the proposed development upon rezoning. 

 

PROJECT OVERVIEW 

 

ANNEXATION & REZONE: 

 

The annexation and rezone request from Residential R-3 and County Rural Urban Transition 

(RUT) to Medium-Low Density Residential (R-4) on the applicant’s property will allow for the 

subdivision of the property to develop with urban densities that will be consistent with the 

current Comprehensive Plan Map.  The overall gross density of the proposed development is 

3.67 dwelling units per acre. The current Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map designates this 

property as Neighborhood Residential, with an anticipated density of 3 to 5 dwelling units per 

acre. The requested density falls in the middle of this designation.  The requested zoning 

designation and density meets the intent of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

PRELIMINARY PLAT: 

 

The Preliminary Plat submitted contains 112 single family residential lots, and 11 common area 

lots for a total of 123 total lots. The residential lots range in size from 5,298 square feet to 

14,988 square feet. The applicant has indicated that the development will contain a total of five 

(5) acres (16.4%) of open space. The applicant states that useable open space, not including 

street buffers and endcaps equal to 3.52 acres (11.6%) exceeding the requirement for usable 

open space in the current Unified Development Code, Section 8-4E-2.  Streets are proposed to 

be public and will measure 36 ft from back of curb to back of curb and satisfy Section 8-4D-

34B(4) of the UDC. 

 

The development will use access off N. Brandon Road and W. New Hope Road as well as N. 

Wing Road. The development will also have a stub road on the south of the property that will 

terminate at the property line with the possibility to extend in the future.   

 

The current Unified Development Code, Section 8-4E-2 requires a development of this size to 

have 3 site amenities. The applicant is proposing a children’s play structure, covered picnic 

shelter and pathway connections for access to the development and park.  



  
A 

 

CANVASBACK SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11 11 

 

ADDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT FEATURES: 

 

• Sidewalks 

Sidewalks are proposed at five-foot (5’) widths and will be attached throughout 

overall subdivision. 

 

• Lighting  

Streetlights shall reflect the “Dark Sky” criteria with all lighting.  The same streetlight 

design shall continue throughout the entire development. The applicant has not 

submitted street light design standards. A condition of approval will be required to 

receive staff approval of streetlights prior to final plat approval. 

 

• Street Names 

Street names will be approved by the Ada Street Naming Committee prior to 

signature of final plat.    

 

• Landscaping - As required by the Unified Development Code, Chapter 8, Section 8-8C-2-

M (2) Street Trees; A minimum of one street tree shall be planted for every thirty-five (35) 

linear feet of street frontage. The applicant shall use “Treasure Valley Tree Selection 

Guide”, as adopted by the Unified Development Code. 

 

• Setbacks – Client is requesting a five (5) foot side yard setback for all homes in the 

development.  

 

• Block lengths – All blocks meet the 750’ block length requirement. 

 

AGENCY RESPONSES 

 

 Star Fire District    August 31, 2020 

 Keller and Associates    August 06, 2020 

 ITD      April 22, 2020 

 ACHD      September 22, 2020 

 DEQ      August 13, 2020 

 Farmer’s Union Ditch Company  September 04, 2020 

 West Ada School District   September 08, 2020 

 Ada County Development Services  August 04, 2020 

      

PUBLIC RESPONSES 

 

Lonn and Ann Kuck - 10399 W. Rolling Hills Dr., Star, ID  83669         September 28, 2020 

Steve and Charlene Greene – 9999 W Star Acres Drive, Star, ID 83669 September 28, 2020 

Will Eason – 10174 W. Star Acres Dr., Star, ID 83669    September 28, 2020 

Terry Bier and Carolee Polfer – 10040 West Star Acres Dr., Star, ID 83669 



  
A 

 

CANVASBACK SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11 12 

 

Gary and Judy Enzminger - Email 

   

TRANSITIONAL LOTS: 

     

The eastern boundary of the subdivision is immediately adjacent to Star Acres Subdivision, an 

Ada County approved 5-acre lot subdivision that is in Un-Incorporated Ada County. The majority 

of the houses built within the Star Acres Subdivision are located to the west end of the lots and 

along N. Wing Road. The Star Comprehensive Plan designates the area within this subdivision as 

a Special Transition Overlay Area. The Unified Development Code provides a definition for 

transitional Lots or Properties and states the following: The size of a new residential lot when 

being proposed adjacent to an established residential use. The ratio for lots adjacent to 

properties shall be determined on a case by case basis, when considering the size of the 

development potential for the existing use. This shall not be required if separated by an existing 

roadway or large canal where the distance between new structures and existing structures equal 

or exceed 100 feet. It appears from the submitted preliminary plat that the developer has made 

an effort to design the development with this requirement in mind (see exhibit attached). N. 

Wing Road and the proposed 30-foot landscape buffer provide in excess of 100 feet of 

separation. The one concern that staff has is with regard to the two proposed lots (Lots 2 & 3, 

Block 7) at the southeast corner of the proposed development. An existing house on the 

adjacent lot in Star Acres is in very close proximity to the boundary of the proposed Lots 2 & 3 

and there is not a roadway or canal providing the defined buffer of 100 feet. Council should 

consider this when making its decision on compliance with the UDC standards. One staff 

suggestion is to combine lots 2 & 3 into one lot or increase the open space buffer between the 

two developments. 

 

 STAFF ANALYSIS & RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

Staff is overall supportive of the design, layout and density of the development application, with 

the proposed conditions of approval.   

 

Based upon the information provided to staff in the applications and agency comments received 

to date, staff finds that the proposed annexation and zoning, development agreement 

modification, and preliminary plat meets the requirements, standards and intent for 

development as they relate to the Unified Development Code and the Comprehensive Plan. The 

Council should consider the entire record and testimony presented at their scheduled public 

hearing prior to rendering its decision on the matter. Should the Council vote to approve the 

applications, either as presented or with added conditions of approval, Council shall direct staff 

to draft findings of fact and conclusions of law for the Council to consider at a future date. 

 

 

 

 



  
A 

 

CANVASBACK SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11 13 

 

FINDINGS 

 

The Council may approve, conditionally approve, deny or table this request.  In order to 

approve these applications, the Unified Development Code requires that Council must find the 

following: 

 

ANNEXATION/REZONE FINDINGS: 

 

1.  The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 The purpose of the Star Comprehensive Plan is to promote the health, safety, and 

general welfare of the people of the City of Star and its Impact Area.  Some of the prime 

objectives of the Comprehensive Plan include: 

✓ Protection of property rights. 

✓ Adequate public facilities and services are provided to the people at reasonable 

cost. 

✓ Ensure the local economy is protected. 
✓ Encourage urban and urban-type development and overcrowding of land. 

✓ Ensure development is commensurate with the physical characteristics of the 

land. 

The goal of the Comprehensive Plan for Land Use is to encourage the development of a 

diverse community that provides a mixture of land uses, housing types, and a variety of 

employment options, social and recreational opportunities, and where possible provides 

an assortment of amenities within walking distance of a residential development. The 

City must find compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

2.  The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed district,  

     specifically, the purposes statement. 

The City must find that the proposal complies with the proposed district and purpose 

statement. The purpose of the residential districts is to provide regulations and districts 

for various residential neighborhoods with gross densities in compliance with the intent 

of the Comprehensive Plan designation. Housing shall be single family detached unless 

approved with a PUD or development agreement. Connection to municipal water and 

sewer facilities are required for all subdivision and lot split applications in all districts 

exceeding one dwelling unit per acre. Private streets may be approved in this district for 

access to newly subdivided or split property.  

 

3.  The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and  

     welfare; and 

 The City must find that there is no indication from the material submitted by any 

political agency stating that this annexation and zoning of this property will be materially 

detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare.   

 

4.  The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services by  

     any political subdivision providing public services within the city including, but not limited to,  



  
A 

 

CANVASBACK SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11 14 

 

     school districts. 

The City must find that it has not been presented with any information from agencies 

having jurisdiction that public services will be adversely impacted other than traffic, 

which will continue to be impacted as the City grows. 

 
5.  The annexation is in the best interest of the city. 

The City must find  that this annexation is reasonably necessary for the orderly 

development of the City. 

 

PRELIMINARY PLAT FINDINGS: 

 

1.  The plat is in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

The City must find that this Plat follows designations, spirit and intent of the 

Comprehensive Plan regarding residential development and meets several of the 

objectives of the Comprehensive Plan such as:  

1.  Designing development projects that minimize impacts on existing adjacent  
     properties, and 

2.  Managing urban sprawl to protect outlying rural areas.   

 

2.  Public Services are available or can be made available and are adequate to accommodate 

     the proposed development. 

The City must find that Agencies having jurisdiction on this parcel were notified of this 

action, and that it has not received notice that public services are not available or cannot 

be made available for this development. 

 

3.  There is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed development; 

The City must find that they have not been notified of any deficiencies in public financial 
capabilities to support this development. 

 

4.  The development will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare; 

The City must find that it has not been presented with any facts stating this Preliminary 

Plat will be materially detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare.  Residential 

uses are a permitted use. 

 

5.  The development preserves significant natural, scenic or historic features; 

The City must find that there are no known natural, scenic, or historic features that have 

been identified within this Preliminary Plat. 

 
Upon granting approval or denial of the application, the Council shall specify: 

 

1. The Ordinance and standards used in evaluating the application;   

2. The reasons for recommending approval or denial; and   

3. The actions, if any, that the applicant could take to obtain approval. 

 



  
A 

 

CANVASBACK SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11 15 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 

1. The approved Preliminary Plat for the Canvasback Subdivision shall comply with all statutory 

requirements of applicable agencies and districts having jurisdiction in the City of Star. 

2. All public streets shall have a minimum street width of 36’ and shall be constructed to ACHD 

standards.  

3. The stub street shall be built in accordance with Star Fire District requirements.  

4. The applicant shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City, agreeing to 

proportionate share assessment by ITD regarding impacts to the State Highway System. 

These fees will be collected by the City of Star, by phase, prior to final plat signature. The 

development agreement shall be signed and recorded as part of the ordinance for 

annexation and zoning and shall contain the details of the fees to be collected. 

5. Streetlights shall comply with the Star City Code and shall be of the same design throughout 

the entire subdivision. Streetlights shall be continuous throughout the subdivision and shall 

be maintained by the Homeowners Association.  Streetlights shall be installed prior to any 

building occupancy. Design shall follow Code with requirements for light trespass and “Dark 

Skies” lighting. Applicant/Owner shall submit a streetlight plan/design prior to Final 

Plat approval.  Streetlights shall comply with the Star City Code regarding light 

trespass and “Dark Sky” initiative.   

6. Street trees shall be installed per Chapter 8, including Section 8-8C-2-M(2) Street Trees 

including one (1) tree per thirty-five (35) linear feet. 

7. The property with the approved Preliminary Plat shall be satisfactorily weed abated, 

preventing a public nuisance, per Star City Code.  

8. All signed Irrigation District Agreements with the Irrigation Districts shall be provided to the 

City of Star with each subsequent Final Plat application. 

9. Pressurized irrigation systems shall comply with the Irrigation District(s) and the City of Star 

Codes.  Plans for pressurized irrigation systems shall be submitted to, and approved by the 

City of Star Engineer, prior to installation.   

10. A plat note supporting the “Right to Farm Act” as per Idaho Code Title 22, Chapter 45, shall 

be shown on the Final Plat. 

11. A copy of the CC&R’s shall be submitted to the City of Star at Final Plat. 

12. A letter from the US Postal Service shall be given to the City at Final Plat stating the 

subdivision is in compliance with the Postal Service. 

13. A form signed by the Star Sewer & Water District shall be submitted to the City prior to the 

signature of the Final Plat stating that all conditions of the District have been met, including 

annexation into the District. 

14. A plat note shall state that development standards for residential development shall comply 

with the effective building and zoning requirements at time of building permit issuance, 

unless amended in the Development Agreement or CUP conditions. 

15. Development standards for single family residential units shall comply with effective building 

and zoning requirements at time of building permit issuance, or as approved through the 

Development Agreement or as stated herein. 

16. All common areas shall be owned and maintained by the Homeowners Association. 



  
A 

 

CANVASBACK SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-11/DA-20-11/PP-20-11 16 

 

17. The applicant shall provide a sign, to be located at all construction entrances, indicating the 

rules for all contractors that will be working on the property starting at grading and running 

through home sales that addresses items including but not limited to dust, music, dogs, 

starting/stopping hours for contractors (7a.m. start time). Sign shall be approved by the 

City prior to start of construction. 

18. A sign application is required for any subdivision signs. 

19. Any additional Condition of Approval as required by Staff and City Council. 

 

COUNCIL DECISION 

 

The Star City Council ________________ File #AZ-20-11/PP-20-11/DA-20-11 for Canvasback 

Subdivision on ________________ ____, 2020. 



Canvasback Subdivision
Vicinity map 2

 43°42'19.13" N  116°27'59.40" W   

Scale: 1 inch approx 1000 feet
Jun 24, 2020 - landproDATA.com The materials available at this website are for informational

purposes only and do not constitute a legal document.
Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

http://www.tcpdf.org


L

YE

IABA.DIVAD

PR
OFESSIO ENGINEER

NAL

REGISTERED

S
TAT E OF I DAHO

8 2 72NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

TE
L 

  2
08

-9
38

-0
01

3
w

w
w

.b
ai

le
ye

ng
in

ee
rs

.c
om

11
19

  E
. S

TA
TE

 S
T.

, S
U

IT
E 

21
0

EA
G

LE
, I

D
  8

36
16

CI
VI

L E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

|P
LA

NN
IN

G|
CA

DD

ai
le

y E
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 In
c.

DEVELOPMENT FEATURES

ACREAGE
TOTAL PARCEL - 30.49 ACRES
TOTAL LOTS - 123
BUILDABLE LOTS - 112
    RESIDENTIAL - 112
    COMMON LOTS - 11
    DENSITY  DU/ACRE - 3.67
COMMON AREA - 5.00 ACRES - 16.4%
USEABLE OPEN SPACE - 3.52 ACRES 11.6%
ZONING
EXISTING - RUT/RT
PROPOSED - R-4
SEWAGE DISPOSAL
STAR SEWER AND WATER DISTRICT
WATER SUPPLY
STAR SEWER AND WATER DISTRICT
CITY
STAR
SCHOOL DISTRICT
STAR
FIRE DISTRICT
STAR
IRRIGATION DISTRICT
FARMERS UNION DITCH COMPANY LTD

OWNERS
HYNES PATRICK & RHONDA TRUST
4835 HWY 20
CORVALLIS, OR 97330

DEVELOPER
TRILOGY DEVELOPMENT, INC.
9839 W. CABLE CAR ST.
BOISE ID 83709

ENGINEER
DAVID A. BAILEY, P.E.
BAILEY ENGINEERING, INC.
1119 E. STATE ST., SUITE 210
EAGLE, ID  83616

PLANNER/CONTACT
SHAWN BROWNLEE
TRILOGY DEVELOPMENT, INC.
9839 W. CABLE CAR ST.
BOISE ID 83709
208-895-8858



L

YE

IABA.DIVAD

PR
OFESSIO ENGINEER

NAL

REGISTERED

S
TAT E OF I DAHO

8 2 72NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

TE
L 

  2
08

-9
38

-0
01

3
w

w
w

.b
ai

le
ye

ng
in

ee
rs

.c
om

11
19

  E
. S

TA
TE

 S
T.

, S
U

IT
E 

21
0

EA
G

LE
, I

D
  8

36
16

CI
VI

L E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

|P
LA

NN
IN

G|
CA

DD

ai
le

y E
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 In
c.



ShawnN
Line

ShawnN
Line

ShawnN
Line

ShawnN
Line

ShawnN
Line

ShawnN
Line



Gem State Planning, LLC 
 

9840 W. Overland Road, Suite 120, Boise, Idaho 83709 

 

 
July 1, 2020 
 
Mr. Shawn Nickel, City Planner  
City of Star 
10769 W. State Street 
Star, Idaho 83669 
 
Subject: Canvasback Subdivision at New Hope/Brandon/Wing Roads 
  Applications for Annexation, Zoning, Preliminary Plat and Development Agreement 
 
Dear Mr. Nickel:  
 
On behalf of the property owners, Patrick & Rhonda Hynes Trust and the developer, Trilogy 
Development, please accept the subject applications for Canvasback Subdivision.  This new community 
of single family homes is located south of New Hope Road, between Brandon Road and Wing Road (4N, 
1W, Section 5).  The property is 30.49 acres, is currently zoned RUT in Ada County and is being farmed.   
 
Annexation and Zone 
 
The property is located just south of the recently annexed Greendale Subdivision, which provides a path 
of annexation into the City of Star.  The Star Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map designates this 
property as Neighborhood Residential.  This designation is “suitable primarily for single family 
residential use” with densities of 3-5 units per acre.  Canvasback Subdivision is planned for 112 buildable 
lots or 3.67 dwelling units per acre.  We are requesting a rezone to R-4 which is in keeping with the 
City’s Neighborhood Residential designation.  With the accompanying Development Agreement, the lots 
in Canvasback Subdivision meet dimensional standards for R-4 lots.  The annexation and rezone will not 
negatively impact the provision of public services.  In fact, the developers of Canvasback and Greendale 
Subs are working to together to provide sewer and water extensions along Brandon and New Hope 
Roads, that will also service adjacent parcels.  In addition, the annexation of this property at the 
requested zone will not be detrimental to public health, safety and welfare and is in the best interest of 
the City of Star.   
 
Preliminary Plat 
 
As noted above, Canvasback Subdivision is planned for 112 buildable lots and 11 common lots for a total 
of 123 lots.   
 
Canvasback Subdivision is located adjacent to the Star Acres Subdivision to the east.  Star Acres Sub was 
developed in the mid 1970’s as an Ada County Subdivision.  The Star Acres lots are zoned RUT or 5-acre 
lot size.  These lots are not within the City of Star but are in the City’s Special Transition Overlay Area.  
The Star City Code states that development directly adjacent to this special area requires an appropriate 
transition where new urban development, such as Canvasback Subdivision, is being planned.  According 
to Star Code 8-3B-3, the transition may include clustering urban lots, a buffer strip, different setbacks, or 
larger lots directly abutting the rural lots.    
 
Canvasback is using several methods to provide more than adequate transition to the Star Acres lots.  As 
shown on the preliminary plat, most of the Canvasback Subdivision is separated from the Star Acres lots 



  

 9840 W. Overland Road, Suite 120, Boise, Idaho 83709 

by the 50’ wide right of way for Wing Road.  In addition, we have clustered the Canvasback lots to create 
a large open space/community park along the Wing Road frontage, encompassing about 1/3 of the 
frontage.  In the northeast portion of Canvasback Subdivision, we are planning 4 larger lots, along with a 
30’ buffer strip.  The only portion of Canvasback that is directly adjacent to the Special Transition 
Overlay Area is in the southeast corner.   To provide a transition, we have enlarged the 2 Canvasback 
lots in that area and are also providing a buffer lot.   
 
Open Space and Amenities 
 
The common lots total 5.0 acres or 16.4% of the 30.49 acre site.  The usable open space, which does not 
include street buffers and endcaps, totals 3.52 acres or 11.6% of the site.  Both open spaces calculations 
exceed the requirements of Star Code 8-4E-2.A.1.   
  
The property size and number of homes will require three (3) qualified site amenities.  Our amenities 
include a children’s play structure and picnic shelter in the 3+ acre centrally located park.  We are also 
providing pathway connections between home lots that will provide easy access to the park and to 
neighboring lots.  Lot 15, Block 3 is an open grass area that is included in our open space calculations but 
is not specifically programed for an urban park.  
 
Neighborhood meeting 
 
A neighborhood meeting was held on Wednesday, February 12, 2020, at 6 pm at Star City Hall and was 
very well attended.  The attendance sheet from the meeting in attached.  We have also included a list of 
written comments and questions received from the Mr. Steve Greene in the Star Acres Subdivision to 
the east.  This is the subdivision plan was presented: 
 

 



  

 9840 W. Overland Road, Suite 120, Boise, Idaho 83709 

That plan included 114 buildable lots and 3 new street connections to Wing Road.  As a result of the 
comments we received at the neighborhood meeting and from Mr. Greene, we made significant 
revisions to the layout.  We eliminated 2 of the 3 street connections to Wing Road.  We increased the 
buffer along Wing Road from 20’ to 30’ wide to provide room for landscaping, along with the necessary 
irrigation facilities.   
 
We realigned the southern access to Wing Road so that it lines up with Rolling Hills Drive.  And by 
moving the south stub street, we now have 2 larger lots adjacent to our neighbor at 10399 Rolling Hills 
Drive, instead of 3 lots in our earlier plan.   
 
Development Agreement 
 
We have included a draft development agreement in our application package.  Through this 
development agreement we are requesting five (5) foot side yard setbacks for all the homes in 
Canvasback Subdivision.  We also agree to limit the number of buildable lots to 112.   
 
Streets and Utilities 
 
All streets in Canvasback are public streets that are 36’ back-of-curb to back-of-curb, with attached 5’ 
sidewalks, in a 50’ right of way.  Both New Hope Road and Wing Road will also be improved to meet the 
same standard where adjacent to the subdivision property.  Canvasback frontage on Brandon Road will 
be improved to collector street standards as indicated on the plat detail.   
 
Water, sewer, and pressurized irrigation will be provided to each lot.  Open irrigation ditches that cross 
the property will be enclosed in pipe.  The location and volume of irrigation discharge to adjacent 
properties will not change.  In fact, Mr. Sam Rosti, the President of the Farmers Union Irrigation District, 
is familiar with the property and has met with the project engineer on site to assist with irrigation 
design.   
 
Traffic Study 
 
A traffic impact study has been prepared and was submitted to ACHD and ITD on March 23, 2020.  A 
copy of the TIS is included in our application package.   
 
In summary, Canvasback Subdivision, with the changes made in response to comments, will be a great 
asset to Star and a wonderful community for families to live and play. We look forward to working with 
you through the approval process.  Please contact me if you have questions about the applications or 
the new community.  
 
Sincerely,  
 

Jane Suggs 

 
Jane Suggs 
 
  
 
  



  
 
 
 
 

From the Office of Deputy Chief Victor Islas  

Middleton Rural Fire District             Star Fire Protection District  
302 E. Main Street               11665 State Street, Suite B  
Middleton, Idaho 83644                                                                                                                    Star, Idaho 83669 

 

August 31, 2020 

 
 
 
 
City of Star  
City Planner/Zoning Administrator   
P.O. Box 130 
Star, Idaho 83669  
 
 
 
RE: Canvasback Subdivision   
      File # AZ-20-11 Annexation-Zoning  
      File # PP-20-11 Preliminary Plat 
    
 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
The Star Fire Protection District has reviewed submitted plans for the Canvasback Subdivision located in 
Star, Idaho.  Our Comments are as follows:  
 
This project shall comply with the 2015 International Fire Code (IFC) and any codes set forth by the City 
of Star Idaho.   
 
This project can be serviced by the Star Fire Protection District.  The response station to this development 
will be Fire Station 51 located at 11665 W. State Street, Suite B, Star, Idaho 83669.  The response time 
under normal driving conditions will be 7 minutes utilizing google maps.  
 
Access roads shall be provided and maintained following Appendix D and Section 503 of the 2015 IFC. 
Access shall include adequate roadway widths, signage, turnarounds, and turning radius for fire 
apparatus.  

• One-or two-family dwellings residential developments:  
o Developments of one-or two-family dwellings where the number of dwelling units exceed 

30 shall be provided with at least two separate and approved fire apparatus access roads.  
 

Access road design shall be designed and constructed to allow for evacuation simultaneously with 
emergency response operations.  
 
 



  
 
 
 
 

From the Office of Deputy Chief Victor Islas  

Middleton Rural Fire District             Star Fire Protection District  
302 E. Main Street               11665 State Street, Suite B  
Middleton, Idaho 83644                                                                                                                    Star, Idaho 83669 

 
Continued Comments for: Canvasback Subdivsion 
 
All fire department access roads in the development shall remain clear and unobstructed during 
construction of the development.  Additional parking restrictions may be required as to maintain access 
for emergency vehicles at all times.  Hydrants shall remain unobstructed during construction as per City 
code.  
 
The Fire hydrant spacing shall be no more than 400’ apart and will be equipped with Storz LDH connection 
in place of the 4 182” outlet.  Hydrants shall be approved and witnessed by the Fire Code Official.  
 
Final inspection by Fire District of above list including hydrant flow must be verified before building 
permits are issued. 
 
If you have questions or would like to discuss this letter in detail, please feel free to contact my office at 
(208) 585-6650.  
  
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Victor E. Islas  
Deputy Chief  
 
 
 

Victor Islas



GROWING  POSSIBILITIES 

131 SW 5th Ave, Suite A 

Meridian, ID 83642 

  

(208) 288-1992 

 
 
 

203010-369 

August 6, 2020 

 

 

Mayor Trevor Chadwick 

City of Star 

P.O. Box 130 

Star, ID 83669 

 
Re: Canvasback Subdivision Preliminary Plat Application 

 

Dear Mayor: 

 

Keller Associates, Inc. has reviewed the Preliminary Plat for the Canvasback Subdivision dated June 

17, 2020. We reviewed the applicant’s package to check conformance with the City’s Subdivision 

Ordinance and coordinated our review with Cathy Ward. We have the following comments and question 

based on our review.   

1. The distances on the east side of the property boundary shown on the plan do not match the 

legal description provided. 

2. It appears that there is a sewer line that runs through Lot 13, Block 5 that will need an 

easement. 

3. Stamp needs to be signed. 

4. Add a streetlight at the intersection of N Spotted Rail Ave and Rolling Hills. 

5. Irrigation arrows appear to be pointing to the wrong areas and structures. 

6. Street lighting shall be in accordance with ISPWC and the City of Star Supplementals.  Cut 

sheet for lights and light poles shall be approved in writing by the City prior to installation.  

7. Construction plans for a subdivision-wide pressure irrigation system will be required for each 

final plat. Plan approvals and license agreements from the affected irrigation and/or canal 

companies will be required. 

8. Historic irrigation lateral, drain, and ditch flow patterns shall be maintained unless approved 

in writing by the local irrigation district or ditch company. 

9. Potable water cannot be used for irrigation purposes. A separate pressure irrigation system 

will be required. 

10. Finish grades at subdivision boundaries shall match existing finish grades. Runoff shall be 

maintained on subdivision property unless otherwise approved. 

11. Easements for sewer/water facilities will be required where placed outside of public right of 

way. 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 51338037-F0C6-4FC0-A7BF-3D171A732FB5



 
 

203010-369 

We recommend that the conditions 1 and 5 listed above be addressed prior to approval of the 

Preliminary Plat. Any variance or waivers to the City of Star standards, ordinances, or policies must be 

specifically approved in writing by the City. Approval of the above-referenced Preliminary Plat does not 

relieve the Registered Professional Land Surveyor or the Registered Professional Engineer of those 

responsibilities. 

 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call Keller Associates at (208) 288-1992. 

 

Sincerely,  

KELLER ASSOCIATES, INC. 

 

 

Ryan V. Morgan, P.E. 

City Engineer 

 

cc: File 

       

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 51338037-F0C6-4FC0-A7BF-3D171A732FB5



 
Page 1 of 6 

 

 
 

Staff Technical Report 
3/30/2020 

REVISED 4/21/2020 

 
 
Development: Canvasback Subdivision 
   
Lead Agency:  City of Star 
  Shawn Nickel 
  Snickel@staridaho.org 

Phone: 208-286-7247 
 

Location: East of SH-16, SE corner of New Hope and Wing Road in Star, ID 
 
Applicant: Shawn Brownlee 
  Trilogy Development 
  9839 W. Cable Car St, Suite 101 

Boise, ID 83709 
(208) 895-8858 office 

 
 
Consultant: Chhang Ream 

CR Engineering, Inc. 
181 East 50th Street 
chhream@gmail.com  
Phone: 208-841-4996 

 
Staff Contact: Erika Bowen 
  Traffic Technical Engineer 
  Erika.Bowen@itd.idaho.gov 
  Phone: 208-265-4312 ext. #7 
 

Traffic Findings for Consideration 
 
1. Proposed Development 

 
The proposed Canvasback Subdivision contains 113 single-family homes.  Total build is anticipated in 2023. 
The development is taking all access from local roads. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:Snickel@staridaho.org
mailto:chhream@gmail.com
mailto:Erika.Bowen@itd.idaho.gov


 

  

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
P.O. Box 8028  •  Boise, ID  83707-2028 

(208) 334-8300  •  itd.idaho.gov 

 

 
Page 1 of 1 

 

April 22, 2020 

 

Shawn Brownlee 
Trilogy Development 
9839 W. Cable Car St, Suite 101 
Boise, ID 83709 
 

VIA EMAIL 

 

RE: Canvasback Subdivision – ITD Development Condition Memo 

 

Dear Shawn,  

 

I really appreciate the work you are doing to help those who are living in this beautiful area of Star, ID. The Canvasback 

Subdivision Traffic Impact Study (TIS) provided by CR Engineering has been reviewed. The trips generated by your 

development adds congestion to SH-44 and SH-16. ITD has entered into an agreement with the city of Star to collect a 

proportionate share contribution from each new development for impacts to the State highway system. As two 

agencies we will work together to accelerate highway construction within Star’s area of impact to accommodate new 

development growth. ITD values your contribution to the transportation system so we can help keep goods, services 

and the public moving at an efficient pace. 

 

ITD determined Canvasback Subdivision’s proportionate share contribution to be $188,000 (0.47%). This is based off 

the subdivision’s site trips through the intersection of SH-16 / SH-44 in comparison to total 2045 traffic volumes. The 

next anticipated intersection improvement is an interchange. Details of the proportionate share calculation are 

included in the attached ITD Staff Technical Report.    

 

Thank you again for your partnership. If there are any questions or concerns please don’t hesitate to email me at 

Justin.Price@itd.idaho.gov or give me a call at 208-334-8340. 

 

Sincerely, 

Justin Price 
Justin Price 

ITD District 3 Traffic Engineer 

 

Cc: 

Shawn Nickel – City of Star 

Mindy Wallace – ACHD  



 
Page 2 of 6 

 

 
2.   Vicinity Map 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Trip Generation:  

 
 
 

4. Traffic Impact Analysis 
Dated: March 23, 2020 
 

a. Scope of Work 
ITD only requested full build-out site trips and not analysis at the intersections of SH-16 / Beacon Light Rd, 
SH-16 / SH-44, SH-44 / Star Road.  Future intersections improvements are known at each of these 
intersections based on corridor plans, and other recent TIS’s.  
 
b. Executive Summary 
CR Engineering prepared a traffic impact study for the proposed Canvasback Subdivision. Below is an 
executive summary of the findings as presented by CR Engineering. The following executive summary is not 
the opinion of ITD staff. ITD Staff has reviewed the submitted traffic impact study for consistency with ITD 
policies and practices and may have additional and/or varied requirements beyond what is noted in the 
summary. 

 



 
Page 3 of 6 

 

 

 

 



 
Page 4 of 6 

 

 
5. ITD Policy Review 

 
a. Proportionate Share Contribution 

 
ITD District 3 has issued Memo 39-Development Proportionate Share Contribution as a means to request 
equitable contribution from developers to improve public facilities needed to serve new growth and 
development.  

 
b. Jurisdictional Authority  

 
ITD does not have jurisdictional authority to require improvements from the developer A formal letter of 
request will need to be sent to the city of Star requesting them to include any mitigation to the State 
highway system in their development agreement. 
 

c. Interagency Agreement 
 
ITD does not have a signed Interagency Agreement with the city of Star. The draft document should be 
presented at the April 27th Star City Council meeting.  

 
 
 

6. Staff Comments Recommendations 
 

The TIS provided site trips passing through the following three intersections: 
 

 
 
Given that traffic disperses to both SH-16 and SH-44, staff feels it is most fair to only ask for proportionate 
share contribution at a single intersection. The one that experiences traffic from both directions,                                
SH-16 / SH-44 
 



 
Page 5 of 6 

 

 
Intersection of SH-44 / SH-16 
ITD’s SH-44 Traffic Analysis identifies an interchange being the next needed improvement at this location to 
meet 2045 traffic demands.   
 
GARVEE office staff estimates the design and construction costs for the SH-44 / SH-16 interchange as $40M.  
 
Staff calculates the developer’s proportionate share to be 0.95% based off total intersection trips at 2045 PM 
Peak. 2045 is the year analyzed in the SH-44 Traffic Analysis.  
 
   2023 Site Traffic                                   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2045 Total Traffic         

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
Staff recommends the developer pay a proportionate share of $188,000 (0.47%) to the future interchange 
at SH-16 / SH-44 based off total intersection trips at 2045. Proportionate share needs to be provided prior 
to occupancy of the development.           
 

*ITD Staff Recommendations are intended to assure that the proposed development will not place an undue burden 
on the existing State Highway system within the vicinity impacted by the proposed development. 
 
** Recommendations included in ITD’s Staff Technical Report along with any development conditions (see associated 
Permit Committee Agenda/Minutes) is only valid for the period of one year from the date of the TIS report. ITD 
reserves the right to request an updated TIS to reflect current traffic conditions if an approved encroachment 
application and/or proportionate share contribution are not obtained/provided within one year.  

PM Site = 68 PM Total = 14,465 PM % = 0.47 

Proportionate Share for SH-44 / SH-16 
Interchange Improvements 

% = 0.47 



August 13, 2020 

 

Shawn L. Nickel 

City Planner and Zoning Administrator 

Star City Hall 

P.O. Box 130 

Star, Idaho 83669 

 

RE: Canvasback Subdivision, AZ-20-11 Annexation-Zoning, DA-20-11 Development Agreement, and 

PP-20-11 Preliminary Plat 

 
Thank you for the opportunity to respond to your request for comment.  While DEQ does not review 

projects on a project-specific basis, we attempt to provide the best review of the information provided.  

DEQ encourages agencies to review and utilize the Idaho Environmental Guide to assist in addressing 

project-specific conditions that may apply.  This guide can be found at: deq.idaho.gov/assistance-

resources/environmental-guide-for-local-govts.  

 

The following information does not cover every aspect of this project; however, we have the following 

general comments to use as appropriate: 

 

1. Air Quality  

  Please review IDAPA 58.01.01 for all rules on Air Quality, especially those regarding fugitive 

dust (58.01.01.651), trade waste burning (58.01.01.600-617), and odor control plans 

(58.01.01.776). 

 

All property owners, developers, and their contractor(s) must ensure that reasonable controls to 

prevent fugitive dust from becoming airborne are utilized during all phases of construction 

activities per IDAPA 58.01.01.651. 

 

DEQ recommends the city/county require the development and submittal of a dust prevention 

and control plan prior to final plat approval.  Dust prevention and control plans incorporate 

appropriate best management practices to control fugitive dust that may be generated at sites.  

Information on fugitive dust control plans can be found at: 

http://www.deq.idaho.gov/media/61833-dust_control_plan.pdf  

 

  Citizen complaints received by DEQ regarding fugitive dust from development and construction 

activities approved by cities or counties will be referred to the city/county to address under their 

ordinances. 

 

Per IDAPA 58.01.01.600-617, the open burning of any construction waste is prohibited. The 

property owner, developer, and their contractor(s) are responsible for ensuring no prohibited 

open burning occurs during construction.  

 
 For questions, contact David Luft, Air Quality Manager, at (208) 373-0550. 

 
 

 
1445 North Orchard • Boise, ID 83706 • (208) 373-0550  Brad Little, Governor 
 John H. Tippets, Director 

STATE OF IDAHO 
 

DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

http://www.deq.idaho.gov/assistance-resources/environmental-guide-for-local-govts
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/assistance-resources/environmental-guide-for-local-govts
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/media/61833-dust_control_plan.pdf


Response to Request for Comment  

August 13, 2020 

Page 2 
 

 

2. Wastewater and Recycled Water  

  DEQ recommends verifying that there is adequate sewer to serve this project prior to approval.  

Please contact the sewer provider for a capacity statement, declining balance report, and 

willingness to serve this project.   

 

  IDAPA 58.01.16 and IDAPA 58.01.17 are the sections of Idaho rules regarding wastewater and 

recycled water.  Please review these rules to determine whether this or future projects will 

require DEQ approval.  IDAPA 58.01.03 is the section of Idaho rules regarding subsurface 

disposal of wastewater.  Please review this rule to determine whether this or future projects will 

require permitting by the district health department.  

 

All projects for construction or modification of wastewater systems require preconstruction 

approval.  Recycled water projects and subsurface disposal projects require separate permits as 

well. 

 

  DEQ recommends that projects be served by existing approved wastewater collection systems or 

a centralized community wastewater system whenever possible.  Please contact DEQ to discuss 

potential for development of a community treatment system along with best management 

practices for communities to protect ground water. 

 

  DEQ recommends that cities and counties develop and use a comprehensive land use 

management plan, which includes the impacts of present and future wastewater management in 

this area.  Please schedule a meeting with DEQ for further discussion and recommendations for 

plan development and implementation.   

 
 For questions, contact Valerie Greear, Water Quality Engineering Manager at (208) 373-0550. 

 

3. Drinking Water  

  DEQ recommends verifying that there is adequate water to serve this project prior to approval.  

Please contact the water provider for a capacity statement, declining balance report, and 

willingness to serve this project. 

 

  IDAPA 58.01.08 is the section of Idaho rules regarding public drinking water systems.  Please 

review these rules to determine whether this or future projects will require DEQ approval.   

 

All projects for construction or modification of public drinking water systems require 

preconstruction approval.   

  

  DEQ recommends verifying if the current and/or proposed drinking water system is a regulated 

public drinking water system (refer to the DEQ website at: deq.idaho.gov/water-

quality/drinking-water.aspx).  For non-regulated systems, DEQ recommends annual testing for 

total coliform bacteria, nitrate, and nitrite. 

  

  If any private wells will be included in this project, we recommend that they be tested for total 

coliform bacteria, nitrate, and nitrite prior to use and retested annually thereafter.  

 

  DEQ recommends using an existing drinking water system whenever possible or construction of 

a new community drinking water system.  Please contact DEQ to discuss this project and to 

http://www.deq.idaho.gov/water-quality/drinking-water.aspx
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/water-quality/drinking-water.aspx


Response to Request for Comment  

August 13, 2020 

Page 3 
 

explore options to both best serve the future residents of this development and provide for 

protection of ground water resources.   

 

  DEQ recommends cities and counties develop and use a comprehensive land use management 

plan which addresses the present and future needs of this area for adequate, safe, and sustainable 

drinking water.  Please schedule a meeting with DEQ for further discussion and 

recommendations for plan development and implementation.   

 
 For questions, contact Valerie Greear, Water Quality Engineering Manager at (208) 373-0550. 

 

4. Surface Water  

  A DEQ short-term activity exemption (STAE) from this office is required if the project will 

involve de-watering of ground water during excavation and discharge back into surface water, 

including a description of the water treatment from this process to prevent excessive sediment 

and turbidity from entering surface water.   

 

  Please contact DEQ to determine whether this project will require a National Pollution 

Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit. A Construction General Permit from EPA may 

be required if this project will disturb one or more acres of land, or will disturb less than one 

acre of land but are part of a common plan of development or sale that will ultimately disturb 

one or more acres of land.  

  

  If this project is near a source of surface water, DEQ requests that projects incorporate 

construction best management practices (BMPs) to assist in the protection of Idaho’s water 

resources.  Additionally, please contact DEQ to identify BMP alternatives and to determine 

whether this project is in an area with Total Maximum Daily Load stormwater permit 

conditions. 

 

  The Idaho Stream Channel Protection Act requires a permit for most stream channel alterations.  

Please contact the Idaho Department of Water Resources (IDWR), Western Regional Office, at 

2735 Airport Way, Boise, or call (208) 334-2190 for more information.  Information is also 

available on the IDWR website at: 
http://www.idwr.idaho.gov/WaterManagement/StreamsDams/Streams/AlterationPermit/AlterationPermit.htm 

 

  The Federal Clean Water Act requires a permit for filling or dredging in waters of the United 

States.  Please contact the US Army Corps of Engineers, Boise Field Office, at 10095 Emerald 

Street, Boise, or call 208-345-2155 for more information regarding permits.   

 
 For questions, contact Lance Holloway, Surface Water Manager, at (208) 373-0550. 

 

5. Hazardous Waste And Ground Water Contamination 

  Hazardous Waste.  The types and number of requirements that must be complied with under 

the federal Resource Conservations and Recovery Act (RCRA) and the Idaho Rules and 

Standards for Hazardous Waste (IDAPA 58.01.05) are based on the quantity and type of waste 

generated.  Every business in Idaho is required to track the volume of waste generated, 

determine whether each type of waste is hazardous, and ensure that all wastes are properly 

disposed of according to federal, state, and local requirements. 

 

  No trash or other solid waste shall be buried, burned, or otherwise disposed of at the project site.  

http://www.idwr.idaho.gov/WaterManagement/StreamsDams/Streams/AlterationPermit/AlterationPermit.htm


Response to Request for Comment  

August 13, 2020 

Page 4 
 

These disposal methods are regulated by various state regulations including Idaho’s Solid Waste 

Management Regulations and Standards, Rules and Regulations for Hazardous Waste, and 

Rules and Regulations for the Prevention of Air Pollution. 

 

  Water Quality Standards.  Site activities must comply with the Idaho Water Quality Standards 

(IDAPA 58.01.02) regarding hazardous and deleterious-materials storage, disposal, or 

accumulation adjacent to or in the immediate vicinity of state waters (IDAPA 58.01.02.800); 

and the cleanup and reporting of oil-filled electrical equipment (IDAPA 58.01.02.849); 

hazardous materials (IDAPA 58.01.02.850); and used-oil and petroleum releases (IDAPA 

58.01.02.851 and 852).  

 

Petroleum releases must be reported to DEQ in accordance with IDAPA 58.01.02.851.01 and 

04.  Hazardous material releases to state waters, or to land such that there is likelihood that it 

will enter state waters, must be reported to DEQ in accordance with IDAPA 58.01.02.850. 

 

  Ground Water Contamination.  DEQ requests that this project comply with Idaho’s Ground 

Water Quality Rules (IDAPA 58.01.11), which states that “No person shall cause or allow the 

release, spilling, leaking, emission, discharge, escape, leaching, or disposal of a contaminant 

into the environment in a manner that causes a ground water quality standard to be exceeded, 

injures a beneficial use of ground water, or is not in accordance with a permit, consent order or 

applicable best management practice, best available method or best practical method.”   

 
 For questions, contact Albert Crawshaw, Waste & Remediation Manager, at (208) 373-0550. 

 

6.  Additional Notes 

  If an underground storage tank (UST) or an aboveground storage tank (AST) is identified at the 

site, the site should be evaluated to determine whether the UST is regulated by DEQ.  EPA 

regulates ASTs.  UST and AST sites should be assessed to determine whether there is potential 

soil and ground water contamination.  Please call DEQ at (208) 373-0550, or visit the DEQ 

website deq.idaho.gov/waste-mgmt-remediation/storage-tanks.aspx for assistance. 

 

  If applicable to this project, DEQ recommends that BMPs be implemented for any of the 

following conditions:  wash water from cleaning vehicles, fertilizers and pesticides, animal 

facilities, composted waste, and ponds.  Please contact DEQ for more information on any of 

these conditions. 
 

We look forward to working with you in a proactive manner to address potential environmental impacts 

that may be within our regulatory authority.  If you have any questions, please contact me, or any of our 

technical staff at (208) 373-0550. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

 

Aaron Scheff 

Regional Administrator 

Boise Regional Office  

 

ec: CM#2020AEK198 

http://www.deq.idaho.gov/waste-mgmt-remediation/storage-tanks.aspx


 
 

Ada County Courthouse 
200 West Front Street 
Boise ID 83702 
208.287.7900 
Fax 208.287.7909 
www.adacounty.id.gov 

 

Department Divisions 
Building 
Community Planning 
Engineering & Surveying 
Permitting 
 
 Ada County Commissioners  
Diana Lachiondo, First District 
Patrick Malloy, Second District 
Kendra Kenyon, Third District 
 

 
ADA COUNTY 

Development Services Department 

Richard Beck  
Interim Director 
 

August 4, 2020 

Via Email: snickel@staridaho.org  

Shawn Nickel 

City of Star Planning & Zoning Department 

10769 W. State Street 

Star, ID 83669 

RE: Annexation / Canvasback Subdivision 

Shawn, 

The City of Star has requested feedback regarding a proposed annexation and 

preliminary plat for the Canvasback Subdivision located on the southwest corner of 

New Hope Road and Wing Road. The subdivision will consist of 112 single-family 

residential lots on 30.5 acres at a density of 3.7 dwelling units per acre. Ada County 

is in support of the application due to the proximity of the site to public services and 

infrastructure. Future residents of the site will have nearby access to existing parks, 

schools, commercial services and employment opportunities, and will help to 

support the businesses located within Star’s downtown.  

The proposed application is supported by Goal 2.2f of the Ada County 

Comprehensive Plan as it encourages residential development to occur at urban 

densities within Areas of City Impact where urban public facilities are available. The 

layout of the subdivision also complies with several goals of the Star Comprehensive 

Plan, as adopted by Ada County. The proposal to provide 3.52 acres of usable open 

space within the development, which will include a park, playground and picnic 

shelter will comply with  Residential Policy 3, which encourages neighborhood 

parks and open spaces within residential areas, and the proposed pedestrian paths 

will comply with Transportation Policy 9 which encourages non-motorized 

pathways between residential areas to reduce vehicle trips and improve access for 

non-drivers.   

It is recommended that additional stub streets be provided, particularly to the 

adjacent property to the southwest to which no connections are proposed, in order for 

the development to meet the Ada County Comprehensive Plan’s connectivity goals. 

Goal 4.3 supports the development of local transportation systems that are well-

connected, both internally and to the regional transportation system and Goal 4.3d 

calls for new developments to provide stub streets that will connect to future 

developments on adjacent lands wherever possible.  

  

mailto:snickel@staridaho.org


Page 2 of 2 

 

Regarding land use, the comprehensive plan currently adopted by the County for the Star Area of City 

Impact designates the site as Low Density Residential, with a maximum density of up to two units per 

acre. Star has since adopted an updated comprehensive plan designating the site as Neighborhood 

Residential, within which the proposed density would be allowed. Ada County looks forward to working 

with city staff in the renegotiation and adoption of the updated comprehensive plan.   

Thank you for this opportunity to provide feedback.  
 

Sincerely, 

 
Brent Moore, MCMP, AICP 

Community & Regional Planner 

Ada County Development Services 



Communities in Motion 2040 2.0 Development Review 
 

The Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho (COMPASS) is the metropolitan planning organization 
(MPO) for Ada and Canyon Counties. COMPASS has developed this review as a tool for local governments to 
evaluate whether land developments are consistent with the goals of Communities in Motion 2040 2.0 (CIM 2040), 
the regional long-range transportation plan for Ada and Canyon Counties. This checklist is not intended to be 
prescriptive, but rather a guidance document based on CIM 2040 2.0 goals. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Recommendations 

This proposal exceeds growth forecasted for this area. Transportation infrastructure may not be able to support the 
new transportation demands. The proposal is on the fringe of urban development in a predominately farmland 
area. Nearby services, such as schools, parks, grocery, and other services are likely accessed only by vehicle and 
there are no plans for public transportation to this location. The nearest bus service is more than four miles away.  

 

 
 

 

More information about COMPASS and Communities in Motion 2040 2.0: 
Web: www.compassidaho.org 
Email info@compassidaho.org 
More information about the development review process:  
http://www.compassidaho.org/dashboard/devreview.htm 

Development Name: Canvasback     Agency: Star 

CIM Vision Category: Future Neighborhoods 
 
New households: 112   New jobs: 0   Exceeds CIM forecast: Yes 
 

Farmland contributes to the local economy, creates 
additional jobs, and provides food security to the region. 
Development in farm areas decreases the productivity 
and sustainability of farmland.  
 

Farmland consumed: Yes 
Farmland within 1 mile: 1,129 acres 
 

Housing within 1 mile: 790 
Jobs within 1 mile: 160 
Jobs/Housing Ratio: 0.2 
 

Nearest bus stop: >4 miles 
Nearest public school: 1.7 miles 
Nearest public park: 3 miles 
Nearest grocery store: >4 miles 
 
 

CIM Corridor: New Hope Road 
Pedestrian level of stress: R 
Bicycle level of stress: R 
 

A good jobs/housing balance – a ratio between 1 and 
1.5 – reduces traffic congestion. Higher numbers 
indicate the need for more housing and lower numbers 
indicate an employment need. 

Residents who live or work less than ½ mile from 
critical services have more transportation choices. 
Walking and biking reduces congestion by taking cars off 
the road, while supporting a healthy and active lifestyle.   
 

Level of Stress considers facility type, number of vehicle 
lanes, and speed. Roads with G or PG ratings better 
support bicyclists and pedestrians of all ages and comfort 
levels.  
 

Nearest police station: >4 miles 
Nearest fire station: 2.4 miles 
 

Developments within 1.5 miles of police and fire 
stations ensure that emergency services are more 
efficient and reduce the cost of these important public 
services.   

http://www.compassidaho.org/
mailto:info@compassidaho.org
http://www.compassidaho.org/dashboard/devreview.htm


jkiser@cableone.net 

September 4, 2020 

Jerry A. Kiser 
Attorney at Law 

4708 W. Fairview Ave., Suite 203 
P.O. Box 8389 

Boise, Idaho 83707 

By email to: snickel@staridaho.org 
and by regular U.S. mail to: 

City of Star 
Attn: Shawn Nickel 
P.O. Box 130 
Star, ID 83669 

(208) 861-4657 

Re: Canvasback Subdivision/ File #'s AZ-20-11 Annexation-Zoning; 
DA-20-11 Development Agreement; PP-20-11 Preliminary Plat 

Dear Mr. Nickel: 

I write as attorney for the HRM pipeline, (HRM) an Idaho lateral water user 
association. The HRM delivers irrigation water from the Farmers Union canal to the 
property being developed as Canvasback subdivision as well as a number of other water 
users in the area. Regarding the proposed development and subdivision, the HRM has 
certain requirements which include, but may not be limited to, the following: 

1. The developer/property owner must recognize irrigation rights-of-way for 
cleaning, maintenance and repair of the HRM delivery ditches and pipeline. 
The HRM has rights-of-way granted by State law. The sizes of those rights-
of-way vary depending on the location, size and type of delivery structure or 
method of conveyance of water delivered to its water users. The HRM 
maintains a right-of-way of at least 10 feet on each side of its buried pipelines. 
Open ditch rights-of-way differ depending on a number of factors such as the 
width of the ditch and geographic features on or near the ditch. Idaho law 
provides no improvements including but not limited to, fences, structures, 
roads, pipelines or other construction is to be placed in the HRM rights-of-
way without written permission from the HRM. The HRM strongly 
recommends rights-of-way be platted as common area lots to prevent 
encroachment or unauthorized improvements in the right-of-way by lot 
owners. The HRM should be contacted to determine specific rights-of-way the 
HRM has for its ditches and pipelines. 

2. No change in the point of diversion or place of use of the water is allowed 
unless approved by the HRM. 



3. Any construction activities, including road or other construction must be 
completed at times and in a manner so as not to interfere in any way with the 
HRM's delivery of water or cleaning, maintenance, and repairs to its pipes 
and ditches. 

4. In most circumstances, the HRM requires subdivisions install a pressurized 
irrigation system. Any such system should be pre-approved by the HRM. 

5. Pursuant to Idaho law, the written permission of the HRM must be obtained 
before any ditch or canal is buried in irrigation pipe by any land owner. 
Written permission must also be obtained from the HRM to relocate or change 
the location of any existing ditch, canal or pipeline. 

Please note the HRM may have further and additional input regarding impacts to 
the lateral by the proposed subdivision. The President of the HRM is Mike Sessions and 
he can be reached at 208-949-3837. If you have any questions regarding the foregoing, 
please feel free to contact me or Mike. 

cerely, 

Any A. Kiser 
L./Attorney at Law 

cc: HRM Pipeline 







  

                                  



 1     Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

Development Services Department 

 
Project/File:  Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/ PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

This is an annexation with rezone from RUT to R-4, a preliminary plat application 
consisting of 123 lots, and a Development Agreement with the City of Star.  The site 
is located on 30.5-acres.  

Lead Agency: City of Star 

Site address: South of New Hope Road between  
 Brandon Road and Wing Road 

Staff Approval: September 22, 2020 

Applicant/ 
Representative: Gem State Planning 
 Jane Suggs  
 9840 W Overland Road, Ste. 120 
 Boise, ID  83709 

Staff Contact:  Stacey Yarrington, Planner III 
 Phone: 387-6171 
 E-mail: syarrington@achdidaho.org  

A.  Findings of Fact 

1. Description of Application:   The applicant is requesting approval for annexation with rezone from 
RUT (Rural Urban Transition) to R-4 (Medium-low density Residential), a preliminary plat 
application consisting of 112 single family lots and 11 common lots, and a Development Agreement 
with the City of Star.  The site is located on 30.5-acres and the applicant’s proposal is consistent 
with the City of Star’s Future Land Use Map that designates this area as Neighborhood Residential.  

2. Description of Adjacent Surrounding Area:   

Direction Land Use Zoning 

North Medium-low Residential R-3 

South Rural Urban Transition (Ada County) RUT 

East Rural Urban Transition RUT 

West Medium-low Residential/ Rural Urban Transition R-4, RUT 

 

3. Site History:  ACHD has not previously reviewed this site for a development application. 

4. Adjacent Development:  The following developments are pending or underway in the vicinity of 
the site: 

• Canopi Estates, a 15 single-family lot subdivision located directly west of the site was 
approved by ACHD in June 2020. 

• Greiner Hope Springs, a 270-lot residential development located west of the site was 
approved by ACHD in August 2019.  

Vicinity Map

 

mailto:syarrington@achdidaho.org


 2      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

• Greendale Grove, a 106-lot residential development located northeast of the site was 
approved by ACHD in April 2019.  

• Greendale, a 131-lot residential development located north of the site was approved by ACHD 
in April 2019.   

5. Transit:  Transit services are not available to serve this site.   

6. New Center Lane Miles:  The proposed development includes 0.77 centerline miles of new public 
road. 

7. Impact Fees: There will be an impact fee that is assessed and due prior to issuance of any building 
permits. The assessed impact fee will be based on the impact fee ordinance that is in effect at that 
time. The impact fee assessment will not be released until the civil plans are approved by ACHD. 

8. Capital Improvements Plan (CIP)/ Integrated Five Year Work Plan (IFYWP): 

There are no roadways, bridges or intersections in the general vicinity of the project that are in the 
Integrated Five Year Work Plan (IFYWP) or the District’s Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 

9. Roadways to Bikeways Master Plan:  ACHD’s Roadways to Bikeways Master Plan (BMP) was 
adopted by the ACHD Commission in May of 2009 and was update in 2018.  The plan seeks to 
implement the Planned Bicycle Network to support bicycling as a viable transportation option for 
Ada County residents with a wide range of ages and abilities,  maintain bicycle routes in a state of 
good repair in order to ensure they are consistently available for use, promote awareness of existing 
bicycle routes and features and support encouragement programs and to  facilitate coordination 
and cooperation among local jurisdictions in implementing the Roadways to Bikeways Plan 
recommendations. 

The BMP identifies New Hope Road as a Level 3 facility and Brandon Road as a Level 2 facility.   

B.  Traffic Findings for Consideration 
1. Trip Generation:  This development is estimated to generate 1,154 vehicle trips per day; 113 

vehicle trips per hour in the PM peak hour, based on the traffic impact study. 

2. Traffic Impact Study  
CR Engineering, Inc., prepared a traffic impact study for the proposed Canvasback Subdivision.  
Below is an executive summary of the findings as presented by CR Engineering, Inc. The 
following executive summary is not the opinion of ACHD staff.  ACHD has reviewed the submitted 
traffic impact study for consistency with ACHD policies and practices and may have additional 
requirements beyond what is noted in the summary.   ACHD Staff comments on the submitted traffic 
impact study can be found below under staff comments. 

SUMMARY 

 Improvements Needed to Mitigate 2020 Existing Traffic 

• All study area intersections and roadways are anticipated to operate at an acceptable 
planning level of service threshold under existing traffic conditions.  

 Improvements Needed to Mitigate 2023 Build-Out Year Background Traffic 

• All study area roadways are anticipated to operate at an acceptable planning level of 
service threshold with 2023 background traffic.  

• With 2023 background traffic, all study area intersections are expected to meet 
minimum operational thresholds analyzed with the existing intersection control and lane 
configurations.  One study area intersection is expected to meet ACHD’s turn lane 
guidelines:  

o Pollard Lane and Beacon Light Road intersection  



 3      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

▪ Based on the expected volumes, the existing westbound right-turn lane is not 
required.  The westbound left-turn lane could be added by restriping the 
westbound approach to have one left-turn lane and one shared through/right-
turn lane.  

▪ Roadway widening will be needed west of the intersection to accommodate 
the westbound left-turn lane.  

 Improvements Needed to Mitigate 2023 Build-Out Year Total Traffic 

• All study area roadways are anticipated to operate at an acceptable planning level of 
service threshold with 2023 total traffic. 

• All study area intersections are anticipated to operate at an acceptable planning level 
of service threshold with the existing intersection control and lane configurations or 
with the turn lane needed with 2023 background conditions. No additional 
improvements are needed under 2023 total traffic conditions.   

o Intersection Mitigation 
All study area intersections are expected to meet minimum operational thresholds 
with and without the turn lanes as summarized under 2023 background traffic 
conditions.  As a result, no additional intersection improvements are needed to 
mitigate 2023 total traffic operations.  The estimated site traffic at the external 
study area intersections as a percentage of the 2023 total traffic are: 

▪ Wing Road and Beacon Light Road intersection – 6.8% in the AM peak hour 
and 7.0% in the PM peak hour 

▪ Pollard Lane and Beacon Light Road intersection – 6.1% in the AM peak 
hour and 6.3% in the PM peak hour 

▪ Floating Feather Road and Brandon Road intersection – 8.4% in the AM 
peak hour and 8.9% in the PM peak hour 

Policy: 
a. Mitigation Proposals: Mitigation recommendations shall be provided within the report.  At a 

minimum, for each roadway segment and intersection that does not meet the minimum 
acceptable level of service planning threshold or v/c ratio, the report must discuss feasible 
measures to avoid or reduce the impact to the system. To be considered adequate, measures 
should be specific and feasible. Mitigation may also include: 

• Revision to the Phasing Plan to coincide with the District’s planning Capital Projects. 

• Reducing the scope and/or scale of the project. 

Alternative Mitigation Measures:  7106.7.3 states that if traditional mitigation measures such 
as roadway widening and intersection improvements are infeasible as determined by ACHD, 
the TIS may recommend alternative mitigation measures.    Alternative mitigation measures 
shall demonstrate that impacts from the project will be offset. 

• If the impacted roadway segments and/or intersections are programmed as funded in 
the Integrated Five Year Work Plan (IFYWP) or the Capital Improvements Plan (CIP); 
no alternative mitigation is required.  

• If the impacted roadway segments and/or intersections are not programmed in either 
the IFYWP or the CIP; the applicant may (i) analyze the shoulder hour and (ii) provide a 
safety analysis to determine alternative mitigation requirements. 

o If the impacted roadway segments and intersections meet the minimum 
acceptable level of service planning thresholds in the shoulder hour the applicant 
may suggest feasible alternative mitigation such as: sidewalks, bike facilities, 



 4      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

connectivity, safety improvements, etc. within 1.5 miles of the proposed 
development. 

o If the shoulder hour planning thresholds are exceeded the applicant may request 
to enter into a Development Agreement and pay into the Priority Corridor Fund 
an amount determined by the ACHD to offset impacts from the project. 

• Alternative Mitigation may also include: 

o Revision to the Phasing Plan to coincide with the District’s future Capital 
Projects.   

o Reducing the scope and/or scale of the project. 

b. Level of Service Planning Thresholds:  District Policy 7206.4.1 states that, Level of Service 
Planning Thresholds have been established for principal arterials and minor arterials within 
ACHD’s Capital Improvement Plan and are also listed in section 7106.  Unless otherwise 
required to provide a Traffic Impact Study under section 7106, a proposed development with 
site traffic less than 10% of the existing downstream roadway or intersection peak hour traffic 
shall not be required to provide mitigation for a roadway or intersection that currently exceeds 
the minimum acceptable level of service planning threshold or V/C ratio.    

Staff Comments/Recommendations:  Traffic Services and Planning Review staff have reviewed 
and generally agree with the findings and recommendations of the submitted traffic impact study. 

The Traffic Impact Study indicates that with the development and background traffic, the Pollard 
Lane/Beacon Light Road intersection should be widened and re-striped to have one left-turn lane 
and one shared through/right-turn lane.  However, widening of the intersection as recommended in 
the TIS is infeasible because there is insufficient right-of-way and the location of the large drainage 
ditch along the east side of Pollard Lane, to accommodate the proposed improvement mitigation.  
Therefore, no improvements are required for this intersection consistent with District Level of 
Service Planning Thresholds policy that states, a proposed development with site traffic less than 
10% of the existing downstream roadway or intersection peak hour traffic shall not be required to 
provide mitigation for a roadway or intersection that currently exceeds the minimum acceptable 
level of planning threshold or V/C ratio.  The proposed development is estimated to generate 6.3% 
in the PM peak hour to the existing intersection peak hour traffic.  

3. Condition of Area Roadways 
Traffic Count is based on Vehicles per hour (VPH) 

 

* Acceptable level of service for a two-lane minor arterial is “E” (575 VPH). 
 
* Acceptable level of service for a two-lane collector is “D” (425 VPH).  
 

Roadway Frontage 
Functional 

Classification 
PM Peak Hour 
Traffic Count 

PM Peak Hour 
Level of Service 

Beacon Light Road 0-feet Minor Arterial 248 Better than “E” 

New Hope Road 
(Brandon to Can 
Ada Road) 

0-feet Minor Arterial 78 Better than “E” 

Brandon Road 345-feet Collector 21 Better than “D” 

New Hope Road 
(Brandon to Wing) 

655-feet Local N/A N/A 

Wing Road 1,360-feet Local N/A N/A 



 5      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

4. Average Daily Traffic Count (VDT) 
Average daily traffic counts are based on ACHD’s most current traffic counts. 

• The average daily traffic count for Beacon Light Road east of Wing Road was 1,869 on 
02/13/2020.   

• The average daily traffic count for New Hope Road east of Can Ada Road was 1,172 on 
05/18/2016. 

• The average daily traffic count for Brandon Road south of New Hope Road was 506 on 
09/13/2016. 

• There are no current traffic counts for Wing Road.   

C. Findings for Consideration 

1. Purple Sage/Beacon Light Alignment Study 
On June 28, 2008 the ACHD Commission approved the Purple Sage/Beacon Light Alignment Study 
which included a preferred alignment for the roadway and determined that Beacon Light Road 
would be extended as a 3-lane minor arterial roadway.  The study notes that right-of-way dedication 
and construction of the roadway will occur incrementally as development occurs.    

The alignment of Beacon Light Road has been designated on ACHD’s Master Street Map and the 
realignment of Beacon Light to connect to New Hope Road was approved as part of the Greendale 
Subdivision directly north of the site.  The realignment of Beacon Light Road also changed the 
designation of New Hope Road between Brandon Road and Wing Road from a Minor Arterial to a 
Local Street.  

2. New Hope Road 
a. Existing Conditions:  New Hope Road is improved with 2-travel lanes, 24-feet of pavement, 

and no curb, gutter or sidewalk abutting the site.  There is 50-feet of right-of-way for New Hope 
Road (30-feet from centerline).   

b. Policy: 
Local Roadway Policy: District Policy 7207.2.1 states that the developer is responsible for 
improving all local street frontages adjacent to the site regardless of whether or not access is 
taken to all of the adjacent streets.   

Street Section and Right-of-Way Policy: District Policy 7207.5 states that right-of-way widths 
for all local streets shall generally not be less than 47-feet wide and that the standard street 
section shall be 33-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb). 

Standard Urban Local Street—33-foot Street Section and Right-of-way Policy:  District 
Policy 7207.5.2 states that the standard street section shall be 33-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-
curb) for developments with any buildable lot that is less than 1 acre in size.  This street section 
shall include curb, gutter, and minimum 5-foot wide concrete sidewalks on both sides and shall 
typically be constructed within 47-feet of right-of-way. 

For the City of Kuna and City of Star:  Unless otherwise approved by Kuna or Star, the standard 
street section shall be 36-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb) for developments with any 
buildable lot that is less than 1 acre in size.  This street section shall include curb, gutter, and 
minimum 5-foot wide concrete sidewalks on both sides and shall typically be constructed within 
50-feet of right-of-way. 

Sidewalk Policy:  District Policy 7207.5.7 states that five-foot wide concrete sidewalk is 
required on both sides of all local street, except those in rural developments with net densities 
of one dwelling unit per 1.0 acre or less, or in hillside conditions where there is no direct lot 
frontage, in which case a sidewalk shall be constructed along one side of the street.  Some local 
jurisdictions may require wider sidewalks. 



 6      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

The sidewalk may be placed next to the back-of-curb.  Where feasible, a parkway strip at least 
8-feet wide between the back-of-curb and the street edge of the sidewalk is recommended to 
provide increased safety and protection of pedestrians and to allow for the planting of trees in 
accordance with the District’s Tree Planting Policy.  If no trees are to be planted in the parkway 
strip, the applicant may submit a request to the District, with justification, to reduce the width of 
the parkway strip. 

Detached sidewalks are encouraged and should be parallel to the adjacent roadway. 
Meandering sidewalks are discouraged.   

A permanent right-of-way easement shall be provided if public sidewalks are placed outside of 
the dedicated right-of-way.  The easement shall encompass the entire area between the right-
of-way line and 2-feet behind the back edge of the sidewalk.  Sidewalks shall either be located 
wholly within the public right-of-way or wholly within an easement. 

Half Street Policy:  District Policy 7207.2.2 required improvements shall consist of pavement 
widening to one-half the required width, including curb, gutter and concrete sidewalk (minimum 
5-feet), plus 12-feet of additional pavement widening beyond the centerline established for the 
street to provide an adequate roadway surface, with the pavement crowned at the ultimate 
centerline.  A 3-foot wide gravel shoulder and a borrow ditch sized to accommodate the roadway 
storm runoff shall be constructed on the unimproved side. 

Frontage Improvements Policy: District Policy 7205.2.1 states that the developer shall widen 
the pavement to a minimum of 17-feet from centerline plus a 3-foot wide gravel shoulder 
adjacent to the entire site.  Curb, gutter and additional pavement widening may be required 
(See Section 7205.5.5). 

Minor Improvements Policy:  District Policy 7203.3 states that minor improvements to existing 
streets adjacent to a proposed development may be required.  These improvements are to 
correct deficiencies or replace deteriorated facilities.  Included are sidewalk construction or 
replacement; curb and gutter construction or replacement; replacement of unused driveways 
with curb, gutter and sidewalk; installation or reconstruction of pedestrian ramps; pavement 
repairs; signs; traffic control devices; and other similar items. 

c. Applicant Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to construct New Hope Road abutting the site 
as ½ of a 36-foot street section with curb, gutter, and 5-foot wide attached concrete sidewalk 
within the existing right-of-way.  

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  As noted above, this section of New Hope Road 
between Brandon Road and Wing Road is now classified as a local street due to the realignment 
of Beacon Light Road and New Hope Road.  The applicant’s proposal meets District policy and 
should be approved, as proposed.  

3. Brandon Road 
a. Existing Conditions:  Brandon Road is improved with 2-travel lanes, 22-feet of pavement, and 

no curb, gutter or sidewalk abutting the site.  There is 53-feet of right-of-way for Brandon Road 
(23-feet from centerline). 

b. Policy: 
Collector Street Policy:  District policy 7206.2.1 states that the developer is responsible for 
improving all collector frontages adjacent to the site or internal to the development as required 
below, regardless of whether access is taken to all of the adjacent streets. 

Master Street Map and Typologies Policy:  District policy 7206.5 states that if the collector 
street is designated with a typology on the Master Street Map, that typology shall be considered 
for the required street improvements.  If there is no typology listed in the Master Street Map, 
then standard street sections shall serve as the default. 



 7      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

Street Section and Right-of-Way Policy:  District policy 7206.5.2 states that the standard 
right-of-way width for collector streets shall typically be 50 to 70-feet, depending on the location 
and width of the sidewalk and the location and use of the roadway.  The right-of-way width may 
be reduced, with District approval, if the sidewalk is located within an easement; in which case 
the District will require a minimum right-of-way width that extends 2-feet behind the back-of-
curb on each side. 

The standard street section shall be 46-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb). This width typically 
accommodates a single travel lane in each direction, a continuous center left-turn lane, and bike 
lanes. 

Residential Collector Policy:  District policy 7206.5.2 states that the standard street section 
for a collector in a residential area shall be 36-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb).  The District 
will consider a 33-foot or 29-foot street section with written fire department approval and taking 
into consideration the needs of the adjacent land use, the projected volumes, the need for 
bicycle lanes, and on-street parking. 

Sidewalk Policy:  District policy 7206.5.6 requires a concrete sidewalk at least 5-feet wide to 
be constructed on both sides of all collector streets.  A parkway strip at least 6-feet wide between 
the back-of-curb and street edge of the sidewalk is required to provide increased safety and 
protection of pedestrians.  Consult the District’s planter width policy if trees are to be placed 
within the parkway strip.  Sidewalks constructed next to the back-of-curb shall be a minimum of 
7-feet wide. 

Detached sidewalks are encouraged and should be parallel to the adjacent roadway. 
Meandering sidewalks are discouraged.   

A permanent right-of-way easement shall be provided if public sidewalks are placed outside of 
the dedicated right-of-way.  The easement shall encompass the entire area between the right-
of-way line and 2-feet behind the back edge of the sidewalk.  Sidewalks shall either be located 
wholly within the public right-of-way or wholly within an easement. 

Minor Improvements Policy: District Policy 7203.3 states that minor improvements to existing 
streets adjacent to a proposed development may be required.  These improvements are to 
correct deficiencies or replace deteriorated facilities.  Included are sidewalk construction or 
replacement; curb and gutter construction or replacement; replacement of unused driveways 
with curb, gutter and sidewalk; installation or reconstruction of pedestrian ramps; pavement 
repairs; signs; traffic control devices; and other similar items. 

ACHD Master Street Map:  ACHD Policy Section 3111.1 requires the Master Street Map 
(MSM) guide the right-of-way acquisition, collector street requirements, and specific roadway 
features required through development.  This segment of Brandon Road is designated in the 
MSM as a Residential Collector with 2-lanes and on-street bike lanes, a 36-foot street section 
within 50-feet of right-of-way. 

c. Applicant Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to dedicate additional right-of-way to total 37-
feet from centerline of Brandon Road abutting the site.  

The applicant is proposing to construct Brandon Road abutting the site as ½ of a 36-foot wide 
collector street section with curb, gutter, 7-foot wide parkway strip, and 5-foot wide detached 
concrete sidewalk.  

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  The applicant’s proposal is consistent with the MSM 
and meets District policy and should be approved, as proposed, except for the proposed 7-foot 
wide planter strip.  The applicant should be required to provide a minimum 6-foot wide planter 
strip, or 8-foot wide planter strip if street trees are desired.  For detached sidewalks, the 
applicant should be required to extend the right-of-way to 2-feet behind the back edge of 
sidewalk, or the applicant may reduce the right-of-way width to 2-feet behind the back of curb 



 8      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

and provide a permanent right-of-way easement from the right-of-way line to 2-feet behind back 
edge of the sidewalk. 

4. Wing Road 
a. Existing Conditions:  Wing Road is improved with 2-travel lanes, 24-feet of pavement, and no 

curb, gutter or sidewalk abutting the site.  There is 50-feet of right-of-way for Wing Road (25-
feet from centerline).  Wing Road intersects New Hope Road as a non-standard intersection 
with a curve in the roadway.  

 

b. Policy: 
Local Roadway Policy: District Policy 7207.2.1 states that the developer is responsible for 
improving all local street frontages adjacent to the site regardless of whether or not access is 
taken to all of the adjacent streets.   

Street Section and Right-of-Way Policy: District Policy 7207.5 states that right-of-way widths 
for all local streets shall generally not be less than 47-feet wide and that the standard street 
section shall be 33-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb). 

Standard Urban Local Street—33-foot Street Section and Right-of-way Policy:  District 
Policy 7207.5.2 states that the standard street section shall be 33-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-
curb) for developments with any buildable lot that is less than 1 acre in size.  This street section 
shall include curb, gutter, and minimum 5-foot wide concrete sidewalks on both sides and shall 
typically be constructed within 47-feet of right-of-way. 

For the City of Kuna and City of Star:  Unless otherwise approved by Kuna or Star, the standard 
street section shall be 36-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb) for developments with any 
buildable lot that is less than 1 acre in size.  This street section shall include curb, gutter, and 
minimum 5-foot wide concrete sidewalks on both sides and shall typically be constructed within 
50-feet of right-of-way. 

Sidewalk Policy:  District Policy 7207.5.7 states that five-foot wide concrete sidewalk is 
required on both sides of all local street, except those in rural developments with net densities 
of one dwelling unit per 1.0 acre or less, or in hillside conditions where there is no direct lot 
frontage, in which case a sidewalk shall be constructed along one side of the street.  Some local 
jurisdictions may require wider sidewalks. 

The sidewalk may be placed next to the back-of-curb.  Where feasible, a parkway strip at least 
8-feet wide between the back-of-curb and the street edge of the sidewalk is recommended to 
provide increased safety and protection of pedestrians and to allow for the planting of trees in 
accordance with the District’s Tree Planting Policy.  If no trees are to be planted in the parkway 
strip, the applicant may submit a request to the District, with justification, to reduce the width of 
the parkway strip. 



 9      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

Detached sidewalks are encouraged and should be parallel to the adjacent roadway. 
Meandering sidewalks are discouraged.   

A permanent right-of-way easement shall be provided if public sidewalks are placed outside of 
the dedicated right-of-way.  The easement shall encompass the entire area between the right-
of-way line and 2-feet behind the back edge of the sidewalk.  Sidewalks shall either be located 
wholly within the public right-of-way or wholly within an easement.  

Half Street Policy:  District Policy 7207.2.2 required improvements shall consist of pavement 
widening to one-half the required width, including curb, gutter and concrete sidewalk (minimum 
5-feet), plus 12-feet of additional pavement widening beyond the centerline established for the 
street to provide an adequate roadway surface, with the pavement crowned at the ultimate 
centerline.  A 3-foot wide gravel shoulder and a borrow ditch sized to accommodate the roadway 
storm runoff shall be constructed on the unimproved side. 

Minor Improvements Policy:  District Policy 7203.3 states that minor improvements to existing 
streets adjacent to a proposed development may be required.  These improvements are to 
correct deficiencies or replace deteriorated facilities.  Included are sidewalk construction or 
replacement; curb and gutter construction or replacement; replacement of unused driveways 
with curb, gutter and sidewalk; installation or reconstruction of pedestrian ramps; pavement 
repairs; signs; traffic control devices; and other similar items. 

c. Applicant’s Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to realign the intersection of Wing Road and 
New Hope Road as a T-type intersection and construct Wing Road as ½ of 36-foot street section 
with curb, gutter, and 5-foot wide attached sidewalk within 50-feet of right-of-way.  

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  
The applicant’s proposal meets District 
policy and should be approved, as 
proposed.   

The applicant should be required to 
dedicate additional right-of-way to 2-feet 
behind back of sidewalk on Wing Road 
abutting the site to accommodate the 
realignment of the Wing Road/ New 
Hope Road intersection.    

  

New Hope Rd 

W
in

g
 R

d
 



 10      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

5. Internal Streets 
a. Existing Conditions:  There are no existing streets within the site.  

b. Policy: 
Local Roadway Policy: District Policy 7207.2.1 states that the developer is responsible for 
improving all local street frontages adjacent to the site regardless of whether or not access is 
taken to all of the adjacent streets.   

Street Section and Right-of-Way Policy: District Policy 7207.5 states that right-of-way widths 
for all local streets shall generally not be less than 47-feet wide and that the standard street 
section shall be 33-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb). 

Standard Urban Local Street—33-foot Street Section and Right-of-way Policy:  District 
Policy 7207.5.2 states that the standard street section shall be 33-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-
curb) for developments with any buildable lot that is less than 1 acre in size.  This street section 
shall include curb, gutter, and minimum 5-foot wide concrete sidewalks on both sides and shall 
typically be constructed within 47-feet of right-of-way. 

For the City of Kuna and City of Star:  Unless otherwise approved by Kuna or Star, the standard 
street section shall be 36-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb) for developments with any 
buildable lot that is less than 1 acre in size.  This street section shall include curb, gutter, and 
minimum 5-foot wide concrete sidewalks on both sides and shall typically be constructed within 
50-feet of right-of-way. 

Continuation of Streets Policy:  District Policy 7207.2.4 states that an existing street, or a 
street in an approved preliminary plat, which ends at a boundary of a proposed development 
shall be extended in that development.  The extension shall include provisions for continuation 
of storm drainage facilities.  Benefits of connectivity include but are not limited to the following: 

• Reduces vehicle miles traveled. 

• Increases pedestrian and bicycle connectivity. 

• Increases access for emergency services. 

• Reduces need for additional access points to the arterial street system. 

• Promotes the efficient delivery of services including trash, mail and deliveries. 

• Promotes appropriate intra-neighborhood traffic circulation to schools, parks, 
neighborhood commercial centers, transit stops, etc. 

• Promotes orderly development. 

Sidewalk Policy:  District Policy 7207.5.7 states that five-foot wide concrete sidewalk is 
required on both sides of all local street, except those in rural developments with net densities 
of one dwelling unit per 1.0 acre or less, or in hillside conditions where there is no direct lot 
frontage, in which case a sidewalk shall be constructed along one side of the street.  Some local 
jurisdictions may require wider sidewalks. 

The sidewalk may be placed next to the back-of-curb.  Where feasible, a parkway strip at least 
8-feet wide between the back-of-curb and the street edge of the sidewalk is recommended to 
provide increased safety and protection of pedestrians and to allow for the planting of trees in 
accordance with the District’s Tree Planting Policy.  If no trees are to be planted in the parkway 
strip, the applicant may submit a request to the District, with justification, to reduce the width of 
the parkway strip. 

Detached sidewalks are encouraged and should be parallel to the adjacent roadway. 
Meandering sidewalks are discouraged.   



 11      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

A permanent right-of-way easement shall be provided if public sidewalks are placed outside of 
the dedicated right-of-way.  The easement shall encompass the entire area between the right-
of-way line and 2-feet behind the back edge of the sidewalk.  Sidewalks shall either be located 
wholly within the public right-of-way or wholly within an easement.  

Landscape Medians Policy:  District policy 7207.5.16 states that landscape medians are 
permissible where adequate pavement width is provided on each side of the median to 
accommodate the travel lanes and where the following is provided: 

• The median is platted as right-of-way owned by ACHD. 

• The width of an island near an intersection is 12-feet maximum for a minimum distance of 
150-feet.  Beyond the 150-feet, the island may increase to a maximum width of 30-feet. 

• At an intersection that is signalized or is to be signalized in the future, the median width 
shall be reduced to accommodate the necessary turn lane storage and tapers. 

• The Developer or Homeowners Association shall apply for a license agreement if 
landscaping is to be placed within these medians. 

• The license agreement shall contain the District’s requirements of the developer including, 
but not limited to, a “hold harmless” clause; requirements for maintenance by the 
developer; liability insurance requirements; and restrictions. 

• Vertical curbs are required around the perimeter of any raised median.  Gutters shall slope 
away from the curb to prevent ponding. 

c. Applicant’s Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to construct the internal streets as 36-foot 
street sections with curb, gutter, and 5-foot wide attached concrete sidewalk within 50-feet of 
right-of-way.  

The applicant is proposing to construct a 12-foot wide landscape island on Wigeon Street with 
two, 21-foot wide travel lanes located between Lots 7 and 8, Block 4 and Lots 7 and 8, Block 5.  

The applicant is proposing to construct 7 knuckles throughout the site.  

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  The applicant’s proposal meets District policy.  
However, as part of ACHD’s approval of Canopi Estates, a stub street to the site’s north property 
line was approved, Canopi Street. Therefore, the applicant should be required to extend Canopi 
Street into the site and construct the internal streets as 36-foot street sections with curb, gutter, 
and 5-foot wide concrete sidewalk within 50-feet of right-of-way.  

The applicant’s proposal to construct a 12-foot wide center landscape island on Wigeon Street 
with two, 21-foot wide travel lanes should be approved, as proposed.  The applicant should be 
required to plat the center landscape island as right-of-way owned by ACHD; and the Developer 
or Homeowners Association apply for a license agreement if landscaping is to be placed within 
the median.  

6. Roadway Offsets 
a. Existing Conditions:  There are no existing streets within the site.  

b. Policy: 
Local Offset Policy:  District policy 7206.4.5, requires local roadways to align or offset a 
minimum of 330-feet from a collector roadway (measured centerline to centerline). 

District policy 7207.4.2, requires local roadways to align or provide a minimum offset of 125-
feet from any other street (measured centerline to centerline). 



 12      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

c. Applicant’s Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to construct a new local street, Warbler 
Avenue, to intersect New Hope Road located approximately 370-feet west of Wing Road 
(measured centerline to centerline).  

The applicant is proposing to construct a new local street, Wigeon Street, to intersect Brandon 
Road located approximately 860-feet south of New Hope Road and 505-feet north of Beagle 
Flats Lane (measured centerline to centerline). 

The applicant is proposing to construct a local street, Rolling Hills Drive to intersect Wing Road 
located approximately 1,340-feet south of New Hope Road in alignment with Rolling Hills Drive 
to the east.   

The applicant is proposing to construct the internal streets with a minimum 125-foot offset from 
any other street (measured centerline to centerline).  

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  The applicant’s proposal meets District policy and 
should be approved, as proposed.  

7. Stub Streets 
a. Existing Conditions:  As part of ACHD’s June 2020 action on Canopi Estates Subdivision 

located north and west of the site a stub street, Canopi Street, was approved to stub to the site’s 
north property line.  

b. Policy: 
Stub Street Policy:  District policy 7207.2.4 (local) states that stub streets will be required to 
provide circulation or to provide access to adjoining properties.  Stub streets will conform with 
the requirements described in Section 7207.2.5.4 (local), except a temporary cul-de-sac will not 
be required if the stub street has a length no greater than 150-feet.  A sign shall be installed at 
the terminus of the stub street stating that, "THIS ROAD WILL BE EXTENDED IN THE 
FUTURE.”  

In addition, stub streets must meet the following conditions: 

• A stub street shall be designed to slope towards the nearest street intersection within the 
proposed development and drain surface water towards that intersection; unless an 
alternative storm drain system is approved by the District. 

• The District may require appropriate covenants guaranteeing that the stub street will 
remain free of obstructions. 

Temporary Dead End Streets Policy:  District policy 7207.2.4 (local) requires that the design 
and construction for cul-de-sac streets shall apply to temporary dead end streets.  The 
temporary cul-de-sac shall be paved and shall be the dimensional requirements of a standard 
cul-de-sac.  The developer shall grant a temporary turnaround easement to the District for those 
portions of the cul-de-sac which extend beyond the dedicated street right-of-way.  In the 
instance where a temporary easement extends onto a buildable lot, the entire lot shall be 
encumbered by the easement and identified on the plat as a non-buildable lot until the street is 
extended. 

c. Applicant Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to construct 2 stub streets as follows:  

• A stub street to the west, Night Heron Street, 140-feet in length, located approximately 480-
feet south of New Hope Road.  

• A stub street to the south, ‘unnamed’, 140-feet in length, located approximately 965-feet 
east of Brandon Road.  



 13      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  The applicant’s proposal to construct a stub street to 
the south located 965-feet east of Brandon Road meets District policy and should be approved, 
as proposed.  

As indicated above, ACHD approved a stub street to the site’s north property line, Canopi Street, 
as part of the Canopi Estates Subdivision.  Therefore, the applicant should be required to extend 
the Canopi Street into the site.   If Canopi Street, is not yet constructed, when this development 
moves forward then a stub street should be constructed to the site’s north property line in 
alignment with the future Canopi Street.     

Due to ACHD’s action on Canopi Estates, staff does not recommend that the stub street to the 
west, Night Heron Street, be constructed as it would dead-end into a residential building lot. 

 

 

There is a large parcel along the site’s north and west boundaries.  In order to provide for future 
connectivity, staff recommends that the applicant construct a stub street to parcel S0405244552 
to provide for future connectivity in this area.   

The applicant should provide signage at the terminus of all the stub streets stating that, "THIS 
ROAD WILL BE EXTENDED IN THE FUTURE.” 

No temporary turnarounds are required as the proposed stub streets are less than 150-feet in 
length.  

8. Traffic Calming 
Speed Control and Traffic Calming Policy (Local):  District policy 7207.3.7 states that the 
design of local street systems should discourage excessive speeds by using passive design 
elements.  If the design or layout of a development is anticipated to necessitate future traffic 
calming implementation by the District, then the District will require changes to the layout and/or 
the addition of passive design elements such as horizontal curves, bulb-outs, chokers, etc.  The 
District will also consider texture changes to the roadway surface (i.e. stamped concrete) as a 
passive design element.  These alternative methods may require a maintenance and/or license 
agreement. 

Canopi 
Estates 

Extend Canopi 
Street into site  

No Stub Street  

Canvasback 



 14      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

a. Applicant’s Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to construct a landscape island on Wigeon 
Street approximately 405-feet east of Brandon Road to provide traffic calming on Wigeon Street 
because it is approximately 800-feet in length.   

b. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  As indicated above, the applicant should be required to 
continue Canopi Street into the site, which will align with the east end of the proposed landscape 
island.  Therefore, staff recommends that the applicant redesign Wigeon Street to relocate the 
landscape island outside of the future Canopi Street/Wigeon Street intersection or propose an 
alternative traffic calming design prior to plan submittal.  If the landscape island is relocated on 
Widgeon Street for traffic calming, 21-foot wide travel lanes are required on either side of the 
island.  

  

9. Tree Planters 
Tree Planter Policy:  Tree Planter Policy: The District’s Tree Planter Policy prohibits all trees in 
planters less than 8-feet in width without the installation of root barriers. Class II trees may be 
allowed in planters with a minimum width of 8-feet, and Class I and Class III trees may be allowed 
in planters with a minimum width of 10-feet. 

10. Landscaping 
Landscaping Policy: A license agreement is required for all landscaping proposed within ACHD 
right-of-way or easement areas.  Trees shall be located no closer than 10-feet from all public storm 
drain facilities.  Landscaping should be designed to eliminate site obstructions in the vision triangle 
at intersections.  District Policy 5104.3.1 requires a 40-foot vision triangle and a 3-foot height 
restriction on all landscaping located at an uncontrolled intersection and a 50-foot offset from stop 
signs.  Landscape plans are required with the submittal of civil plans and must meet all District 
requirements prior to signature of the final plat and/or approval of the civil plans. 

11. Other Access 
Brandon Road is classified as a collector roadway.  Other than the access specifically approved 
with this application, direct lot access is prohibited to these roadways and should be noted on the 
final plat. 

D. Site Specific Conditions of Approval 
1. Construct New Hope Road abutting the site as ½ of a 36-foot street section with curb, gutter, and 

5-foot wide attached concrete sidewalk within the existing right-of-way (50-feet). 

2. Dedicate additional right-of-way to total 37-feet from centerline of Brandon Road abutting the site.  

Canopi Street 

extension 



 15      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

3. Construct Brandon Road abutting the site as ½ of a 36-foot wide collector street section with curb, 
gutter, 6-foot wide (8-foot wide w/trees) parkway strip, and 5-foot wide detached concrete 
sidewalk.  Provide a permanent right-of-way easement for detached sidewalks located outside of 
the dedicated right-of-way.   

4. For detached sidewalks, the applicant should be required to extend the right-of-way to 2-feet 
behind the back edge of sidewalk, or the applicant may reduce the right-of-way width to 2-feet 
behind the back of curb and provide a permanent right-of-way easement from the right-of-way line 
to 2-feet behind back edge of the sidewalk. 

5. Realign the intersection of Wing Road and New Hope Road as a T-type intersection and construct 
Wing Road as ½ of a 36-foot street section with curb, gutter, and 5-foot wide attached sidewalk 
within 50-feet of right-of-way. 

6. Dedicate additional right-of-way to 2-feet behind back of sidewalk on Wing Road abutting the site 
to accommodate the realignment of the Wing Road/ New Hope Road intersection. 

7. Extend Canopi Street into the site and construct the internal streets as 36-foot street sections with 
curb, gutter, and 5-foot wide attached concrete sidewalk within 50-feet of right-of-way. 

8. Construct a new local street, Warbler Avenue, to intersect New Hope Road located 370-feet west 
of Wing Road.  

9. Construct a local street, Wigeon Street, to intersect Brandon Road located 860-feet south of New 
Hope Road and 505-feet north of Beagle Flats Lane. 

10. Construct a local street, Rolling Hills Drive to intersect Wing Road located 1,340-feet south of New 
Hope Road in alignment with Rolling Hills Drive to the east.   

11. Construct 7 knuckles throughout the site, as proposed.  

12. Construct an “unnamed” stub street to the site’s south property line, located 965-feet east of 
Brandon Road.  

13. IF Canopi Street, is not constructed when this development moves forward, then construct one stub 
street to the north, Canopi Street, located 480-feet east of Brandon Road. 

14. Construct a local stub street to parcel S0405244552.  

15. Install signage at the terminus of all the stub streets stating that, "THIS ROAD WILL BE EXTENDED 
IN THE FUTURE.” 

16. Redesign Wigeon Street to locate the landscape island outside of the future Canopi Street/ 
Wigeon Street intersection or propose an alternative traffic calming design prior to plan submittal.   

17. If the landscape island is relocated on Wigeon Street for traffic calming, 21-foot wide travel lanes 
are required on either side of the landscape island. 

18. Plat the center landscape island as right-of-way owned by ACHD; and the Developer or 
Homeowners Association shall apply for a license agreement if landscaping is to be placed within 
the island. 

19. Direct lot access is prohibited to Brandon Road and shall be noted on the final plat. 

20. Submit civil plans to ACHD Development Services for review and approval.  The impact fee 
assessment will not be released until the civil plans are approved by ACHD. 

21. Payment of impact fees is due prior to issuance of a building permit. 

22. Comply with all Standard Conditions of Approval. 



 16      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

E.  Standard Conditions of Approval 
1. All proposed irrigation facilities shall be located outside of the ACHD right-of-way (including all 

easements).  Any existing irrigation facilities shall be relocated outside of the ACHD right-of-way 
(including all easements).  

2. Private Utilities including sewer or water systems are prohibited from being located within the ACHD 
right-of-way. 

3. In accordance with District policy, 7203.3, the applicant may be required to update any existing non-
compliant pedestrian improvements abutting the site to meet current Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) requirements.  The applicant’s engineer should provide documentation of ADA compliance 
to District Development Review staff for review.   

4. Replace any existing damaged curb, gutter and sidewalk and any that may be damaged during the 
construction of the proposed development.  Contact Construction Services at 387-6280 (with file 
number) for details. 

5. A license agreement and compliance with the District’s Tree Planter policy is required for all 
landscaping proposed within ACHD right-of-way or easement areas.   

6. All utility relocation costs associated with improving street frontages abutting the site shall be borne 
by the developer. 

7. It is the responsibility of the applicant to verify all existing utilities within the right-of-way.  The 
applicant at no cost to ACHD shall repair existing utilities damaged by the applicant.  The applicant 
shall be required to call DIGLINE (1-811-342-1585) at least two full business days prior to breaking 
ground within ACHD right-of-way.  The applicant shall contact ACHD Traffic Operations 387-6190 
in the event any ACHD conduits (spare or filled) are compromised during any phase of construction. 

8. Utility street cuts in pavement less than five years old are not allowed unless approved in writing by 
the District.  Contact the District’s Utility Coordinator at 387-6258 (with file numbers) for details. 

9. All design and construction shall be in accordance with the ACHD Policy Manual, ISPWC Standards 
and approved supplements, Construction Services procedures and all applicable ACHD Standards 
unless specifically waived herein.  An engineer registered in the State of Idaho shall prepare and 
certify all improvement plans. 

10. Construction, use and property development shall be in conformance with all applicable 
requirements of ACHD prior to District approval for occupancy. 

11. No change in the terms and conditions of this approval shall be valid unless they are in writing and 
signed by the applicant or the applicant’s authorized representative and an authorized 
representative of ACHD.  The burden shall be upon the applicant to obtain written confirmation of 
any change from ACHD. 

12. If the site plan or use should change in the future, ACHD Planning Review will review the site plan 
and may require additional improvements to the transportation system at that time. Any change in 
the planned use of the property which is the subject of this application, shall require the applicant 
to comply with ACHD Policy and Standard Conditions of Approval in place at that time unless a 
waiver/variance of the requirements or other legal relief is granted by the ACHD Commission.   

F. Conclusions of Law 
1. The proposed site plan is approved, if all of the Site Specific and Standard Conditions of Approval 

are satisfied. 

2. ACHD requirements are intended to assure that the proposed use/development will not place an 
undue burden on the existing vehicular transportation system within the vicinity impacted by the 
proposed development. 



 17      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

G. Attachments 
1. Vicinity Map 
2. Site Plan 
3. Utility Coordinating Council 
4. Development Process Checklist 
5. Appeal Guidelines 
 

 
  



 18      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 



 19      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

SITE PLAN 



 20      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

Ada County Utility Coordinating Council 
 
 

Developer/Local Improvement District 
Right of Way Improvements Guideline Request 

 
 

  Purpose:  To develop the necessary avenue for proper notification to utilities of local highway and 
road improvements, to help the utilities in budgeting and to clarify the already existing process. 
 
 

1) Notification: Within five (5) working days upon notification of required right of way improvements 
by Highway entities, developers shall provide written notification to the affected utility owners and 
the Ada County Utility Coordinating Council (UCC). Notification shall include but not be limited to, 
project limits, scope of roadway improvements/project, anticipated construction dates, and any 
portions critical to the right of way improvements and coordination of utilities. 

 
2) Plan Review: The developer shall provide the highway entities and all utility owners with 

preliminary project plans and schedule a plan review conference.  Depending on the scale of 
utility improvements, a plan review conference may not be necessary, as determined by the utility 
owners. Conference notification shall also be sent to the UCC. During the review meeting the 
developer shall notify utilities of the status of right of way/easement acquisition necessary for their 
project. At the plan review conference each company shall have the right to appeal, adjust and/or 
negotiate with the developer on its own behalf. Each utility shall provide the developer with a letter 
of review indicating the costs and time required for relocation of its facilities. Said letter of review 
is to be provided within thirty calendar days after the date of the plan review conference.  

 
3) Revisions: The developer is responsible to provide utilities with any revisions to preliminary 

plans. Utilities may request an updated plan review meeting if revisions are made in the 
preliminary plans which affect the utility relocation requirements. Utilities shall have thirty days 
after receiving the revisions to review and comment thereon. 

 
4) Final Notification: The developer will provide highway entities, utility owners and the UCC with 

final notification of its intent to proceed with right of way improvements and include the anticipated 
date work will commence. This notification shall indicate that the work to be performed shall be 
pursuant to final approved plans by the highway entity. The developer shall schedule a 
preconstruction meeting prior to right of way improvements. Utility relocation activity shall be 
completed within the times established during the preconstruction meeting, unless otherwise 
agreed upon. 

 
Notification to the Ada County UCC can be sent to: 50 S. Cole Rd. Boise 83707, or Visit iducc.com 
for e-mail notification information.  

 
 

 



 21      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

Development Process Checklist 
 
Items Completed to Date: 
 

Submit a development application to a City or to Ada County 
 

The City or the County will transmit the development application to ACHD 
 

The ACHD Planning Review Section will receive the development application to review 
 

The Planning Review Section will do one of the following: 
 

Send a “No Review” letter to the applicant stating that there are no site specific conditions of approval at 
this time. 

 

Write a Staff Level report analyzing the impacts of the development on the transportation system and 
evaluating the proposal for its conformance to District Policy. 

 

Write a Commission Level report analyzing the impacts of the development on the transportation system 
and evaluating the proposal for its conformance to District Policy. 

 

Items to be completed by Applicant: 
 

For ALL development applications, including those receiving a “No Review” letter: 

• The applicant should submit one set of engineered plans directly to ACHD for review by the Development 
Review Section for plan review and assessment of impact fees.  (Note:  if there are no site improvements 
required by ACHD, then architectural plans may be submitted for purposes of impact fee assessment.) 

• The applicant is required to get a permit from Construction Services (ACHD) for ANY work in the right-of-way, 
including, but not limited to, driveway approaches, street improvements and utility cuts.  

 

Pay Impact Fees prior to issuance of building permit.  Impact fees cannot be paid prior to plan review approval. 
 

DID YOU REMEMBER: 
Construction (Non-Subdivisions) 

 Driveway or Property Approach(s) 

• Submit a “Driveway Approach Request” form to ACHD Construction (for approval by Development Services & Traffic 
Services).  There is a one week turnaround for this approval. 

 

 Working in the ACHD Right-of-Way  

• Four business days prior to starting work have a bonded contractor submit a “Temporary Highway Use Permit 
Application” to ACHD Construction – Permits along with: 

a) Traffic Control Plan 
b) An Erosion & Sediment Control Narrative & Plat, done by a Certified Plan Designer, if trench is >50’ or you 

are placing >600 sf of concrete or asphalt. 
 

Construction (Subdivisions) 
 Sediment & Erosion Submittal 

• At least one week prior to setting up a Pre-Construction Meeting an Erosion & Sediment Control Narrative & Plan, done 
by a Certified Plan Designer, must be turned into ACHD Construction to be reviewed and approved by the ACHD 
Stormwater Section.  

  
 Idaho Power Company 

• Vic Steelman at Idaho Power must have his IPCO approved set of subdivision utility plans prior to Pre-Con being 
scheduled. 

 

 Final Approval from Development Services is required prior to scheduling a Pre-Con. 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 22      Canvasback/ SPP20-0004/ AZ-20-11/  
PP-20-11/ DA-20-11 

 

Request for Appeal of Staff Decision 
 
1. Appeal of Staff Decision:  The Commission shall hear and decide appeals by an applicant of 

the final decision made by the Development Services Manager when it is alleged that the 
Development Services Manager did not properly apply this section 7101.6, did not consider all of 
the relevant facts presented, made an error of fact or law, abused discretion or acted arbitrarily 
and capriciously in the interpretation or enforcement of the ACHD Policy Manual. 

 
a. Filing Fee:  The Commission may, from time to time, set reasonable fees to be charged 

the applicant for the processing of appeals, to cover administrative costs. 
 

b. Initiation:  An appeal is initiated by the filing of a written notice of appeal with the Secretary 
and Clerk of the District, which must be filed within ten (10) working days from the date of 
the decision that is the subject of the appeal.  The notice of appeal shall refer to the 
decision being appealed, identify the appellant by name, address and telephone number 
and state the grounds for the appeal. The grounds shall include a written summary of the 
provisions of the policy relevant to the appeal and/or the facts and law relied upon and 
shall include a written argument in support of the appeal.  The Commission shall not 
consider a notice of appeal that does not comply with the provisions of this subsection.  
 

c. Time to Reply:  The Development Services Manager shall have ten (10) working days 
from the date of the filing of the notice of appeal to reply to the notice of the appeal, and 
may during such time meet with the appellant to discuss the matter, and may also consider 
and/or modify the decision that is being appealed. A copy of the reply and any 
modifications to the decision being appealed will be provided to the appellant prior to the 
Commission hearing on the appeal.   
 

d. Notice of Hearing:  Unless otherwise agreed to by the appellant, the hearing of the appeal 
will be noticed and scheduled on the Commission agenda at a regular meeting to be held 
within thirty (30) days following the delivery to the appellant of the Development Services 
Manager’s reply to the notice of appeal. A copy of the decision being appealed, the notice 
of appeal and the reply shall be delivered to the Commission at least one (1) week prior 
to the hearing. 
 

e. Action by Commission:  Following the hearing, the Commission shall either affirm or 
reverse, in whole or part, or otherwise modify, amend or supplement the decision being 
appealed, as such action is adequately supported by the law and evidence presented at 
the hearing. 























  

 1 

 

  

             CITY OF STAR 
 

                   LAND USE STAFF REPORT 

             MEMO 
 

 
TO:   Mayor & Council 

FROM:   Shawn L. Nickel, City Planner  

MEETING DATE: November 17, 2020 

FILE(S) #: AZ-20-14 Annexation and Zoning 

DA-20-17 Development Agreement 

 PP-20-13 Preliminary Plat for Sunfield Estates Subdivision 

   

PROJECT SUMMARY/UDPATE 

 

On October 20, 2020, the City Council tabled the Sunfield Estates Subdivision application and 

requested that the applicant redesign the development to address concerns by neighbors and 

Council at the hearing. Items included: 

 

• Transitional lots/buffers adjacent to the western boundary of the property; 

• Stub Street Location west into Star Acres Subdivision; 

 

The applicant has resubmitted a revised preliminary plat and letter addressing each of the issues 

brought up in the previous hearing. 

 

Copies of each are attached to this memo for Council reference.  

 

Staff has also included updated letters from neighbors in Star Acres Subdivision and an updated 

ACHD staff report. 

 

 







November 9, 2020 
 
Star Mayor and City Council 
c/o Shawn Nickel 
Star City Hall 
P.O. Box 130 
Star, ID  83669  
 
Re:  Sunfield Estates Subdivision 
 
Dear Mayor and City Council, 
 
We live at 9999 W. Star Acres Drive, in the Star Acres Subdivision, directly south of Sunfield 
Estates. 
 
On October 12, 2020, a public hearing was held for Sunfield Estates at which time a decision 
was tabled with direction given to the developer to reach out to the Star Acres Subdivision 
neighbors and attempt to find a compromise regarding lot size transitioning. 
 
After two meetings with the developer (11/2/20 and 11/9/20), we are pleased to share that the 
developer, specifically Don Newell/Landmark Pacific Development, made commitments that if 
adhered to, meet our expectations for a neighboring subdivision and subsequently garner my 
support.   
 
For ease of reference, we’ve attached a copy of the layout emailed by Leavitt & Associates to 
the City on 11/6/20.  The commitments made are as follows: 
 
1.  Note 6 on the plat map. 
 
The note currently states:   
“Lots 6, 8, 9, and 10 of Block 1 are restricted to single story construction.” 
 
The agreed to commitment would restate this note to read:   
“Lots 6, 8, 9, 10, 12, 13, and 14 of Block 1 are restricted to single story construction.” 
 
We’ve identified on the plat map which lots shall be single story construction. 
 
2.  Note 7 on the plat map. 
 
“Lot 7, Block 1 shall be designated a buffer lot to be maintained by HOA and required by the 
terms of the declaration of covenants, conditions and restrictions to be recorded against the 
platted property to include a berm 10’ in height extending through the entire length of the lot, 



to be landscaped with tall fescue and other native grasses and shrubs, and be restricted for 
access and use to maintenance and emergency purposes.” 
 
We discussed and agreed that the shrubs would be further defined to reference sage, 
bitterbrush and other native shrub species and that the berm may undulate between 8’ and 10’ 
in specific locations.  We would like to continue to be involved in the berm layout and plant 
type selections as the project moves forward.  We believe this type of buffer will provide an 
adequate visual, sound, and privacy barrier.   
 
3.  A note would be provided on the plat map indicating the lots in this subdivision cannot be 
further subdivided.  This should be included in the development agreement. 
 
The remaining requests for this subdivision are not necessarily in the developers control, I’d ask 
that these too be considered by the City to be included in the development agreement or any 
other documents that will last in perpetuity. 
 

 All proposed and future lighting shall be directed away from Star Acres Subdivision 
properties – specifically in open spaces, along trails, and that home owners cannot 
direct lights away from their properties.   

 

 All roadway storm drainage shall remain within the subdivision and not allowed to flow 
into the irrigation overflow ditch running along the eastern and southern boundary of 
the subdivision.  This is an ACHD requirement but should also be included in the 
development agreement. 

 
Lastly, we’d like to thank the City of Star for supporting our neighborhood’s interest in 
preventing stub roads from entering the Star Acres Subdivision.  Between our personal letters 
to ACHD and the City’s letter to ACHD, ACHD agreed to remove the stub road on the western 
side of Sunfield Estates. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Steve and Charlene Greene 
9999 W. Star Acres Dr. 
Star, ID  83669 
 
 
 



SG
Polygon



November 10, 2020 
 
Star Mayor and City Council 
c/o Shawn Nickel 
Star City Hall 
P.O. Box 130 
Star, ID  83669  
 
Re:  Sunfield Estates Subdivision 
 
Dear Mayor and City Council, 
 
My wife and I live at 10040 W. Star Acres Drive, in the Star Acres Subdivision, directly West of 
Sunfield Estates. 
 
On October 12, 2020, a public hearing was held for Sunfield Estates at which time a decision 
was tabled with direction given to the developer to reach out to the Star Acres Subdivision 
neighbors and attempt to find a compromise regarding lot size transitioning. 
 
After two meetings with the developer (11/2/20 and 11/9/20), we are pleased to share that the 
developer, specifically Don Newell/Landmark Pacific Development, made commitments that if 
adhered to, meet our expectations for a neighboring subdivision and subsequently garner my 
support.   
 
For ease of reference, we’ve attached a copy of the layout emailed by Leavitt & Associates to 
the City on 11/6/20.  The commitments made are as follows: 
 
1.  Note 6 on the plat map. 
 
The note currently states:   
“Lots 6, 8, 9, and 10 of Block 1 are restricted to single story construction.” 
 
The agreed to commitment would restate this note to read:   
“Lots 6, 8, 9, 10, 12, 13, and 14 of Block 1 are restricted to single story construction.” 
 
We’ve identified on the plat map which lots shall be single story construction. 
 
2.  Note 7 on the plat map. 
 
“Lot 7, Block 1 shall be designated a buffer lot to be maintained by HOA and required by the 
terms of the declaration of covenants, conditions and restrictions to be recorded against the 
platted property to include a berm 10’ in height extending through the entire length of the lot, 



to be landscaped with tall fescue and other native grasses and shrubs, and be restricted for 
access and use to maintenance and emergency purposes.” 
 
We discussed and agreed that the shrubs would be further defined to reference sage, 
bitterbrush and other native shrub species and that the berm may undulate between 8’ and 10’ 
in specific locations.  We would like to continue to be involved in the berm layout and plant 
type selections as the project moves forward.  We believe this type of buffer will provide an 
adequate visual, sound, and privacy barrier.   
 
3.  A note would be provided on the plat map indicating the lots in this subdivision cannot be 
further subdivided.  This should be included in the development agreement. 
 
The remaining requests for this subdivision are not necessarily in the developers control, I’d ask 
that these too be considered by the City to be included in the development agreement or any 
other documents that will last in perpetuity. 
 

• All proposed and future lighting shall be directed away from Star Acres Subdivision 
properties – specifically in open spaces, along trails, and that home owners cannot 
direct lights away from their properties.   

 
• All roadway storm drainage shall remain within the subdivision and not allowed to flow 

into the irrigation overflow ditch running along the eastern and southern boundary of 
the subdivision.  This is an ACHD requirement but should also be included in the 
development agreement. 

 
Lastly, we’d like to thank the City of Star for supporting our neighborhood’s interest in 
preventing stub roads from entering the Star Acres Subdivision.  Between our personal letters 
to ACHD and the City’s letter to ACHD, ACHD agreed to remove the stub road on the western 
side of Sunfield Estates. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Terry J. Bier and Carolee Polfer 
10040 W. Star Acres Dr. 
Star, ID  83669 
 
 
 



November 10, 2020 
 
Star Mayor and City Council Members 
PO Box 130 
Star, ID 83669 
 
Re:  Sunfield Estates Subdivision 
 
Dear Mayor and City Council Members, 
 
Per your request and direction, the developers of the Sunfield Estates Subdivision met with the adjacent 
owners of the Star Acres Subdivision to discuss a buffer, transition, and larger lot sizes for the Special 
Overlay Transition Area.  The following items and issues were agreed upon between the developers and 
the adjacent homeowners of Star Acres. 
 
1)  The stub road into the east side of Star Acres is eliminated.  Our thanks to the Mayor, Council, and 
city staff for their involvement and support in making that happen. 
 
2)  A 50’ buffer with a 10’ high berm is added along the border with Star Acres and will be restricted in 
use to maintenance and emergencies only.  The berm will be planted with native vegetation, irrigated, 
and maintained by the HOA of Sunfield Estates.  This area is depicted as Lot 7, Block 1 on the most 
recent preliminary plat. 
 
3)  The structures built on the lots adjacent to Star Acres Subdivision are restricted to single story 
construction. 
 
4)  The sizes of the lots on the west side of the subdivision adjacent to Star Acres have been increased, 
as depicted on the preliminary plat. 
 
5)  The lots of Sunfield Estates can’t be subdivided further in the future.  The developers have agreed to 
add this into the notes of the plat, and this should also be made a part of the development agreement. 
 
We recommend that the Council approve the development of the Sunfield Estates Subdivision with the 
above noted changes and additions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Will and Denise Eason 
10174 W. Star Acres Drive 
Star, ID 83669 
 
 
 
 
 



  

                                  



 1     DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

Development Services Department 

 
Project/File:  Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/ AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17  

This is an annexation with rezone to R-4, a preliminary plat application to allow for the 
development of 75-lots on 26.1-acres, and a Development Agreement with the City of 
Star.  

Lead Agency: City of Star 

Site address: 9655 W Beacon Light Road 

Staff Approval: XXXX, 2020 

Applicant/  
Representative: Leavitt & Associates 
 Dan Lardie 
 1324 1st Street South  
 Nampa, ID  83651 

Staff Contact:  Stacey Yarrington, Planner III 
 Phone: 387-6171 
 E-mail: syarrington@achdidaho.org  

A.  Findings of Fact 

1. Description of Application:   The applicant is requesting approval of an annexation with rezone 
from RUT (Rural Urban Transition) to R-4 (Medium-low density Residential) and a preliminary plat 
application to allow for the development of 75-lots consisting of 70 residential lots and 5 common 
lots on 26.1-acres; and a Development Agreement with the City of Star.  

The applicant’s proposal is consistent with the City of Star’s Comprehensive Plan.  

2. Description of Adjacent Surrounding Area:   

Direction Land Use Zoning 

North Low density Residential (City of Star)  
Rural Urban Transition (Ada County) 

R-2,  
RUT 

South Rural Urban Transition RUT 

East Rural Urban Transition RUT 

West Rural Urban Transition RUT 

 

3. Site History:  ACHD has not previously reviewed this site for a development application. 

4. Adjacent Development:  The following developments are pending or underway in the vicinity of 
the site: 

• Canvasback, a 112-lot single-family subdivision located west of the site was approved by 
ACHD in September 2020.  

Vicinity Map 

 

mailto:syarrington@achdidaho.org


 2      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

• Canopi Estates, a 15-lot single-family subdivision located west of the site was approved by 
ACHD in June 2020. 

• Greiner Hope Springs, a 270-lot residential development located west of the site was 
approved by ACHD in August 2019.  

• Greendale Grove, a 106-lot residential development located northwest of the site was 
approved by ACHD in April 2019.  

• Greendale, a 131-lot residential development located west of the site was approved by ACHD 
in April 2019.  

• Torchlight Estates, a 39-lot single-family subdivision located north of the site was approved 
by ACHD in January 2019.  

• Trident Ridge, a 324-lot single-family subdivision located northwest of the site was approved 
by ACHD in December 2017.  

5. Transit:  Transit services are not available to serve this site.   

6. New Center Lane Miles:  The proposed development includes 0.67 centerline miles of new public 
road. 

7. Impact Fees: There will be an impact fee that is assessed and due prior to issuance of any building 
permits. The assessed impact fee will be based on the impact fee ordinance that is in effect at that 
time. The impact fee assessment will not be released until the civil plans are approved by ACHD. 

8. Capital Improvements Plan (CIP)/ Integrated Five Year Work Plan (IFYWP): 

There are no roadways, bridges or intersections in the general vicinity of the project that are in the 
Integrated Five Year Work Plan (IFYWP). 

• Beacon Light Road is listed in the CIP to be widened to 3-lanes from Munger Road to Pollard 
Lane between 2036 and 2040. 

• Beacon Light Road is listed in the CIP to be widened to 3-lanes from Pollard Lane to SH-16 
between 2036 and 2040.  

• The intersection of Beacon Light Road and Pollard Lane is listed in the CIP to be reconstructed 
as a single-lane roundabout between 2036 and 2040. 

9. Roadways to Bikeways Master Plan:  ACHD’s Roadways to Bikeways Master Plan (BMP) was 
adopted by the ACHD Commission in May of 2009 and was update in 2018.  The plan seeks to 
implement the Planned Bicycle Network to support bicycling as a viable transportation option for 
Ada County residents with a wide range of ages and abilities,  maintain bicycle routes in a state 
of good repair in order to ensure they are consistently available for use, promote awareness of 
existing bicycle routes and features and support encouragement programs and to  facilitate 
coordination and cooperation among local jurisdictions in implementing the Roadways to 
Bikeways Plan recommendations. 

The BMP identifies Beacon Light Road as a Level 3 facility to be constructed as part of a future 
ACHD project.   

B.  Traffic Findings for Consideration 
1. Trip Generation:  This development is estimated to generate 651 additional vehicle trips per day 

(9 existing); 69 additional vehicle trips per hour in the PM peak hour (1 existing), based on the 
Institute of Transportation Engineers Trip Generation Manual, 10th edition.   

2. Condition of Area Roadways 
Traffic Count is based on Vehicles per hour (VPH) 
 



 3      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

 

* Acceptable level of service for a two-lane minor arterial is “E” (575 VPH). 
 
* Acceptable level of service for a two-lane collector is “D” (425 VPH).  
 
** ACHD does not set level of service thresholds for State Highways. 

3. Average Daily Traffic Count (VDT) 
Average daily traffic counts are based on ACHD’s most current traffic counts. 

• The average daily traffic count for SH-16 north of SH-44/ State Street was 12,911 on 
04/05/2019. 

• The average daily traffic count for Beacon Light Road east of Wing Road was 1,722 on 
07/08/2020. 

• The average daily traffic count for Pollard Lane south of Beacon Light Road was 833 on 
07/07/2020.   

C. Findings for Consideration 

1. Purple Sage/Beacon Light Alignment Study 
The Purple Sage Road/Beacon Light Road alignment study is the result of a regional alignment 
study that was done in a collaborative effort between the Ada County Highway District (ACHD) and 
the Canyon Highway District #4 (CHD4). The study identifies Purple Sage Road/Beacon Light Road 
corridor is located in northeastern Canyon County and northwestern Ada County. The study was 
undertaken in response to Communities in Motion, the long-range transportation plan for southwest 
Idaho prepared by the regional planning organization, Community Planning Association of 
Southwest Idaho (COMPASS). Communities in Motion identified the corridor as a location that is 
expected to experience more traffic, serving as a reliever to State Highway 44. The purpose of the 
study is to identify a connection between Purple Sage Road and Beacon Light Road and make 
plans for corridor preservation. 

On June 28, 2008 the ACHD Commission approved the Purple Sage/Beacon Light Alignment Study 
which included a preferred alignment for the roadway and determined that Beacon Light Road 
would be extended as a 3-lane minor arterial roadway.  The study notes that right-of-way dedication 
and construction of the roadway will occur incrementally as development occurs. 

2. Beacon Light Road 
a. Existing Conditions:  Beacon Light Road is improved with 2-travel lanes, 24-feet of pavement 

and no curb, gutter or sidewalk abutting the site.  There is between 50 to 66-feet of right-of-way 
for Beacon Light Road (28-feet from centerline and 26.5-feet from section line). 

b. Policy: 
Arterial Roadway Policy:  District Policy 7205.2.1 states that the developer is responsible for 
improving all street frontages adjacent to the site regardless of whether or not access is taken 
to all of the adjacent streets. 

Roadway Frontage 
Functional 

Classification 
PM Peak Hour 
Traffic Count 

PM Peak Hour 
Level of Service 

**State Highway 16 0-feet Arterial 772 N/A 

Beacon Light Road 935-feet Minor Arterial 101 Better than “E” 

Pollard Lane 0-feet Collector 39 Better than “D” 



 4      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

Master Street Map and Typology Policy:  District Policy 7205.5 states that the design of 
improvements for arterials shall be in accordance with District standards, including the Master 
Street Map and Livable Streets Design Guide.  The developer or engineer should contact the 
District before starting any design.   

Street Section and Right-of Way Width Policy:  District Policy 7205.2.1 & 7205.5.2 states 
that the standard 3-lane street section shall be 46-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb) within 70 
feet of right-of-way.  This width typically accommodates a single travel lane in each direction, a 
continuous center left-turn lane, and bike lanes. 

Right-of-Way Dedication:  District Policy 7205.2 states that The District will provide 
compensation for additional right-of-way dedicated beyond the existing right-of-way along 
arterials listed as impact fee eligible in the adopted Capital Improvements Plan using available 
impact fee revenue in the Impact Fee Service Area. 

No compensation will be provided for right-of-way on an arterial that is not listed as impact fee 
eligible in the Capital Improvements Plan.  

The District may acquire additional right-of-way beyond the site-related needs to preserve a 
corridor for future capacity improvements, as provided in Section 7300. 

Sidewalk Policy: District Policy 7205.5.7 requires a concrete sidewalk at least 5-feet wide to 
be constructed on both sides of all arterial streets.  A parkway strip at least 6-feet wide between 
the back-of-curb and street edge of the sidewalk is required to provide increased safety and 
protection of pedestrians.  Consult the District’s planter width policy if trees are to be placed 
within the parkway strip.  Sidewalks constructed next to the back-of-curb shall be a minimum of 
7-feet wide. 

Detached sidewalks are encouraged and should be parallel to the adjacent roadway. 
Meandering sidewalks are discouraged.   

A permanent right-of-way easement shall be provided if public sidewalks are placed outside of 
the dedicated right-of-way.  The easement shall encompass the entire area between the right-
of-way line and 2-feet behind the back edge of the sidewalk.  Sidewalks shall either be located 
wholly within the public right-of-way or wholly within an easement. 

Frontage Improvements Policy: District Policy 7205.2.1 states that the developer shall widen 
the pavement to a minimum of 17-feet from centerline plus a 3-foot wide gravel shoulder 
adjacent to the entire site.  Curb, gutter and additional pavement widening may be required 
(See Section 7205.5.5). 

ACHD Master Street Map:  ACHD Policy Section 3111.1 requires the Master Street Map 
(MSM) guide the right-of-way acquisition, arterial street requirements, and specific roadway 
features required through development.  This segment of Beacon Light Road is designated in 
the MSM as a Residential Arterial with 3-lanes and on-street bike lanes, a 46-foot street section 
within 74-feet of right-of-way. 

c. Applicant Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to dedicate additional right-of-way to total 37-
feet from centerline of Beacon Light Road abutting the site.   

The applicant is proposing to construct a 5-foot wide detached concrete sidewalk on Beacon 
Light Road abutting the site located outside of the right-of-way in a sidewalk easement.   

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  Typically, right-of-way would be measured from 
centerline of the roadway; however, the right-of-way dedication and the construction of 
improvements should be from the section line of Beacon Light Road because the centerline and 
section line do not align on this segment of Beacon Light Road.   



 5      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

Therefore, the applicant should be required to dedicate additional right-of-way to total 37-feet 
from section line of Beacon Light Road abutting the site.  Right-of-way dedication is impact fee 
eligible for compensation as Beacon Light road is listed in the CIP. 

The applicant’s proposal to construct 5-foot wide detached concrete sidewalk within a sidewalk 
easement meets District policy and should be approved, as proposed.  The easement shall 
encompass the entire area between the right-of-way line and 2-feet behind the back edge of the 
sidewalk.  Sidewalks shall either be located wholly within the public right-of-way or wholly within 
an easement. 

The applicant should be required to improve Beacon Light Road with additional pavement 
widening to total 17-feet from section line with 3-foot wide gravel shoulders abutting the site.  

3. Internal Streets 
a. Existing Conditions:   There are no streets within the site. 

b. Policy: 
Local Roadway Policy: District Policy 7207.2.1 states that the developer is responsible for 
improving all local street frontages adjacent to the site regardless of whether or not access is 
taken to all of the adjacent streets.   

Street Section and Right-of-Way Policy: District Policy 7207.5 states that right-of-way widths 
for all local streets shall generally not be less than 47-feet wide and that the standard street 
section shall be 33-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb). 

Standard Urban Local Street—33-foot Street Section and Right-of-way Policy:  District 
Policy 7207.5.2 states that the standard street section shall be 33-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-
curb) for developments with any buildable lot that is less than 1 acre in size.  This street section 
shall include curb, gutter, and minimum 5-foot wide concrete sidewalks on both sides and shall 
typically be constructed within 47-feet of right-of-way. 

For the City of Kuna and City of Star:  Unless otherwise approved by Kuna or Star, the standard 
street section shall be 36-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb) for developments with any 
buildable lot that is less than 1 acre in size.  This street section shall include curb, gutter, and 
minimum 5-foot wide concrete sidewalks on both sides and shall typically be constructed within 
50-feet of right-of-way. 

Continuation of Streets Policy:  District Policy 7207.2.4 states that an existing street, or a 
street in an approved preliminary plat, which ends at a boundary of a proposed development 
shall be extended in that development.  The extension shall include provisions for continuation 
of storm drainage facilities.  Benefits of connectivity include but are not limited to the following: 

• Reduces vehicle miles traveled. 

• Increases pedestrian and bicycle connectivity. 

• Increases access for emergency services. 

• Reduces need for additional access points to the arterial street system. 

• Promotes the efficient delivery of services including trash, mail and deliveries. 

• Promotes appropriate intra-neighborhood traffic circulation to schools, parks, 
neighborhood commercial centers, transit stops, etc. 

• Promotes orderly development. 

Sidewalk Policy:  District Policy 7207.5.7 states that five-foot wide concrete sidewalk is 
required on both sides of all local street, except those in rural developments with net densities 
of one dwelling unit per 1.0 acre or less, or in hillside conditions where there is no direct lot 



 6      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

frontage, in which case a sidewalk shall be constructed along one side of the street.  Some local 
jurisdictions may require wider sidewalks. 

The sidewalk may be placed next to the back-of-curb.  Where feasible, a parkway strip at least 
8-feet wide between the back-of-curb and the street edge of the sidewalk is recommended to 
provide increased safety and protection of pedestrians and to allow for the planting of trees in 
accordance with the District’s Tree Planting Policy.  If no trees are to be planted in the parkway 
strip, the applicant may submit a request to the District, with justification, to reduce the width of 
the parkway strip. 

Detached sidewalks are encouraged and should be parallel to the adjacent roadway. 
Meandering sidewalks are discouraged.   

A permanent right-of-way easement shall be provided if public sidewalks are placed outside of 
the dedicated right-of-way.  The easement shall encompass the entire area between the right-
of-way line and 2-feet behind the back edge of the sidewalk.  Sidewalks shall either be located 
wholly within the public right-of-way or wholly within an easement. 

Cul-de-sac Streets Policy:  District policy 7207.5.8 requires cul-de-sacs to be constructed to 
provide a minimum turning radius of 45-feet; in rural areas or for temporary cul-de-sacs the 
emergency service providers may require a greater radius.  Landscape and parking islands may 
be constructed in turnarounds if a minimum 29-foot street section is constructed around the 
island.  The pavement width shall be sufficient to allow the turning around of a standard 
AASHTO SU design vehicle without backing.  The developer shall provide written approval from 
the appropriate fire department for this design element. 

The District will consider alternatives to the standard cul-de-sac turnaround on a case-by-case 
basis.  This will be based on turning area, drainage, maintenance considerations and the written 
approval of the agency providing emergency fire service for the area where the development is 
located. 

c. Applicant’s Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to construct the internal streets as 36-foot 
street sections with curb, gutter, and 5-foot wide concrete sidewalk within 50-feet of right-of-
way.   

The applicant is proposing to terminate Sunbow Place, Sunset Hills Court, and Sun City Court 
in cul-de-sacs.  

The applicant is proposing to construct 1 knuckle at the Solar View/Sunset Hills intersection.  

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  The applicant’s proposal meets District policy and 
should be approved.  However, to promote connectivity and to reduce long term maintenance 
costs associated with cul-de-sac turnarounds, staff recommends the applicant connect Sunset 
Hills Court and Sun City Court to create a through street rather than terminating the two streets 
in cul-de-sacs.  

4. Roadway Offsets 
a. Existing Conditions:  There are no existing roadways within the site.   

b. Policy: 
Local Street Intersection Spacing on Minor Arterials:  District policy 7205.4.3 states that 
new local streets should not typically intersect arterials.  Local streets should typically intersect 
collectors.  If it is necessary, as determined by ACHD, for a local street to intersect an arterial, 
the minimum allowable offset shall be 660-feet as measured from all other existing roadways 
as identified in Table 1a (7205.4.6). 

Local Offset Policy:  District policy 7207.4.2, requires local roadways to align or provide a 
minimum offset of 125-feet from any other street (measured centerline to centerline). 



 7      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

c. Applicant’s Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to construct a new local street, Fire Flower 
Avenue, to intersect Beacon Light Road located approximately 1,750-feet east of Wing Road in 
alignment with Bristol Road, the entrance road of the Torchlight Estates Subdivision located on 
the north side of Beacon Light Road across from the site.   

The applicant is proposing to construct the internal streets with a minimum 125-foot offset from 
any other street.   

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  The applicant’s proposal to construct a new local street, 
Fire Flower Avenue, onto Beacon Light Road located approximately 1,750-feet east of Wing 
Road in alignment with Bristol Road, the entrance road of the Torchlight Estates Subdivision, 
meets District policy and should be approved, as proposed.  

5. Stub Streets 
a. Existing Conditions:  There are no stub streets to the site.  

b. Policy: 
Stub Street Policy:  District policy 7207.2.4.3 (local) states that stub streets will be required to 
provide circulation or to provide access to adjoining properties.  Stub streets will conform with 
the requirements described in Section 7207.2.4 (local), except a temporary cul-de-sac will not 
be required if the stub street has a length no greater than 150-feet.  A sign shall be installed at 
the terminus of the stub street stating that, "THIS ROAD WILL BE EXTENDED IN THE 
FUTURE.”  

In addition, stub streets must meet the following conditions: 

• A stub street shall be designed to slope towards the nearest street intersection within the 
proposed development and drain surface water towards that intersection, unless an 
alternative storm drain system is approved by the District. 

• The District may require appropriate covenants guaranteeing that the stub street will 
remain free of obstructions. 

Temporary Dead End Streets Policy:  District policy 7207.2.4.4 (local) requires that the design 
and construction for cul-de-sac streets shall apply to temporary dead end streets.  The 
temporary cul-de-sac shall be paved and shall be the dimensional requirements of a standard 
cul-de-sac.  The developer shall grant a temporary turnaround easement to the District for those 
portions of the cul-de-sac which extend beyond the dedicated street right-of-way.  In the 
instance where a temporary easement extends onto a buildable lot, the entire lot shall be 
encumbered by the easement and identified on the plat as a non-buildable lot until the street is 
extended. 

c. Applicant Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to construct one stub street to the west, 
Sunburst Street, located approximately 517-feet south of Beacon Light Road.  

The applicant is proposing to construct one stub street to the east, Sunburst Street, located 
approximately 590-feet south of Beacon Light Road.  

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  The applicant’s proposal meets District policy and 
should be approved, as proposed.  However, the City of Star has requested that the proposed 
stub street to the west not be required because the Star Acres Subdivision’s Homeowners 
CC&Rs (Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions) located directly west of the 
site prohibits the redevelopment of the lots within the subdivision.  Therefore, staff recommends 
that the site be redesigned to remove the proposed stub street to the west.  

The applicant should be required to construct a temporary cul-de-sac turnaround at the terminus 
of the stub street to the east, Sunburst Street, as it is greater than 150-feet in length. The 
applicant should be required to grant a temporary turnaround easement to the District for those 



 8      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

portions of the cul-de-sac that extend beyond the dedicated street right-of-way.  In the instance 
where a temporary easement extends onto a buildable lot, the entire lot shall be encumbered 
by the easement and identified on the plat as a non-buildable lot until the street is extended. 

The applicant should be required to construct and pave the temporary cul-de-sac with a 
minimum 45-foot turning radius.  

The applicant shall install signage at the terminus of the stub street, Sunburst Street, stating 
that, "THIS ROAD WILL BE EXTENDED IN THE FUTURE.” 

6. Traffic Calming 
a. Speed Control and Traffic Calming Policy (Local):  District policy 7207.3.7 states that the 

design of local street systems should discourage excessive speeds by using passive design 
elements.  If the design or layout of a development is anticipated to necessitate future traffic 
calming implementation by the District, then the District will require changes to the layout and/or 
the addition of passive design elements such as horizontal curves, bulb-outs, chokers, etc.  The 
District will also consider texture changes to the roadway surface (i.e. stamped concrete) as a 
passive design element.  These alternative methods may require a maintenance and/or license 
agreement. 

b. Staff Comments/Recommendation:  There are two long sections of local roadways proposed 
within the Sunfield Estates Subdivision that are greater than 800-feet in length.  Prior to plan 
submittal redesign the roadways to reduce the length of the roadways or to include passive design 
elements.  The following roadways should be redesigned: 

• Sun City Avenue/Sun City Court 

• Sunset Hills Road/Sunset Hills Court 

Stop signs, speed humps/bumps and valley gutters will not be accepted as traffic calming 
measures.  

7. Tree Planters 
Tree Planter Policy:  Tree Planter Policy: The District’s Tree Planter Policy prohibits all trees in 
planters less than 8-feet in width without the installation of root barriers. Class II trees may be 
allowed in planters with a minimum width of 8-feet, and Class I and Class III trees may be allowed 
in planters with a minimum width of 10-feet. 

8. Landscaping 
Landscaping Policy: A license agreement is required for all landscaping proposed within ACHD 
right-of-way or easement areas.  Trees shall be located no closer than 10-feet from all public storm 
drain facilities.  Landscaping should be designed to eliminate site obstructions in the vision triangle 
at intersections.  District Policy 5104.3.1 requires a 40-foot vision triangle and a 3-foot height 
restriction on all landscaping located at an uncontrolled intersection and a 50-foot offset from stop 
signs.  Landscape plans are required with the submittal of civil plans and must meet all District 
requirements prior to signature of the final plat and/or approval of the civil plans. 



 9      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

9. Other Access 
Beacon Light Road is classified as minor arterial roadway.  Other than the access specifically 
approved with this application, direct lot access is prohibited to this roadway and should be noted 
on the final plat. 

D. Site Specific Conditions of Approval 
1. Dedicate additional right-of-way to total 37-feet from section line of Beacon Light Road abutting 

the site.  Right-of-way dedication is impact fee eligible for compensation.  

2. Construct a 5-foot wide detached concrete sidewalk located a minimum of 30-feet from the 
section line of Beacon Light Road abutting the site.  If detached sidewalks are located outside of 
the right-of-way a permanent right-of-way easement shall be provided.  

3. Improve Beacon Light Road with additional pavement widening to total 17-feet from section line 
and 3-foot wide gravel shoulders abutting the site.  

4. Construct the internal streets as 36-foot street sections with curb, gutter, and 5-foot wide attached 
concrete sidewalk within 50-feet of right-of-way.   

5. Terminate Sunbow Place in a cul-de-sac turnaround with a minimum 45-foot turning radius. 

6. Terminate Sunset Hills Court and Sun City Court with cul-de-sac turnarounds with a minimum 
radius of 45-feet. OR, extend these roads to connect eliminating the cul-de-sacs.    

7. Construct 1 knuckle at the Solar View/Sunset Hills intersection, as proposed.  

8. Construct Fire Flower Avenue to intersect Beacon Light Road located 1,750-feet east of Wing 
Road in alignment with Bristol Road.  

9. Construct one stub street to the east, Sunburst Street, located 590-feet south of Beacon Light 
Road to the site’s east property line.  

10. Construct and pave a temporary cul-de-sac turnaround with a minimum 45-foot turning radius at 
the terminus of the stub street to the east, Sunburst Street.  Provide a temporary turnaround 
easement to the District for those portions of the temporary cul-de-sac turnaround which extend 
beyond the dedicated right-of-way.  In the instance where a temporary easement extends onto a 
buildable lot, the entire lot shall be encumbered by the easement and identified on the plat as a 
non-buildable lot until the street is extended. 

11. Install signage at the terminus of the stub street, Sunburst Street, stating that, "THIS ROAD WILL 
BE EXTENDED IN THE FUTURE.” 

12. Prior to plan submittal redesign the following roadways to reduce the length of the roadways or to 
include passive design elements: 

• Sun City Avenue/Sun City Court 

• Sunset Hills Road/Sunset Hills Court  

Stop signs, speed humps/bumps and valley gutters will not be accepted as traffic calming 
measures. 

13. Direct lot access to Beacon Light Road is prohibited and shall be noted on the final plat.  

14. Submit civil plans to ACHD Development Services for review and approval.  The impact fee 
assessment will not be released until the civil plans are approved by ACHD. 

15. Payment of impact fees is due prior to issuance of a building permit. 

16. Comply with all Standard Conditions of Approval. 



 10      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

E.  Standard Conditions of Approval 
1. All proposed irrigation facilities shall be located outside of the ACHD right-of-way (including all 

easements).  Any existing irrigation facilities shall be relocated outside of the ACHD right-of-way 
(including all easements).  

2. Private Utilities including sewer or water systems are prohibited from being located within the ACHD 
right-of-way. 

3. In accordance with District policy, 7203.3, the applicant may be required to update any existing non-
compliant pedestrian improvements abutting the site to meet current Americans with Disabilities 
Act (ADA) requirements.  The applicant’s engineer should provide documentation of ADA 
compliance to District Development Review staff for review.   

4. Replace any existing damaged curb, gutter and sidewalk and any that may be damaged during the 
construction of the proposed development.  Contact Construction Services at 387-6280 (with file 
number) for details. 

5. A license agreement and compliance with the District’s Tree Planter policy is required for all 
landscaping proposed within ACHD right-of-way or easement areas.   

6. All utility relocation costs associated with improving street frontages abutting the site shall be borne 
by the developer. 

7. It is the responsibility of the applicant to verify all existing utilities within the right-of-way.  The 
applicant at no cost to ACHD shall repair existing utilities damaged by the applicant.  The applicant 
shall be required to call DIGLINE (1-811-342-1585) at least two full business days prior to breaking 
ground within ACHD right-of-way.  The applicant shall contact ACHD Traffic Operations 387-6190 
in the event any ACHD conduits (spare or filled) are compromised during any phase of construction. 

8. Utility street cuts in pavement less than five years old are not allowed unless approved in writing by 
the District.  Contact the District’s Utility Coordinator at 387-6258 (with file numbers) for details. 

9. All design and construction shall be in accordance with the ACHD Policy Manual, ISPWC Standards 
and approved supplements, Construction Services procedures and all applicable ACHD Standards 
unless specifically waived herein.  An engineer registered in the State of Idaho shall prepare and 
certify all improvement plans. 

10. Construction, use and property development shall be in conformance with all applicable 
requirements of ACHD prior to District approval for occupancy. 

11. No change in the terms and conditions of this approval shall be valid unless they are in writing and 
signed by the applicant or the applicant’s authorized representative and an authorized 
representative of ACHD.  The burden shall be upon the applicant to obtain written confirmation of 
any change from ACHD. 

12. If the site plan or use should change in the future, ACHD Planning Review will review the site plan 
and may require additional improvements to the transportation system at that time. Any change in 
the planned use of the property which is the subject of this application, shall require the applicant 
to comply with ACHD Policy and Standard Conditions of Approval in place at that time unless a 
waiver/variance of the requirements or other legal relief is granted by the ACHD Commission.   

F. Conclusions of Law 
1. The proposed site plan is approved, if all of the Site Specific and Standard Conditions of Approval 

are satisfied. 

2. ACHD requirements are intended to assure that the proposed use/development will not place an 
undue burden on the existing vehicular transportation system within the vicinity impacted by the 
proposed development. 



 11      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

G. Attachments 
1. Vicinity Map 
2. Site Plan 
3. Letter from the City of Star 
4. Utility Coordinating Council 
5. Development Process Checklist 
6. Appeal Guidelines 
 

  



 12      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 
 



 13      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

SITE PLAN 

 
 



 14      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

CITY OF STAR LETTER 
   



 15      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

Ada County Utility Coordinating Council 
 
 

Developer/Local Improvement District 
Right of Way Improvements Guideline Request 

 
 

  Purpose:  To develop the necessary avenue for proper notification to utilities of local highway and 
road improvements, to help the utilities in budgeting and to clarify the already existing process. 
 
 

1) Notification: Within five (5) working days upon notification of required right of way improvements 
by Highway entities, developers shall provide written notification to the affected utility owners and 
the Ada County Utility Coordinating Council (UCC). Notification shall include but not be limited to, 
project limits, scope of roadway improvements/project, anticipated construction dates, and any 
portions critical to the right of way improvements and coordination of utilities. 

 
2) Plan Review: The developer shall provide the highway entities and all utility owners with 

preliminary project plans and schedule a plan review conference.  Depending on the scale of 
utility improvements, a plan review conference may not be necessary, as determined by the utility 
owners. Conference notification shall also be sent to the UCC. During the review meeting the 
developer shall notify utilities of the status of right of way/easement acquisition necessary for their 
project. At the plan review conference each company shall have the right to appeal, adjust and/or 
negotiate with the developer on its own behalf. Each utility shall provide the developer with a letter 
of review indicating the costs and time required for relocation of its facilities. Said letter of review 
is to be provided within thirty calendar days after the date of the plan review conference.  

 
3) Revisions: The developer is responsible to provide utilities with any revisions to preliminary 

plans. Utilities may request an updated plan review meeting if revisions are made in the 
preliminary plans which affect the utility relocation requirements. Utilities shall have thirty days 
after receiving the revisions to review and comment thereon. 

 
4) Final Notification: The developer will provide highway entities, utility owners and the UCC with 

final notification of its intent to proceed with right of way improvements and include the anticipated 
date work will commence. This notification shall indicate that the work to be performed shall be 
pursuant to final approved plans by the highway entity. The developer shall schedule a 
preconstruction meeting prior to right of way improvements. Utility relocation activity shall be 
completed within the times established during the preconstruction meeting, unless otherwise 
agreed upon. 

 
Notification to the Ada County UCC can be sent to: 50 S. Cole Rd. Boise 83707, or Visit iducc.com 
for e-mail notification information.  

 
 

 



 16      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

Development Process Checklist 
 
Items Completed to Date: 
 

Submit a development application to a City or to Ada County 
 

The City or the County will transmit the development application to ACHD 
 

The ACHD Planning Review Section will receive the development application to review 
 

The Planning Review Section will do one of the following: 
 

Send a “No Review” letter to the applicant stating that there are no site specific conditions of approval at 
this time. 

 

Write a Staff Level report analyzing the impacts of the development on the transportation system and 
evaluating the proposal for its conformance to District Policy. 

 

Write a Commission Level report analyzing the impacts of the development on the transportation system 
and evaluating the proposal for its conformance to District Policy. 

 

Items to be completed by Applicant: 
 

For ALL development applications, including those receiving a “No Review” letter: 

• The applicant should submit one set of engineered plans directly to ACHD for review by the Development 
Review Section for plan review and assessment of impact fees.  (Note:  if there are no site improvements 
required by ACHD, then architectural plans may be submitted for purposes of impact fee assessment.) 

• The applicant is required to get a permit from Construction Services (ACHD) for ANY work in the right-of-way, 
including, but not limited to, driveway approaches, street improvements and utility cuts.  

 

Pay Impact Fees prior to issuance of building permit.  Impact fees cannot be paid prior to plan review approval. 
 

DID YOU REMEMBER: 
Construction (Non-Subdivisions) 

 Driveway or Property Approach(s) 

• Submit a “Driveway Approach Request” form to ACHD Construction (for approval by Development Services & Traffic 
Services).  There is a one week turnaround for this approval. 

 

 Working in the ACHD Right-of-Way  

• Four business days prior to starting work have a bonded contractor submit a “Temporary Highway Use Permit 
Application” to ACHD Construction – Permits along with: 

a) Traffic Control Plan 
b) An Erosion & Sediment Control Narrative & Plat, done by a Certified Plan Designer, if trench is >50’ or you 

are placing >600 sf of concrete or asphalt. 
 

Construction (Subdivisions) 
 Sediment & Erosion Submittal 

• At least one week prior to setting up a Pre-Construction Meeting an Erosion & Sediment Control Narrative & Plan, done 
by a Certified Plan Designer, must be turned into ACHD Construction to be reviewed and approved by the ACHD 
Stormwater Section.  

  
 Idaho Power Company 

• Vic Steelman at Idaho Power must have his IPCO approved set of subdivision utility plans prior to Pre-Con being 
scheduled. 

 

 Final Approval from Development Services is required prior to scheduling a Pre-Con. 

 
 

 

 

 
 



 17      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

Request for Appeal of Staff Decision 
 
1. Appeal of Staff Decision:  The Commission shall hear and decide appeals by an applicant of 

the final decision made by the Development Services Manager when it is alleged that the 
Development Services Manager did not properly apply this section 7101.6, did not consider all of 
the relevant facts presented, made an error of fact or law, abused discretion or acted arbitrarily 
and capriciously in the interpretation or enforcement of the ACHD Policy Manual. 

 
a. Filing Fee:  The Commission may, from time to time, set reasonable fees to be charged 

the applicant for the processing of appeals, to cover administrative costs. 
 

b. Initiation:  An appeal is initiated by the filing of a written notice of appeal with the Secretary 
and Clerk of the District, which must be filed within ten (10) working days from the date of 
the decision that is the subject of the appeal.  The notice of appeal shall refer to the 
decision being appealed, identify the appellant by name, address and telephone number 
and state the grounds for the appeal. The grounds shall include a written summary of the 
provisions of the policy relevant to the appeal and/or the facts and law relied upon and 
shall include a written argument in support of the appeal.  The Commission shall not 
consider a notice of appeal that does not comply with the provisions of this subsection.  
 

c. Time to Reply:  The Development Services Manager shall have ten (10) working days 
from the date of the filing of the notice of appeal to reply to the notice of the appeal, and 
may during such time meet with the appellant to discuss the matter, and may also consider 
and/or modify the decision that is being appealed. A copy of the reply and any 
modifications to the decision being appealed will be provided to the appellant prior to the 
Commission hearing on the appeal.   
 

d. Notice of Hearing:  Unless otherwise agreed to by the appellant, the hearing of the appeal 
will be noticed and scheduled on the Commission agenda at a regular meeting to be held 
within thirty (30) days following the delivery to the appellant of the Development Services 
Manager’s reply to the notice of appeal. A copy of the decision being appealed, the notice 
of appeal and the reply shall be delivered to the Commission at least one (1) week prior 
to the hearing. 
 

e. Action by Commission:  Following the hearing, the Commission shall either affirm or 
reverse, in whole or part, or otherwise modify, amend or supplement the decision being 
appealed, as such action is adequately supported by the law and evidence presented at 
the hearing. 



  
A 

 

SUNFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 1 

 

  

             CITY OF STAR 
 

                   LAND USE STAFF REPORT 
 

 
TO:   Mayor & Council 

FROM:   Ryan B. Field – Assistant City Planner  

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2020 – PUBLIC HEARING 

FILE(S) #: AZ-20-14 Annexation and Zoning 

DA-20-17 Development Agreement 

 PP-20-13 Preliminary Plat for Sunfield Estates Subdivision 

             

OWNER/APPLICANT/REPRESENTATIVE 

  

Property Owner:      

TN LLC 

890 Braemere Road 

Boise, ID  83702 

 

Applicant:     Representative: 

Landmark Pacific Development Inc.  Dan Lardie, Leavitt & Associates Engineers, Inc.  

P.O. Box 1939     1324 1st Street South 

Eagle, ID 83616    Nampa, ID  83651   

           

REQUEST 

  

Request:   The Applicant is seeking approval of an Annexation and Zoning (R-3), a 

Development Agreement, and Preliminary Plat for a proposed residential subdivision consisting 

of 70 residential lots and 5 common lots. The property is located at 9655 W. Beacon Light Road, 

between N. Wing Road and N. Pollard Road in Star, Idaho, and consists of 26.1 acres with a 

proposed density of 2.49 dwelling units per acre. 

            

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

 

Property Location:   The subject property is generally located on the south side of Beacon 

Light Road, ¼ mile east of N. Wing Road in Star, Idaho. Ada County Parcel No. S0405110010. 

 
Existing Site Characteristics:  The property is currently vacant and/or in agricultural production 

 

 



  
A 

 

SUNFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 2 

 

Irrigation/Drainage District(s):  - Farmer’s Union Ditch Company, LTD 

     P.O. Box 1474, Eagle, ID  83616     

    

Flood Zone:  This property is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area. 

Special On-Site Features: 

 Areas of Critical Environmental Concern – No known areas. 

 Evidence of Erosion – No known areas. 

 Fish Habitat – No known areas. 

 Mature Trees – Yes. 

 Riparian Vegetation – Yes. 

 Steep Slopes – None. 

 Stream/Creek – Along the east and south of property. 

 Unique Animal Life – No unique animal life has been identified. 

 Unique Plant Life – No unique plant life has been identified. 

 Unstable Soils – No known issues. 

 Wildlife Habitat – No wildlife habitat has been developed or will be destroyed. 

 Historical Assets – No historical assets have been observed.   

 

APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 

 

 Pre-Application Meeting Held   July 23, 2020   

 Neighborhood Meeting Held     August 24, 2020    

 Application Submitted & Fees Paid   September 03, 2020 

 Application Accepted     September 03, 2020   

 Residents within 300’ Notified   September 14, 2020 

 Agencies Notified     September 14, 2020 

 Legal Notice Published    September 16, 2020    

 Property Posted      October 9, 2020    

  

HISTORY   

               

Request previously scheduled for public hearing on September 15, 2020 and tabled to October 

06, 2020. There have been no previous requests through the City for development of this 

property. 

 

SURROUNDING ZONING/COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP/LAND USE DESIGNATIONS 

 

 Zoning Designation Comp Plan Designation Land Use 

Existing County Rural 

Transitional (RUT) 

Neighborhood Residential Agricultural 

Proposed R-4-DA Neighborhood Residential Estate Residential  

North of site County Rural 

Transitional (RUT) 

Neighborhood Residential Vacant / Agriculture 



  
A 

 

SUNFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 3 

 

South of site County Rural 

Transitional (RUT) 

Rural Residential - Special 

Transition Overlay 

Star Acres Subdivision  

East of site County Rural 

Transitional (RUT) 

 

Neighborhood Residential Single Family Dwelling/ 

Agriculture/Commercial 

West of site County Rural 

Transitional (RUT) 

 

Rural Residential - Special 

Transition Overlay 

Star Acres Subdivision 

 

CODE DEFINITIONS / COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE: 

 

8-1B-1: ANNEXATION AND ZONING; REZONE:  

B. Standards: 

1. The subject property shall meet the minimum dimensional standards of the proper district. 

2. The city may require a development agreement in conjunction with the annexation and 

zoning, or rezone, pursuant to Idaho Code section 67-6511A, which may include a concept plan.  

In addition to other processes permitted by city and state code, exceptions or waivers of 

standards, other than use, may be permitted through execution of a development 

agreement.  A development agreement and concept plan shall be required for any rezone to 

a mixed-use zone, high density zone or land which includes steep slope ( land over 25%) or 

floodway. 

3. The termination of a development agreement shall result in the reversal of the official zoning 

map amendment approval and applicable development approval for any undeveloped portion 

of property subject to the development agreement. The undeveloped property subject to the 

development agreement shall be rezoned to the district classification as designated by the 

development agreement. When no designation is provided, the property shall revert to its 

original zoning or, if the original designation no longer exists, to the closest current equivalent 

zoning as determined by the current Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map designation. 

4. An amendment or termination of a previously recorded development agreement shall be 

recorded in the office of the county recorder by the clerk. 

5. An approved development agreement must be executed within ninety (90) days of the 

meeting at which the development agreement is approved by the city council.  A one-time 

administrative extension of maximum thirty (30) days may be granted by the zoning 

administrator.  Additional extensions may be approved by majority vote of the city council. 

Failure to execute the development agreement within the required timeframe will result in the 

denial of all related applications. 



  
A 

 

SUNFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 4 

 

C. Required Findings: The council shall review the application at the public hearing. In order to 

grant an annexation and zoning or rezone, the council shall make the following findings: 

1. The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the comprehensive plan; 

2. The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed district; 

3. The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and 

welfare; and 

4. The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services by 

any political subdivision providing public services within the city. 

5. The annexation (as applicable) is in the best interest of city. 

8-3A-1: ZONING DISTRICTS AND PURPOSE ESTABLISHED:  

 

R RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT: To provide regulations and districts for various residential 

neighborhoods. Gross density in a Residential (R) district shall be determined according to the 

numeral following the R. The numeral designates the maximum number of dwelling units per 

acre. In zoning designations of R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4 and R-5, housing shall be single family 

detached unless approved with a PUD or development agreement.  Connection to municipal 

water and sewer facilities are required for all subdivision and lot split applications submitted 

after the effective date hereof in all districts exceeding one dwelling unit per acre. Wells and 

septic systems may be permitted for larger lots in this land use designation that are not adjacent 

to municipal services, as determined by the Sewer District, and if approved by the applicable 

Health Department. Private streets may be approved in this district for access to newly 

subdivided or split property. This district does allow for some non-residential uses as specified in 

8-3A-3. 

DA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT: This designation, following any zoning designation noted on 

the official zoning map of the city (i.e., C-2-DA), indicates that the zoning was approved by the 

city with a development agreement, with specific conditions of zoning. 

8-3A-3:  USES WITHIN ZONING DISTRICTS 

The following table lists principal permitted (P), accessory uses (A), conditional (C), or prohibited 

(N) uses. 

 

 

 

 

 



  
A 

 

SUNFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 5 

 

 

8-3A-4: ZONING DISTRICT DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS: 

Zoning 

District   

Maximum 

Height   

Note 

Conditions 
 

Minimum Yard Setbacks 

Note Conditions  

 Front (1)  Rear   

Interior 

Side   

Street 

Side   

R-3 35' 15’ to living area/side load 

garage 20’ to garage face  

15’ 5' per 

story (2)  

20'  

 

Notes: 

1. Front yard setback shall be measured from the face of the garage to the face of the sidewalk, 

allowing for 20’ of parking on the driveway without overhang onto the sidewalk. 

2. Interior side yard setbacks for lots with 50’ or less of lot width shall be allowed 5’ interior 

side yard setbacks for one and two-story structures. 

 

8-4E-2: STANDARDS FOR COMMON OPEN SPACE AND SITE AMENITY REQUIREMENTS: 

 

A. Open Space and Site Amenity Requirement (see also Chapter 8 “Architectural Review”): 

1. The total land area of all common open space shall equal or exceed fifteen percent (15%) of 

the gross land area of the development.  Ten percent (10%) of that area shall be usable open 

space. 

2.  Each development is required to have at least one site amenity. 

3. One additional site amenity shall be required for each additional twenty (20) acres of 

ZONING DISTRICT USES 

 

A R-R R 

Accessory structure A A A 

Dwelling:    

Multi-family 1 N N C 

Secondary 1 A A A 

Single-family attached N N C 

Single-family detached P P P 

Two-family duplex N N P 



  
A 

 

SUNFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 6 

 

development area, plus one additional amenity per 75 residential units.  

B. Qualified Open Space: The following may qualify to meet the common open space 

requirements: 

1. Any open space that is active or passive in its intended use, and accessible or visible by all 

residents of the development, including, but not limited to: 

a. Open grassy area of at least fifty feet by one hundred feet (50' x 100') in area; 

b. Qualified natural areas; 

c. Ponds or water features where active fishing, paddle boarding or other activities are provided 

(50% qualifies towards total required open space, must be accessible by all residents to qualify.) 

ponds must be aerated; 

d. A plaza. 

2. Additions to a public park or other public open space area. 

3. The buffer area along collector and arterial streets may be included in required overall 

common open space for residential subdivisions. 

4. Parkways along local residential streets with detached sidewalks that meet all the following 

standards may count toward the common open space requirement: 

a. The parkway is a minimum of eight feet (8') in width from street curb to edge of sidewalk and 

includes street trees as specified otherwise herein. 

b. Except for alley accessed dwelling units, the area for curb cuts to each residential lot or 

common driveway shall be excluded from the open space calculation. For purposes of this 

calculation, the curb cut area shall be a minimum area of twenty-six feet (26') by the width of the 

parkway. 

c. Stormwater detention facilities do not qualify to meet the common area open space 

requirements, unless all of the following is met: 

1. Must be at least fifty feet by one hundred feet (50' x 100') in area; 

2. Specifically designed as a dual use facility, as determined by the administrator, to include 

minimal slopes, grass throughout, and guarantee of water percolation within 24 hours of 

storm event. 

3.  Is located in a development that has a second usable open space area that contains a 

qualified site amenity as herein defined. 

 

5. Visual natural space, including open ditches, wetlands, slopes or other areas that may not be 

readily accessible to residents, and is provided with open style fencing, may qualify for up to 

20% of the required open space total.  



  
A 

 

SUNFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 7 

 

C. Qualified Site Amenities: Qualified site amenities shall include, but not be limited to, the 

following: 

1. Clubhouse; 

2. Fitness facilities, indoors or outdoors; 

3. Public art; 

4. Picnic area; or 

5. Recreation amenities: 

a. Swimming pool. 

b. Children's play structures. 

c. Sports courts. 

d. Additional open space in excess of 5% usable space. 

e. RV parking for the use of the residents within the development. 

f. School and/or Fire station sites if accepted by the district. 

g. Pedestrian or bicycle circulation system amenities meeting the following requirements: 

(1) The system is not required for sidewalks adjacent to public right of way; 

(2) The system connects to existing or planned pedestrian or bicycle routes outside the 

development; and 

(3) The system is designed and constructed in accord with standards set forth by the city of Star; 

D. Location:  The common open space and site amenities shall be located on a common lot or 

an area with a common maintenance agreement. 

E. Maintenance: 

1. All common open space and site amenities shall be the responsibility of an owners' 

association for the purpose of maintaining the common area and improvements thereon. 

8-1E-1: DEFINITIONS - TERMS DEFINED 

TRANSITIONAL LOT OR PROPERTY: The size of a new residential lot when being proposed 

adjacent to an established residential use. The ratio for lots adjacent to properties shall be 

determined on a case by case basis, when considering the size of the development potential for 

the existing use. This shall not be required if separated by an existing roadway or large canal 

where the distance between new structures and existing structures equal or exceed 100 feet.  

8-3B-3: ADDITIONAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT STANDARDS - RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS: 



  
A 

 

SUNFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 8 

 

B. When development is planned with lots that directly abut existing lots within a Rural 

Residential area, or “Special Transition Overlay Area” as shown on the Comprehensive 

Plan Land Use map, an appropriate transition shall be provided for the two abutting 

residential lot types.  A transition shall take into consideration site constraints that may 

exist and may include clustering of the urban lots in order to provide an open space area 

avoiding urban lots directly abutting rural residential lots, or may include the provision of 

a buffer strip avoiding urban lots directly abutting rural residential lots, or may include 

setbacks within the urban lots similar to the rural residential lots directly abutting, or may 

include the provision of one half to one acre size lots directly abutting the rural 

residential lots. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  

 

8.2.3 Land Use Map Designations: 

 

Neighborhood Residential: 

 

Suitable primarily for single family residential use. Densities in the majority of this land 

use area are to range from 3 units per acre to 5 units per acre. Densities not exceeding 1 

to 2 units per acre are to be encouraged in areas of the floodplain, ridgeline developable 

areas, hillside developable areas, and where new residential lots are proposed adjacent 

to existing residential lots of one acre and larger where those existing larger lots are not 

likely to be subdivided in the future. 

 

Special Transition Overlay Area 

 

Development adjacent to, and potentially within, this area is to provide for an 

appropriate transition between existing and new home sites where new urban 

development is being planned adjacent to previously approved and constructed rural 

county developments of years past. Site layout is to provide for a transition in density 

and lot sizing. 

 

8.3 Goal: 

 

Encourage the development of a diverse community that provides a mix of land uses, 

housing types, and a variety of employment options, social and recreational 

opportunities, and where possible, an assortment of amenities within walking distance of 

residential development. 

 

8.4 Objectives: 

 

• Manage urban sprawl in order to minimize costs of urban services and to protect 

rural areas. 



  
A 

 

SUNFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 9 

 

• Retain and encourage rural areas where it will not result in increased costs for 

urban service.  

• Encourage land uses that are in harmony with existing resources, scenic areas, 

natural wildlife areas, and surrounding land uses. 

 

8.5.3 Policies Related Mostly to the Urban Residential Planning Areas: 

 
A. The Neighborhood Residential Land Use is to encourage urban style development 

densities to limit urban sprawl.  

B. Low densities within the Neighborhood Residential Land Use are to be designed 

within the floodplain, ridgeline developable areas, hillside developable areas and  

where new residential lots are proposed adjacent to existing residential lots of one 

acre and larger where 

C. Site layout within the Special Transition Overlay Area is to provide for a transition 

in density and lot sizing. Base densities may be significantly reduced, or home sites 

may be clustered to increase open space within a portion of a site when property is 

within this overlay. 

 

8.5.4 Policies Related to The Special Transition Overlay Areas: 

   

A. Development adjacent to and within the Special Transition Overlay Area is to provide 

for an appropriate transition between existing and new home sites where new urban 

development is being planned adjacent to previously approved and constructed rural 

county developments of years past. This may include new abutting lots to be one acre in 

size or may include buffering. 

 B. Site layout is to provide for a transition in density and lot sizing with all policies 

regarding compatibility herein applying.  

C. Modified street sections, such as with no curbs gutters or sidewalks, should be 

encouraged for adjacent compatibility where determined appropriate.  

D. When an urban density residential development is planned with lots that directly abut 

lots within a Special Transition Overlay Area an appropriate transition is to be provided 

for the two abutting residential lot types. A transition must take into consideration site 

constraints that may exist and may include clustering of the urban lots in order to 

provide an open space area avoiding urban lots directly abutting Special Transition 

Overlay Area lots, or may include the provision of a buffer strip avoiding urban lots 

directly abutting Special Transition Overlay Area lots, or may include setbacks within the 

urban lots similar to the Special Transition Overlay Area lots directly abutting, or may 

include the provision of one half to one acre size lots directly abutting the Special 

Transition Overlay Area lots.  

E. Larger setbacks should be required for new lots planned to abut existing Special 

Transition Overlay Area lots. 

  

8.5.9 Additional Land Use Component Policies: 

 



  
A 

 

SUNFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 10 

 

• Encourage flexibility in site design and innovative land uses. 

• Encourage landscaping to enhance the appearance of subdivisions, structures, 

and parking areas. 

• Require more open space and trees in subdivisions. 

• Work with Ada County Highway District (ACHD), Canyon Highway District #4 

(CHD4), and Idaho Department of Transportation (ITD) for better coordination of 

roadway and access needs. 

• Support well-planned, pedestrian-friendly developments. 

• Dark sky provision should be adopted within the code to assure down style 

lighting in all developments and Star should consider joining the International 

Dark Sky Association. 

• The City should utilize the 2018 Treasure Valley Tree Selection Guide when 

requiring trees within developments. 

 

18.4 Implementation Policies: 

 

E. Development Agreements allow the city to enter into a contract with a developer upon 

rezoning. The Development Agreement may provide the city and the developer with 

certain assurances regarding the proposed development upon rezoning. 

 

PROJECT OVERVIEW 

 

ANNEXATION & REZONE: 

 

The annexation and rezone request from County Rural Urban Transition (RUT) to Medium-Low 

Density Residential (R-4) on the applicant’s property will allow for the subdivision of the 

property to develop with urban densities that will be consistent with the current Comprehensive 

Plan Map.  The overall gross density of the proposed development is 2.68 dwelling units per 

acre. The current Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map designates this property as Neighborhood 

Residential, with an anticipated density of 3 to 5 dwelling units per acre. The requested density 

is aligned with this designation.  The requested zoning designation and density meets the intent 

of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

PRELIMINARY PLAT: 

 

The current Preliminary Plat submitted contains 70 single family residential lots, and 4 common 

area lots for a total of 75 total lots. The residential lots range in size from 7,222 square feet to 

25,920 square feet with the average buildable lot area of 10,043 square feet. The applicant has 

indicated that the development will contain a total of five common lots with 4.43 acres (17.0%) 

of total open space. The applicant states that useable open space, not including street buffers 

and endcaps equal to 3.78 acres (14.52%) exceeding the requirement for usable open space in 

the current Unified Development Code, Section 8-4E-2.  Streets are proposed to be public 



  
A 

 

SUNFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 11 

 

throughout the development, and will measure 36 ft from back of curb to back of curb and 

satisfy Section 8-4D-34B(4) of the UDC. 

 

The development will be accessed off W. Beacon Light Road. The development will also have a 

stub road located on the south of the property that will terminate at the property line with the 

possibility to extend in the future. The preliminary plat also shows an emergency access point as 

Lot 5 in Block 1, which will allow emergency services an additional access point to the 

development if needed.    

 

The current Unified Development Code, Section 8-4E-2 requires a development of this size to 

have 2 site amenities. The applicant is proposing a pathway around the perimeter of the 

development through the open space / common areas. It does not appear that there is a second 

amenity. Staff will require the applicant to provide an additional amenity, to be discussed 

at the Council meeting. 

  

ADDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT FEATURES: 

 

• Sidewalks 

Sidewalks are proposed at five-foot (5’) widths and will be attached throughout 

overall subdivision. 

 

• Lighting  

Streetlights shall reflect the “Dark Sky” criteria with all lighting.  The same streetlight 

design shall continue throughout the entire development. The applicant has not 

submitted street light design standards. A condition of approval will be 

required to receive staff approval of streetlights prior to final plat approval. 

 

• Street Names 

Street names will be approved by the Ada Street Naming Committee prior to 

signature of final plat.    

 

• Landscaping - As required by the Unified Development Code, Chapter 8, Section 8-8C-2-

M (2) Street Trees; A minimum of one street tree shall be planted for every thirty-five (35) 

linear feet of street frontage. The applicant shall use “Treasure Valley Tree Selection 

Guide”, as adopted by the Unified Development Code. 

 

• Setbacks – Applicant is not requesting special setbacks for this development and will 

meet the R-3 standards.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
A 

 

SUNFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 12 

 

AGENCY RESPONSES 

 

 Star Fire District    September 24, 2020 

 Keller and Associates    October 2, 2020 

 ITD      September 28, 2020 

 ACHD – (Draft)     October 13, 2020 

 DEQ      September 25, 2020 

 West Ada School District   October 12, 2020 

 Central District Health    September 28, 2020 

      

PUBLIC RESPONSES 

 

Lonn and Ann Kuck - 10399 W. Rolling Hills Dr., Star, ID  83669          

Steve and Charlene Greene – 9999 W Star Acres Drive, Star, ID 83669  

Will Eason – 10174 W. Star Acres Dr., Star, ID 83669  

Terry Bier and Carolee Polfer – 10040 West Star Acres Dr., Star, ID 83669 

Gary and Judy Enzminger – Email 

Evelyn Hartley & Bev Bradford – 10175 W, New Hope Rd, Star, ID 83669 

Gary & Gina Ferguson- 10011 W. Beacon Light Rd, Star, ID 83669 

   

TRANSITIONAL LOTS: 

     

The western and southern boundaries of the subdivision is immediately adjacent to Star Acres 

Subdivision, an Ada County approved 5-acre lot subdivision that is in Un-Incorporated Ada 

County. The majority of the houses built within the Star Acres Subdivision are located to the 

west of the development. The Star Comprehensive Plan designates the area within this 

subdivision as a Special Transition Overlay Area. The Unified Development Code provides a 

definition for transitional Lots or Properties and states the following: The size of a new 

residential lot when being proposed adjacent to an established residential use. The ratio for lots 

adjacent to properties shall be determined on a case by case basis, when considering the size of 

the development potential for the existing use. This shall not be required if separated by an 

existing roadway or large canal where the distance between new structures and existing 

structures equal or exceed 100 feet.  It appears from the submitted preliminary plat that the 

developer has made an effort to design the development with this requirement in mind. Lots 6 

& 7 of Block 1 and Lots 1-4 of Block 3 have been designed to be half-acre or larger in size and 

the developer is committed to only building single story structures on these lots. The far 

southern edge of the subdivision will have large common lot that will provide a buffer from the 

development.  

 

 

 



  
A 

 

SUNFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 13 

 

 STAFF ANALYSIS & RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

Staff is overall supportive of the design, layout and density of the development application, with 

the proposed conditions of approval.   

 

Based upon the information provided to staff in the applications and agency comments received 

to date, staff finds that the proposed annexation and zoning, development agreement 

modification, and preliminary plat meets the requirements, standards and intent for 

development as they relate to the Unified Development Code and the Comprehensive Plan. The 

Council should consider the entire record and testimony presented at their scheduled public 

hearing prior to rendering its decision on the matter. Should the Council vote to approve the 

applications, either as presented or with added conditions of approval, Council shall direct staff 

to draft findings of fact and conclusions of law for the Council to consider at a future date. 

 

FINDINGS 

 

The Council may approve, conditionally approve, deny or table this request.  In order to 

approve these applications, the Unified Development Code requires that Council must find the 

following: 

 

ANNEXATION/REZONE FINDINGS: 

 

1.  The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 The purpose of the Star Comprehensive Plan is to promote the health, safety, and 

general welfare of the people of the City of Star and its Impact Area.  Some of the prime 

objectives of the Comprehensive Plan include: 

✓ Protection of property rights. 
✓ Adequate public facilities and services are provided to the people at reasonable 

cost. 

✓ Ensure the local economy is protected. 

✓ Encourage urban and urban-type development and overcrowding of land. 

✓ Ensure development is commensurate with the physical characteristics of the 

land. 

The goal of the Comprehensive Plan for Land Use is to encourage the development of a 

diverse community that provides a mixture of land uses, housing types, and a variety of 

employment options, social and recreational opportunities, and where possible provides 

an assortment of amenities within walking distance of a residential development. The 

City must find compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

2.  The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed district,  

     specifically, the purposes statement. 

The City must find that the proposal complies with the proposed district and purpose 

statement. The purpose of the residential districts is to provide regulations and districts 

for various residential neighborhoods with gross densities in compliance with the intent 



  
A 

 

SUNFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 14 

 

of the Comprehensive Plan designation. Housing shall be single family detached unless 

approved with a PUD or development agreement. Connection to municipal water and 

sewer facilities are required for all subdivision and lot split applications in all districts 

exceeding one dwelling unit per acre. Private streets may be approved in this district for 

access to newly subdivided or split property.  
 

3.  The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and  

     welfare; and 

 The City must find that there is no indication from the material submitted by any 

political agency stating that this annexation and zoning of this property will be materially 

detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare.   

 

4.  The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services by  

     any political subdivision providing public services within the city including, but not limited to,  

     school districts. 

The City must find that it has not been presented with any information from agencies 
having jurisdiction that public services will be adversely impacted other than traffic, 

which will continue to be impacted as the City grows. 

 

5.  The annexation is in the best interest of the city. 

The City must find that this annexation is reasonably necessary for the orderly 

development of the City. 

 

PRELIMINARY PLAT FINDINGS: 

 

1.  The plat is in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

The City must find that this Plat follows designations, spirit and intent of the 
Comprehensive Plan regarding residential development and meets several of the 

objectives of the Comprehensive Plan such as:  

1.  Designing development projects that minimize impacts on existing adjacent  

     properties, and 

2.  Managing urban sprawl to protect outlying rural areas.   

 

2.  Public Services are available or can be made available and are adequate to accommodate 

     the proposed development. 

The City must find that Agencies having jurisdiction on this parcel were notified of this 

action, and that it has not received notice that public services are not available or cannot 

be made available for this development. 
 

3.  There is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed development; 

The City must find that they have not been notified of any deficiencies in public financial 

capabilities to support this development. 

 

4.  The development will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare; 



  
A 

 

SUNFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 15 

 

The City must find that it has not been presented with any facts stating this Preliminary 

Plat will be materially detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare.  Residential 

uses are a permitted use. 

 

5.  The development preserves significant natural, scenic or historic features; 

The City must find that there are no known natural, scenic, or historic features that have 

been identified within this Preliminary Plat. 

 

Upon granting approval or denial of the application, the Council shall specify: 

 

1. The Ordinance and standards used in evaluating the application;   

2. The reasons for recommending approval or denial; and   

3. The actions, if any, that the applicant could take to obtain approval. 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 

1. The approved Preliminary Plat for the Sunfield Estates Subdivision shall comply with all 

statutory requirements of applicable agencies and districts having jurisdiction in the City of 

Star. 

2. The applicant shall provide a second amenity within the development that meets the 

standards of Section 8-4E-2C of the UDC. 

3. All public streets shall have a minimum street width of 36’ and shall be constructed to ACHD 

standards.   

4. The applicant shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City, agreeing to 

proportionate share assessment by ITD regarding impacts to the State Highway System. 

These fees will be collected by the City of Star, by phase, prior to final plat signature. The 

development agreement shall be signed and recorded as part of the ordinance for 

annexation and zoning and shall contain the details of the fees to be collected. 

5. Streetlights shall comply with the Star City Code and shall be of the same design throughout 

the entire subdivision. Streetlights shall be continuous throughout the subdivision and shall 

be maintained by the Homeowners Association.  Streetlights shall be installed prior to any 

building occupancy. Design shall follow Code with requirements for light trespass and “Dark 

Skies” lighting. Applicant/Owner shall submit a streetlight plan/design prior to Final 

Plat approval.  Streetlights shall comply with the Star City Code regarding light 

trespass and “Dark Sky” initiative.   

6. Street trees shall be installed per Chapter 8, including Section 8-8C-2-M(2) Street Trees 

including one (1) tree per thirty-five (35) linear feet. 

7. The property with the approved Preliminary Plat shall be satisfactorily weed abated, 

preventing a public nuisance, per Star City Code.  

8. All signed Irrigation District Agreements with the Irrigation Districts shall be provided to the 

City of Star with each subsequent Final Plat application. 

9. Pressurized irrigation systems shall comply with the Irrigation District(s) and the City of Star 

Codes.  Plans for pressurized irrigation systems shall be submitted to, and approved by the 

City of Star Engineer, prior to installation.   



  
A 

 

SUNFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION – FILE # AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 16 

 

10. A plat note supporting the “Right to Farm Act” as per Idaho Code Title 22, Chapter 45, shall 

be shown on the Final Plat. 

11. A copy of the CC&R’s shall be submitted to the City of Star at Final Plat. 

12. A letter from the US Postal Service shall be given to the City at Final Plat stating the 

subdivision is in compliance with the Postal Service. 

13. A form signed by the Star Sewer & Water District shall be submitted to the City prior to the 

signature of the Final Plat stating that all conditions of the District have been met, including 

annexation into the District. 

14. A plat note shall state that development standards for residential development shall comply 

with the effective building and zoning requirements at time of building permit issuance, 

unless amended in the Development Agreement or CUP conditions. 

15. Development standards for single family residential units shall comply with effective building 

and zoning requirements at time of building permit issuance, or as approved through the 

Development Agreement or as stated herein. 

16. All common areas shall be owned and maintained by the Homeowners Association. 

17. The applicant shall provide a sign, to be located at all construction entrances, indicating the 

rules for all contractors that will be working on the property starting at grading and running 

through home sales that addresses items including but not limited to dust, music, dogs, 

starting/stopping hours for contractors (7a.m. start time). Sign shall be approved by the 

City prior to start of construction. 

18. A sign application is required for any subdivision signs. 

19. Any additional Condition of Approval as required by Staff and City Council. 

 

COUNCIL DECISION 

 

The Star City Council ________________ File #AZ-20-14/DA-20-17/PP-20-13 for Sunfield Estates 

Subdivision on ________________ ____, 2020. 





ShawnN
Text Box
UPDATED PLAT



ShawnN
Text Box
ORIGINAL SUBMITTED PLAT



  
 
 
 
 

From the Office of Deputy Chief Victor Islas  

Middleton Rural Fire District             Star Fire Protection District  
302 E. Main Street               11665 State Street, Suite B  
Middleton, Idaho 83644                                                                                                                    Star, Idaho 83669 

 

September 24, 2020 

 

 
City of Star  
City Planner/Zoning Administrator  
P.O. Box 130 
Star, Idaho 83669 
 
 
 
 
RE:  Sunfield Estates Subdivision 
 AZ-20-14 Annexation-Zoning  
 PP-20-13 Preliminary Plat  
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
The Star Fire Protection District has reviewed the submitted plans for Sunfield Estates Subdivision located 
in Star, Idaho.  Our Comments are as follows:  
 
This project shall comply with the 2015 international Fire Code (IFC) and any codes set forth by the City of 
Star.  
 
This project can be serviced by the Star Fire Protection District.  The response station to this development 
will be Fire Station 51 located at 11665 W. State Street, Suite B, Star, Idaho 83669.  The response time 
under normal driving conditions will be 7 minutes utilizing google maps.  
 
Access roads shall be provided and maintained following Appendix D and Section 503 of the 2015 IFC. 
Access shall include adequate roadway widths, signage, turnaround, and turning radius for fire apparatus.  
Completion and verification of Access shall be the Fire District prior to building permits are issued.  
 

• One-or two-family dwellings residential developments: 
o Developments of one-or two-family dwellings where the number of dwellings units 

exceed 30 shall be provided with at least two separate and approved fire apparatus access 
roads.   

Access road design shall be designed and constructed to allow for evacuation simultaneously with 
emergency response operations.   
  
 
 



  
 
 
 
 

From the Office of Deputy Chief Victor Islas  

Middleton Rural Fire District             Star Fire Protection District  
302 E. Main Street               11665 State Street, Suite B  
Middleton, Idaho 83644                                                                                                                    Star, Idaho 83669 

 
Continued Comments for: Sunfield Estates Subdivision AZ-20-14 & PP-20-13 
 
All fire department access roads in the development shall remain clear and unobstructed during 
construction of development.  Additional parking restrictions may be required as to maintain access for 
emergency vehicles at all times.  Hydrants shall remain unobstructed at all times during construction as 
per city code.  
 
The fire hydrant spacing shall be no more than 400’ apart and will be equipped with Storz LDH 
connection in place of the 4 ½” outlets.  Hydrant shall be approved and witnessed by the Fire Code 
Official.  
 
Final inspection by the Fire District of above list including hydrant flow must be verified before building 
permits are issued.  
 
If you have any questions or would like to discuss this letter in detail, please feel free to contact my 
office at (208) 585-6650. 
 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Victor Islas  
Deputy Chief  
 
 

Victor Islas







 

 
  

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
P.O. Box 8028  •  Boise, ID  83707-2028 

(208) 334-8300  •  itd.idaho.gov 

 

 
 
 
 

September 28, 2020 

 

 
Shawn Nickel 

City Planner 

P.O. Box 130 

Star, Idaho 83669 

 

VIA EMAIL 

 

Development 

Application AZ-20-14, DA-20-14, PP-20-13 

Project Name SUNFIELD ESTATE SUBDIVISION 

Project Location 9655 West Beacon Light Road, west of SH-16 milepost 102.00 

Project Description 

Annexation and zoning of R-2, development agreement, and a preliminary plat 

consisting of 77 residential lots. 

Applicant Dan Lardie, Leavitt & Associates 

 

The Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) reviewed the referenced annexation, zoning, and development 

agreement applications and has the following comments: 

 

1. This project does not abut the State Highway system.  

 

2. ITD and the City of Star have entered into an interagency agreement to collect proportionate share 

from new developments to mitigate traffic impacts from incoming developments. Proportionate share 

for each development is calculated based off of number of trips added to State Highway system. The 

number of trips generated can be determined using the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip 

Generation Manual. ITD requires trip distribution information to determine where trips generated by 

developments access the State Highway system.   

 

3. No trip distribution information was provided; without trip distribution information ITD must assume 

the worst case scenario that all 77 trips will utilize the Beacon Light Road/ SH-16 intersection at PM 

peak hour. According to a recent Traffic Impact Study, the southbound SH-16 thru movement fails 

during AM peak starting in 2028.  In 2028 total traffic utilizing the intersection in the AM peak hour is 

projected to be 2,044 cars. The proposed subdivision is adding 177 trips to SH-16/Beacon Light Road 

intersection in the AM Peak at buildout, which is approximately 3.80% percent of the traffic utilizing 

the intersection in 2028. The construction of the cost of design, construction, and right-of-way for the 

southbound axillary lane on SH-16 through Beacon Light Road is estimated to cost $1,385,000 (see 



 

 
  

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
P.O. Box 8028  •  Boise, ID  83707-2028 

(208) 334-8300  •  itd.idaho.gov 

 

 
 
 
 

attached). The applicant will only be responsible for contributing their proportionate share of $52,630 

(3.80%).  

 

4. In order to provide a more accurate and potentially lower estimate, the applicant could provide ITD 

specific trip distribution numbers. ITD suggests the applicant contact COMPASS to have a model run 

conducted to determine trip distribution. ITD would be willing to accept trip distribution numbers 

provided by COMPASS or a licensed civil engineer. 

 

5. Idaho Code 40-1910 does not allow advertising within the right-of-way of any State Highway. 

 

6. The Idaho Administrative Procedure Act (IDAPA) 39.03.60 governs advertising along the State 

Highway system.  The applicant may contact Justin Pond, Right-of-Way Section Program Manager, at 

(208) 334-8832 for more information. 

 

7. ITD objects to this development. ITD will remove the objection if the governing board requires, and 

the applicant agrees to, the execution of a Development Agreement with the City of Star binding the 

contribution of the proportionate share amount of $52,630. 

 

If you have any questions, you may contact me at (208) 334-8338 or Erika Bowen (208) 265-4312 ext 7.   

 

Sincerely, 

 
Sarah Arjona 

Development Services Coordinator 

Sarah.Arjona@itd.idaho.gov 
 

mailto:Sarah.Arjona@itd.idaho.gov


Sunfield Estate 
Proportionate Share Contribution 

(9/23/2020) 

 

77 Units 
Single Family Homes 
ITE Code (210) Single Family 
 
AM Trip Rate = 0.74   
PM Trip Rate = 0.99   
 

 
 

 
 
A trip distribution diagram was not provided to the department. ITD must assume a worst case 
scenario that all 77 residential units will head east on Beacon Light Road to the SH-16 / Beacon 
Light Road Intersection. Analysis from the Hormachea development shows the southbound thru 
movement fails during the AM Peak starting in 2028. The recommended mitigation is adding a 
southbound auxiliary lane thru the signalized intersection.  
 
Proportionate share is based on the total AM site trips through the intersection of                                                      
Beacon Light Road / SH-16 compared to total number of AM trips in 2028.  
 
Site Traffic  
 
AM Peak  
 77 units x 0.74 = 57 trips 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Total Traffic 2028 @ SH-16 / Beacon Light Road 
 

 
 
77 site trips / 2044 Total Trips = 3.8% 
 
 
ITD estimates the cost of design, construction and R/W for the southbound auxiliary lane on  
SH-16 through the Beacon Light intersection to be approximately $1,385,000.  
 
Proportionate share contribution of 3.8% is $52,630. 
 
 

Total 2028 intersection trips = 2044 



  

                                  



 1     DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

Development Services Department 

 
Project/File:  Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/ AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

This is an annexation with rezone to R-4, a preliminary plat application consisting of 
75-lots on 26.1-acres, and a Development Agreement with the City of Star.  

Lead Agency: City of Star 

Site address: 9655 W Beacon Light Road 

Commission  
Meeting: XXXX, 2020 

Staff Approval: XXXX, 2020 

Applicant/  
Representative: Leavitt & Associates 
 Dan Lardie 
 1324 1st Street South  
 Nampa, ID  83651 

Staff Contact:  Stacey Yarrington, Planner III 
 Phone: 387-6171 
 E-mail: syarrington@achdidaho.org  

A.  Findings of Fact 

1. Description of Application:   The applicant is requesting approval of an annexation with rezone 
from RUT (Rural Urban Transition) to R-4 (Medium-low density Residential) and a preliminary plat 
application consisting of 75-lots (70 residential lots and 5 common lots) on 26.1-acres; and a 
Development Agreement with the City of Star.  

The applicant’s proposal is consistent with the City of Star’s Comprehensive Plan.  

2. Description of Adjacent Surrounding Area:   

Direction Land Use Zoning 

North Low density Residential (City of Star)  
Rural Urban Transition (Ada County) 

R-2,  
RUT 

South Rural Urban Transition RUT 

East Rural Urban Transition RUT 

West Rural Urban Transition RUT 

 

3. Site History:  ACHD has not previously reviewed this site for a development application. 

4. Adjacent Development:  The following developments are pending or underway in the vicinity of 
the site: 

• Canvasback, a 112 single-family subdivision located west of the site was approved by ACHD 
in September 2020.  

Vicinity Map 

 

mailto:syarrington@achdidaho.org


 2      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

• Canopi Estates, a 15 single-family lot subdivision located west of the site was approved by 
ACHD in June 2020. 

• Greiner Hope Springs, a 270-lot residential development located west of the site was 
approved by ACHD in August 2019.  

• Greendale Grove, a 106-lot residential development located northwest of the site was 
approved by ACHD in April 2019.  

• Greendale, a 131-lot residential development located west of the site was approved by ACHD 
in April 2019.  

• Torchlight Estates, a 39 single-family lot subdivision located north of the site was approved 
by ACHD in January 2019.  

• Trident Ridge, a 324 single-family lot subdivision located northwest of the site was approved 
by ACHD in December 2017.  

5. Transit:  Transit services are not available to serve this site.   

6. New Center Lane Miles:  The proposed development includes 0.67 centerline miles of new public 
road. 

7. Impact Fees: There will be an impact fee that is assessed and due prior to issuance of any building 
permits. The assessed impact fee will be based on the impact fee ordinance that is in effect at that 
time. The impact fee assessment will not be released until the civil plans are approved by ACHD. 

8. Capital Improvements Plan (CIP)/ Integrated Five Year Work Plan (IFYWP): 

There are no roadways, bridges or intersections in the general vicinity of the project that are in the 
Integrated Five Year Work Plan (IFYWP). 

• Beacon Light Road is listed in the CIP to be widened to 3-lanes from Munger Road to Pollard 
Lane between 2036 and 2040. 

• Beacon Light Road is listed in the CIP to be widened to 3-lanes from Pollard Lane to SH-16 
between 2036 and 2040.  

• The intersection of Beacon Light Road and Pollard Lane is listed in the CIP to be reconstructed 
as a single-lane roundabout between 2036 and 2040. 

9. Roadways to Bikeways Master Plan:  ACHD’s Roadways to Bikeways Master Plan (BMP) was 
adopted by the ACHD Commission in May of 2009 and was update in 2018.  The plan seeks to 
implement the Planned Bicycle Network to support bicycling as a viable transportation option for 
Ada County residents with a wide range of ages and abilities,  maintain bicycle routes in a state 
of good repair in order to ensure they are consistently available for use, promote awareness of 
existing bicycle routes and features and support encouragement programs and to  facilitate 
coordination and cooperation among local jurisdictions in implementing the Roadways to 
Bikeways Plan recommendations. 

The BMP identifies Beacon Light Road as Level 3 facilities.   

B.  Traffic Findings for Consideration 
1. Trip Generation:  This development is estimated to generate 651 additional vehicle trips per day 

(9 existing); 69 additional vehicle trips per hour in the PM peak hour (1 existing), based on the 
Institute of Transportation Engineers Trip Generation Manual, 10th edition.   

2. Condition of Area Roadways 
Traffic Count is based on Vehicles per hour (VPH) 



 3      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

 

* Acceptable level of service for a two-lane minor arterial is “E” (575 VPH). 
 
* Acceptable level of service for a two-lane collector is “D” (425 VPH).  
 
** ACHD does not set level of service thresholds for State Highways. 

3. Average Daily Traffic Count (VDT) 
Average daily traffic counts are based on ACHD’s most current traffic counts. 

• The average daily traffic count for SH-16 north of SH-44/ State Street was 12,911 on 
04/05/2019. 

• The average daily traffic count for Beacon Light Road east of Wing Road was 1,722 on 
07/08/2020. 

• The average daily traffic count for Pollard Lane south of Beacon Light Road was 833 on 
07/07/2020.   

C. Findings for Consideration 

1. Purple Sage/Beacon Light Alignment Study 
The Purple Sage Road/Beacon Light Road alignment study is the result of a regional alignment 
study that was done in a collaborative effort between the Ada County Highway District (ACHD) and 
the Canyon Highway District #4 (CHD4). The study identifies Purple Sage Road/Beacon Light Road 
corridor is located in northeastern Canyon County and northwestern Ada County. The study was 
undertaken in response to Communities in Motion, the long-range transportation plan for southwest 
Idaho prepared by the regional planning organization, Community Planning Association of 
Southwest Idaho (COMPASS). Communities in Motion identified the corridor as a location that is 
expected to experience more traffic, serving as a reliever to State Highway 44. The purpose of the 
study is to identify a connection between Purple Sage Road and Beacon Light Road and make 
plans for corridor preservation. 

On June 28, 2008 the ACHD Commission approved the Purple Sage/Beacon Light Alignment Study 
which included a preferred alignment for the roadway and determined that Beacon Light Road 
would be extended as a 3-lane minor arterial roadway.  The study notes that right-of-way dedication 
and construction of the roadway will occur incrementally as development occurs. 

2. Beacon Light Road 
a. Existing Conditions:  Beacon Light Road is improved with 2-travel lanes, 24-feet of pavement 

and no curb, gutter or sidewalk abutting the site.  There is between 50 to 66-feet of right-of-way 
for Beacon Light Road (28-feet from centerline and 26.5-feet from section line). 

b. Policy: 
Arterial Roadway Policy:  District Policy 7205.2.1 states that the developer is responsible for 
improving all street frontages adjacent to the site regardless of whether or not access is taken 
to all of the adjacent streets. 

Roadway Frontage 
Functional 

Classification 
PM Peak Hour 
Traffic Count 

PM Peak Hour 
Level of Service 

**State Highway 69 0-feet Arterial 772 N/A 

Beacon Light Road 935-feet Minor Arterial 101 Better than “E” 

Pollard Lane 0-feet Collector 39 Better than “D” 



 4      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

Master Street Map and Typology Policy:  District Policy 7205.5 states that the design of 
improvements for arterials shall be in accordance with District standards, including the Master 
Street Map and Livable Streets Design Guide.  The developer or engineer should contact the 
District before starting any design.   

Street Section and Right-of Way Width Policy:  District Policy 7205.2.1 & 7205.5.2 states 
that the standard 3-lane street section shall be 46-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb) within 70 
feet of right-of-way.  This width typically accommodates a single travel lane in each direction, a 
continuous center left-turn lane, and bike lanes. 

Right-of-Way Dedication:  District Policy 7205.2 states that The District will provide 
compensation for additional right-of-way dedicated beyond the existing right-of-way along 
arterials listed as impact fee eligible in the adopted Capital Improvements Plan using available 
impact fee revenue in the Impact Fee Service Area. 

No compensation will be provided for right-of-way on an arterial that is not listed as impact fee 
eligible in the Capital Improvements Plan.  

The District may acquire additional right-of-way beyond the site-related needs to preserve a 
corridor for future capacity improvements, as provided in Section 7300. 

Sidewalk Policy: District Policy 7205.5.7 requires a concrete sidewalk at least 5-feet wide to 
be constructed on both sides of all arterial streets.  A parkway strip at least 6-feet wide between 
the back-of-curb and street edge of the sidewalk is required to provide increased safety and 
protection of pedestrians.  Consult the District’s planter width policy if trees are to be placed 
within the parkway strip.  Sidewalks constructed next to the back-of-curb shall be a minimum of 
7-feet wide. 

Detached sidewalks are encouraged and should be parallel to the adjacent roadway. 
Meandering sidewalks are discouraged.   

A permanent right-of-way easement shall be provided if public sidewalks are placed outside of 
the dedicated right-of-way.  The easement shall encompass the entire area between the right-
of-way line and 2-feet behind the back edge of the sidewalk.  Sidewalks shall either be located 
wholly within the public right-of-way or wholly within an easement. 

Frontage Improvements Policy: District Policy 7205.2.1 states that the developer shall widen 
the pavement to a minimum of 17-feet from centerline plus a 3-foot wide gravel shoulder 
adjacent to the entire site.  Curb, gutter and additional pavement widening may be required 
(See Section 7205.5.5). 

ACHD Master Street Map:  ACHD Policy Section 3111.1 requires the Master Street Map 
(MSM) guide the right-of-way acquisition, arterial street requirements, and specific roadway 
features required through development.  This segment of Beacon Light Road is designated in 
the MSM as a Residential Arterial with 3-lanes and on-street bike lanes, a 46-foot street section 
within 74-feet of right-of-way. 

c. Applicant Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to dedicate additional right-of-way to total 37-
feet from centerline of Beacon Light Road abutting the site.   

The applicant is proposing to construct a 5-foot wide detached concrete sidewalk on Beacon 
Light Road abutting the site located outside of the right-of-way in a sidewalk easement.   

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  Typically, right-of-way would be measured from 
centerline of the roadway; however, the right-of-way dedication and the construction of 
improvements should be from the section line of Beacon Light Road because the centerline and 
section line do not align on this segment of Beacon Light Road.   



 5      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

Therefore, the applicant should be required to dedicate additional right-of-way to total 37-feet 
from section line of Beacon Light Road abutting the site.  Right-of-way dedication is impact fee 
eligible for compensation as Beacon Light road is listed in the CIP. 

The applicant’s proposal to construct 5-foot wide detached concrete sidewalk within a sidewalk 
easement meets District policy and should be approved, as proposed.  The easement shall 
encompass the entire area between the right-of-way line and 2-feet behind the back edge of the 
sidewalk.  Sidewalks shall either be located wholly within the public right-of-way or wholly within 
an easement. 

The applicant should be required to improve Beacon Light Road with additional pavement 
widening to total 17-feet from centerline with 3-foot wide gravel shoulders abutting the site.  

3. Internal Streets 
a. Existing Conditions:   There are no streets within the site. 

b. Policy: 
Local Roadway Policy: District Policy 7207.2.1 states that the developer is responsible for 
improving all local street frontages adjacent to the site regardless of whether or not access is 
taken to all of the adjacent streets.   

Street Section and Right-of-Way Policy: District Policy 7207.5 states that right-of-way widths 
for all local streets shall generally not be less than 47-feet wide and that the standard street 
section shall be 33-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb). 

Standard Urban Local Street—33-foot Street Section and Right-of-way Policy:  District 
Policy 7207.5.2 states that the standard street section shall be 33-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-
curb) for developments with any buildable lot that is less than 1 acre in size.  This street section 
shall include curb, gutter, and minimum 5-foot wide concrete sidewalks on both sides and shall 
typically be constructed within 47-feet of right-of-way. 

For the City of Kuna and City of Star:  Unless otherwise approved by Kuna or Star, the standard 
street section shall be 36-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb) for developments with any 
buildable lot that is less than 1 acre in size.  This street section shall include curb, gutter, and 
minimum 5-foot wide concrete sidewalks on both sides and shall typically be constructed within 
50-feet of right-of-way. 

Continuation of Streets Policy:  District Policy 7207.2.4 states that an existing street, or a 
street in an approved preliminary plat, which ends at a boundary of a proposed development 
shall be extended in that development.  The extension shall include provisions for continuation 
of storm drainage facilities.  Benefits of connectivity include but are not limited to the following: 

• Reduces vehicle miles traveled. 

• Increases pedestrian and bicycle connectivity. 

• Increases access for emergency services. 

• Reduces need for additional access points to the arterial street system. 

• Promotes the efficient delivery of services including trash, mail and deliveries. 

• Promotes appropriate intra-neighborhood traffic circulation to schools, parks, 
neighborhood commercial centers, transit stops, etc. 

• Promotes orderly development. 

Sidewalk Policy:  District Policy 7207.5.7 states that five-foot wide concrete sidewalk is 
required on both sides of all local street, except those in rural developments with net densities 
of one dwelling unit per 1.0 acre or less, or in hillside conditions where there is no direct lot 



 6      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

frontage, in which case a sidewalk shall be constructed along one side of the street.  Some local 
jurisdictions may require wider sidewalks. 

The sidewalk may be placed next to the back-of-curb.  Where feasible, a parkway strip at least 
8-feet wide between the back-of-curb and the street edge of the sidewalk is recommended to 
provide increased safety and protection of pedestrians and to allow for the planting of trees in 
accordance with the District’s Tree Planting Policy.  If no trees are to be planted in the parkway 
strip, the applicant may submit a request to the District, with justification, to reduce the width of 
the parkway strip. 

Detached sidewalks are encouraged and should be parallel to the adjacent roadway. 
Meandering sidewalks are discouraged.   

A permanent right-of-way easement shall be provided if public sidewalks are placed outside of 
the dedicated right-of-way.  The easement shall encompass the entire area between the right-
of-way line and 2-feet behind the back edge of the sidewalk.  Sidewalks shall either be located 
wholly within the public right-of-way or wholly within an easement. 

Cul-de-sac Streets Policy:  District policy 7207.5.8 requires cul-de-sacs to be constructed to 
provide a minimum turning radius of 45-feet; in rural areas or for temporary cul-de-sacs the 
emergency service providers may require a greater radius.  Landscape and parking islands may 
be constructed in turnarounds if a minimum 29-foot street section is constructed around the 
island.  The pavement width shall be sufficient to allow the turning around of a standard 
AASHTO SU design vehicle without backing.  The developer shall provide written approval from 
the appropriate fire department for this design element. 

The District will consider alternatives to the standard cul-de-sac turnaround on a case-by-case 
basis.  This will be based on turning area, drainage, maintenance considerations and the written 
approval of the agency providing emergency fire service for the area where the development is 
located. 

c. Applicant’s Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to construct the internal streets as 36-foot 
street sections with curb, gutter, and 5-foot wide concrete sidewalk within 50-feet of right-of-
way.   

The applicant is proposing to terminate Sunbow Place, Sunset Hills Court, and Sun City Court 
in cul-de-sacs.  

The applicant is proposing to construct 1 knuckle at the Solar View/Sunset Hills intersection.  

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  The applicant’s proposal meets District policy and 
should be approved.  However, to promote connectivity and to reduce long term maintenance 
costs associated with cul-de-sac turnarounds, staff recommends the applicant connect Sunset 
Hills Court and Sun City Court to create a through street rather than terminating the two streets 
in cul-de-sacs.  

4. Roadway Offsets 
a. Existing Conditions:  There are no existing roadways within the site.   

b. Policy: 
Local Street Intersection Spacing on Minor Arterials:  District policy 7205.4.3 states that 
new local streets should not typically intersect arterials.  Local streets should typically intersect 
collectors.  If it is necessary, as determined by ACHD, for a local street to intersect an arterial, 
the minimum allowable offset shall be 660-feet as measured from all other existing roadways 
as identified in Table 1a (7205.4.6). 

Local Offset Policy:  District policy 7207.4.2, requires local roadways to align or provide a 
minimum offset of 125-feet from any other street (measured centerline to centerline). 



 7      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

c. Applicant’s Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to construct a new local street, Fire Flower 
Avenue, onto Beacon Light Road located approximately 1,750-feet east of Wing Road in 
alignment with Bristol Road, the entrance road of the Torchlight Estates Subdivision directly 
north of the site approved by ACHD in January 2019.  

The applicant is proposing to construct the internal streets with a minimum 125-foot offset from 
any other street.   

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  The applicant’s proposal to construct a new local street, 
Fire Flower Avenue, onto Beacon Light Road located approximately 1,750-feet east of Wing 
Road in alignment with Bristol Road, the entrance road of the Torchlight Estates Subdivision, 
meets District policy and should be approved, as proposed.  

5. Stub Streets 
a. Existing Conditions:  There are no stub streets to the site.  

b. Policy: 
Stub Street Policy:  District policy 7207.2.4.3 (local) states that stub streets will be required to 
provide circulation or to provide access to adjoining properties.  Stub streets will conform with 
the requirements described in Section 7207.2.4 (local), except a temporary cul-de-sac will not 
be required if the stub street has a length no greater than 150-feet.  A sign shall be installed at 
the terminus of the stub street stating that, "THIS ROAD WILL BE EXTENDED IN THE 
FUTURE.”  

In addition, stub streets must meet the following conditions: 

• A stub street shall be designed to slope towards the nearest street intersection within the 
proposed development and drain surface water towards that intersection, unless an 
alternative storm drain system is approved by the District. 

• The District may require appropriate covenants guaranteeing that the stub street will 
remain free of obstructions. 

Temporary Dead End Streets Policy:  District policy 7207.2.4.4 (local) requires that the design 
and construction for cul-de-sac streets shall apply to temporary dead end streets.  The 
temporary cul-de-sac shall be paved and shall be the dimensional requirements of a standard 
cul-de-sac.  The developer shall grant a temporary turnaround easement to the District for those 
portions of the cul-de-sac which extend beyond the dedicated street right-of-way.  In the 
instance where a temporary easement extends onto a buildable lot, the entire lot shall be 
encumbered by the easement and identified on the plat as a non-buildable lot until the street is 
extended. 

c. Applicant Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to construct one stub street to the west, 
Sunburst Street, located approximately 517-feet south of Beacon Light Road.  

The applicant is proposing to construct one stub street to the east, Sunburst Street, located 
approximately 590-feet south of Beacon Light Road.  

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  The applicant’s proposal meets District policy and 
should be approved, as proposed.   

The applicant should be required to construct a temporary cul-de-sac turnaround at the terminus 
of the stub street to the east, Sunburst Street, as it is greater than 150-feet in length. The 
applicant should be required to grant a temporary turnaround easement to the District for those 
portions of the cul-de-sac that extend beyond the dedicated street right-of-way.  In the instance 
where a temporary easement extends onto a buildable lot, the entire lot shall be encumbered 
by the easement and identified on the plat as a non-buildable lot until the street is extended. 



 8      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

The applicant should be required to construct and pave the temporary cul-de-sac with a 
minimum 45-foot turning radius.  

The applicant shall install signage at the terminus of the 2 stub streets stating that, "THIS ROAD 
WILL BE EXTENDED IN THE FUTURE.” 

6. Traffic Calming 
a. Speed Control and Traffic Calming Policy (Local):  District policy 7207.3.7 states that the 

design of local street systems should discourage excessive speeds by using passive design 
elements.  If the design or layout of a development is anticipated to necessitate future traffic 
calming implementation by the District, then the District will require changes to the layout and/or 
the addition of passive design elements such as horizontal curves, bulb-outs, chokers, etc.  The 
District will also consider texture changes to the roadway surface (i.e. stamped concrete) as a 
passive design element.  These alternative methods may require a maintenance and/or license 
agreement. 

b. Staff Comments/Recommendation:  There are two long sections of local roadways proposed 
within the Sunfield Estates Subdivision that are greater than 800-feet in length.  Prior to plan 
submittal redesign the roadways to reduce the length of the roadways or to include passive design 
elements.  The following roadways should be redesigned: 

• Sun City Avenue/Sun City Court 

• Sunset Hills Road/Sunset Hills Court 

Stop signs, speed humps/bumps and valley gutters will not be accepted as traffic calming 
measures.  

7. Tree Planters 
Tree Planter Policy:  Tree Planter Policy: The District’s Tree Planter Policy prohibits all trees in 
planters less than 8-feet in width without the installation of root barriers. Class II trees may be 
allowed in planters with a minimum width of 8-feet, and Class I and Class III trees may be allowed 
in planters with a minimum width of 10-feet. 

8. Landscaping 
Landscaping Policy: A license agreement is required for all landscaping proposed within ACHD 
right-of-way or easement areas.  Trees shall be located no closer than 10-feet from all public storm 
drain facilities.  Landscaping should be designed to eliminate site obstructions in the vision triangle 
at intersections.  District Policy 5104.3.1 requires a 40-foot vision triangle and a 3-foot height 
restriction on all landscaping located at an uncontrolled intersection and a 50-foot offset from stop 
signs.  Landscape plans are required with the submittal of civil plans and must meet all District 
requirements prior to signature of the final plat and/or approval of the civil plans. 

9. Other Access 
Beacon Light Road is classified as minor arterial roadway.  Other than the access specifically 
approved with this application, direct lot access is prohibited to these roadways and should be noted 
on the final plat. 

D. Site Specific Conditions of Approval 
1. Dedicate additional right-of-way to total 37-feet from section line of Beacon Light Road abutting 

the site.  Right-of-way dedication is impact fee eligible for compensation.  

2. Construct a 5-foot wide detached concrete sidewalk located a minimum of 30-feet from the 
section line of Beacon Light Road abutting the site.  If detached sidewalks are located outside of 
the right-of-way a permanent right-of-way easement shall be provided.  



 9      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

3. Improve Beacon Light Road with additional pavement widening to total 17-feet from centerline 
and 3-foot wide gravel shoulders abutting the site.  

4. Construct the internal streets as 36-foot street sections with curb, gutter, and 5-foot wide attached 
concrete sidewalk within 50-feet of right-of-way.   

5. Terminate Sunbow Place in cul-de-sacs with a minimum 45-foot turning radius. 

6. Construct and extend Sunset Hills Court and Sun City Court to connect create a through street. r 

7. construct 1 knuckle at the Solar View/Sunset Hills intersection, as proposed.  

8. Construct Fire Flower Avenue to intersect Beacon Light Road located 1,750-feet east of Wing 
Road in alignment with Bristol Road.  

9. Construct one stub street to the west, Sunburst Street, located 517-feet south of Beacon Light 
Road.    

10. Construct one stub street to the east, Sunburst Street, , located 590-feet south of Beacon Light 
Road to the site’s east property line.  

11. Construct and pave a temporary cul-de-sac turnaround with a minimum 45-foot turning radius at 
the terminus of the stub street to the east, Sunburst Street.  Provide a temporary turnaround 
easement to the District for those portions of the temporary cul-de-sac turnaround which extend 
beyond the dedicated right-of-way.  In the instance where a temporary easement extends onto a 
buildable lot, the entire lot shall be encumbered by the easement and identified on the plat as a 
non-buildable lot until the street is extended. 

12. Install signage at the terminus of the 2 stub streets stating that, "THIS ROAD WILL BE 
EXTENDED IN THE FUTURE.” 

13. Prior to plan submittal redesign the following roadways to reduce the length of the roadways or to 
include passive design elements: 

• Sun City Avenue/Sun City Court 

• Sunset Hills Road/Sunset Hills Court  

14. Stop signs, speed humps/bumps and valley gutters will not be accepted as traffic calming 
measures. 

15. Direct lot access to Beacon Light Road is prohibited and shall be noted on the final plat.  

16. Submit civil plans to ACHD Development Services for review and approval.  The impact fee 
assessment will not be released until the civil plans are approved by ACHD. 

17. Payment of impact fees is due prior to issuance of a building permit. 

18. Comply with all Standard Conditions of Approval. 

E.  Standard Conditions of Approval 
1. All proposed irrigation facilities shall be located outside of the ACHD right-of-way (including all 

easements).  Any existing irrigation facilities shall be relocated outside of the ACHD right-of-way 
(including all easements).  

2. Private Utilities including sewer or water systems are prohibited from being located within the ACHD 
right-of-way. 

3. In accordance with District policy, 7203.3, the applicant may be required to update any existing non-
compliant pedestrian improvements abutting the site to meet current Americans with Disabilities Act 



 10      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

(ADA) requirements.  The applicant’s engineer should provide documentation of ADA compliance 
to District Development Review staff for review.   

4. Replace any existing damaged curb, gutter and sidewalk and any that may be damaged during the 
construction of the proposed development.  Contact Construction Services at 387-6280 (with file 
number) for details. 

5. A license agreement and compliance with the District’s Tree Planter policy is required for all 
landscaping proposed within ACHD right-of-way or easement areas.   

6. All utility relocation costs associated with improving street frontages abutting the site shall be borne 
by the developer. 

7. It is the responsibility of the applicant to verify all existing utilities within the right-of-way.  The 
applicant at no cost to ACHD shall repair existing utilities damaged by the applicant.  The applicant 
shall be required to call DIGLINE (1-811-342-1585) at least two full business days prior to breaking 
ground within ACHD right-of-way.  The applicant shall contact ACHD Traffic Operations 387-6190 
in the event any ACHD conduits (spare or filled) are compromised during any phase of construction. 

8. Utility street cuts in pavement less than five years old are not allowed unless approved in writing by 
the District.  Contact the District’s Utility Coordinator at 387-6258 (with file numbers) for details. 

9. All design and construction shall be in accordance with the ACHD Policy Manual, ISPWC Standards 
and approved supplements, Construction Services procedures and all applicable ACHD Standards 
unless specifically waived herein.  An engineer registered in the State of Idaho shall prepare and 
certify all improvement plans. 

10. Construction, use and property development shall be in conformance with all applicable 
requirements of ACHD prior to District approval for occupancy. 

11. No change in the terms and conditions of this approval shall be valid unless they are in writing and 
signed by the applicant or the applicant’s authorized representative and an authorized 
representative of ACHD.  The burden shall be upon the applicant to obtain written confirmation of 
any change from ACHD. 

12. If the site plan or use should change in the future, ACHD Planning Review will review the site plan 
and may require additional improvements to the transportation system at that time. Any change in 
the planned use of the property which is the subject of this application, shall require the applicant 
to comply with ACHD Policy and Standard Conditions of Approval in place at that time unless a 
waiver/variance of the requirements or other legal relief is granted by the ACHD Commission.   

F. Conclusions of Law 
1. The proposed site plan is approved, if all of the Site Specific and Standard Conditions of Approval 

are satisfied. 

2. ACHD requirements are intended to assure that the proposed use/development will not place an 
undue burden on the existing vehicular transportation system within the vicinity impacted by the 
proposed development. 

G. Attachments 
1. Vicinity Map 
2. Site Plan 
3. Utility Coordinating Council 
4. Development Process Checklist 
5. Request for Reconsideration Guidelines 
 

 
  



 11      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 
 



 12      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

SITE PLAN 

 
 



 13      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

Ada County Utility Coordinating Council 
 
 

Developer/Local Improvement District 
Right of Way Improvements Guideline Request 

 
 

  Purpose:  To develop the necessary avenue for proper notification to utilities of local highway and 
road improvements, to help the utilities in budgeting and to clarify the already existing process. 
 
 

1) Notification: Within five (5) working days upon notification of required right of way improvements 
by Highway entities, developers shall provide written notification to the affected utility owners and 
the Ada County Utility Coordinating Council (UCC). Notification shall include but not be limited to, 
project limits, scope of roadway improvements/project, anticipated construction dates, and any 
portions critical to the right of way improvements and coordination of utilities. 

 
2) Plan Review: The developer shall provide the highway entities and all utility owners with 

preliminary project plans and schedule a plan review conference.  Depending on the scale of 
utility improvements, a plan review conference may not be necessary, as determined by the utility 
owners. Conference notification shall also be sent to the UCC. During the review meeting the 
developer shall notify utilities of the status of right of way/easement acquisition necessary for their 
project. At the plan review conference each company shall have the right to appeal, adjust and/or 
negotiate with the developer on its own behalf. Each utility shall provide the developer with a letter 
of review indicating the costs and time required for relocation of its facilities. Said letter of review 
is to be provided within thirty calendar days after the date of the plan review conference.  

 
3) Revisions: The developer is responsible to provide utilities with any revisions to preliminary 

plans. Utilities may request an updated plan review meeting if revisions are made in the 
preliminary plans which affect the utility relocation requirements. Utilities shall have thirty days 
after receiving the revisions to review and comment thereon. 

 
4) Final Notification: The developer will provide highway entities, utility owners and the UCC with 

final notification of its intent to proceed with right of way improvements and include the anticipated 
date work will commence. This notification shall indicate that the work to be performed shall be 
pursuant to final approved plans by the highway entity. The developer shall schedule a 
preconstruction meeting prior to right of way improvements. Utility relocation activity shall be 
completed within the times established during the preconstruction meeting, unless otherwise 
agreed upon. 

 
Notification to the Ada County UCC can be sent to: 50 S. Cole Rd. Boise 83707, or Visit iducc.com 
for e-mail notification information.  

 
 

 



 14      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

Development Process Checklist 
 
Items Completed to Date: 
 

Submit a development application to a City or to Ada County 
 

The City or the County will transmit the development application to ACHD 
 

The ACHD Planning Review Section will receive the development application to review 
 

The Planning Review Section will do one of the following: 
 

Send a “No Review” letter to the applicant stating that there are no site specific conditions of approval at 
this time. 

 

Write a Staff Level report analyzing the impacts of the development on the transportation system and 
evaluating the proposal for its conformance to District Policy. 

 

Write a Commission Level report analyzing the impacts of the development on the transportation system 
and evaluating the proposal for its conformance to District Policy. 

 

Items to be completed by Applicant: 
 

For ALL development applications, including those receiving a “No Review” letter: 

• The applicant should submit one set of engineered plans directly to ACHD for review by the Development 
Review Section for plan review and assessment of impact fees.  (Note:  if there are no site improvements 
required by ACHD, then architectural plans may be submitted for purposes of impact fee assessment.) 

• The applicant is required to get a permit from Construction Services (ACHD) for ANY work in the right-of-way, 
including, but not limited to, driveway approaches, street improvements and utility cuts.  

 

Pay Impact Fees prior to issuance of building permit.  Impact fees cannot be paid prior to plan review approval. 
 

DID YOU REMEMBER: 
Construction (Non-Subdivisions) 

 Driveway or Property Approach(s) 

• Submit a “Driveway Approach Request” form to ACHD Construction (for approval by Development Services & Traffic 
Services).  There is a one week turnaround for this approval. 

 

 Working in the ACHD Right-of-Way  

• Four business days prior to starting work have a bonded contractor submit a “Temporary Highway Use Permit 
Application” to ACHD Construction – Permits along with: 

a) Traffic Control Plan 
b) An Erosion & Sediment Control Narrative & Plat, done by a Certified Plan Designer, if trench is >50’ or you 

are placing >600 sf of concrete or asphalt. 
 

Construction (Subdivisions) 
 Sediment & Erosion Submittal 

• At least one week prior to setting up a Pre-Construction Meeting an Erosion & Sediment Control Narrative & Plan, done 
by a Certified Plan Designer, must be turned into ACHD Construction to be reviewed and approved by the ACHD 
Stormwater Section.  

  
 Idaho Power Company 

• Vic Steelman at Idaho Power must have his IPCO approved set of subdivision utility plans prior to Pre-Con being 
scheduled. 

 

 Final Approval from Development Services is required prior to scheduling a Pre-Con. 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 15      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

Request for Appeal of Staff Decision 
 
1. Appeal of Staff Decision:  The Commission shall hear and decide appeals by an applicant of 

the final decision made by the Development Services Manager when it is alleged that the 
Development Services Manager did not properly apply this section 7101.6, did not consider all of 
the relevant facts presented, made an error of fact or law, abused discretion or acted arbitrarily 
and capriciously in the interpretation or enforcement of the ACHD Policy Manual. 

 
a. Filing Fee:  The Commission may, from time to time, set reasonable fees to be charged 

the applicant for the processing of appeals, to cover administrative costs. 
 

b. Initiation:  An appeal is initiated by the filing of a written notice of appeal with the Secretary 
and Clerk of the District, which must be filed within ten (10) working days from the date of 
the decision that is the subject of the appeal.  The notice of appeal shall refer to the 
decision being appealed, identify the appellant by name, address and telephone number 
and state the grounds for the appeal. The grounds shall include a written summary of the 
provisions of the policy relevant to the appeal and/or the facts and law relied upon and 
shall include a written argument in support of the appeal.  The Commission shall not 
consider a notice of appeal that does not comply with the provisions of this subsection.  
 

c. Time to Reply:  The Development Services Manager shall have ten (10) working days 
from the date of the filing of the notice of appeal to reply to the notice of the appeal, and 
may during such time meet with the appellant to discuss the matter, and may also consider 
and/or modify the decision that is being appealed. A copy of the reply and any 
modifications to the decision being appealed will be provided to the appellant prior to the 
Commission hearing on the appeal.   
 

d. Notice of Hearing:  Unless otherwise agreed to by the appellant, the hearing of the appeal 
will be noticed and scheduled on the Commission agenda at a regular meeting to be held 
within thirty (30) days following the delivery to the appellant of the Development Services 
Manager’s reply to the notice of appeal. A copy of the decision being appealed, the notice 
of appeal and the reply shall be delivered to the Commission at least one (1) week prior 
to the hearing. 
 

e. Action by Commission:  Following the hearing, the Commission shall either affirm or 
reverse, in whole or part, or otherwise modify, amend or supplement the decision being 
appealed, as such action is adequately supported by the law and evidence presented at 
the hearing. 



 16      DRAFT Sunfield Estates/ SPP20-0010/  
AZ-20-14/ PP-05-20/ DA-20-17 

Request for Reconsideration of Commission Action 
 
1. Request for Reconsideration of Commission Action:  A Commissioner, a member of ACHD 

staff or any other person objecting to any final action taken by the Commission may request 
reconsideration of that action, provided the request is not for a reconsideration of an action 
previously requested to be reconsidered, an action whose provisions have been partly and 
materially carried out, or an action that has created a contractual relationship with third parties. 

 
a. Only a Commission member who voted with the prevailing side can move for 

reconsideration, but the motion may be seconded by any Commissioner and is voted on 
by all Commissioners present.   

 
If a motion to reconsider is made and seconded it is subject to a motion to postpone to a 
certain time.  
 

b. The request must be in writing and delivered to the Secretary of the Highway District no 
later than 11:00 a.m. 2 days prior to the Commission’s next scheduled regular meeting 
following the meeting at which the action to be reconsidered was taken.  Upon receipt of 
the request, the Secretary shall cause the same to be placed on the agenda for that next 
scheduled regular Commission meeting.   

 
c. The request for reconsideration must be supported by written documentation setting forth 

new facts and information not presented at the earlier meeting, or a changed situation that 
has developed since the taking of the earlier vote, or information establishing an error of 
fact or law in the earlier action.  The request may also be supported by oral testimony at 
the meeting.  

 
d. If a motion to reconsider passes, the effect is the original matter is in the exact position it 

occupied the moment before it was voted on originally.  It will normally be returned to 
ACHD staff for further review.  The Commission may set the date of the meeting at which 
the matter is to be returned.  The Commission shall only take action on the original matter 
at a meeting where the agenda notice so provides.  

 
e. At the meeting where the original matter is again on the agenda for Commission action, 

interested persons and ACHD staff may present such written and oral testimony as the 
President of the Commission determines to be appropriate, and the Commission may take 
any action the majority of the Commission deems advisable. 

 
f. If a motion to reconsider passes, the applicant may be charged a reasonable fee, to cover 

administrative costs, as established by the Commission. 
 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
1445 North Orchard Street • Boise, ID 83706 • (208) 373-0550  Brad Little, Governor 
www.deq.idaho.gov Jess Byrne, Director 

STATE OF IDAHO 

DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

 

September 25, 2020 

 

 

By e-mail: snickel@staridaho.org   

 

Shawn L. Nickel, City Planner and Zoning Administrator 

City of Star 

P.O. Box 130 

Star, Idaho 83669 

 

Subject: Sunfield Estates Subdivision, AZ-20-14, DA-20-17 

 

Dear Mr. Nickel:  

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to your request for comment.  While DEQ does not review 

projects on a project-specific basis, we attempt to provide the best review of the information provided.  

DEQ encourages agencies to review and utilize the Idaho Environmental Guide to assist in addressing 

project-specific conditions that may apply.  This guide can be found at: deq.idaho.gov/assistance-

resources/environmental-guide-for-local-govts.  

 

The following information does not cover every aspect of this project; however, we have the following 

general comments to use as appropriate: 

 

1. AIR QUALITY 

 Please review IDAPA 58.01.01 for all rules on Air Quality, especially those regarding fugitive 

dust (58.01.01.651), trade waste burning (58.01.01.600-617), and odor control plans 

(58.01.01.776). 

For questions, contact David Luft, Air Quality Manager, at (208) 373-0550.  

 IDAPA 58.01.01.201 requires an owner or operator of a facility to obtain an air quality permit 

to construct prior to the commencement of construction or modification of any facility that will 

be a source of air pollution in quantities above established levels.  DEQ asks that cities and 

counties require a proposed facility to contact DEQ for an applicability determination on their 

proposal to ensure they remain in compliance with the rules. 

For questions, contact the DEQ Air Quality Permitting Hotline at 1-877-573-7648. 

2. WASTEWATER AND RECYCLED WATER 

mailto:snickel@staridaho.org
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/assistance-resources/environmental-guide-for-local-govts
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/assistance-resources/environmental-guide-for-local-govts


Response to Request for Comment  

September 25, 2020 

Page 2 
 

 DEQ recommends verifying that there is adequate sewer to serve this project prior to approval.  

Please contact the sewer provider for a capacity statement, declining balance report, and 

willingness to serve this project.   

 IDAPA 58.01.16 and IDAPA 58.01.17 are the sections of Idaho rules regarding wastewater and 

recycled water.  Please review these rules to determine whether this or future projects will 

require DEQ approval.  IDAPA 58.01.03 is the section of Idaho rules regarding subsurface 

disposal of wastewater.  Please review this rule to determine whether this or future projects will 

require permitting by the district health department.  

 All projects for construction or modification of wastewater systems require preconstruction 

approval.  Recycled water projects and subsurface disposal projects require separate permits as 

well. 

 DEQ recommends that projects be served by existing approved wastewater collection systems 

or a centralized community wastewater system whenever possible.  Please contact DEQ to 

discuss potential for development of a community treatment system along with best 

management practices for communities to protect ground water. 

 DEQ recommends that cities and counties develop and use a comprehensive land use 

management plan, which includes the impacts of present and future wastewater management in 

this area.  Please schedule a meeting with DEQ for further discussion and recommendations for 

plan development and implementation.   

For questions, contact Valerie Greear, Water Quality Engineering Manager at (208) 373-0550. 

3. WASTEWATER AND RECYCLED WATER 

 DEQ recommends verifying that there is adequate water to serve this project prior to approval.  

Please contact the water provider for a capacity statement, declining balance report, and 

willingness to serve this project. 

 IDAPA 58.01.08 is the section of Idaho rules regarding public drinking water systems.  Please 

review these rules to determine whether this or future projects will require DEQ approval. 

 All projects for construction or modification of public drinking water systems require 

preconstruction approval.   

 DEQ recommends verifying if the current and/or proposed drinking water system is a regulated 

public drinking water system (refer to the DEQ website at: deq.idaho.gov/water-

quality/drinking-water.aspx).  For non-regulated systems, DEQ recommends annual testing for 

total coliform bacteria, nitrate, and nitrite. 

 If any private wells will be included in this project, we recommend that they be tested for total 

coliform bacteria, nitrate, and nitrite prior to use and retested annually thereafter. 

 DEQ recommends using an existing drinking water system whenever possible or construction of 

a new community drinking water system.  Please contact DEQ to discuss this project and to 

explore options to both best serve the future residents of this development and provide for 

protection of ground water resources.  

 DEQ recommends cities and counties develop and use a comprehensive land use management 

plan which addresses the present and future needs of this area for adequate, safe, and sustainable 

http://www.deq.idaho.gov/water-quality/drinking-water.aspx
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/water-quality/drinking-water.aspx


Response to Request for Comment  

September 25, 2020 

Page 3 
 

drinking water.  Please schedule a meeting with DEQ for further discussion and 

recommendations for plan development and implementation.   

For questions, contact Valerie Greear, Water Quality Engineering Manager at (208) 373-0550. 

4. SURFACE WATER 

 A DEQ short-term activity exemption (STAE) from this office is required if the project will 

involve de-watering of ground water during excavation and discharge back into surface water, 

including a description of the water treatment from this process to prevent excessive sediment 

and turbidity from entering surface water.   

 Please contact DEQ to determine whether this project will require a National Pollution 

Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit. A Construction General Permit from EPA may 

be required if this project will disturb one or more acres of land, or will disturb less than one 

acre of land but are part of a common plan of development or sale that will ultimately disturb 

one or more acres of land.   

 If this project is near a source of surface water, DEQ requests that projects incorporate 

construction best management practices (BMPs) to assist in the protection of Idaho’s water 

resources.  Additionally, please contact DEQ to identify BMP alternatives and to determine 

whether this project is in an area with Total Maximum Daily Load stormwater permit 

conditions. 

 The Idaho Stream Channel Protection Act requires a permit for most stream channel alterations.  

Please contact the Idaho Department of Water Resources (IDWR), Western Regional Office, at 

2735 Airport Way, Boise, or call (208) 334-2190 for more information.  Information is also 

available on the IDWR website at: https://idwr.idaho.gov/streams/stream-channel-alteration-

permits.html  

 The Federal Clean Water Act requires a permit for filling or dredging in waters of the United 

States.  Please contact the US Army Corps of Engineers, Boise Field Office, at 10095 Emerald 

Street, Boise, or call 208-345-2155 for more information regarding permits.   

For questions, contact Lance Holloway, Surface Water Manager, at (208) 373-0550. 

5. HAZARDOUS WASTE AND GROUND WATER CONTAMINATION 

 Hazardous Waste.  The types and number of requirements that must be complied with under the 

federal Resource Conservations and Recovery Act (RCRA) and the Idaho Rules and Standards 

for Hazardous Waste (IDAPA 58.01.05) are based on the quantity and type of waste generated.  

Every business in Idaho is required to track the volume of waste generated, determine whether 

each type of waste is hazardous, and ensure that all wastes are properly disposed of according to 

federal, state, and local requirements. 

 No trash or other solid waste shall be buried, burned, or otherwise disposed of at the project site.  

These disposal methods are regulated by various state regulations including Idaho’s Solid Waste 

Management Regulations and Standards, Rules and Regulations for Hazardous Waste, and Rules 

and Regulations for the Prevention of Air Pollution. 

https://idwr.idaho.gov/streams/stream-channel-alteration-permits.html
https://idwr.idaho.gov/streams/stream-channel-alteration-permits.html


Response to Request for Comment  

September 25, 2020 

Page 4 
 

 Water Quality Standards.  Site activities must comply with the Idaho Water Quality Standards 

(IDAPA 58.01.02) regarding hazardous and deleterious-materials storage, disposal, or 

accumulation adjacent to or in the immediate vicinity of state waters (IDAPA 58.01.02.800); and 

the cleanup and reporting of oil-filled electrical equipment (IDAPA 58.01.02.849); hazardous 

materials (IDAPA 58.01.02.850); and used-oil and petroleum releases (IDAPA 58.01.02.851 and 

852).  

 Petroleum releases must be reported to DEQ in accordance with IDAPA 58.01.02.851.01 and 04.  

Hazardous material releases to state waters, or to land such that there is likelihood that it will 

enter state waters, must be reported to DEQ in accordance with IDAPA 58.01.02.850. 

 Ground Water Contamination.  DEQ requests that this project comply with Idaho’s Ground 

Water Quality Rules (IDAPA 58.01.11), which states that “No person shall cause or allow the 

release, spilling, leaking, emission, discharge, escape, leaching, or disposal of a contaminant into 

the environment in a manner that causes a ground water quality standard to be exceeded, injures a 

beneficial use of ground water, or is not in accordance with a permit, consent order or applicable 

best management practice, best available method or best practical method.”   

For questions, contact Albert Crawshaw, Waste & Remediation Manager, at (208) 373-0550. 

6. ADDITIONAL NOTES 

 If an underground storage tank (UST) or an aboveground storage tank (AST) is identified at the 

site, the site should be evaluated to determine whether the UST is regulated by DEQ.  EPA 

regulates ASTs.  UST and AST sites should be assessed to determine whether there is potential 

soil and ground water contamination.  Please call DEQ at (208) 373-0550, or visit the DEQ 

website deq.idaho.gov/waste-mgmt-remediation/storage-tanks.aspx for assistance. 

 If applicable to this project, DEQ recommends that BMPs be implemented for any of the 

following conditions:  wash water from cleaning vehicles, fertilizers and pesticides, animal 

facilities, composted waste, and ponds.  Please contact DEQ for more information on any of these 

conditions. 

We look forward to working with you in a proactive manner to address potential environmental impacts 

that may be within our regulatory authority.  If you have any questions, please contact me, or any of our 

technical staff at (208) 373-0550. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

 

Aaron Scheff 

Regional Administrator 

DEQ-Boise Regional Office  

 

ec: EDMS#2020AEK229 

http://www.deq.idaho.gov/waste-mgmt-remediation/storage-tanks.aspx






 

 

 

 

 

Star Mayor and City Council 
PO Box 130  
Star, ID 83669 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members,  

We have several concerns with the proposed Sunfield Estates subdivision plan.   

Lot size 
The Sunfield property abuts three established acreages in the Star Acres Special Transition 
Overlay Area – lot 6, lot 7, and lot 8. The Sunfield Estates lots that abut Star Acres should 
comply with the comprehensive plan and be at least one acre in size with transition to smaller 
lots further into the subdivision. 

Stub road 
The stub road entering Will Eason’s (lot 7) property must be eliminated. This property has 
already been subdivided and future development is not likely. 
 
Storm drainage 
Storm drainage must not be directed into the irrigation ditch to the east and south of the 
subdivision. 
 
Open space 

Place the open space in a more central location for safety and to address light pollution. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

Lonn and Ann Kuck 
10399 W Rolling Hills Dr 
Star, ID 83669 

 



October 12, 2020 
 
Star Mayor and City Council 
c/o Shawn Nickel 
Star City Hall 
P.O. Box 130 
Star, ID  83669  
 
Re:  Sunfield Estates Subdivision 
 
Dear Mayor and City Council, 
 
We live at 9999 W Star Acres Drive, Star, within the Star Acres Subdivision, abutting the 
southern edge of Sunfield Estates.  The Star Acres Subdivision was developed in 1973, nearly 
half a century ago, as a collection of 30 five acre lots that include mostly single story homes.  
This subdivision is a special area and one that needs to be preserved.  As you know, in the most 
recent update of the Comprehensive Plan, the Star Acres Subdivision was zoned Rural 
Residential and is designated as a Special Transition Overlay Area. 
 
LOT SIZE TRANSITIONS 
In the most recent map we have of Sunfield Estates, see attached, the proposed lots abutting 
Star Acres, are half acre lots and the byproduct of the developer merging several shallow lots to 
generate the half acre lots.  These abutting lot sizes are inconsistent with the intent of the 
Comprehensive Plan and what was requested at the recent Canvasback Subdivision meeting 
held on October 6, 2020 for lots on the western boundary of the Star Acres Subdivision.   
 
Recommendation:   
All lots bordering Star Acres should be one acre lots, single story, with transitioning lot sizes as 
you move away from the Star Acres Subdivision and the Special Transition Overlay Area.  This 
will provide not only a physical transition but a transition in property values as well. 
 
STORM DRAINAGE 
In the attached map, recognizing it might be too small to read, there is a Note that reads:   
 
“All common lots and storm drainage facilities shall be owned and maintained by the Home 
Owner’s Association.” 
 
We are concerned about storm drainage from the proposed subdivision flowing into the swale 
southeast of the Sunfield Estates subdivision.  The subdivision will be adding a significant 
amount of impervious surfaces (roofs, driveways, sidewalks, streets, etc) that could increase 
the amount of runoff going towards the swale.   
 



Recommendation: 
Ensure the subdivision storm drainage system is designed to prevent storm drainage from 
entering the swale and strengthen the development agreement to ensure the HOA understands 
drainage water needs to remain within the subdivision.  Please provide us with a tool we can use 
with the HOA if drainage water starts flowing onto our property in the future. 
 
OPEN SPACE 
The Sunfield Estates layout is taking advantage of the swale, mentioned above, as open space.  
The banks of the swale are steep (see contours) and it appears a walking path has been added 
directly behind proposed homes and along the swale bank.  We are concerned about the safety 
of people using the trail system considering it will be running along the backs of homes.  We are 
also worried about the lights that will be necessary along the trail – this will create a lot of light 
pollution in an area that is very dark and peaceful.  Also, when you look at the layout of the 
open space, it seems to be as far as possible from the majority of homes. 
 
Recommendation: 
Place the open space in a more central location.  If this reconfiguration necessitates placing a 
lot along my northern property line, please ensure it is at least one acre minimum.  If the open 
space remains, please ensure the lighting is designed in a way the light is directed away from 
my property. 
 
STUB ROAD 
ACHD has requested the developer place a stub road with the sign “THIS ROADWAY TO BE 
EXTENDED IN THE FUTURE” heading west into the Star Acres Subdivision.  While we understand 
the need to ensure circulation when developments are adjacent to land that is developable but 
in our opinion, the Star Acres Subdivision has already been developed – 47 years ago.  Our 
subdivision has very strong CC&Rs that prohibit any more than one dwelling unit per platted lot 
and the City has zoned us Rural Residential which requires 2 acre minimum lots.  The value of 
our property is that it offers something other properties don’t……..space for animals, shops, 
barns, orchards, fields, natural areas, etc.  A stub road directed at one’s property creates both a 
physical and emotional sense of impermanence and reduces property values for anyone who 
seeks a rural setting and all it brings.   
 
After reviewing ACHD’s Policy Manual, Section 7207.2.4, we believe there are grounds to 
eliminate the stub road.  ACHD’s policy identifies the steps for reviewing the merits of a stub 
road based on property size and configuration, potential for redevelopment, 
vehicular/pedestrian attractions, Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Designations, needs of 
emergency providers, arterial road access reductions, intra neighborhood circulation, and 
orderly development.  The only one that potentially resonated is emergency access.  Sunfield 
Estates will have two access points without using a stub road into Star Acres.  If Star Acres ever 
redeveloped, albeit unlikely, there would be less than 30 homes using Star Acres Drive and New 
Hope (east of Wing Rd) which according to the City of Star’s requirements, based on the 2015 



IFC, Appendix D and Section 503, a second access is only needed when there are 30 or more 
single family homes.   
 
Recommendation: 
We have sent a letter to ACHD with the points above but ask the City of Star to help to the 
extent possible, to eliminate the stub road heading west into the Star Acres Subdivision.  At a 
minimum, table the approval of this subdivision to allow time for residents to go before the 
ACHD Commission to raise our concerns. 
 
Thank you so much for the opportunity to provide comments on this development. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Steve and Charlene Greene 
9999 W Star Acres Dr. 
Star, ID  83669 
208‐999‐2815 
Sg.pointers@gmail.com 
 
 





October 11, 2020 
 
Star City Council 
PO Box 130 
Star, Idaho 83669 
 
 
City Council Members, 
 
We would like make public comment on the proposed Sunfield Subdivision south of Beacon Light Road 
and east of Star Acres Subdivision.  The developer is requesting a zoning change to R3 with 70 lots 
developed on 25 acres.  The proposed subdivision is bordered on the west and south by 5 lots of Star 
Acres Subdivision, and on the east by 2 lots of the Redtail Ranch.  The adjacent lots are 5 to 8 acres.  Star 
Acres Subdivision is 30 lots developed on 200 acres of land.  The density of the proposed Sunfield 
Subdivision would be 18 times greater than the surrounding properties. 
 
Star Acres is a Special Transition Overlay Area, and the comprehensive plans calls for larger adjacent 
lots, transitions, buffers, and larger setbacks for abutting developments.  The plan for Sunfield does not 
provide any of these requirements.  The abutting lots are small, they are very shallow (120’), and they 
have setback from the rear property line of 15’.  There is no transition or buffer in the plan.  In addition, 
a stub road is designed into our property, which is highly inappropriate since our property can’t be 
further developed in the future.  The stub road would certainly provide no buffer or transition and result 
in a road being paved to our property line in our back yard. 
 
We would like to see the property rezoned to no higher density than R1, which would still be 6 times 
greater density than any of the surrounding properties.  Lots abutting the adjacent properties should be 
a minimum of one acre in size and have depth enough to provide a 75’ setback from the rear lot line to 
provide a transition and buffer from the exsting properties.  The houses built on the abutting lots should 
be single story.  The stub road to our property should be eliminated. 
 
The proposed Sunfield Subdivision is totally out of place for the surrounding neighborhood.  It would be 
an island of high density housing surrounded by low density housing.  It would be an urban housing 
project surrounded by rural agricultural properties.  It would be a cluster of lower valued properties 
surrounded by higher valued properties.  It would result in the “checkerboard” development of 
inconsistent properties that the Comprehensive Plan was designed to avoid. 
 
We urge the council the reject this development and require the owners to redesign a subdivision that is 
compatible with the surrounding properties.  The lots need to be larger, and be consistent with the 
agricultural uses of the adjacent properties.  Larger lots could also provide for on-site sewer systems and 
eliminate the need for a sewer lift station for the project. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Will and Denise Eason 
10174 W. Star Acres Dr. 
(907) 575-1138 
wildman@gci.net   

mailto:wildman@gci.net


October 11, 2020 

 

Star City Council 

C/o Shawn Nichols 

Star City Hall 

P.O. Box 130 

Star, Idaho 83669 

 

Re:  Sunfield Estates Subdivision  

 

Star City Council, 

 

The Sunfield Estates Subdivision is currently proposed East of Star Acres Subdivision, South of Beacon 

Light Rd. Star Acres Subdivision is zoned Rural Residential and carries the designation as a “Special 

Transition Overlay Area”. The land Sunfield Estates Subdivision is on is zoned Neighborhood Residential  

(3-5 du/acre). We are asking the City Council to review the Sunfield Estates Subdivision with the 

following considerations: 

 

My Wife and I live at 10040 W. Star Acres Drive, Lots 3 & 4 Block 3 of Sunfield Estates are 

adjacent to our property. We have lived in our home for 16 years. While we do have 5 acres, our 

single level home is located on the East portion of our property. We now have an excellent view 

and privacy. Sunfield Estates as proposed will greatly impact this. In addition, the value of our 

property will be greatly impacted if Sunfield Estates proceeds as proposed. The proposed 

Sunfield Estates Subdivision lots that are directly adjacent have lot sizes of approx .5 acres. Lots 

6 & 7 Block 1 and Lots 1 - 4 Block 3 are all adjacent to Star Acres Subdivision. We believe the 

intent of the Comprehensive Plan and the inclusion of a Special Transition Overlay Area was to 

provide a meaningful transition between large lots and smaller lots – going from 5 acres to .5 

acres misses the intent.  

 

Recommendation:  We recommend that Lots 6 & 7 Block 1 and Lots 1-4 Block 3 be a minimum 

of 1 acre lots with new home locations given consideration for existing Star Acres Homes. This 

should meet the intent of the Comprehensive Plan’s language regarding lot size transition which 

provides not only a physical transition but a lot value transition as well and provides a continued 

level of privacy. In regards to maintaining a view, we ask that all homes in the subdivision are 

limited to single level with a height limit on RV bays. 

 

Sincerely, 

Terry Bier and Carolee Polfer 

10040 W. Star Acres Dr. 

Star, ID 83669 

208-797-4489  

terryextcon@gmail.com 





October 12, 2020 
 
Dear Star City Council, 
 
We would like to provide our input on the proposed Sunfield subdivision on Beacon Light Road.  The 
subdivision is totally out of character with the neighborhood.  All of the surrounding properties are 
ranches and farms with livestock and crops.  An urban subdivision with high density housing is totally 
out of place in this neighborhood. 
 
We want neighbors who are like us and have animals and gardens, and want to live in a rural setting.  
Sunfield subdivision is not at all compatible with the bordering properties.  In addition, Beacon Light and 
connecting roads re not equipped for the volume of vehicles from already approved subdivisions as well 
as proposed subdivisions such as Sunield.  This development should be rejected.  A development of large 
lots with pastures and open spaces is what is needed to keep our neighborhood intact as a rural and 
agricultural area of Star. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Evelyn Hartley 
Bev Bradford 
10175 W. New Hope Rd. 
Star Acres Subdivision 







  
A 

 

GREYLOCH CUSTOM CABINETRY/MINK CREEK SUB – FILE # RZ-
20-09/DA-20-20/PP-19-02 MOD/CUP-20-04 

1 

 

  

             CITY OF STAR 
 

                   LAND USE STAFF REPORT 
 

 
TO:   Mayor & Council 

FROM:   Shawn L. Nickel, City Planner  

MEETING DATE: November 17, 2020 – PUBLIC HEARING 

FILE(S) #: RZ-20-09-Rezone 

DA-20-20 Development Agreement 

PP-19-02 MOD Preliminary Plat Modification for Mink Creek 

Subdivision 

CUP-20-04 Greyloch Custom Cabinetry  

 

OWNER/APPLICANT/REPRESENTATIVE 

  

Property Owner:      

Joseph A. Moyle 

208 N. Plummer Road 

Star, ID 83669 

 

Applicant:     Applicant: 

Shaun Fickes     Mike Moyle 

Greyloch Custom Cabinetry   480 N. Plummer Road 

1950 W. Franklin Road   Star, ID 83669 

Meridian, ID 83642   

             

REQUEST 

  

Request:  The Applicants are seeking approval of a Rezone (L-I), a Development Agreement, a 

Conditional Use Permit for a Light Industrial Use and a Preliminary Plat modification to the 

existing Mink Creek Subdivision Preliminary Plat for a proposed residential subdivision 

consisting of 12 total lots including 9 residential lots, 3 commercial lots and 1 common lot. The 

property is located at 8706 W. State Street in Star, Idaho. 

 

 

 

 



  
A 

 

GREYLOCH CUSTOM CABINETRY/MINK CREEK SUB – FILE # RZ-
20-09/DA-20-20/PP-19-02 MOD/CUP-20-04 

2 

 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

 

Property Location:   The subject property is generally located on the north side of W. State 

Street, west of Hwy 16 in Star, Idaho.  Ada County Parcel No’s. S0409438405, S0409438605 & 

S0409438805. 

Existing Site Characteristics:  The property being rezoned is vacant ground. Portions of the 

property with the preliminary plat is developing with a gravel extraction for pond amenity 

construction for the residential portion of the plat. The remaining commercial portion of the plat 

is vacant. 

 

Irrigation/Drainage District(s):  - Middleton Irrigation Association/Middleton Mill Ditch Co. 

 

Flood Zone:  The development is located outside a special flood hazard zone and in Zone X. 

 

Special On-Site Features: 

➢ Areas of Critical Environmental Concern – No known areas. 

➢ Evidence of Erosion – No evidence. 

➢ Fish Habitat – No known areas. 

➢ Mature Trees – Mature trees are located in the southern area of site. 

➢ Riparian Vegetation – No known areas. 

➢ Steep Slopes – None evident. 

➢ Stream/Creek – The open water is limited to the irrigation ditch. 

➢ Unique Animal Life – No critical habitat for unique, threatened, or endangered wildlife 

evident. 

➢ Unique Plant Life – The property does not provide critical habitat for unique, threatened, 

or endangered plant life. 

➢ Unstable Soils – No known issues. 

➢ Wildlife Habitat – No wildlife other than local birds have been observed. 

➢ Historical Assets – No historical assets have been observed.   

 

APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 

 

 Pre-Application Meeting Held  October 2, 2020  

 Neighborhood Meeting Held    October 13, 2020   

 Application Submitted & Fees Paid  October 14, 2020 

 Application Accepted    October 14, 2020   

 Residents within 300’ Notified  October 15, 2020 

 Agencies Notified    October 15, 2020 

 Legal Notice Published   November 4, 2020 

 Property Posted     November 4, 2020 

 

  



  
A 

 

GREYLOCH CUSTOM CABINETRY/MINK CREEK SUB – FILE # RZ-
20-09/DA-20-20/PP-19-02 MOD/CUP-20-04 

3 

 

HISTORY   

               

This entire property was approved as Mink Creek Subdivision on April 2, 2019. 

 

SURROUNDING ZONING/COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP/LAND USE DESIGNATIONS 

 

 Zoning Designation Comp Plan Designation Land Use 

Existing Mixed Use (M-U) Industrial Residential/Commercial 

Proposed Light Industrial (L-I) No Change Industrial (rezone only) 

North of site Agricultural (RUT) Mixed Use SFD/Agricultural 

South of site Commercial (C-1) Commercial Vacant 

East of site Industrial ITD ROW Vacant 

West of site RUT/Commercial C-2 Commercial Idaho Power 

Substation/Mini Storage 

 

ZONING ORDINANCE STANDARDS / COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE: 

 

8-3A-1: ZONING DISTRICTS AND PURPOSE ESTABLISHED:  

 

LI LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT: To provide for manufacturing, warehousing, mini‐storage and 

open storage, multi‐tenant industrial park, contractors yards, and similar uses. Limited office and 

commercial uses may be permitted as ancillary uses. All development within this land use shall 

be free of hazardous or objectionable elements such as excessive noise, odor, dust, smoke, or 

glare. 

DA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT: This designation, following any zoning designation noted on 

the official zoning map of the city (i.e., C-2-DA), indicates that the zoning was approved by the 

city with a development agreement, with specific conditions of zoning. 

8-3D-1: ADDITIONAL LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT STANDARDS - LI LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 

DISTRICT: 

A. Comply with Section 8-3A-1: ZONING DISTRICTS AND PURPOSE ESTABLISHED B.

 Specific Standards for Light Industry: 

1. All mechanical equipment emissions; shipping and/or delivery; or other outdoor activity areas 

shall be located a minimum of three hundred feet (300') from any abutting residential districts, 

or the use is subject to a conditional use permit. 

2. The application shall identify how the proposed use will address the impacts of noise and 

other emissions on adjoining residential districts. More specifically, the following adverse effects 



  
A 

 

GREYLOCH CUSTOM CABINETRY/MINK CREEK SUB – FILE # RZ-
20-09/DA-20-20/PP-19-02 MOD/CUP-20-04 

4 

 

shall be mitigated through setbacks, buffers, sound attenuation and/or hours of operation: 

a. Noise, odor, or vibrations; or direct or reflected glare detectable by the human senses without 

the aid of instruments. 

b. Radioactivity and electric or electromagnetic disturbances that unduly interfere with the 

normal operation of equipment, instruments, or appliances on abutting properties. 

c. Any other emission or radiation that endangers human health, results in damages to 

vegetation or property or which exceeds health and safety standards. 

d. In the event that the administrator determines that the applicant cannot adequately address 

such impacts, the use shall be subject to conditional use approval. 

8-3A-4: ZONING DISTRICT DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS: 

Zoning District   

Maximum 

Height   

Note 

Conditions 
 

Minimum Yard Setbacks 

Note Conditions  

 

Front 

(1)  Rear   

Interior 

Side   

Street 

Side   

Commercial (no industrial 

in Code) 

35' 20’ 
 

5’  0'    20'  

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  

 

8.2.3 Land Use Map Designations: 

 

Light Industrial  

 

Suitable primarily for manufacturing, warehousing, mini‐storage and open storage, multi‐

tenant industrial park, and similar uses. Limited office and commercial uses may be 

permitted as ancillary uses. All development within this land use shall be free of 

hazardous or objectionable elements such as excessive noise, odor, dust, smoke, or glare. 

 

8.3 Goal: 

 

Encourage the development of a diverse community that provides a mix of land uses, 

housing types, and a variety of employment options, social and recreational 

opportunities, and where possible, an assortment of amenities within walking distance of 

residential development. 



  
A 

 

GREYLOCH CUSTOM CABINETRY/MINK CREEK SUB – FILE # RZ-
20-09/DA-20-20/PP-19-02 MOD/CUP-20-04 

5 

 

 

8.4 Objectives: 

 

• Implement the Land Use Map and associated policies as the official guide for 

development. 

• Encourage commercial development that is consistent with a family friendly feel, 

not overburdening the community with big box and franchise uses and 

discourage the development of strip commercial areas.  

• Encourage land uses that are in harmony with existing resources, scenic areas, 

natural wildlife areas, and surrounding land uses. 

 

8.5.6 Policies Related Mostly to the Commercial Planning Areas: 

 

A. Assist in the provision of coordinated, efficient, and cost effective public 

facilities and utility services, carefully managing both residential and non-

residential development and design, and proactively reinforcing downtown Star’s 

role as the urban core while protecting existing property rights.  

B. Encourage commercial facilities to locate on transportation corridors.  

C. Locate neighborhood services within walking distance to residential 

development.  

D. Discourage the development of strip commercial areas.  

E. Maintain and develop convenient access and opportunities for shopping and 

employment activities.  

F. Commercial areas of five acres or less should be encouraged in residential land 

use designations with appropriate zoning to allow for commercial services for 

residential neighborhoods and to limit trip lengths. Such commercial areas 

should be submitted for approvals with a Conditional Use Permit or Development 

Agreement to assure that conditions are placed on the use to provide for 

compatibility with existing or planned residential uses. These areas should be 

oriented with the front on a collector or arterial street. 

 

8.5.9 Additional Land Use Component Policies: 

 

• Encourage flexibility in site design and innovative land uses. 

• Work with Ada County Highway District (ACHD), Canyon Highway District #4 

(CHD4), and Idaho Department of Transportation (ITD) for better coordination of 

roadway and access needs. 

• Dark sky provision should be adopted within the code to assure down style 

lighting in all developments and Star should consider joining the International 

Dark Sky Association. 

• The City should utilize the 2018 Treasure Valley Tree Selection Guide when 

requiring trees within developments. 

 



  
A 

 

GREYLOCH CUSTOM CABINETRY/MINK CREEK SUB – FILE # RZ-
20-09/DA-20-20/PP-19-02 MOD/CUP-20-04 

6 

 

18.4 Implementation Policies: 

 

E. Development Agreements allow the city to enter into a contract with a developer upon 

rezoning. The Development Agreement may provide the city and the developer with 

certain assurances regarding the proposed development upon rezoning. 

 

PROJECT OVERVIEW 

 

REZONE: 

 

The rezone request from Mixed Use (M-U) to Light Industrial (L-I-DA), together with a 

development agreement on the 12.62-acre future lot, will allow for the development and 

accompanying conditional use permit for an industrial use consistent with the current 

Comprehensive Plan. The Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map designates this property as Light 

Industrial District. 

 

PRELIMINARY PLAT: 

 

A preliminary plat modification has been submitted to reconfigure the commercial lots within 

the original Mink Creek Subdivision in order to accommodate the proposed industrial use on 

Lot 2. The residential and open space lots within the original plat remain unchanged. 

 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (Greyloch Cabinetry): 

 

The Conditional Use Permit included in this application is for a custom cabinet manufacturing 

plant on the 12.62-acre site. The structure will be 97,660 square feet in size. Development of the 

site will be completed in phases and will include an outdoor storage area for the business. The 

use will have 112 parking spaces and will have shipping and loading areas around the building. 

Landscaping will be included in the design and will be subject, to further design review, along 

with other specific details with the Certificate of Compliance application.  

 

ADDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT FEATURES: 

 

• Parking 

Parking required for this use is 1 space per 500 square feet gross area used for 

manufacturing/processing; plus 1 per 300 square feet office or sales area. It is 

unknown at this time what the parking breakdown will be, as a floor plan and other 

building details are to be submitted in the future. Staff will review parking 

compliance as part of the Certificate of Zoning Compliance and building permit 

process. 

 

• Lighting  



  
A 

 

GREYLOCH CUSTOM CABINETRY/MINK CREEK SUB – FILE # RZ-
20-09/DA-20-20/PP-19-02 MOD/CUP-20-04 

7 

 

Streetlights and parking lot lighting shall reflect the “Dark Sky” criteria with all lighting.  

The same streetlight design shall continue throughout the entire portions of the 

development. A lighting plan shall be submitted to the City for review and approval 

prior to issuance of a building permit. 

 

AGENCY RESPONSES 

 

 Central District Health Dept   November 2, 2020 

 DEQ      October 23, 2020 

 ACHD      November 10, 2020 

  

PUBLIC RESPONSES 

 

           None 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS & RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

Staff is supportive of the design and layout of the industrial component of this development 

application, with the proposed conditions of approval. Staff also supports the modification to 

Mink Creek Subdivision in order to create the lot configuration necessary for the use. 

 

Based upon the information provided to staff in the applications and agency comments received 

to date, staff finds that the proposed rezone, development agreement, preliminary plat 

modification and conditional use permit meets the requirements, standards and intent for 

development as they relate to the Unified Development Code and the Comprehensive Plan. The 

Council should consider the entire record and testimony presented at their scheduled public 

hearing prior to rendering its decision on the matter. Should the Council vote to approve the 

applications, either as presented or with added conditions of approval, Council shall direct staff 

to draft findings of fact and conclusions of law for the Council to consider at a future date. 

 

FINDINGS 

 

The Council may approve, conditionally approve, deny or table this request.  In order to 

approve these applications, the Unified Development Code requires that Council must find the 

following: 

 

REZONE FINDINGS: 

 

1.  The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 The purpose of the Star Comprehensive Plan is to promote the health, safety, and 

general welfare of the people of the City of Star and its Impact Area.  Some of the prime 

objectives of the Comprehensive Plan include: 



  
A 

 

GREYLOCH CUSTOM CABINETRY/MINK CREEK SUB – FILE # RZ-
20-09/DA-20-20/PP-19-02 MOD/CUP-20-04 

8 

 

✓ Protection of property rights. 

✓ Adequate public facilities and services are provided to the people at reasonable 

cost. 

✓ Ensure the local economy is protected. 

✓ Encourage urban and urban-type development and overcrowding of land. 
✓ Ensure development is commensurate with the physical characteristics of the 

land. 

The goal of the Comprehensive Plan for Land Use is to encourage the development of a 

diverse community that provides a mixture of land uses, housing types, and a variety of 

employment options, social and recreational opportunities, and where possible provides 

an assortment of amenities within walking distance of a residential development. The 

City must find compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

2.  The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed district,  

     specifically, the purposes statement. 

The City must find that the proposal complies with the proposed district and purpose 
statement. The purpose of the light industrial district is to provide for manufacturing, 

warehousing, mini‐storage and open storage, multi‐tenant industrial park, contractors 

yards, and similar uses. 

 

3.  The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and  

     welfare; and 

 The City must find that there is no indication from the material submitted by any 

political agency stating that the annexation and/or zoning of this property will be 

materially detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare.   

 

4.  The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services by  

     any political subdivision providing public services within the city including, but not limited to,  

     school districts. 

The City must find that it has not been presented with any information from agencies 

having jurisdiction that public services will be adversely impacted other than traffic, 

which will continue to be impacted as the City grows. 

 

5.  The annexation is in the best interest of the city. 

The City must find  that this annexation and/or zoning is reasonably necessary for the 

orderly development of the City. 

 

PRELIMINARY PLAT FINDINGS: 

 

1.  The plat is in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

The City must find that this Plat follows designations, spirit and intent of the 

Comprehensive Plan regarding residential development and meets several of the 

objectives of the Comprehensive Plan such as:  



  
A 

 

GREYLOCH CUSTOM CABINETRY/MINK CREEK SUB – FILE # RZ-
20-09/DA-20-20/PP-19-02 MOD/CUP-20-04 

9 

 

1.  Designing development projects that minimize impacts on existing adjacent  

     properties, and 

2.  Managing urban sprawl to protect outlying rural areas.   

 

2.  Public Services are available or can be made available and are adequate to accommodate 

     the proposed development. 

The City must find that Agencies having jurisdiction on this parcel were notified of this 

action, and that it has not received notice that public services are not available or cannot 

be made available for this development. 

 

3.  There is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed development; 

The City must find that they have not been notified of any deficiencies in public financial 

capabilities to support this development. 

 

4.  The development will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare; 

The City must find that it has not been presented with any facts stating this Preliminary 
Plat will be materially detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare.  Commercial 

uses are allowed in this zoning district. 

 

5.  The development preserves significant natural, scenic or historic features; 

The City must find that there are no known natural, scenic, or historic features that have 

been identified within this Preliminary Plat. 

 

Upon granting approval or denial of the application, the Council shall specify: 

 

1. The Ordinance and standards used in evaluating the application;   

2. The reasons for recommending approval or denial; and   

3. The actions, if any, that the applicant could take to obtain approval. 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 

1. The approved Preliminary Plat for Mink Creek Subdivision shall comply with all statutory 

requirements of applicable agencies and districts having jurisdiction in the City of Star. 

2. The applicant shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City, agreeing to 

proportionate share assessment by ITD regarding impacts to the State Highway System. 

These fees will be collected by the City of Star prior to issuance of a building permit, and as 

future uses are reviewed and approved by the City. 

3. All drive isles shall meet the requirements of the Star Fire District. 

4. The property with the approved Preliminary Plat shall be satisfactorily weed abated at all 

times, preventing a public nuisance, per Star City Code.  

5. All signed Irrigation District Agreements with the Irrigation Districts shall be provided to the 

City of Star with each subsequent Final Plat application. 



  
A 

 

GREYLOCH CUSTOM CABINETRY/MINK CREEK SUB – FILE # RZ-
20-09/DA-20-20/PP-19-02 MOD/CUP-20-04 

10 

 

6. Pressurized irrigation systems shall comply with the Irrigation District(s) and the City of Star 

Codes.  Plans for pressurized irrigation systems shall be submitted to, and approved by the 

City of Star Engineer, prior to installation.   

7. A copy of the CC&R’s shall be submitted to the City of Star at Final Plat. 

8. A letter from the US Postal Service shall be given to the City at Final Plat stating the 

subdivision is in compliance with the Postal Service. 

9. A form signed by the Star Sewer & Water District shall be submitted to the City prior to the 

signature of the Final Plat stating that all conditions of the District have been met. 

10. A plat note shall state that development standards for commercial/industrial development 

shall comply with the effective building and zoning requirements at time of building permit 

issuance, unless amended in the Development Agreement or CUP conditions. 

11. All streetlights and parking lot lighting shall comply with the Star City Code and shall be of 

the same design throughout the entire subdivision. Streetlights shall be continuous 

throughout the subdivision and shall be maintained by the Homeowners Association.  

Streetlights shall be installed prior to any building occupancy. Design shall follow Code with 

requirements for light trespass and “Dark Skies” lighting. 

12. The applicant shall provide a sign, to be located at all construction entrances, indicating the 

rules for all contractors that will be working on the property starting at grading and running 

through home sales that addresses items including but not limited to dust, music, dogs, 

starting/stopping hours for contractors (7a.m. start time). Sign shall be approved by the 

City prior to start of any construction. 

13. A sign application is required for any subdivision or commercial use signs. 

14. Each lot within the subdivision shall be required to record a cross access agreement at the 

time that each use is approved. The Les Schwab Tire Center shall provide cross access to the 

east of the development. 

15. The Greyloch Cabinetry use shall comply with the approved site plan. All parking, lighting, 

trash enclosures, access and landscaping shall meet the requirements of the UDC at all 

times.  

16. Applicant shall apply for any required building and vendor permits. 

17. The Conditional Use Permit may be revoked or modified by the City Council for any violation 

of any Condition of Approval. 

18. Any additional Condition of Approval as required by Staff and City Council. 

 

COUNCIL DECISION 

 

The Star City Council ________________ File #RZ-20-09/DA-20-20/PP-19-02 MOD for Mink Creek 

Subdivision and CUP-20-04 for Greyloch Cabinetry on ________________ ____, 2020. 

 

 

 



9/16/2020Map Scale:

Legend

0.34 Miles 19,007.23

Railroad

Roads (8,000 - 24,000 scale)

<all other values>

Interstate

Ramp

Principal Arterial

Collector

Minor Arterial

Local

Parks

Alley

Driveway

Parks

Water

City Limits

BOISE

EAGLE

GARDEN CITY

KUNA

MERIDIAN

STAR

Condos

Parcels

Ada County Assessor
This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for general reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may 
not be accurate, current, or otherwise reliable. THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION OR LEGAL PURPOSES.









 

City of Star 
P.O. Box 130 

Star, Idaho 83669 

P: 208-286-7247 F: 208-286-7569 

 

Conditional Use Permit Application Form #510 

Rev 10-2015 

Page 1 of 8 

 

 

                     

                        

***All applicable information must be filled out to be processed. 

 

 

 

 

Applicant Information:                                                                                                                          

PRIMARY CONTACT IS:  Applicant ___ Owner ___ Representative ___ 
 
Applicant Name: ______________________________________________________________   

Applicant Address: ___________________________________________ Zip: _____________   

Phone: __________________ Fax: _________________ Email: ________________________ 
 
Owner Name: ________________________________________________________________   

Owner Address: ____________________________________________ Zip: ______________   

Phone: __________________ Fax: _________________ Email: ________________________ 
 
Representative (e.g., architect, engineer, developer): 

Contact: _____________________________ Firm Name: _____________________________  

Address: __________________________________________________ Zip: ______________ 
Phone: __________________ Fax: _________________ Email: ________________________ 

 
Property Information:                                                                                                         

Site Address: __________________________________ Parcel Number: _________________ 

Requested Condition(s) for Conditional Use: ________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Zoning Designation Comp Plan Designation 

Existing   

Proposed   

North of site   

South of site   

East of site   

West of site   

 

  

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION 
 

    FILE NO.: ________________________________ 
Date Application Received: __________________  Fee Paid: ___________ 

    Processed by:   City: _______________________   

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
X

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Shaun Fickes

jcrandall
Typewritten Text

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
1950 W. Franklin Road, Meridian, ID

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
83642

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
208-322-1165

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
208-514-4414

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
shaun@greyloch.com

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Joseph A. Moyle

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Glenn Robinette

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Hutchison Smith Architects

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
270 N. 27th Street, Suite 200, Boise, ID 

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
83702

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
208-338-1212

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
grobinette@hsaarchitects.com

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
8706 W. State Street, Star, ID

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
S0409438405; S0409438605; 

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
S0409438805

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
The development of (3) parecls for the  construction of a 

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
97,640 s.f. cabinet manufacturing plant.

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
MU

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
LI

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
MU

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Hwy 44

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Hwy 16

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
MU & RUT

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
LI (Light Industrial)

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
LI ("           "           )

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
MU (Mixed Use)

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
N/A

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
 N/A

jcrandall
Typewritten Text

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
LI ( Light Industrial)

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
208 N. Plummer Rd., Star, ID 

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
83669



Conditional Use Permit Application Form #510 

Rev 10-2015 

Page 2 of 8 

 

 

Site Data:                                                                                                                    

Total Acreage of Site: __________________________________  

Proposed Percentage of Site Devoted to Bldg Coverage: ______________________________ 

Proposed Percentage of Site Devoted to Landscaping: ________________________________ 

Number of Parking spaces: Proposed __________________   Required __________________ 

Requested Front Setback: ________________   Requested Rear Setback: ________________ 

Requested Side Setback: _________________  Requested Side Setback: ________________ 

Requested Side Setback: ___________________________________ 

Existing Site Characteristics: _____________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________ 

Number and Uses of Proposed Buildings: ___________________________________________ 

Location of Buildings:  __________________________________________________________ 

Gross Floor Area of Proposed Buildings:  ___________________________________________ 

Describe Proposed On and Off-Site Traffic Circulation: ________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________ 

Proposed Signs – number, type, location: ___________________________________________ 

 (include draft drawing) _________________________________________________________ 

Public Services (state what services are available and what agency is providing the service): 

 Potable Water - _________________________________________________________ 

 Irrigation Water - ________________________________________________________ 

 Sanitary Sewer - ________________________________________________________ 

 Schools - ______________________________________________________________ 

 Fire Protection - _________________________________________________________ 

 Roads - _______________________________________________________________ 

 

Application Requirements:                                                                                                                    
(Applications are required to contain one copy of the following unless otherwise noted.) 

    

Applicant 
     (√) Description 

Staff 
   (√) 

 
Pre-application meeting with Planning Department required prior to neighborhood 
meeting.    

 

Copy of neighborhood meeting notice sent to property owners within 300 feet and meeting 
sign-in sheet. 
(Applicants are required to hold a neighborhood meeting to provide an opportunity for public review 
of the proposed project prior to the submittal of an application.)  

  Completed and signed Conditional Use Application   

  Fee     

  
Narrative fully describing the existing use, and the proposed project.     
                                                                                    (must be signed by applicant)   

 

Legal description of property (paper and electronic version with engineer’s seal) 

 Submit two (2) paper and one (1) electronic copy  

 Copy of warranty deed.  

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
12.62

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
122

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
205

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
10'-0"

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
20'-0"

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
20'-0"

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
20'-0"

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
20'-0"

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
1, Cabinet manufacturing plant

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
97,660

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Access to site will be from Tompkins Rd with 

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
driveway access to northeast side for deliveries and parking.  Access to the southwest for deliveries and parking.

jcrandall
Typewritten Text

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Star Sewer & Water

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Star Sewer & Water

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
West Ada School District

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Star Fire Protection District

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Ada County Highway District

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
X

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
X

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
$1,150

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
X

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
X

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
18%

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
57%

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Irrigated Pasture

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Monument sign at entrance. - TBD

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Middleton Irrigation Association Inc.; Middleton Mill Ditch Co.

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
X

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
X

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
X



 

City of Star 
P.O. Box 130 

Star, Idaho 83669 
P: 208-286-7247 F: 208-286-7569 

 

Amended Preliminary Plat Application  Form #504 
Rev 11-2018 
Page 1 of 13 

  
 

 
 
 
 

AMENDED PRELIMINARY PLAT APPLICATION 
 

***All information must be filled out to be processed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Applicant Information:     
                                                                                                                      

PRIMARY CONTACT IS:  Applicant ____ Owner ____ Representative ____ 
 
Applicant Name: ____________________________________________________________________   
Applicant Address: _______________________________________________   Zip: ______________   
Phone: ____________________ Fax: ________________ Email: _____________________________ 
 
Owner Name: ______________________________________________________________________   
Owner Address: __________________________________________________   Zip: _____________   
Phone: _____________________ Fax: _______________ Email: _____________________________ 
 
Representative (e.g., architect, engineer, developer): 
Contact: ___________________________ Firm Name: _____________________________________  
Address: ________________________________________________________   Zip: _____________  
Phone: __________________ Fax: __________________ Email: _____________________________ 
 
Property Information:                                                                                                                

Subdivision Name: __________________________________________________________________ 
Site Location: ______________________________________________________________________ 
Approved Zoning Designation of Site: ___________________________________________________ 
Parcel Number(s): __________________________________________________________________ 
 
Zoning Designations:                                                                                                                    

 
 Zoning 

Designation 
Comp Plan 
Designation 

     Land Use              

Existing    
Proposed    
North of site    
South of site    
East of site    
West of site    

 
 

SITE DATA: Approved Preliminarily Proposed Changes 

Total Acreage of Site:   

Breakdown of Acreage of Land in 
Contiguous Ownership:  

  

 

    FILE NO.: __________________________ 
     Date Application Received: _______________  Fee Paid: ______________ 
     Processed by:   City: ___________________________________________   

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
X

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Mike Moyle

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
480 N. Plummer Rd.

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
83669

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
208.870.6667

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Joseph A. & Lynn S. Moyle Trust

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
280 N. Plummer Rd.

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
83669

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Nate Mitchell

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
10305 W. Floating Feather Rd.

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
83669

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
208.941.2688

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
nate.mitchell@ymail.com

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Peacock Pointe

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
TBD Danes Ave.

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Proposed MU

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
S0409428015, S0409428210, S0409438405, S0409438605, S0409438805

jcrandall
Typewritten Text

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
RUT

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Mixed Use

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
AG

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
MU

jcrandall
Typewritten Text

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
RUT

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
C-1 DA

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
RUT

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
MU

joe
Typewritten Text
48.48

joe
Typewritten Text
no change



   

 

Amended Preliminary Plat Application  Form #504 
Rev 11-2018 
Page 2 of 13 

 

 
 
 
 

SITE DATA: Approved Preliminarily Proposed Changes 

Total Acreage of Site in Special 
Flood Hazard Area:  

  

Dwelling Units per Gross Acre:   

Minimum Lot Size:   

Minimum Lot Width:   

Total Number of Lots:   

Residential:   

Commercial:   

Industrial:   

Common:   

Total Number of Units:   

Single-family:   

Duplex:   

Multi-family:   

 
Percent of Site and Total Acreage of Common Area:  
_________%   /   __________acres                                                _________%   /   __________acres 

Percent of Common Space to be used for drainage:  _______________________________________ 
Describe Common Space Areas (amenities, landscaping, structures, etc.):   
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Proposed Dedicated Lots & Acreage (school, parks, etc):  
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Public streets:   _____________________________________________________________________ 
Private streets:  _____________________________________________________________________ 
Describe Pedestrian Walkways (location, width, material):   
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Describe Bike Paths (location, width, material):   
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PUBLIC SERVICES (Describe what services are available and agency providing service): 
 
Potable Water –  
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Irrigation Water-  
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Sanitary Sewer-  
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Fire Protection –  
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Schools –  
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Roads –  
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
48.48  (28.91 residential)

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
10

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
9

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
   0

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
0

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
1

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
42

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
20.6 (lake)

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
0

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Large lake with waterfront lots

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
None

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
yes

jcrandall
Typewritten Text

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
None proposed

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
None proposed

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
SSWD

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
Middleton Irrigation

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
SSWD

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
SFD

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
West Ada

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
ACHD

joe
Typewritten Text
no change

joe
Typewritten Text
12

joe
Typewritten Text
9

joe
Typewritten Text
1



   

 

Amended Preliminary Plat Application  Form #504 
Rev 11-2018 
Page 3 of 13 

 

 
 
 
 
SPECIAL ON-SITE FEATURES (Note changes from approved Preliminary Plat.): 
 
Areas of Critical Environmental Concern - 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Evidence of Erosion - 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Fish Habitat - 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Floodplain –  
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Mature Trees - 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Riparian Vegetation - 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Steep Slopes - 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Stream/Creek - 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Unique Animal Life - 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Unique Plant Life - 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Unstable Soils - 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Historical Assets - 
__________________________________________________________________________________   
 
Flood Zone Data:                                                                                                                    
 
Subdivision Name: _______________________________________________     Phase: ___________ 
Special Flood Hazard Area: total acreage _________________ number of homes _________________  
 
a. A note must be provided on the final plat documenting the current flood zone in which the property or 

properties are located.  The boundary line must be drawn on the plat in situations where two or more 
flood zones intersect over the property or properties being surveyed. 

 
b. FEMA FIRM panel(s): #160xxxxxxC, 160xxxxxxE, etc.: ______________________ 

FIRM effective date(s): mm/dd/year _____________________________________ 
Flood Zone(s): Zone X, Zone A, Zone AE, Zone AH, etc.: ____________________ 
Base Flood Elevation(s): AE____.0 ft., etc.: _______________________________ 

 
Flood Zones are subject to change by FEMA and all land within a floodplain is regulated by Chapter 10 
of the Star City Code. 

  

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
0

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
None

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
None

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
None

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
North Boundary

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
None

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
None

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
None

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
None

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
None

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
None

jcrandall
Typewritten Text
None

joe
Typewritten Text
Mink Creek Subdivison

joe
Typewritten Text
none



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
1445 North Orchard Street • Boise, ID 83706 • (208) 373-0550  Brad Little, Governor 
www.deq.idaho.gov Jess Byrne, Director 

STATE OF IDAHO 

DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

 

October 23, 2020 

 

 

By e-mail: snickel@staridaho.org  

 

Shawn L. Nickel 

Planning Director and Zoning Administrator 

City of Star  

P.O. Box 130 

Star, Idaho 83669 

 

Subject: Greyloch Custom Cabinetry/Mink Creek Subdivision, RZ-20-09, DA-20-20, CU-20-04, PP-

19-02 

 

Dear Mr. Nickel:  

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to your request for comment.  While DEQ does not review 

projects on a project-specific basis, we attempt to provide the best review of the information provided.  

DEQ encourages agencies to review and utilize the Idaho Environmental Guide to assist in addressing 

project-specific conditions that may apply.  This guide can be found at: deq.idaho.gov/assistance-

resources/environmental-guide-for-local-govts.  

 

The following information does not cover every aspect of this project; however, we have the following 

general comments to use as appropriate: 

 

1. AIR QUALITY 

 Please review IDAPA 58.01.01 for all rules on Air Quality, especially those regarding fugitive 

dust (58.01.01.651), trade waste burning (58.01.01.600-617), and odor control plans 

(58.01.01.776). 

 All property owners, developers, and their contractor(s) must ensure that reasonable controls to 

prevent fugitive dust from becoming airborne are utilized during all phases of construction 

activities per IDAPA 58.01.01.651. 

 DEQ recommends the city/county require the development and submittal of a dust prevention 

and control plan prior to final plat approval.  Dust prevention and control plans incorporate 

appropriate best management practices to control fugitive dust that may be generated at sites.  

Information on fugitive dust control plans can be found at: 

http://www.deq.idaho.gov/media/61833-dust_control_plan.pdf  

 Citizen complaints received by DEQ regarding fugitive dust from development and construction 

activities approved by cities or counties will be referred to the city/county to address under their 

mailto:snickel@staridaho.org
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/assistance-resources/environmental-guide-for-local-govts
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/assistance-resources/environmental-guide-for-local-govts
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/media/61833-dust_control_plan.pdf


Response to Request for Comment  

October 23, 2020 

Page 2 
 

ordinances. 

 Per IDAPA 58.01.01.600-617, the open burning of any construction waste is prohibited. The 

property owner, developer, and their contractor(s) are responsible for ensuring no prohibited 

open burning occurs during construction. 

 For questions, contact David Luft, Air Quality Manager, at (208) 373-0550. 

2. WASTEWATER AND RECYCLED WATER 

 DEQ recommends verifying that there is adequate sewer to serve this project prior to approval.  

Please contact the sewer provider for a capacity statement, declining balance report, and 

willingness to serve this project.   

 IDAPA 58.01.16 and IDAPA 58.01.17 are the sections of Idaho rules regarding wastewater and 

recycled water.  Please review these rules to determine whether this or future projects will 

require DEQ approval.  IDAPA 58.01.03 is the section of Idaho rules regarding subsurface 

disposal of wastewater.  Please review this rule to determine whether this or future projects will 

require permitting by the district health department.  

 All projects for construction or modification of wastewater systems require preconstruction 

approval.  Recycled water projects and subsurface disposal projects require separate permits as 

well. 

 DEQ recommends that projects be served by existing approved wastewater collection systems 

or a centralized community wastewater system whenever possible.  Please contact DEQ to 

discuss potential for development of a community treatment system along with best 

management practices for communities to protect ground water. 

 DEQ recommends that cities and counties develop and use a comprehensive land use 

management plan, which includes the impacts of present and future wastewater management in 

this area.  Please schedule a meeting with DEQ for further discussion and recommendations for 

plan development and implementation.   

For questions, contact Valerie Greear, Water Quality Engineering Manager at (208) 373-0550. 

3. WASTEWATER AND RECYCLED WATER 

 DEQ recommends verifying that there is adequate water to serve this project prior to approval.  

Please contact the water provider for a capacity statement, declining balance report, and 

willingness to serve this project. 

 IDAPA 58.01.08 is the section of Idaho rules regarding public drinking water systems.  Please 

review these rules to determine whether this or future projects will require DEQ approval. 

 All projects for construction or modification of public drinking water systems require 

preconstruction approval.   

 DEQ recommends verifying if the current and/or proposed drinking water system is a regulated 

public drinking water system (refer to the DEQ website at: deq.idaho.gov/water-

quality/drinking-water.aspx).  For non-regulated systems, DEQ recommends annual testing for 

total coliform bacteria, nitrate, and nitrite. 

 If any private wells will be included in this project, we recommend that they be tested for total 

http://www.deq.idaho.gov/water-quality/drinking-water.aspx
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/water-quality/drinking-water.aspx


Response to Request for Comment  

October 23, 2020 

Page 3 
 

coliform bacteria, nitrate, and nitrite prior to use and retested annually thereafter. 

 DEQ recommends using an existing drinking water system whenever possible or construction of 

a new community drinking water system.  Please contact DEQ to discuss this project and to 

explore options to both best serve the future residents of this development and provide for 

protection of ground water resources. 

 DEQ recommends cities and counties develop and use a comprehensive land use management 

plan which addresses the present and future needs of this area for adequate, safe, and sustainable 

drinking water.  Please schedule a meeting with DEQ for further discussion and 

recommendations for plan development and implementation.   

For questions, contact Valerie Greear, Water Quality Engineering Manager at (208) 373-0550. 

4. SURFACE WATER 

 A DEQ short-term activity exemption (STAE) from this office is required if the project will 

involve de-watering of ground water during excavation and discharge back into surface water, 

including a description of the water treatment from this process to prevent excessive sediment 

and turbidity from entering surface water.  

 Please contact DEQ to determine whether this project will require a National Pollution 

Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit. A Construction General Permit from EPA may 

be required if this project will disturb one or more acres of land, or will disturb less than one 

acre of land but are part of a common plan of development or sale that will ultimately disturb 

one or more acres of land.   

 If this project is near a source of surface water, DEQ requests that projects incorporate 

construction best management practices (BMPs) to assist in the protection of Idaho’s water 

resources.  Additionally, please contact DEQ to identify BMP alternatives and to determine 

whether this project is in an area with Total Maximum Daily Load stormwater permit 

conditions. 

 The Idaho Stream Channel Protection Act requires a permit for most stream channel alterations.  

Please contact the Idaho Department of Water Resources (IDWR), Western Regional Office, at 

2735 Airport Way, Boise, or call (208) 334-2190 for more information.  Information is also 

available on the IDWR website at: https://idwr.idaho.gov/streams/stream-channel-alteration-

permits.html  

 The Federal Clean Water Act requires a permit for filling or dredging in waters of the United 

States.  Please contact the US Army Corps of Engineers, Boise Field Office, at 10095 Emerald 

Street, Boise, or call 208-345-2155 for more information regarding permits.   

For questions, contact Lance Holloway, Surface Water Manager, at (208) 373-0550. 

5. HAZARDOUS WASTE AND GROUND WATER CONTAMINATION 

 Hazardous Waste.  The types and number of requirements that must be complied with under the 

federal Resource Conservations and Recovery Act (RCRA) and the Idaho Rules and Standards 

for Hazardous Waste (IDAPA 58.01.05) are based on the quantity and type of waste generated.  

Every business in Idaho is required to track the volume of waste generated, determine whether 

each type of waste is hazardous, and ensure that all wastes are properly disposed of according to 

federal, state, and local requirements. 

https://idwr.idaho.gov/streams/stream-channel-alteration-permits.html
https://idwr.idaho.gov/streams/stream-channel-alteration-permits.html


Response to Request for Comment  

October 23, 2020 

Page 4 
 

 No trash or other solid waste shall be buried, burned, or otherwise disposed of at the project site.  

These disposal methods are regulated by various state regulations including Idaho’s Solid Waste 

Management Regulations and Standards, Rules and Regulations for Hazardous Waste, and Rules 

and Regulations for the Prevention of Air Pollution. 

 Water Quality Standards.  Site activities must comply with the Idaho Water Quality Standards 

(IDAPA 58.01.02) regarding hazardous and deleterious-materials storage, disposal, or 

accumulation adjacent to or in the immediate vicinity of state waters (IDAPA 58.01.02.800); and 

the cleanup and reporting of oil-filled electrical equipment (IDAPA 58.01.02.849); hazardous 

materials (IDAPA 58.01.02.850); and used-oil and petroleum releases (IDAPA 58.01.02.851 and 

852).  

 Petroleum releases must be reported to DEQ in accordance with IDAPA 58.01.02.851.01 and 04.  

Hazardous material releases to state waters, or to land such that there is likelihood that it will 

enter state waters, must be reported to DEQ in accordance with IDAPA 58.01.02.850. 

 Ground Water Contamination.  DEQ requests that this project comply with Idaho’s Ground 

Water Quality Rules (IDAPA 58.01.11), which states that “No person shall cause or allow the 

release, spilling, leaking, emission, discharge, escape, leaching, or disposal of a contaminant into 

the environment in a manner that causes a ground water quality standard to be exceeded, injures a 

beneficial use of ground water, or is not in accordance with a permit, consent order or applicable 

best management practice, best available method or best practical method.”   

For questions, contact Albert Crawshaw, Waste & Remediation Manager, at (208) 373-0550. 

6. ADDITIONAL NOTES 

 If an underground storage tank (UST) or an aboveground storage tank (AST) is identified at the 

site, the site should be evaluated to determine whether the UST is regulated by DEQ.  EPA 

regulates ASTs.  UST and AST sites should be assessed to determine whether there is potential 

soil and ground water contamination.  Please call DEQ at (208) 373-0550, or visit the DEQ 

website deq.idaho.gov/waste-mgmt-remediation/storage-tanks.aspx for assistance. 

 If applicable to this project, DEQ recommends that BMPs be implemented for any of the 

following conditions:  wash water from cleaning vehicles, fertilizers and pesticides, animal 

facilities, composted waste, and ponds.  Please contact DEQ for more information on any of these 

conditions. 

We look forward to working with you in a proactive manner to address potential environmental impacts 

that may be within our regulatory authority.  If you have any questions, please contact me, or any of our 

technical staff at (208) 373-0550. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

 

Aaron Scheff 

Regional Administrator 

DEQ-Boise Regional Office  

 

ec: EDMS#2020AEK238 

http://www.deq.idaho.gov/waste-mgmt-remediation/storage-tanks.aspx




Mary May, President 

Kent Goldthorpe, Vice-President 

Rebecca W. Arnold, Commissioner 

Sara M. Baker, Commissioner 

Jim D. Hansen, Commissioner 
 

  
 
 
 
 
  

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ada County Highway District • 3775 Adams Street • Garden City, ID • 83714 • PH 208-387-6100 • FX 345-7650 • www.achdidaho.org  

 
 

      November 10, 2020 

 
 To: Shaun Fickes 
   1950 W Franklin Road 
   Meridian, ID  83642 

 
Representative: Mike Moyle 

   480 N Plummer Road  
   Star, ID  83669 

  
Subject:  Mink Creek Modification/ SPP20-0013/ PP19-02-MOD/ CU-20-04/  
   RZ-20-09/ DA-20-20 

 Preliminary Plat modification, Conditional Use Permit, and Rezone to I-L to 
allow for the development of 12 lots consisting of 9 residential lots, 3 
commercial lots, and 1 common lot on 48.5-acres.  

 
This is a staff level approval of a preliminary plat for Mink Creek Subdivision Modification.  On July 
10, 2019, the Ada County Highway District reviewed and approved this site as part of Mink Creek/ 
SPP19-0002/ AZ-19-03/ PP19-02/ CU-19-02. The District had site specific requirements related to 
that application.   

In addition, the following includes site specific conditions for the 97,660 square foot Greylock Custom 
Cabinetry building. 

a. Policy: 
Driveway Location Policy: District policy 7209.4.1 requires driveways near intersections 
to be located a minimum of 75-feet (measured centerline-to-centerline) from the nearest 
local street intersection, and 150-feet from the nearest collector or arterial street intersection. 

Successive Driveways:  District Policy 7209.4.1 states that successive driveways away 
from an intersection shall have no minimum spacing requirements for access points along 
a local street, but the District does encourage shared access points where appropriate. 

Driveway Width Policy:  District policy 7209.4.3 restricts industrial driveways to a 
maximum width of 40-feet.  Most industrial driveways will be constructed as curb-cut type 
facilities. 

Driveway Paving Policy:  Graveled driveways abutting public streets create maintenance 
problems due to gravel being tracked onto the roadway.  In accordance with District policy, 
7209.4.3, the applicant should be required to pave the driveway its full width and at least 
30-feet into the site beyond the edge of pavement of the roadway.    

b. Applicant’s Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to construct a 30-foot wide driveway in 
alignment with Tompkins Street from the site.  

c. Staff Comments/Recommendations:   The applicant’s proposal meets District policy and 
is approved.  The 30-foot driveway should be constructed as a curb-cut type driveway.   



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ada County Highway District • 3775 Adams Street • Garden City, ID • 83714 • PH 208-387-6100 • FX 345-7650 • www.achdidaho.org  

 
 

 
The applicant will be required to pay all applicable platting and review fees prior to final approval. 

 
If you have any questions, please contact me at (208) 387-6171. 

 
Sincerely, 
 

Stacey Yarrington 

 
Stacey Yarrington 
Planner III 
Development Services 
 
Attachment:  Staff Report for SPP19-0002 
 
cc: Project File 
 City of Star  
 Hutchison Smith Architects  

 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ada County Highway District • 3775 Adams Street • Garden City, ID • 83714 • PH 208-387-6100 • FX 345-7650 • www.achdidaho.org  

 
 

Request for Appeal of Staff Decision 
 
Appeal of Staff Decision:  The Commission shall hear and decide appeals by an applicant 
of the final decision made by the Development Services Manager when it is alleged that the 
Development Services Manager did not properly apply this section 7101.6, did not consider 
all of the relevant facts presented, made an error of fact or law, abused discretion or acted 
arbitrarily and capriciously in the interpretation or enforcement of the ACHD Policy Manual. 

a) Filing Fee:  The Commission may, from time to time, set reasonable fees to be 
charged the applicant for the processing of appeals, to cover administrative costs. 

b) Initiation:  An appeal is initiated by the filing of a written notice of appeal with the 
Secretary and Clerk of the District, which must be filed within ten (10) working days from the 
date of the decision that is the subject of the appeal.  The notice of appeal shall refer to the 
decision being appealed, identify the appellant by name, address and telephone number 
and state the grounds for the appeal.  The grounds shall include a written summary of the 
provisions of the policy relevant to the appeal and/or the facts and law relied upon and shall 
include a written argument in support of the appeal.  The Commission shall not consider a 
notice of appeal that does not comply with the provisions of this subsection.  

c) Time to Reply:  The Development Services Manager shall have ten (10) working 
days from the date of the filing of the notice of appeal to reply to the notice of the appeal, 
and may during such time meet with the appellant to discuss the matter, and may also 
consider and/or modify the decision that is being appealed.  A copy of the reply and any 
modifications to the decision being appealed will be provided to the appellant prior to the 
Commission hearing on the appeal.   

d) Notice of Hearing:  Unless otherwise agreed to by the appellant, the hearing of the 
appeal will be noticed and scheduled on the Commission agenda at a regular meeting to be 
held within thirty (30) days following the delivery to the appellant of the Development 
Services Manager’s reply to the notice of appeal.  A copy of the decision being appealed, 
the notice of appeal and the reply shall be delivered to the Commission at least one (1) week 
prior to the hearing. 

e) Action by Commission:  Following the hearing, the Commission shall either affirm 
or reverse, in whole or part, or otherwise modify, amend or supplement the decision being 
appealed, as such action is adequately supported by the law and evidence presented at the 
hearing. 

 
 



  

                                  



 1     Mink Creek Subdivision / SPP19-0002 / PP-19-02 
 

Development Services Department 

   
Project/File:  Mink Creek Subdivision / SPP19-0002 / AZ-19-03, PP-19-02, CU-19-02 

The applicant is requesting annexation, zoning, preliminary plat and conditional use 
approval for Mink Creek Subdivision. The proposed subdivision consists of nine 
residential lots, one commercial lot and one common lot on 48.5-acres. 

Lead Agency: City of Star 

Site address: 8706 W. State Street  

Commission  
Approval: July 10, 2019 

Applicant: Mike Moyle 
 480 N. Plummer Rd. 
 Star, ID 83669 

Representative: Nate Mitchell 
 10305 W. Floating Feather Rd. 
 Star, ID 83669 

Staff Contact:  Austin Miller 
 Phone: 387-6335 
 E-mail: amiller@achdidaho.org 

A.  Findings of Fact 

1. Description of Application:   The applicant is requesting annexation, zoning, preliminary plat and 
conditional use approval for Mink Creek Subdivision. The proposed subdivision consists of nine 
residential lots, one commercial lot and one common lot on 48.5-acres, to be zoned MU. 

2. Description of Adjacent Surrounding Area:   

Direction Land Use Zoning 

North Rural-Urban Transition Zone RUT 

South Neighborhood Commercial C-1 

East Rural-Urban Transition Zone RUT 

West Rural-Urban Transition Zone RUT 

3. Site History:  ACHD has not previously reviewed this site for a development application. 

4. Adjacent Development:  The following developments are pending or underway in the vicinity of 
the site: 

• American Star Subdivision, consisting of 240 buildable residential lots is located at the 
southeast corner of Plummer Road and Floating Feather Road and was approved by ACHD 
in October 2018. 

• Moon Valley Subdivision, consisting of 268 buildable residential lots is located west of State 
Highway 16 south of Moon Valley and was approved in March 2019. 

mailto:amiller@achdidaho.org


 

 2      Mink Creek Subdivision / SPP19-0002 / PP-19-02 
 

5. New Center Lane Miles:  The proposed development includes 0 centerline miles of new public 
road. 

6. Impact Fees: There will be an impact fee that is assessed and due prior to issuance of any building 
permits. The assessed impact fee will be based on the impact fee ordinance that is in effect at that 
time. The impact fee assessment will not be released until the civil plans are approved by ACHD. 

7. Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) / Integrated Five Year Work Plan (IFYWP): 

There are no roadways, bridges or intersections in the general vicinity of the project that are in the 
Integrated Five Year Work Plan (IFYWP) or the District’s Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 

B. Traffic Findings for Consideration 
1. Trip Generation:  This development is estimated to generate 85 additional vehicle trips per day; 9 

additional vehicle trips per hour in the PM peak hour, based on the Institute of Transportation 
Engineers Trip Generation Manual, 10th edition.   

2. Condition of Area Roadways 
Traffic Count is based on Vehicles per hour (VPH) 

** ACHD does not set level of service thresholds for State Highways. 
* Acceptable level of service for a two-lane collector is “D” (425 VPH).  
* Acceptable level of service for a three-lane collector is “D” (530 VPH). 
 

3. Average Daily Traffic Count (VDT) 
Average daily traffic counts are based on ACHD’s most current traffic counts. 

• The average daily traffic count for SH-16 north of SH-44 was 12,911 on April 5, 2018.  

• The average daily traffic count for SH-44 was of SH-16 was 16,640 on April 5, 2017.  

• Average daily traffic counts are currently unavailable for this segment of Calhoun Place.  

C. Findings for Consideration 

1. State Highways (SH-16 / SH-44) 
SH-16 and SH-44 are under the jurisdiction of the Idaho Transportation Department (ITD).  The 
applicant, City of Star, and ITD should work together to determine if additional right-of-way or 
improvements are necessary on SH-16 and SH-44.  

2. Master Street Map 
The Master Street Map (MSM) guides right-of-way acquisition, collector street requirements, and 
specific roadway features that are required through development.  The primary function of a 
collector is to intercept traffic from the local street system and carry that traffic to the nearest arterial.  
A secondary function is to service adjacent property.  Access will be limited or controlled on collector 
streets. 

The MSM identifies Calhoun Place as a collector roadway, to extend through this site along the 
western property line, stubbing to the north. Calhoun Place is planned to connect to Floating 
Feather Road after it is realigned (see below). 

Roadway Frontage 
Functional 

Classification 
PM Peak Hour 
Traffic Count 

PM Peak Hour 
Level of Service 

**State Highway 16 2,113-feet Principal Arterial 772 N/A 

** State Highway 44 
State Street 

203-feet Principal Arterial 970 N/A 

Calhoun Place 235-feet Collector N/A N/A 



 

 3      Mink Creek Subdivision / SPP19-0002 / PP-19-02 
 

The applicant has requested Calhoun Place be reclassified from a collector to a local street abutting 
their site. Staff supports the applicant’s request and recommends Calhoun Place between 
Tompkins Street and the Middleton Canal be reclassified to a local street. A collector roadway 
system is in place to provide connectivity to the area via Plummer Road and Tompkins Street. Two 
bridges would need to be constructed for Calhoun Place to extend north to Floating Feather Road 
placing a further maintenance burden on ACHD. Constructing a collector roadway through this site 
and the neighboring parcel to the north will limit their development potential as direct access from 
a collector roadway to residential lots is not typically allowed, decreasing the likelihood of a future 
connection through development. 

 

 
 

3. Calhoun Place 
a. Existing Conditions: As part of the SH-16 project, the Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) 

constructed Calhoun Place with 35-feet of pavement, a gravel shoulder and no curb gutter or 
sidewalk abutting this site. Calhoun Place terminates as a cul-de-sac with a 52-foot radius 
abutting the site, located outside of ITD right-of-way on the neighboring parcel to the west. 
Additional unimproved ITD right-of-way exists abutting the site 470-feet north of the existing cul-
de-sac. 

These streets were constructed to provide access to the properties that were affected by the 
extension of SH-16 to the east. ITD was to dedicate these streets to ACHD when completed 



 

 4      Mink Creek Subdivision / SPP19-0002 / PP-19-02 
 

and accepted by ACHD. To-date, these streets have not been accepted by ACHD as public 
streets. 

b. Policy: 
Local Roadway Policy: District Policy 7207.2.1 states that the developer is responsible for 
improving all local street frontages adjacent to the site regardless of whether or not access is 
taken to all of the adjacent streets.   

Street Section and Right-of-Way Policy: District Policy 7207.5 states that right-of-way widths 
for all local streets shall generally not be less than 47-feet wide and that the standard street 
section shall be 33-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb). 

Standard Urban Local Street and Right-of-way Policy:  District Policy 7207.5.2 states that 
unless otherwise approved the City of Star, the standard street section shall be 36-feet (back-
of-curb to back-of-curb) for developments with any buildable lot that is less than 1 acre in size.  
This street section shall include curb, gutter, and minimum 5-foot wide concrete sidewalks on 
both sides and shall typically be constructed within 50-feet of right-of-way.  

Sidewalk Policy:  District Policy 7207.5.7 states that five-foot wide concrete sidewalk is 
required on both sides of all local street, except those in rural developments with net densities 
of one dwelling unit per 1.0 acre or less, or in hillside conditions where there is no direct lot 
frontage, in which case a sidewalk shall be constructed along one side of the street.  Some local 
jurisdictions may require wider sidewalks. 

The sidewalk may be placed next to the back-of-curb.  Where feasible, a parkway strip at least 
8-feet wide between the back-of-curb and the street edge of the sidewalk is recommended to 
provide increased safety and protection of pedestrians and to allow for the planting of trees in 
accordance with the District’s Tree Planting Policy.  If no trees are to be planted in the parkway 
strip, the applicant may submit a request to the District, with justification, to reduce the width of 
the parkway strip. 

Detached sidewalks are encouraged and should be parallel to the adjacent roadway. 
Meandering sidewalks are discouraged.   

A permanent right-of-way easement shall be provided if public sidewalks are placed outside of 
the dedicated right-of-way.  The easement shall encompass the entire area between the right-
of-way line and 2-feet behind the back edge of the sidewalk.  Sidewalks shall either be located 
wholly within the public right-of-way or wholly within an easement. 

Half Street Policy:  District Policy 7207.2.2 required improvements shall consist of pavement 
widening to one-half the required width, including curb, gutter and concrete sidewalk (minimum 
5-feet), plus 12-feet of additional pavement widening beyond the centerline established for the 
street to provide an adequate roadway surface, with the pavement crowned at the ultimate 
centerline.  A 3-foot wide gravel shoulder and a borrow ditch sized to accommodate the roadway 
storm runoff shall be constructed on the unimproved side. 

Cul-de-sac Streets Policy:  District policy 7207.5.8 requires cul-de-sacs to be constructed to 
provide a minimum turning radius of 45-feet; in rural areas or for temporary cul-de-sacs the 
emergency service providers may require a greater radius.  Landscape and parking islands may 
be constructed in turnarounds if a minimum 29-foot street section is constructed around the 
island.  The pavement width shall be sufficient to allow the turning around of a standard 
AASHTO SU design vehicle without backing.  The developer shall provide written approval from 
the appropriate fire department for this design element. 

The District will consider alternatives to the standard cul-de-sac turnaround on a case-by-case 
basis.  This will be based on turning area, drainage, maintenance considerations and the written 
approval of the agency providing emergency fire service for the area where the development is 
located. 



 

 5      Mink Creek Subdivision / SPP19-0002 / PP-19-02 
 

Minor Improvements Policy:  District Policy 7203.3 states that minor improvements to existing 
streets adjacent to a proposed development may be required.  These improvements are to 
correct deficiencies or replace deteriorated facilities.  Included are sidewalk construction or 
replacement; curb and gutter construction or replacement; replacement of unused driveways 
with curb, gutter and sidewalk; installation or reconstruction of pedestrian ramps; pavement 
repairs; signs; traffic control devices; and other similar items. 

c. Applicant Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to construct Calhoun Place abutting the site 
as ½ of a 36-foot local street section with rolled curb, gutter and 5-foot wide attached concrete 
sidewalk on the east side. The west side is proposed to be improved with 12-feet of pavement 
a 3-foot wide gravel shoulder and a borrow ditch. The applicant is proposing to dedicate 50-feet 
of right-of-way to accommodate the improvements. 

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  In anticipation of Calhoun Place being dedicated to 
ACHD, ACHD recommends that the City of Star require the applicant to improve Calhoun Place 
abutting the site, as proposed 

Local streets are improved through development, if improvements are not required as part of 
this development application, Calhoun Place will remain unimproved and without pedestrian 
facilities. 

4. Dawes Place 
a. Existing Conditions: Dawes Place is improved with as a 30-foot street section with curb, 

gutter, and no sidewalk abutting the site.  There is 54-feet of ITD right-of-way for Dawes Place 
(27-feet from centerline). 

These streets were constructed to provide access to the properties that were affected by the 
extension of SH-16 to the east. ITD was to dedicate these streets to ACHD when completed 
and accepted by ACHD. To-date, these streets have not been accepted by ACHD as public 
streets 

b. Policy: 
Local Roadway Policy:  District Policy 7207.2.1 states that the developer is responsible for 
improving all local street frontages adjacent to the site regardless of whether or not access is 
taken to all of the adjacent streets.   

Street Section and Right-of-Way Policy:  District Policy 7207.5 states that right-of-way widths 
for all local streets shall generally not be less than 47-feet wide and that the standard street 
section shall be 33-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb). 

Standard Urban Local Street and Right-of-way Policy:  District Policy 7207.5.2 states that 
unless otherwise approved the City of Star, the standard street section shall be 36-feet (back-
of-curb to back-of-curb) for developments with any buildable lot that is less than 1 acre in size.  
This street section shall include curb, gutter, and minimum 5-foot wide concrete sidewalks on 
both sides and shall typically be constructed within 50-feet of right-of-way.  

Sidewalk Policy:  District Policy 7207.5.7 states that five-foot wide concrete sidewalk is 
required on both sides of all local street, except those in rural developments with net densities 
of one dwelling unit per 1.0 acre or less, or in hillside conditions where there is no direct lot 
frontage, in which case a sidewalk shall be constructed along one side of the street.  Some local 
jurisdictions may require wider sidewalks. 

The sidewalk may be placed next to the back-of-curb.  Where feasible, a parkway strip at least 
8-feet wide between the back-of-curb and the street edge of the sidewalk is recommended to 
provide increased safety and protection of pedestrians and to allow for the planting of trees in 
accordance with the District’s Tree Planting Policy.  If no trees are to be planted in the parkway 
strip, the applicant may submit a request to the District, with justification, to reduce the width of 
the parkway strip. 



 

 6      Mink Creek Subdivision / SPP19-0002 / PP-19-02 
 

Detached sidewalks are encouraged and should be parallel to the adjacent roadway. 
Meandering sidewalks are discouraged.   

A permanent right-of-way easement shall be provided if public sidewalks are placed outside of 
the dedicated right-of-way.  The easement shall encompass the entire area between the right-
of-way line and 2-feet behind the back edge of the sidewalk.  Sidewalks shall either be located 
wholly within the public right-of-way or wholly within an easement. 

Half Street Policy:  District Policy 7207.2.2 required improvements shall consist of pavement 
widening to one-half the required width, including curb, gutter and concrete sidewalk (minimum 
5-feet), plus 12-feet of additional pavement widening beyond the centerline established for the 
street to provide an adequate roadway surface, with the pavement crowned at the ultimate 
centerline.  A 3-foot wide gravel shoulder and a borrow ditch sized to accommodate the roadway 
storm runoff shall be constructed on the unimproved side. 

Cul-de-sac Streets Policy:  District policy 7207.5.8 requires cul-de-sacs to be constructed to 
provide a minimum turning radius of 45-feet; in rural areas or for temporary cul-de-sacs the 
emergency service providers may require a greater radius.  Landscape and parking islands may 
be constructed in turnarounds if a minimum 29-foot street section is constructed around the 
island.  The pavement width shall be sufficient to allow the turning around of a standard 
AASHTO SU design vehicle without backing.  The developer shall provide written approval from 
the appropriate fire department for this design element. 

The District will consider alternatives to the standard cul-de-sac turnaround on a case-by-case 
basis.  This will be based on turning area, drainage, maintenance considerations and the written 
approval of the agency providing emergency fire service for the area where the development is 
located. 

Minor Improvements Policy:  District Policy 7203.3 states that minor improvements to existing 
streets adjacent to a proposed development may be required.  These improvements are to 
correct deficiencies or replace deteriorated facilities.  Included are sidewalk construction or 
replacement; curb and gutter construction or replacement; replacement of unused driveways 
with curb, gutter and sidewalk; installation or reconstruction of pedestrian ramps; pavement 
repairs; signs; traffic control devices; and other similar items. 

c. Applicant’s Proposal:  The applicant’s proposal does not address Dawes Place abutting the 
site. 

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  In anticipation of Dawes Place being dedicated to 
ACHD, ACHD recommends that the City of Star require the applicant to improve Dawes Place 
abutting the site. The applicant should be required to construct 5-foot wide concrete sidewalk 
along Dawes Place abutting the site.  

Previously the City of Star has not supported public streets less than 36-feet wide. The applicant 
should be required to provide written approval from the City of Star and the appropriate fire 
department for the reduced street section. 

The applicant should be required to sign Dawes Place for NO PARKING. 

Local streets are improved through development, if improvements are not required as part of 
this development application Dawes Place will remain without pedestrian facilities.  

5. Stub Streets 
a. Policy: 

Stub Street Policy:  District policy 7207.2.4 states that stub streets will be required to provide 
circulation or to provide access to adjoining properties.  Stub streets will conform with the 
requirements described in Section 7207.2.5.4, except a temporary cul-de-sac will not be 



 

 7      Mink Creek Subdivision / SPP19-0002 / PP-19-02 
 

required if the stub street has a length no greater than 150-feet.  A sign shall be installed at the 
terminus of the stub street stating that, "THIS ROAD WILL BE EXTENDED IN THE FUTURE.” 

In addition, stub streets must meet the following conditions: 

• A stub street shall be designed to slope towards the nearest street intersection within the 
proposed development and drain surface water towards that intersection; unless an 
alternative storm drain system is approved by the District. 

• The District may require appropriate covenants guaranteeing that the stub street will 
remain free of obstructions. 

Temporary Dead End Streets Policy:  District policy 7206.2.4 requires that the design and 
construction for cul-de-sac streets shall apply to temporary dead end streets.  The temporary 
cul-de-sac shall be paved and shall be the dimensional requirements of a standard cul-de-sac.  
The developer shall grant a temporary turnaround easement to the District for those portions of 
the cul-de-sac which extend beyond the dedicated street right-of-way.  In the instance where a 
temporary easement extends onto a buildable lot, the entire lot shall be encumbered by the 
easement and identified on the plat as a non-buildable lot until the street is extended. 

b. Applicant Proposal:  The applicant is proposing to stub Calhoun Place to the western property 
line. The applicant has requested to not be required to provide a stub street to the northern 
property line. 

c. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  The right-of-way should be required to extend to the 
western property line to allow for the future completion of the roadway and the stub street 
extension to the west, as proposed. A sign shall be installed at the terminus of the stub street 
stating that, "THIS STREET WILL BE EXTENDED IN THE FUTURE.” The applicant should be 
required to construct a temporary cul-de-sac turnaround with a minimum 45-foot radius. 

Staff supports the applicant’s proposal as the neighboring parcel to the north currently has 
access to Pollard Lane, a public street. A second stub to this site would require another bridge 
to cross the Middleton Canal, providing additional maintenance costs to ACHD.  

6. Driveways 
6.1 Dawes Place 

a. Existing Conditions:  There are two existing driveways onto Dawes Place from the site. 

b. Policy: 
Driveway Location Policy:  District policy 7207.4.1 requires driveways near intersections to 
be located a minimum of 75-feet (measured centerline-to-centerline) from the nearest local 
street intersection, and 150-feet from the nearest collector or arterial street intersection. 

Successive Driveways:  District Policy 7207.4.1 states that successive driveways away from 
an intersection shall have no minimum spacing requirements for access points along a local 
street, but the District does encourage shared access points where appropriate. 

Driveway Width Policy:  District policy 7207.4.3 states that where vertical curbs are required, 
residential driveways shall be restricted to a maximum width of 20-feet and may be constructed 
as curb-cut type driveways. 

Driveway Paving Policy:  Graveled driveways abutting public streets create maintenance 
problems due to gravel being tracked onto the roadway.  In accordance with District policy, 
7207.4.3, the applicant should be required to pave the driveway its full width and at least 30-
feet into the site beyond the edge of pavement of the roadway. 

c. Staff Comments/Recommendations: The applicant should be required to close the two 
existing driveways on Dawes Place with curb, gutter and sidewalk. Access to Dawes Place will 
be reviewed with development of the commercial site. 



 

 8      Mink Creek Subdivision / SPP19-0002 / PP-19-02 
 

7. Tree Planters 
Tree Planter Policy:  Tree Planter Policy: The District’s Tree Planter Policy prohibits all trees in 
planters less than 8-feet in width without the installation of root barriers. Class II trees may be 
allowed in planters with a minimum width of 8-feet, and Class I and Class III trees may be allowed 
in planters with a minimum width of 10-feet. 

8. Landscaping 
Landscaping Policy: A license agreement is required for all landscaping proposed within ACHD 
right-of-way or easement areas.  Trees shall be located no closer than 10-feet from all public storm 
drain facilities.  Landscaping should be designed to eliminate site obstructions in the vision triangle 
at intersections.  District Policy 5104.3.1 requires a 40-foot vision triangle and a 3-foot height 
restriction on all landscaping located at an uncontrolled intersection and a 50-foot offset from stop 
signs.  Landscape plans are required with the submittal of civil plans and must meet all District 
requirements prior to signature of the final plat and/or approval of the civil plans. 

D. Site Specific Conditions of Approval 
1. Construct Calhoun Place abutting the site as ½ of a 36-foot local street section with rolled curb, 

gutter and 5-foot wide attached concrete sidewalk on the east side. Improve the west side with 12-
feet of pavement a 3-foot wide gravel shoulder and a borrow ditch. Dedicate 50-feet of right-of-way 
to accommodate Calhoun Place. 

2. Construct 5-foot wide concrete sidewalk along Dawes Place abutting the site.  

3. Provide written approval from the City of Star and the appropriate fire department for the reduced 
street section along Dawes Place. 

4. The applicant should be required to sign Dawes Place for NO PARKING abutting the site. 

5. Stub Calhoun Place to the western property line. Install a sign at the terminus of the stub street 
stating that, "THIS STREET WILL BE EXTENDED IN THE FUTURE.” Construct a temporary cul-
de-sac turnaround with a minimum 45-foot radius. 

6. Close the two existing driveways on Dawes Place with curb, gutter and sidewalk. Access to 
Dawes Place will be reviewed with development of the commercial site. 

7. Submit civil plans to ACHD Development Services for review and approval.  The impact fee 
assessment will not be released until the civil plans are approved by ACHD.  

8. Payment of impact fees is due prior to issuance of a building permit. 

9. Comply with all Standard Conditions of Approval. 

E.  Standard Conditions of Approval 
1. All proposed irrigation facilities shall be located outside of the ACHD right-of-way (including all 

easements).  Any existing irrigation facilities shall be relocated outside of the ACHD right-of-way 
(including all easements).  

2. Private Utilities including sewer or water systems are prohibited from being located within the ACHD 
right-of-way. 

3. In accordance with District policy, 7203.3, the applicant may be required to update any existing non-
compliant pedestrian improvements abutting the site to meet current Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) requirements.  The applicant’s engineer should provide documentation of ADA compliance 
to District Development Review staff for review.   



 

 9      Mink Creek Subdivision / SPP19-0002 / PP-19-02 
 

4. Replace any existing damaged curb, gutter and sidewalk and any that may be damaged during the 
construction of the proposed development.  Contact Construction Services at 387-6280 (with file 
number) for details. 

5. A license agreement and compliance with the District’s Tree Planter policy is required for all 
landscaping proposed within ACHD right-of-way or easement areas.   

6. All utility relocation costs associated with improving street frontages abutting the site shall be borne 
by the developer. 

7. It is the responsibility of the applicant to verify all existing utilities within the right-of-way.  The 
applicant at no cost to ACHD shall repair existing utilities damaged by the applicant.  The applicant 
shall be required to call DIGLINE (1-811-342-1585) at least two full business days prior to breaking 
ground within ACHD right-of-way.  The applicant shall contact ACHD Traffic Operations 387-6190 
in the event any ACHD conduits (spare or filled) are compromised during any phase of construction. 

8. Utility street cuts in pavement less than five years old are not allowed unless approved in writing by 
the District.  Contact the District’s Utility Coordinator at 387-6258 (with file numbers) for details. 

9. All design and construction shall be in accordance with the ACHD Policy Manual, ISPWC Standards 
and approved supplements, Construction Services procedures and all applicable ACHD Standards 
unless specifically waived herein.  An engineer registered in the State of Idaho shall prepare and 
certify all improvement plans. 

10. Construction, use and property development shall be in conformance with all applicable 
requirements of ACHD prior to District approval for occupancy. 

11. No change in the terms and conditions of this approval shall be valid unless they are in writing and 
signed by the applicant or the applicant’s authorized representative and an authorized 
representative of ACHD.  The burden shall be upon the applicant to obtain written confirmation of 
any change from ACHD. 

12. If the site plan or use should change in the future, ACHD Planning Review will review the site plan 
and may require additional improvements to the transportation system at that time. Any change in 
the planned use of the property which is the subject of this application, shall require the applicant 
to comply with ACHD Policy and Standard Conditions of Approval in place at that time unless a 
waiver/variance of the requirements or other legal relief is granted by the ACHD Commission.   

F. Conclusions of Law 
1. The proposed site plan is approved, if all of the Site Specific and Standard Conditions of Approval 

are satisfied. 

2. ACHD requirements are intended to assure that the proposed use/development will not place an 
undue burden on the existing vehicular transportation system within the vicinity impacted by the 
proposed development. 

G. Attachments 
1. Vicinity Map 
2. Site Plan 
3. Utility Coordinating Council 
4. Development Process Checklist 
5. Request for Reconsideration Guidelines 

  



 

 10      Mink Creek Subdivision / SPP19-0002 / PP-19-02 
 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 11      Mink Creek Subdivision / SPP19-0002 / PP-19-02 
 

SITE PLAN 

 

 



 

 12      Mink Creek Subdivision / SPP19-0002 / PP-19-02 
 

Ada County Utility Coordinating Council 
 
 

Developer/Local Improvement District 
Right of Way Improvements Guideline Request 

 
 

 Purpose:  To develop the necessary avenue for proper notification to utilities of local highway and road 
improvements, to help the utilities in budgeting and to clarify the already existing process. 
 
 

1) Notification: Within five (5) working days upon notification of required right of way improvements 
by Highway entities, developers shall provide written notification to the affected utility owners and 
the Ada County Utility Coordinating Council (UCC). Notification shall include but not be limited to, 
project limits, scope of roadway improvements/project, anticipated construction dates, and any 
portions critical to the right of way improvements and coordination of utilities. 

 
2) Plan Review: The developer shall provide the highway entities and all utility owners with 

preliminary project plans and schedule a plan review conference.  Depending on the scale of 
utility improvements, a plan review conference may not be necessary, as determined by the utility 
owners. Conference notification shall also be sent to the UCC. During the review meeting the 
developer shall notify utilities of the status of right of way/easement acquisition necessary for their 
project. At the plan review conference each company shall have the right to appeal, adjust and/or 
negotiate with the developer on its own behalf. Each utility shall provide the developer with a letter 
of review indicating the costs and time required for relocation of its facilities. Said letter of review 
is to be provided within thirty calendar days after the date of the plan review conference.  

 
3) Revisions: The developer is responsible to provide utilities with any revisions to preliminary 

plans. Utilities may request an updated plan review meeting if revisions are made in the 
preliminary plans which affect the utility relocation requirements. Utilities shall have thirty days 
after receiving the revisions to review and comment thereon. 

 
4) Final Notification: The developer will provide highway entities, utility owners and the UCC with 

final notification of its intent to proceed with right of way improvements and include the anticipated 
date work will commence. This notification shall indicate that the work to be performed shall be 
pursuant to final approved plans by the highway entity. The developer shall schedule a 
preconstruction meeting prior to right of way improvements. Utility relocation activity shall be 
completed within the times established during the preconstruction meeting, unless otherwise 
agreed upon. 

 
Notification to the Ada County UCC can be sent to: 50 S. Cole Rd. Boise 83707, or Visit iducc.com 
for e-mail notification information.  

 
 

 



 

 13      Mink Creek Subdivision / SPP19-0002 / PP-19-02 
 

Development Process Checklist 
 
Items Completed to Date: 
 

Submit a development application to a City or to Ada County 
 

The City or the County will transmit the development application to ACHD 
 

The ACHD Planning Review Section will receive the development application to review 
 

The Planning Review Section will do one of the following: 
 

Send a “No Review” letter to the applicant stating that there are no site specific conditions of approval at 
this time. 

 

Write a Staff Level report analyzing the impacts of the development on the transportation system and 
evaluating the proposal for its conformance to District Policy. 

 

Write a Commission Level report analyzing the impacts of the development on the transportation system 
and evaluating the proposal for its conformance to District Policy. 

 

Items to be completed by Applicant: 
 

For ALL development applications, including those receiving a “No Review” letter: 

• The applicant should submit one set of engineered plans directly to ACHD for review by the Development 
Review Section for plan review and assessment of impact fees.  (Note:  if there are no site improvements 
required by ACHD, then architectural plans may be submitted for purposes of impact fee assessment.) 

• The applicant is required to get a permit from Construction Services (ACHD) for ANY work in the right-of-way, 
including, but not limited to, driveway approaches, street improvements and utility cuts.  

 

Pay Impact Fees prior to issuance of building permit.  Impact fees cannot be paid prior to plan review approval. 
 

DID YOU REMEMBER: 
Construction (Non-Subdivisions) 

 Driveway or Property Approach(s) 

• Submit a “Driveway Approach Request” form to ACHD Construction (for approval by Development Services & Traffic 
Services).  There is a one week turnaround for this approval. 

 

 Working in the ACHD Right-of-Way  

• Four business days prior to starting work have a bonded contractor submit a “Temporary Highway Use Permit 
Application” to ACHD Construction – Permits along with: 

a) Traffic Control Plan 
b) An Erosion & Sediment Control Narrative & Plat, done by a Certified Plan Designer, if trench is >50’ or you 

are placing >600 sf of concrete or asphalt. 
 

Construction (Subdivisions) 
 Sediment & Erosion Submittal 

• At least one week prior to setting up a Pre-Construction Meeting an Erosion & Sediment Control Narrative & Plan, done 
by a Certified Plan Designer, must be turned into ACHD Construction to be reviewed and approved by the ACHD 
Stormwater Section.  

  
 Idaho Power Company 

• Vic Steelman at Idaho Power must have his IPCO approved set of subdivision utility plans prior to Pre-Con being 
scheduled. 

 

 Final Approval from Development Services is required prior to scheduling a Pre-Con. 

 
 

 

 

 
 



 

 14      Mink Creek Subdivision / SPP19-0002 / PP-19-02 
 

Request for Reconsideration of Commission Action 
 
1. Request for Reconsideration of Commission Action:  A Commissioner, a member of ACHD 

staff or any other person objecting to any final action taken by the Commission may request 
reconsideration of that action, provided the request is not for a reconsideration of an action 
previously requested to be reconsidered, an action whose provisions have been partly and 
materially carried out, or an action that has created a contractual relationship with third parties. 

 
a. Only a Commission member who voted with the prevailing side can move for 

reconsideration, but the motion may be seconded by any Commissioner and is voted on 
by all Commissioners present.   

 
If a motion to reconsider is made and seconded it is subject to a motion to postpone to a 
certain time.  
 

b. The request must be in writing and delivered to the Secretary of the Highway District no 
later than 11:00 a.m. 2 days prior to the Commission’s next scheduled regular meeting 
following the meeting at which the action to be reconsidered was taken.  Upon receipt of 
the request, the Secretary shall cause the same to be placed on the agenda for that next 
scheduled regular Commission meeting.   

 
c. The request for reconsideration must be supported by written documentation setting forth 

new facts and information not presented at the earlier meeting, or a changed situation that 
has developed since the taking of the earlier vote, or information establishing an error of 
fact or law in the earlier action.  The request may also be supported by oral testimony at 
the meeting.  

 
d. If a motion to reconsider passes, the effect is the original matter is in the exact position it 

occupied the moment before it was voted on originally.  It will normally be returned to 
ACHD staff for further review.  The Commission may set the date of the meeting at which 
the matter is to be returned.  The Commission shall only take action on the original matter 
at a meeting where the agenda notice so provides.  

 
e. At the meeting where the original matter is again on the agenda for Commission action, 

interested persons and ACHD staff may present such written and oral testimony as the 
President of the Commission determines to be appropriate, and the Commission may take 
any action the majority of the Commission deems advisable. 

 
f. If a motion to reconsider passes, the applicant may be charged a reasonable fee, to cover 

administrative costs, as established by the Commission. 
 

 



  
A 

 

DAVIS PROPERTY - 1133 S. MAIN STREET – RZ-20-10 & DA-20-21 1 

 

  

             CITY OF STAR 
 

                   LAND USE STAFF REPORT 
 

 
TO:   Mayor & Council 

FROM:   Ryan B. Field, Assistant City Planner  

MEETING DATE: November 17, 2020 – PUBLIC HEARING 

FILE(S) #: RZ-20-10 Rezone 

 DA-20-21 

 1133 S. Main Street 

             

APPLICANT/REPRESENTATIVE/OWNER 

  

Applicant/Representative:      

Gordon Hiatt 

Idaho Premier Properties 

10478 W. Silver City Ct.  

Boise, ID 83704 

 

Owner:     Property Address: 

Robert C. & Patricia M. Davis   1133 S. Main Street 

1254 N. Little Camas Ave.   Star, ID  83669 

Star, ID  83669 

  

REQUEST 

  

Request:  The Applicant is seeking approval of a Rezone (to CBD) and a Development 

Agreement and concept plan for a proposed commercial use within the City of Star.  The 

property is located at 1133 S. Main Street in Star, Idaho, and consists of 2 acres. 

            

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

 

Property Location:   The subject property is generally located on the northeast corner of S. 

Star Road and S. Main.  Ada County Parcel No. R1842701420. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
A 

 

DAVIS PROPERTY - 1133 S. MAIN STREET – RZ-20-10 & DA-20-21 2 

 

   

Surrounding Land Use/Designations:  

 

 Zoning Designation Comp Plan Designation Land Use 

Existing Rural Transitional (RT) Central Business District Vacant – Pasture 

Proposed Central Business 

District (CBD) 

Central Business District Commercial, Retail 

North of site Residential (R-1) Central Business District Single Family Residential 

South of site Rural Transitional (RT) Central Business District Vacant 

East of site Rural Transitional (RT) Central Business District Single Family Residential 

West of site Rural Urban Transition 

(RUT) 

Central Business District Single Family 

Residential/Agricultural 

 

8-3A-4 Zoning District Dimensional Standards for Central District (CBD): 

 

Dimensional 
Standards   C-1   C-2   L-O   CBD   

Front Setback   0'   0'   20'   0'   

Rear Setback   20'   20'   20'   0'   

Interior Side Setback   0'   0'   0'   0'   

Street Side Setback   20'   20'   20'   0'   

Maximum Building 
Height   

35'    35’ 35’ 35’ 

Parking 
Requirements   

See Chapter 4, Article B, "Off Street Parking And Loading 
Requirements", of this title   

Landscape 
Requirements   

See Chapter 4, Article D, "Landscaping Requirements", of this 
title   

 

Existing Site Characteristics:  The property is currently used as pasture and is vacant. 

Irrigation/Drainage District(s):  Pioneer Ditch Co. LTD.  

Flood Zone:  This property is in Flood Zone X, outside of the special flood hazard area.  

Special On-Site Features: 

 Areas of Critical Environmental Concern – No known areas. 

 Evidence of Erosion – No known areas. 

 Fish Habitat – No known areas. 

 Mature Trees – Yes, 4 existing mature trees. 

 Riparian Vegetation – No known areas. 

 Steep Slopes – None. 



  
A 

 

DAVIS PROPERTY - 1133 S. MAIN STREET – RZ-20-10 & DA-20-21 3 

 

 Stream/Creek – None. 

 Unique Animal Life – No unique animal life has been identified. 

 Unique Plant Life – No unique plant life has been identified. 

 Unstable Soils – No known issues. 

 Wildlife Habitat – No wildlife habitat has been developed or will be destroyed. 

 Historical Assets – No historical assets have been observed.   

 

APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 

 

 Pre-Application Meeting Held  October 1, 2020  

 Neighborhood Meeting Held    October 14, 2020   

 Application Submitted & Fees Paid  October 21, 2020   

 Residents within 300’ Notified  October 22, 2020 

 Agencies Notified    October 22, 2020 

 Legal Notice Published   October 25, 2020 

 Property Posted     November 4, 2020 

 

HISTORY   

               

The property does not have any known land use history.  

 

CODE DEFINITIONS / COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE: 

 

Section 8-3A-1 - ZONING DISTRICTS AND PURPOSE ESTABLISHED 

 

District   Purpose 

Central 

Business 

District (CBD) 

To provide for commercial, retail, civic, office, and entertainment uses. High density 
housing is encouraged on the upper floors of mixed-use buildings and at the fringes 
of the land use designation shown on the comprehensive plan. Developments in this 
district are to place an emphasis on pedestrian and bicycle access and compatibility. 
Special emphasis shall be placed on development in the central downtown area to 
encourage and create a vibrant, walkable downtown community that incorporates 
the Boise River as an active amenity. 

 

 

 

 



  
A 

 

DAVIS PROPERTY - 1133 S. MAIN STREET – RZ-20-10 & DA-20-21 4 

 

TABLE 8-3A-3 - USES WITHIN ZONING DISTRICTS  

 



  
A 

 

DAVIS PROPERTY - 1133 S. MAIN STREET – RZ-20-10 & DA-20-21 5 

 

 



  
A 

 

DAVIS PROPERTY - 1133 S. MAIN STREET – RZ-20-10 & DA-20-21 6 

 

 



  
A 

 

DAVIS PROPERTY - 1133 S. MAIN STREET – RZ-20-10 & DA-20-21 7 

 

 



  
A 

 

DAVIS PROPERTY - 1133 S. MAIN STREET – RZ-20-10 & DA-20-21 8 

 

 
Notes: 

The table lists principal permitted (P), accessory uses (A), conditional (C), or prohibited (N) uses. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  

 

8.2.3 Land Use Map Designations: 

 

Central Business District 

 

The Central Business District is planned to be a vibrant downtown center for the 

community. Uses encouraged are commercial, retail, civic, private offices, and 

entertainment. High density housing is encouraged on the upper floors of mixed-use 

buildings and at the fringes of the land use designation. Developments in this district are 

to place an emphasis on pedestrian and bicycle access and compatibility. 

 

8.4 Objectives: 

 

• Implement the Land Use Map and associated policies as the official guide for 

development. 

• Manage urban sprawl in order to minimize costs of urban services and to protect 

rural areas. 

• Encourage land uses that are in harmony with existing resources, scenic areas, 

natural wildlife areas, and surrounding land uses. 

• Work to create a vibrant Central Business District. 

• Require the conservation and preservation of open spaces and public access to 

the Boise River and BLM lands and interconnected pathways to be open to the 

public in new developments.  

• Encourage commercial development that is consistent with a family friendly fee, 

not overburdening the community with big box and franchise uses and 

discourage development of strip commercial areas.  

 

8.5.5 Policies Related Mostly to the Central Business District Planning Areas: 

 

A. The CBD zoning district should allow for a mix of commercial, office, institutional,  

and civic type uses with specific provisions for residential use in appropriate locations 

with compatible densities. 



  
A 

 

DAVIS PROPERTY - 1133 S. MAIN STREET – RZ-20-10 & DA-20-21 9 

 

B. High density residential is suitable within the CBD in mixed use buildings with 

commercial or office type uses on the first floor and high density residential on upper 

floors. 

 

8.5.9 Additional Land Use Component Policies: 

 

• Encourage flexibility in site design and innovative land uses. 

• Encourage landscaping to enhance the appearance of subdivisions, structures, 

and parking areas. 

• Work with Ada County Highway District (ACHD), Canyon Highway District #4 

(CHD4), and Idaho Department of Transportation (ITD) for better coordination of 

roadway and access needs. 

• Support well-planned, pedestrian-friendly developments. 

• Dark sky provision should be adopted within the code to assure down style 

lighting in all developments and Star should consider joining the International 

Dark Sky Association. 

• The City should utilize the 2018 Treasure Valley Tree Selection Guide when 

requiring trees within developments. 

 

18.4 Implementation Policies: 

 

E. Development Agreements allow the city to enter into a contract with a developer upon 

rezoning. The Development Agreement may provide the city and the developer with 

certain assurances regarding the proposed development upon rezoning. 

 

PROJECT OVERVIEW 

 

REZONE & POTENTIAL LAND USES: 

 

The rezone from RT to CBD will allow for the property zoning to be consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and provide the applicant with the ability to market the property for 

commercial uses intended to be located within the Central Business District. At this time, the 

applicant states that an end user has not yet been determined. The rezone will allow the 

property as much flexibility as possible for the applicant to attract potential businesses. Future 

uses would be subject to additional review from the City, either as a Conditional Use Permit or 

as a Certificate of Zoning Compliance staff review. 

 

ADDITIONAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION: 

 

Site Development Plan: 

 

Streetlights - All future lighting, including streetlights and parking lot lighting will need to be 

reviewed by staff and will be required to meet all Dark Sky lighting standards that may apply. 



  
A 

 

DAVIS PROPERTY - 1133 S. MAIN STREET – RZ-20-10 & DA-20-21 10 

 

 

Sidewalks - With the surrounding properties also in the Central Business District and future 

development anticipated along South Main Street, providing safe pedestrian access and  

circulation to existing sidewalks through the Central Business District is a priority. Staff will 

require sidewalks be completed as part of any future development.  

 

Fire -The Star Fire District has not provided a review of this rezone request. Any new use will be 

required to meet all requirements of the District regarding access and safety.  

 

Land Uses – Specific land uses have not been proposed by the applicant as part of this 

application request. Future uses will need to be evaluated by staff , using the most current 

zoning ordinance, to determine if additional Council approval is necessary. This would be the 

case for any requested conditional uses in the CBD zone. 

 

AGENCY RESPONSES 

 

 Keller and Associates    Pending 

ACHD      November 5, 2020 

       

PUBLIC RESPONSES 

 

           No responses have been received from the public at this time. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS & RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

Staff is supportive of this proposal as submitted and believes that approval of this application by 

the Council will meet the intent of the Comprehensive Plan by encouraging continued economic 

growth in the Central Business District. Future uses will be required to meet the standards of the 

zoning ordinance that is in affect at the time of submittal for a future land use application, 

including conditional use permits and certificates of zoning compliance for principally permitted 

uses.  

 

A future development site plan will need to provide details regarding the following: 

           

• ACHD approval of S. Main Street Access  

• Landscape Plan – Street Trees, Buffer Landscaping 

• Streetlights 

• Fire District Approval 

• Parking Lot/Spaces 

 

 

 

 



  
A 

 

DAVIS PROPERTY - 1133 S. MAIN STREET – RZ-20-10 & DA-20-21 11 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

 

Through the Development Agreement process, the applicant is proposing to work with the City 

to provide further insurances that the development will be built as presented and/or modified 

by the Council through the review process. Items that can be considered by the applicant and 

Council include the following:  

 

• ITD Proportionate Share Fees; 

• Specific uses within the CBD zone that the Council may approve outright as part of 

the development agreement. The applicant has not proposed any specific uses at this 

time.  

 

Based upon the information provided to staff in the application and agency comments received 

to date, the proposed rezone meets the requirements, standards and intent for a rezone as it 

relates to the Comprehensive Plan and Unified Development Code. The Council should consider 

the entire record and testimony presented at their scheduled public hearing prior to rendering 

its decision on the matter. Should the Council vote to approve the application, either as 

presented or with added or revised conditions of approval, Council shall direct staff to draft 

findings of fact and conclusions of law for the Council to consider at a future date. 

 

 

FINDINGS 

 

The Council may approve, conditionally approve, deny or table this request.  In order to 

approve these applications, the Unified Development Code requires that Council must find the 

following: 

 

REZONE FINDINGS: 

 

1.  The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 The purpose of the Star Comprehensive Plan is to promote the health, safety, and 
general welfare of the people of the City of Star and its Impact Area.  Some of the prime 

objectives of the Comprehensive Plan include: 

✓ Protection of property rights. 

✓ Adequate public facilities and services are provided to the people at reasonable 

cost. 

✓ Ensure the local economy is protected. 

✓ Encourage urban and urban-type development and overcrowding of land. 

✓ Ensure development is commensurate with the physical characteristics of the 

land. 

The goal of the Comprehensive Plan for the Central Business District is to encourage a 

vibrant downtown center for the community. Uses encouraged are commercial, retail, 
civic, private offices, and entertainment. High density housing is encouraged on the 

upper floors of mixed-use buildings and at the fringes of the land use designation. 



  
A 

 

DAVIS PROPERTY - 1133 S. MAIN STREET – RZ-20-10 & DA-20-21 12 

 

Developments in this district are to place an emphasis on pedestrian and bicycle access 

and compatibility. The City must find compliance with the intent of the Comprehensive 

Plan. 

 

2.  The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed district,  

     specifically, the purposes statement. 

 The City must find that the proposal complies with the proposed district and purpose 

statement. The purpose statement provides for allowed uses to include small scale retail, 

public, quasi-public and adaptive reuse of residential structures. 

 

3.  The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and  

     welfare; and 

 The City must find that there is no indication from the material submitted by any 

political agency stating that the zoning of this property will be materially detrimental to 

the public health, safety or welfare.   

 

4.  The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services by  

     any political subdivision providing public services within the city including, but not limited to,  

     school districts. 

The City must find that it has not been presented with any information from agencies 

having jurisdiction indicating that public services will be adversely impacted, other than 

traffic, which will continue to be impacted as the City grows. 

 

5.  The annexation is in the best interest of the city. 

The property is already within the City limits. The City must find  that this rezone is 

reasonably necessary for the orderly development of the City. 

  

COUNCIL DECISION 

 

The Star City Council ________________ File #RZ-20-10/DA-20-21 for Robert C. & Patricia M. Davis  

– 1133 S. Main Street, Star, ID  83669 Rezone on ________________ ____, 2020. 







PARCEL A

87,121 Sq Ft

2.00 Ac.

LOT 73

LEONARD L. PARKS

LOT 28

MILES R. REAY

N
O

R
T

H
 
S

T
A

R
 
R

O
A

D

LOT 74

PARCEL B

89.735 Sq Ft

2.06 Ac.

S

O

U

T

H

 

M

A

I

N

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

SS

SS SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

BUILDING A

7,110.25 SF.

C
A

L
L

 
2

 
B

U
S

I
N

E
S

S
 
D

A
Y

S

I
N

 
A

D
V

A
N

C
E

 
B

E
F

O
R

E

Y
O

U
 
D

I
G

,
 
G

R
A

D
E

,
 
O

R

E
X

C
A

V
A

T
E

 
F

O
R

 
T

H
E

M
A

R
K

I
N

G
 
O

F

U
N

D
E

R
G

R
O

U
N

D

M
E

M
B

E
R

 
U

T
I
L

I
T

I
E

S

 
C

a
l
l
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
y
o
u
 
d
i
g
.

K
n
o
w

 
w

h
a
t
'
s
 
b
e
l
o
w

.

R

So
ut

h 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e 

P.
C.

D
b

a
 
So

ut
h 

Be
ck

 &
 B

ai
rd

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e 

P.
C.

20
02

 S.
 V

ist
a A

ve
Bo

ise
, I

D 
83

70
5

20
8.

34
2.

29
99

 O
ffi

ce
inf
o@

sb
bg
o.c

om
ww

w.
sb
bg
o.c

om

All rights reserved.  Reproduction or use in any

form or by any means without written permission of

South Landscape Architecture P.C. Dba South

Beck & Baird Landscape Architecture P.C. is

unlawful and subject to criminal prosecution.

No. Date Description

T
H

E
 
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

I
O

N
A

L
 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
S

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

I
O

N
A

L
 
A

R
E

 
U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 
F

O
R

 
A

N
D

 
A

R
E

 
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

E
D

 
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
I
N

T
E

R
E

S
T

 
O

F
 
"
T

H
E

 
C

L
I
E

N
T

"
 
N

O
 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
U

A
L

 
O

B
L

I
G

A
T

I
O

N
 
I
S

 
A

S
S

U
M

E
D

 
B

Y
 
T

H
E

 
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

I
O

N
A

L
 
F

O
R

 
T

H
E

 
B

E
N

E
F

I
T

 
O

F
 
A

N
Y

 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

E
R

S
O

N
 
I
N

V
O

L
V

E
D

 
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

.

L1.00

10/20/2020

FO

S CA P E ARCH
I T

EC
T

DNAL
DES

NE
C I

L

ETATS

IDAHOD.HOJ

OTER
RN S

LA - 16827

Parcel: R1842701420

Primary Owner: DAVIS ROBERT C

Zone Code: RT

Address: 1133 S MAIN ST STAR , ID 83669

Subdivision: DICKSONS SUB

Township/Range/Section: 4N1W17

Property Description:

PAR #1420 OF LOT 74

DICKSONS SUB

#1411-S

Property Data:

Total Area:  2.0 Acres

PROPERTY DATA:

SITE LOCATION MAP

SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°01'22"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIS OF BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°43'52"E2635.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1973.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°13'23"W202.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 51°59'50"W457.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°01'22"E327.62''

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°43'03"W 112.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°43'23"E112.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 02°58'40"E  117.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°01'22"E327.62''

AutoCAD SHX Text
N23D09'00"E	249.45'249.45''

AutoCAD SHX Text
N51^o8'24"W	282.71'282.71''

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT LOADING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
USER:JOHN ROTERS  LOCATION:W:\PROJECTS\CITY OF STAR\20-082 1133 S MAIN STREET\CAD\SHEETS\20-082 1133 S MAIN LANDSCAPE PLAN.DWG PRINT DATE:10/20/2020 6:39 PMJOHN ROTERS  LOCATION:W:\PROJECTS\CITY OF STAR\20-082 1133 S MAIN STREET\CAD\SHEETS\20-082 1133 S MAIN LANDSCAPE PLAN.DWG PRINT DATE:10/20/2020 6:39 PM  LOCATION:W:\PROJECTS\CITY OF STAR\20-082 1133 S MAIN STREET\CAD\SHEETS\20-082 1133 S MAIN LANDSCAPE PLAN.DWG PRINT DATE:10/20/2020 6:39 PMW:\PROJECTS\CITY OF STAR\20-082 1133 S MAIN STREET\CAD\SHEETS\20-082 1133 S MAIN LANDSCAPE PLAN.DWG PRINT DATE:10/20/2020 6:39 PM PRINT DATE:10/20/2020 6:39 PM10/20/2020 6:39 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAMP:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Copyright    2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1133 S MAIN ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAR, ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/20/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM

AutoCAD SHX Text
20-082

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE MASETR PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 30'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE MASTER PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



  

                                  



 1     DRAFT Subdivision Name/ Trak It #/ City 
Application #s 
 

Development Services Department 

 
Project/File:  Rezone / STAR20-0009 / RZ-20-10 / DA-20-21 

This is an application to rezone a 2-acre parcel to a Central Business District and a 
Development Agreement for a proposed commercial use.   

Lead Agency: City of Star 

Site address:  1133 S. Main Street 

Staff Approval: November 5, 2020 

Applicant: Gordon Hiatt  
 10478 W Silver City Ct.  
 Boise, ID 83704 
 
Owner: Robert and Patricia Davis  
 1245 N Little Camas Ave 
 Star, ID 83669 
  
Representative: Same as applicant.  
  
Staff Contact:  Brenna Garro 
 Phone: 387-6346 
 E-mail: bgarro@achdidaho.org  

A.  Findings of Fact 

1. Description of Application:   The applicant is requesting approval of a rezone from a RT (Rural 
Transitional District) to a CBD (Central Business District) along with a Development Agreement 
for a proposed commercial use and concept plan located on 2 acres at the northeast corner of S. 
Star Road and S. Main Street in Star, Idaho. The applicant’s proposal is consistent with the City 
of Star’s Comprehensive Plan.  

 
2.  Description of Adjacent Surrounding Area: 

Direction Land Use Zoning 

North Low Density Residential District  R-1 

South Rural Transitional District  RT 

East Park Public  

West Rural Urban Transition (Ada County) RUT 

 

3. Site History:  ACHD has not previously reviewed this site for a development application. 

4. Transit:  Transit services are not available to serve this site.   

5. New Center Lane Miles:  The proposed development includes 0.0 centerline miles of new public 
road. 

mailto:bgarro@achdidaho.org


 2      DRAFT Subdivision Name/ Trak It #/ City 
Application #s 
 

6. Impact Fees: There will be an impact fee that is assessed and due prior to issuance of any building 
permits. The assessed impact fee will be based on the impact fee ordinance that is in effect at that 
time. The impact fee assessment will not be released until the civil plans are approved by ACHD. 

7. Capital Improvements Plan (CIP)/ Integrated Five Year Work Plan (IFYWP): 

• Star Road is scheduled in the IFYWP to have a sidewalk constructed on the west side of the 
roadway from Main Street to State Street (SH 44). This includes enhanced crossing at Star 
Road and Main Street Design beginning in 2025. 

• Star Road is listed in the CIP to be widened to 5-lanes from Chinden Boulevard (US 20/26) to 
State Street (SH 44) between 2031 and 2035. 

• The intersection of State Street (SH 44) and Star Road is listed in the CIP to be widened to 4-
lanes on the north leg, 5-lanes on the south, 6-lanes east, and 6-lanes on the west leg, and 
signalized between 2026 and 2030. 

• The intersection of Chinden Boulevard (US 20/26) and Star Road is listed in the CIP to be 
widened to 5-lanes on the north leg, 5-lanes on the south, 7-lanes east, and 7-lanes on the 
west leg, and signalized between 2031 and 2035. 

8. Roadways to Bikeways Master Plan:  ACHD’s Roadways to Bikeways Master Plan (BMP) was 
adopted by the ACHD Commission in May of 2009 and was update in 2018.  The plan seeks to 
implement the Planned Bicycle Network to support bicycling as a viable transportation option for 
Ada County residents with a wide range of ages and abilities,  maintain bicycle routes in a state of 
good repair in order to ensure they are consistently available for use, promote awareness of existing 
bicycle routes and features and support encouragement programs and to  facilitate coordination 
and cooperation among local jurisdictions in implementing the Roadways to Bikeways Plan 
recommendations. 

The BMP identifies Star Road as Level 3 facilities that will be constructed as part of a future ACHD 
project.   

The BMP identifies Main Street as Level 1 facilities that will be constructed as part of a future 
development application.  

B.  Traffic Findings for Consideration 
1. Trip Generation:  The following table includes trip generation rates for anticipated land uses, based 

on the Institute of Transportation Engineers Trip Generation Manual, 10th edition.   

 

2. Condition of Area Roadways 
Traffic Count is based on Vehicles per hour (VPH) 

Land Use 
Unit of 

Measurement 
Average Daily 

Trips 
PM Peak Hour Trip 

Generation 

Multifamily Housing (1-2 stories)  Per Dwelling Unit 7.32 0.56 

General Office 
Per 1,000 square 

feet 
9.74 1.15 

Shopping Center 
Per 1,000 square 

feet 
37.75 3.81 

High-Turnover (Sit-Down) 
Restaurant 

Per 1,000 Square 
feet 

112.18 9.77 

Fast Casual Restaurant 
Per 1,000 square 

feet 
315.17 14.13 



 3      DRAFT Subdivision Name/ Trak It #/ City 
Application #s 
 

 

* Acceptable level of service for a two-lane minor arterial is “E” (575 VPH). 
  

3. Average Daily Traffic Count (VDT) 
Average daily traffic counts are based on ACHD’s most current traffic counts. 

• The average daily traffic count for Star Road south of State Street (SH 44) was 11,721 on 
September 9th, 2020.   

• There are no current traffic counts for Main Street.  

C. Findings for Consideration 

This application is for a rezone only. Listed below are some finding for consideration that the District 
may identify when it reviews a future development application. The District may add additional 
findings when it reviews a specific development application.  

1. Star Road 
a. Existing Conditions:  Star Road is improved with 2-travel lanes and no curb, gutter or sidewalk 

abutting the site.  There is 133 to 150-feet of right-of-way for Star Road (76-feet from centerline). 

b. Policy: 
Arterial Roadway Policy:  District Policy 7205.2.1 states that the developer is responsible for 
improving all street frontages adjacent to the site regardless of whether or not access is taken 
to all of the adjacent streets. 

Master Street Map and Typology Policy:  District Policy 7205.5 states that the design of 
improvements for arterials shall be in accordance with District standards, including the Master 
Street Map and Livable Streets Design Guide.  The developer or engineer should contact the 
District before starting any design.   

Street Section and Right-of-Way Width Policy:  District Policies 7205.2.1 & 7205.5.2 state 
that the standard 5-lane street section shall be 72-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb) within 96-
feet of right-of-way. This width typically accommodates two travel lanes in each direction, a 
continuous center left-turn lane, and bike lanes on a minor arterial and a safety shoulder on a 
principal arterial. 

Right-of-Way Dedication:  District Policy 7205.2 states that The District will provide 
compensation for additional right-of-way dedicated beyond the existing right-of-way along 
arterials listed as impact fee eligible in the adopted Capital Improvements Plan using available 
impact fee revenue in the Impact Fee Service Area. 

No compensation will be provided for right-of-way on an arterial that is not listed as impact fee 
eligible in the Capital Improvements Plan.  

The District may acquire additional right-of-way beyond the site-related needs to preserve a 
corridor for future capacity improvements, as provided in Section 7300. 

Roadway Frontage 
Functional 

Classification 

PM Peak 
Hour 

Traffic Count 

PM Peak Hour Level of 
Service 

 Star Road 278-feet Minor Arterial  562 Better Than “E” 

 Main Street 494-feet Local N/A N/A 



 4      DRAFT Subdivision Name/ Trak It #/ City 
Application #s 
 

Sidewalk Policy: District Policy 7205.5.7 requires a concrete sidewalk at least 5-feet wide to 
be constructed on both sides of all arterial streets.  A parkway strip at least 6-feet wide between 
the back-of-curb and street edge of the sidewalk is required to provide increased safety and 
protection of pedestrians.  Consult the District’s planter width policy if trees are to be placed 
within the parkway strip.  Sidewalks constructed next to the back-of-curb shall be a minimum of 
7-feet wide. 

Detached sidewalks are encouraged and should be parallel to the adjacent roadway. 
Meandering sidewalks are discouraged.   

A permanent right-of-way easement shall be provided if public sidewalks are placed outside of 
the dedicated right-of-way.  The easement shall encompass the entire area between the right-
of-way line and 2-feet behind the back edge of the sidewalk.  Sidewalks shall either be located 
wholly within the public right-of-way or wholly within an easement. 

Frontage Improvements Policy: District Policy 7205.2.1 states that the developer shall widen 
the pavement to a minimum of 17-feet from centerline plus a 3-foot wide gravel shoulder 
adjacent to the entire site.  Curb, gutter and additional pavement widening may be required 
(See Section 7205.5.5). 

ACHD Master Street Map:  ACHD Policy Section 3111.1 requires the Master Street Map 
(MSM) guide the right-of-way acquisition, arterial street requirements, and specific roadway 
features required through development.  This segment of Star Road is designated in the MSM 
as a Residential Arterial with 5-lanes and on-street bike lanes, a 72-feet street section within 
100-feet of right-of-way. 

c. Staff Comments/Recommendations: As part of a future development application, the 
applicant should be required to construct a 5-foot wide detached concrete sidewalk located a 
minimum of 41-feet from the centerline of Star Road abutting the site.  The pavement on Star 
Road should be required to widen 17-feet from the center line of the roadway with a 3-feet wide 
gravel shoulder where it doesn’t currently exist abutting the site with the future development 
application. There is already 133 to 150-feet of right-of-way existing on Star Road abutting the 
site consistent with the MSM. Therefore, staff recommends no further right-of-way dedication 
be required for the future development application.  

2. Main Street  
a. Existing Conditions: Main Street is improved with 2-travel lanes and no curb, gutter, or 

sidewalk abutting the site.  There is 47-feet of prescriptive right-of-way for Main Street (23-feet 
from centerline). 

b. Policy: 
Local Roadway Policy: District Policy 7207.2.1 states that the developer is responsible for 
improving all local street frontages adjacent to the site regardless of whether or not access is 
taken to all of the adjacent streets.   

Street Section and Right-of-Way Policy: District Policy 7207.5 states that right-of-way widths 
for all local streets shall generally not be less than 47-feet wide and that the standard street 
section shall be 33-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb). 

Standard Urban Local Street—33-foot Street Section and Right-of-way Policy:  District 
Policy 7207.5.2 states that the standard street section shall be 33-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-
curb) for developments with any buildable lot that is less than 1 acre in size.  This street section 
shall include curb, gutter, and minimum 5-foot wide concrete sidewalks on both sides and shall 
typically be constructed within 47-feet of right-of-way. 

For the City of Kuna and City of Star:  Unless otherwise approved by Kuna or Star, the standard 
street section shall be 36-feet (back-of-curb to back-of-curb) for developments with any 



 5      DRAFT Subdivision Name/ Trak It #/ City 
Application #s 
 

buildable lot that is less than 1 acre in size.  This street section shall include curb, gutter, and 
minimum 5-foot wide concrete sidewalks on both sides and shall typically be constructed within 
50-feet of right-of-way. 

Sidewalk Policy:  District Policy 7207.5.7 states that five-foot wide concrete sidewalk is 
required on both sides of all local street, except those in rural developments with net densities 
of one dwelling unit per 1.0 acre or less, or in hillside conditions where there is no direct lot 
frontage, in which case a sidewalk shall be constructed along one side of the street.  Some local 
jurisdictions may require wider sidewalks. 

The sidewalk may be placed next to the back-of-curb.  Where feasible, a parkway strip at least 
8-feet wide between the back-of-curb and the street edge of the sidewalk is recommended to 
provide increased safety and protection of pedestrians and to allow for the planting of trees in 
accordance with the District’s Tree Planting Policy.  If no trees are to be planted in the parkway 
strip, the applicant may submit a request to the District, with justification, to reduce the width of 
the parkway strip. 

Detached sidewalks are encouraged and should be parallel to the adjacent roadway. 
Meandering sidewalks are discouraged.   

A permanent right-of-way easement shall be provided if public sidewalks are placed outside of 
the dedicated right-of-way.  The easement shall encompass the entire area between the right-
of-way line and 2-feet behind the back edge of the sidewalk.  Sidewalks shall either be located 
wholly within the public right-of-way or wholly within an easement. 

c. Staff Comments/Recommendations:  As part of a future development application the 
applicant will be required to construct Main Street  as one half of a 36-feet wide local street 
section with curb, gutter, and 5-feet wide concrete sidewalk.. Right-of-way dedication to total 
25-feet from the center line of Main Street will be required.  Where the site encompasses the 
entirety of Main Street, Main Street will also be required with the future development application 
to be improved as a 36-feet wide local street section with curb, gutter, and 5-feet wide sidewalk 
within 50-feet of right-of-way.  

3. Driveways 
Main Street  

a. Existing Conditions: There is an existing 16-feet unpaved driveway onto Main Street along the 
southern property line 25-feet southeast of the western property line. 

b. Policy: 
Driveway Location Policy: District policy 7207.4.1 requires driveways near intersections to be 
located a minimum of 75-feet (measured centerline-to-centerline) from the nearest local street 
intersection, and 150-feet from the nearest collector or arterial street intersection. 

Successive Driveways:  District Policy 7207.4.1 states that successive driveways away from an 
intersection shall have no minimum spacing requirements for access points along a local street, 
but the District does encourage shared access points where appropriate. 

Driveway Width Policy:  District policy 7207.4.3 states that where vertical curbs are required, 
residential driveways shall be restricted to a maximum width of 20-feet and may be constructed 
as curb-cut type driveways. 

Driveway Paving Policy:  Graveled driveways abutting public streets create maintenance 
problems due to gravel being tracked onto the roadway.  In accordance with District policy, 
7207.4.3, the applicant should be required to pave the driveway its full width and at least 30-feet 
into the site beyond the edge of pavement of the roadway. 



 6      DRAFT Subdivision Name/ Trak It #/ City 
Application #s 
 

c. Applicant’s Proposal: The applicant is proposing to construct a new driveway 98-feet from the 
west property line on the south property line that fronts Main Street.  

d. Staff Comments/Recommendations: The applicant’s proposal meets district policy and will be 
subject to the district policy listed above with the future development application.  

4. Tree Planters 
Tree Planter Policy:  Tree Planter Policy: The District’s Tree Planter Policy prohibits all trees in 
planters less than 8-feet in width without the installation of root barriers. Class II trees may be 
allowed in planters with a minimum width of 8-feet, and Class I and Class III trees may be allowed 
in planters with a minimum width of 10-feet. 

5. Landscaping 
Landscaping Policy: A license agreement is required for all landscaping proposed within ACHD 
right-of-way or easement areas.  Trees shall be located no closer than 10-feet from all public storm 
drain facilities.  Landscaping should be designed to eliminate site obstructions in the vision triangle 
at intersections.  District Policy 5104.3.1 requires a 40-foot vision triangle and a 3-foot height 
restriction on all landscaping located at an uncontrolled intersection and a 50-foot offset from stop 
signs.  Landscape plans are required with the submittal of civil plans and must meet all District 
requirements prior to signature of the final plat and/or approval of the civil plans. 

D. Site Specific Conditions of Approval 
This application is for a rezone only.  Site specific conditions of approval will be established as 
part of the future development application. 

1. Payment of impact fees is due prior to issuance of a building permit. 

2. Comply with all Standard Conditions of Approval. 

E.  Standard Conditions of Approval 
1. All proposed irrigation facilities shall be located outside of the ACHD right-of-way (including all 

easements).  Any existing irrigation facilities shall be relocated outside of the ACHD right-of-way 
(including all easements).  

2. Private Utilities including sewer or water systems are prohibited from being located within the ACHD 
right-of-way. 

3. In accordance with District policy, 7203.3, the applicant may be required to update any existing non-
compliant pedestrian improvements abutting the site to meet current Americans with Disabilities 
Act (ADA) requirements.  The applicant’s engineer should provide documentation of ADA 
compliance to District Development Review staff for review.   

4. Replace any existing damaged curb, gutter and sidewalk and any that may be damaged during the 
construction of the proposed development.  Contact Construction Services at 387-6280 (with file 
number) for details. 

5. A license agreement and compliance with the District’s Tree Planter policy is required for all 
landscaping proposed within ACHD right-of-way or easement areas.   

6. All utility relocation costs associated with improving street frontages abutting the site shall be borne 
by the developer. 

7. It is the responsibility of the applicant to verify all existing utilities within the right-of-way.  The 
applicant at no cost to ACHD shall repair existing utilities damaged by the applicant.  The applicant 
shall be required to call DIGLINE (1-811-342-1585) at least two full business days prior to breaking 
ground within ACHD right-of-way.  The applicant shall contact ACHD Traffic Operations 387-6190 
in the event any ACHD conduits (spare or filled) are compromised during any phase of construction. 



 7      DRAFT Subdivision Name/ Trak It #/ City 
Application #s 
 

8. Utility street cuts in pavement less than five years old are not allowed unless approved in writing by 
the District.  Contact the District’s Utility Coordinator at 387-6258 (with file numbers) for details. 

9. All design and construction shall be in accordance with the ACHD Policy Manual, ISPWC Standards 
and approved supplements, Construction Services procedures and all applicable ACHD Standards 
unless specifically waived herein.  An engineer registered in the State of Idaho shall prepare and 
certify all improvement plans. 

10. Construction, use and property development shall be in conformance with all applicable 
requirements of ACHD prior to District approval for occupancy. 

11. No change in the terms and conditions of this approval shall be valid unless they are in writing and 
signed by the applicant or the applicant’s authorized representative and an authorized 
representative of ACHD.  The burden shall be upon the applicant to obtain written confirmation of 
any change from ACHD. 

12. If the site plan or use should change in the future, ACHD Planning Review will review the site plan 
and may require additional improvements to the transportation system at that time. Any change in 
the planned use of the property which is the subject of this application, shall require the applicant 
to comply with ACHD Policy and Standard Conditions of Approval in place at that time unless a 
waiver/variance of the requirements or other legal relief is granted by the ACHD Commission.   

F. Conclusions of Law 
1. The proposed site plan is approved, if all of the Site Specific and Standard Conditions of Approval 

are satisfied. 

2. ACHD requirements are intended to assure that the proposed use/development will not place an 
undue burden on the existing vehicular transportation system within the vicinity impacted by the 
proposed development. 

G. Attachments 
1. Vicinity Map 
2. Site Plan 
3. Utility Coordinating Council 
4. Development Process Checklist 
5. Request for Reconsideration Guidelines OR Appeal Guidelines 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 8      DRAFT Subdivision Name/ Trak It #/ City 
Application #s 
 

 
 
 

 
VICINITY MAP 

 



 9      DRAFT Subdivision Name/ Trak It #/ City 
Application #s 
 

 
 
 



 10      DRAFT Subdivision Name/ Trak It #/ City 
Application #s 
 

SITE PLAN 

 
 



 11      DRAFT Subdivision Name/ Trak It #/ City 
Application #s 
 

Ada County Utility Coordinating Council 
 
 

Developer/Local Improvement District 
Right of Way Improvements Guideline Request 

 
 

  Purpose:  To develop the necessary avenue for proper notification to utilities of local highway and 
road improvements, to help the utilities in budgeting and to clarify the already existing process. 
 
 

1) Notification: Within five (5) working days upon notification of required right of way improvements 
by Highway entities, developers shall provide written notification to the affected utility owners and 
the Ada County Utility Coordinating Council (UCC). Notification shall include but not be limited to, 
project limits, scope of roadway improvements/project, anticipated construction dates, and any 
portions critical to the right of way improvements and coordination of utilities. 

 
2) Plan Review: The developer shall provide the highway entities and all utility owners with 

preliminary project plans and schedule a plan review conference.  Depending on the scale of 
utility improvements, a plan review conference may not be necessary, as determined by the utility 
owners. Conference notification shall also be sent to the UCC. During the review meeting the 
developer shall notify utilities of the status of right of way/easement acquisition necessary for their 
project. At the plan review conference each company shall have the right to appeal, adjust and/or 
negotiate with the developer on its own behalf. Each utility shall provide the developer with a letter 
of review indicating the costs and time required for relocation of its facilities. Said letter of review 
is to be provided within thirty calendar days after the date of the plan review conference.  

 
3) Revisions: The developer is responsible to provide utilities with any revisions to preliminary 

plans. Utilities may request an updated plan review meeting if revisions are made in the 
preliminary plans which affect the utility relocation requirements. Utilities shall have thirty days 
after receiving the revisions to review and comment thereon. 

 
4) Final Notification: The developer will provide highway entities, utility owners and the UCC with 

final notification of its intent to proceed with right of way improvements and include the anticipated 
date work will commence. This notification shall indicate that the work to be performed shall be 
pursuant to final approved plans by the highway entity. The developer shall schedule a 
preconstruction meeting prior to right of way improvements. Utility relocation activity shall be 
completed within the times established during the preconstruction meeting, unless otherwise 
agreed upon. 

 
Notification to the Ada County UCC can be sent to: 50 S. Cole Rd. Boise 83707, or Visit iducc.com 
for e-mail notification information.  

 
 

 



 12      DRAFT Subdivision Name/ Trak It #/ City 
Application #s 
 

Development Process Checklist 
 
Items Completed to Date: 
 

Submit a development application to a City or to Ada County 
 

The City or the County will transmit the development application to ACHD 
 

The ACHD Planning Review Section will receive the development application to review 
 

The Planning Review Section will do one of the following: 
 

Send a “No Review” letter to the applicant stating that there are no site specific conditions of approval at 
this time. 

 

Write a Staff Level report analyzing the impacts of the development on the transportation system and 
evaluating the proposal for its conformance to District Policy. 

 

Write a Commission Level report analyzing the impacts of the development on the transportation system 
and evaluating the proposal for its conformance to District Policy. 

 

Items to be completed by Applicant: 
 

For ALL development applications, including those receiving a “No Review” letter: 

• The applicant should submit one set of engineered plans directly to ACHD for review by the Development 
Review Section for plan review and assessment of impact fees.  (Note:  if there are no site improvements 
required by ACHD, then architectural plans may be submitted for purposes of impact fee assessment.) 

• The applicant is required to get a permit from Construction Services (ACHD) for ANY work in the right-of-way, 
including, but not limited to, driveway approaches, street improvements and utility cuts.  

 

Pay Impact Fees prior to issuance of building permit.  Impact fees cannot be paid prior to plan review approval. 
 

DID YOU REMEMBER: 
Construction (Non-Subdivisions) 

 Driveway or Property Approach(s) 

• Submit a “Driveway Approach Request” form to ACHD Construction (for approval by Development Services & Traffic 
Services).  There is a one week turnaround for this approval. 

 

 Working in the ACHD Right-of-Way  

• Four business days prior to starting work have a bonded contractor submit a “Temporary Highway Use Permit 
Application” to ACHD Construction – Permits along with: 

a) Traffic Control Plan 
b) An Erosion & Sediment Control Narrative & Plat, done by a Certified Plan Designer, if trench is >50’ or you 

are placing >600 sf of concrete or asphalt. 
 

Construction (Subdivisions) 
 Sediment & Erosion Submittal 

• At least one week prior to setting up a Pre-Construction Meeting an Erosion & Sediment Control Narrative & Plan, done 
by a Certified Plan Designer, must be turned into ACHD Construction to be reviewed and approved by the ACHD 
Stormwater Section.  

  
 Idaho Power Company 

• Vic Steelman at Idaho Power must have his IPCO approved set of subdivision utility plans prior to Pre-Con being 
scheduled. 

 

 Final Approval from Development Services is required prior to scheduling a Pre-Con. 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 13      DRAFT Subdivision Name/ Trak It #/ City 
Application #s 
 

Request for Appeal of Staff Decision 
 
1. Appeal of Staff Decision:  The Commission shall hear and decide appeals by an applicant of 

the final decision made by the Development Services Manager when it is alleged that the 
Development Services Manager did not properly apply this section 7101.6, did not consider all of 
the relevant facts presented, made an error of fact or law, abused discretion or acted arbitrarily 
and capriciously in the interpretation or enforcement of the ACHD Policy Manual. 

 
a. Filing Fee:  The Commission may, from time to time, set reasonable fees to be charged 

the applicant for the processing of appeals, to cover administrative costs. 
 

b. Initiation:  An appeal is initiated by the filing of a written notice of appeal with the Secretary 
and Clerk of the District, which must be filed within ten (10) working days from the date of 
the decision that is the subject of the appeal.  The notice of appeal shall refer to the 
decision being appealed, identify the appellant by name, address and telephone number 
and state the grounds for the appeal. The grounds shall include a written summary of the 
provisions of the policy relevant to the appeal and/or the facts and law relied upon and 
shall include a written argument in support of the appeal.  The Commission shall not 
consider a notice of appeal that does not comply with the provisions of this subsection.  
 

c. Time to Reply:  The Development Services Manager shall have ten (10) working days 
from the date of the filing of the notice of appeal to reply to the notice of the appeal, and 
may during such time meet with the appellant to discuss the matter, and may also consider 
and/or modify the decision that is being appealed. A copy of the reply and any 
modifications to the decision being appealed will be provided to the appellant prior to the 
Commission hearing on the appeal.   
 

d. Notice of Hearing:  Unless otherwise agreed to by the appellant, the hearing of the appeal 
will be noticed and scheduled on the Commission agenda at a regular meeting to be held 
within thirty (30) days following the delivery to the appellant of the Development Services 
Manager’s reply to the notice of appeal. A copy of the decision being appealed, the notice 
of appeal and the reply shall be delivered to the Commission at least one (1) week prior 
to the hearing. 
 

e. Action by Commission:  Following the hearing, the Commission shall either affirm or 
reverse, in whole or part, or otherwise modify, amend or supplement the decision being 
appealed, as such action is adequately supported by the law and evidence presented at 
the hearing. 



 14      DRAFT Subdivision Name/ Trak It #/ City 
Application #s 
 

Request for Reconsideration of Commission Action 
 
1. Request for Reconsideration of Commission Action:  A Commissioner, a member of ACHD 

staff or any other person objecting to any final action taken by the Commission may request 
reconsideration of that action, provided the request is not for a reconsideration of an action 
previously requested to be reconsidered, an action whose provisions have been partly and 
materially carried out, or an action that has created a contractual relationship with third parties. 

 
a. Only a Commission member who voted with the prevailing side can move for 

reconsideration, but the motion may be seconded by any Commissioner and is voted on 
by all Commissioners present.   

 
If a motion to reconsider is made and seconded it is subject to a motion to postpone to a 
certain time.  
 

b. The request must be in writing and delivered to the Secretary of the Highway District no 
later than 11:00 a.m. 2 days prior to the Commission’s next scheduled regular meeting 
following the meeting at which the action to be reconsidered was taken.  Upon receipt of 
the request, the Secretary shall cause the same to be placed on the agenda for that next 
scheduled regular Commission meeting.   

 
c. The request for reconsideration must be supported by written documentation setting forth 

new facts and information not presented at the earlier meeting, or a changed situation that 
has developed since the taking of the earlier vote, or information establishing an error of 
fact or law in the earlier action.  The request may also be supported by oral testimony at 
the meeting.  

 
d. If a motion to reconsider passes, the effect is the original matter is in the exact position it 

occupied the moment before it was voted on originally.  It will normally be returned to 
ACHD staff for further review.  The Commission may set the date of the meeting at which 
the matter is to be returned.  The Commission shall only take action on the original matter 
at a meeting where the agenda notice so provides.  

 
e. At the meeting where the original matter is again on the agenda for Commission action, 

interested persons and ACHD staff may present such written and oral testimony as the 
President of the Commission determines to be appropriate, and the Commission may take 
any action the majority of the Commission deems advisable. 

 
f. If a motion to reconsider passes, the applicant may be charged a reasonable fee, to cover 

administrative costs, as established by the Commission. 
 

 



  

CITY OF STAR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – CP/M-20-00 1 

 

  

CITY OF STAR 
 

                   COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 

DRAFT STAFF REPORT 
 

 
TO:   Mayor & Council 

FROM:   Shawn L. Nickel, Planning Director and Zoning Administrator  

MEETING DATE: November 17, 2020 – PUBLIC HEARING 

FILE: CP/M-20-00 Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

             

REQUEST 

  

The City of Star is initiating an update to the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map and Text in 

order to recognize newly created and revised Land Use Designations on the Future Land Use 

Map and update the text and exhibits within the Comprehensive Plan to reflect those changes.  

 

NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 

 

 Agencies Notified   November 2, 2020 

 Legal Notices    November 2, 2020 & November 12, 2020 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

 City Council Workshop #1  September 8, 2020 

 Public Open House   September 22, 2020 

 City Council Workshop #2  September 29, 2020 

 

ZONING ORDINANCE STANDARDS / COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE: 

 

8-1B-3: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS:  

A. Process: 

1. Comprehensive Plan Amendment Initiated by The City: The city council may propose 

amendments to the comprehensive plan following notice and public hearing procedures in 

section 67-6509 of the Idaho Code. 

 



  

CITY OF STAR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – CP/M-20-00 2 

 

2. Comprehensive Plan Amendment Initiated by A Property Owner: The applicant shall complete 

a preapplication conference with the administrator prior to submittal of an application for a 

comprehensive plan amendment. An application and fees shall be submitted to the 

administrator on application forms provided by the city. 

3. Public Hearing: The city council shall conduct at least one public hearing in accordance with 

this chapter and in accordance with the procedures in section 67-6509 of the Idaho Code. 

B. Required Findings: The council shall review the application at the public hearing. In order to 

adopt a new comprehensive plan or grant an amendment to the existing comprehensive plan, 

the council shall make the following findings: 

1. The proposed amendment is consistent with the other elements of the comprehensive plan. 

2. The proposed amendment provides an improved guide to future growth and development of 

the city. 

3. The proposed amendment is internally consistent with the goals, objectives and policies of the 

comprehensive plan and the comprehensive plan future land use map. 

4. The proposed amendment is consistent with this unified development code. 

5. The proposed amendment is in the best interest of the city of Star. 

6. The proposed amendment includes a justification letter for the amendment addressing the 

following criteria and the Council finds that the amendment is in compliance with the stated 

criteria: 

a. A specific description of the change being requested. 

b. Specific information on any property(s) involved. 

c. A description of the condition or situation which warrants a change being made in the 

plan. 

e. A detailed list of all applicable comprehensive plan goals, policies, and objectives that 

the proposed change would help implement or policies that must also be amended as 

part of the proposed change. 

f. A proposed development plan for any land involved. 

h. An analysis showing the estimated impact that the proposed change is expected to have 

on existing and planned infrastructure. 

i. If the amendment will impact more individuals than the applicant submitting the 

application a detailed description of the efforts made to inform other parties potentially 

impacted by the change of the application is to be provided. 

j. Any other data and information required by the city for their evaluation of the request. 



  

CITY OF STAR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – CP/M-20-00 3 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  

18.3  Goal 

The Star Comprehensive Plan and related ordinances are to be working documents used by 

citizens and city leaders to shape the future of Star. 

18.4  Implementation Policies: 

The City Council is responsible to review the status of the implementation actions and critique the 

relevance of the Comprehensive Plan, including proposing any amendments on an as needed 

basis. 

AMENDMENT OVERVIEW 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT 

 

The following Land Use Map changes are proposed: 

 

• Removal of the Agricultural land use designation. The current Land Use Map has a small 

area of Agricultural on the south side of the Boise River to Joplin Road, between Can Ada 

Road and Kingsbury Road. This area is now prosed as Estate Residential. 

 

• Creation of an Estate Residential land use designation. This was the desire of the Council 

and Staff, as the current Comprehensive Plan does not clearly take into consideration 
residential density between 1 and 3 dwelling units per acre. 

 

• Creation of a Commercial/Industrial Corridor land use designation. This was the desire of 

Council to create additional options for Light Industrial Uses somewhere in the City. 

Currently, there are almost no Light Industrial options.  

 

• Creation of an Agribusiness land use designation. This was the desire of Council and Staff 

to create a unique land use that for agricultural related businesses along a transportation 

corridor. 

 

• Creation of a “South of the River” Sub-Planning Area location. This is envisioned in the 

current Comprehensive Plan under the “Heart of the City” Sub Area Plan. 

 

• Reclassification of existing Neighborhood Residential designation land area into new 

Estate Residential designation. This was the desire of Council to address Community 

concerns over traffic and infrastructure and to create diversity in residential densities and 

lot sizes from what is existing in the area. 

 



  

CITY OF STAR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – CP/M-20-00 4 

 

• Designation of Special Transition Overlay Area on existing County created residential 

subdivisions. This is necessary to protect exiting rural type developments previously 

approved in the County. 

 

• Removal of Neighborhood Centers Commercial land use designations. This was the 

desire of the Council once public input from recently proposed neighborhood 

commercial projects brought attention to compatibility issues between existing land uses 

and proposed commercial “nodes”. 

 

• Removal of Compact Residential land use designations west of Can Ada Road and north 

of Floating Feather Road realignment. This was the desire of Council to address 

Community concerns over traffic and infrastructure due to higher densities.  

 

• Revision to the current Floodway land use designation. Recognizing updated FEMA 

Flood Map revisions. 

 

• Revision to the current Impact Area Boundaries: 

Removal of areas overlapping areas within Middleton, Caldwell, Nampa, Meridian and 

Eagle Areas of City Impact. 

 

• City initiated land use reclassification of specific properties: 

This includes changing certain land use designations to match zoning and use, including 

the Star Sewer and Water District property to Industrial; Parcel where Ridley’s Market is 

being constructed to recognize recent CBD zone change;  Portion of Moyle property on 

State Street to recognize current rezone application to Industrial with remainder as 

Mixed Use; Specific Neighborhood Commercial portion of Rosti Farms Subdivision on 

the north side of the new Floating Feather Rd realignment; Area west of Stonebriar 
Subdivision to the east side of Hwy 16, north to the Boise River and south to Joplin Road 

from Mixed Use to Estate Residential; Reclassify Stonebriar Subdivision on Joplin Road 

from Neighborhood Residential to Rural Residential with a Special Transition Overlay 

Area;  

 

• Property Owner requested land use designation reclassification of specific properties: 

 

o Northeast corner of Star Road and Chinden Blvd from Central Business District 

and Commercial to Neighborhood Residential, Commercial and Mixed Use; 

o Southwest corner of Star Road and Joplin Road from Central Business District to 

Mixed Use and Neighborhood Residential; 

o Southeast corner of Palmer Road and State Street from Neighborhood 

Residential with a Special Transition Overlay Area to Commercial and 

Neighborhood Residential (without Overlay); 

o Northeast corner of Hwy 16 and State Street west to Palmer Road from specific 

Commercial, Industrial, Mixed Use and Compact Residential, to specific 



  

CITY OF STAR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – CP/M-20-00 5 

 

Commercial, High Density Residential, Compact Residential, Neighborhood 

Residential and Mixed Use; 

o Southwest corner of Hwy 16 and current Floating Feather Rd alignment from 

Compact Residential to Mixed Use. 

 

• Other Properties to consider: 

 

o Hoot Nanney Farms property (47 acres); Dixon properties (two 10-acre parcels) & 

Zamzow property (10-acres) at northwest corner of current Floating Feather Road 

and Hwy 16. These properties are designated on our proposed Land Use Map as 

Mixed Use (currently designation as Compact Residential on existing Plan). Given 

the lack of access to these properties from Hwy 16 and the eventually removal of 

Floating Feather to the Hwy, Mixed Use doesn’t appear to be appropriate, at least 

not on the northern properties (but possibly the two 10-acre parcels on Floating 

Feather). Staff would therefore recommend re-classification to Neighborhood 

Residential. 

 

 
 

o Former Irene Wilson property on Star Road. As this property was recently 

rezoned to R-5, Staff would recommend changing Land Use designation from 

Compact Residential to Neighborhood Residential to recognize currently 

approved residential density. 

 



  

CITY OF STAR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – CP/M-20-00 6 

 

 
 

o Maxine Schvaneldt property. Northeast corner of Pollard Road and Hwy 16 

request change from Residential to Commercial/Industrial. 

 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TEXT AMENDMENT 

 

The following revisions to the Comp Plan text are hereby proposed: 

 

Remove Agricultural land use designation. There are no current areas within the City 

limits or Impact area that shows Agricultural. As an alternative, consider modifying the 

Comp Plan to recognize and allow productive agricultural property to annex into the City 

on a temporary basis (without a specific land use designation or combine it in with Rural 
Residential) and keep the Agricultural zoning designation or merge with RR zone to allow 

certain agricultural uses. 

Agricultural 

Suitable for agricultural use with parcels that typically are 5 acres or larger in size.  

May include active agriculture, viticulture, equestrian, and residential. Uses include 

native open space and active farm land. The agricultural land use is not amenity 

based (sewer, water, schools) and will usually be located away from goods and 



  

CITY OF STAR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – CP/M-20-00 7 

 

services. These areas encourage the keeping and raising of crops and/or animals and 

do not necessarily include manicured yards, sidewalks, bike paths, or planned park 

and recreation facilities. Density may be limited due to the limited availability of 

infrastructure. Wells and septic systems should be permitted for lots in this land use 

designation if approved by the applicable Health Department. 

Add Estate Residential land use designation. This is needed to create a designation that 

allows a density range of between 1 dwelling unit per acre and 3 dwelling units per acre.  

Estate Residential   

Suitable primarily for single family residential use. Densities in this land use area are 

to range from 1 unit per acre to 3 units per acre.  Densities not exceeding 1 to 2 

units per acre are to be encouraged in areas of the floodplain, ridgeline developable 

areas, hillside developable areas, and where new residential lots are proposed 

adjacent to existing residential lots of one acre and larger where those existing larger 

lots are not likely to be subdivided in the future. Clustering is encouraged to preserve 

open space. A density bonus may be considered if open space is preserved, and land 

of at least 40% of additional preserved open space is developable. 

Revise Neighborhood Residential designation to better define minimum density range. 

Neighborhood Residential    

Suitable primarily for single family residential use. Densities in the majority of this 

land use area are to range from 3.01 units per acre to 5 units per acre.  Densities 

not exceeding 1 to 2 units per acre are to be encouraged in areas of the floodplain, 

ridgeline developable areas, hillside developable areas, and where new residential 

lots are proposed adjacent to existing residential lots of one acre and larger where 

those existing larger lots are not likely to be subdivided in the future. 

Revise Compact Residential designation to better define minimum density range. 

Compact Residential 

Suitable primarily for residential use allowing a mix of housing types such as single 

family, two family, and multi-family. Densities range from 6 5.01 units per acre to 

10 units per acre. 

Revise High Density Residential designation to better define minimum density range. 

High Density Residential 

Suitable primarily for multi-family. This use should generally be located in close 

proximity to commercial centers and primary transportation corridors.  The use is 

also suitable within the Central Business District in mixed use buildings with 

commercial or office uses on the first floor and high density residential on upper 



  

CITY OF STAR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – CP/M-20-00 8 

 

floors.  Densities range from 11 10.01 units per acre and up.  Density may be limited 

to ensure compatibility and transition between uses adjacent to the site. Design 

specifications may include increased setbacks for multi‐story buildings, landscape 

buffers, and transitional densities.  Rezoning to this designation should not be allowed 

unless adequate ingress/egress to major transportation corridors are assured.  

Remove Neighborhood Commercial Centers land use designation. 

Neighborhood Commercial Centers 

Locations which may be suitable for the establishment of convenience business uses 

which tend to meet the daily needs of the residents of an immediate neighborhood 

while including development standards that prevent adverse effects on existing or 

planned adjoining residential uses. Such centers are typically appropriate for small 

shopping clusters located within residential neighborhoods. 

Revise Commercial designation to allow for Light Industrial land use options. 

Commercial 

Suitable primarily for the development of a wide range of commercial activities 

including offices, retail, and service establishments. Rezoning to this designation 

should not be allowed unless adequate ingress/egress to major transportation 

corridors are assured. Light industrial uses may be considered at the discretion of the 

City Council without amending this plan. 

Revise Mixed Use designation to allow for Light Industrial land use options. 

Mixed Use   

Generally suitable for a mixture of uses which may, at the sole discretion of the 

Council, include office, commercial, light industrial, and/or residential depending 

upon the specific area designated as Mixed Use.  See Mixed Use Implementation 

Policies for specific criteria.  Development within this land use designation is to 

proceed through the PUD and/or development agreement process.  

Identifying areas for mixed-use development has two objectives. The first objective 

is to give the city a better tool to manage the type of developments through the 

planned unit development and/or the Development Agreement process.  The second 

objective is that this land use designation will allow the development community to 

be more innovative in design and placement of structures. Development design 

guidelines should also be established to guide development within mixed-use areas.  

Rezoning within this land use designation is to be strictly monitored by the city to 

assure that the Mixed Use areas are not being used simply to justify high density 

residential use. 



  

CITY OF STAR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – CP/M-20-00 9 

 

Add Commercial/Industrial Corridor land use designation. This is needed to create 

opportunities for a multitude of commercial and industrial uses along the Hwy 44 

corridor.  

Commercial/Industrial Corridor 

This area is located along the Hwy 44 corridor and is approximately 1,000 feet 

deep on both sides of the highway. Suitable primarily for the development of 

a wide range of commercial and light industrial activities including offices, 

retail, service establishments, manufacturing, warehousing, mini‐storage and 

open storage, multi‐tenant industrial park, and similar uses. Rezoning to this 

designation should not be allowed unless adequate ingress/egress to major 

transportation corridors are assured. All development within this land use shall 

be free of hazardous or objectionable elements such as excessive noise, odor, 

dust, smoke, or glare. Uses on the fringes shall transition to and be compatible 

with existing and future residential uses. 

Add Agribusiness land use designation. This will allow for the creation of agricultural 

related businesses other than traditional farming practices on smaller parcels. 

Agribusiness 

Suitable primarily for uses associated with agricultural activities, but due to parcel 

sizes, does not include large farming operations. The uses may include, but are not 

limited to, dry flower production, aquaculture, seed and fertilizer labs, agritourism, 

organic crops and fertilizer, farmers markets and roadside stands, bee keeping, 

nurseries and tree farms, and hydroponics. 

Revise Implementation Policies to recognize the “South of the River” Sub Area Plan instead 

of the “Heart of the City” plan as the City moves towards completion of the plan currently 

underway. 

8.5  Implementation Policies 

8.5.1  “Heart of the City South of the River” Sub Area Plan: 

A “Heart of the City “ South of the River” Sub Area Plan should be developed and 

adopted by the city for the area planned to be the future downtown of Star and its 

future supporting periphery.  This area includes the CBD (Central Business District) 

shown on the Land Use Map and the area between the Boise River and the Chinden 

Bench spanning from Highway 16 to the Can-Ada Road section line. 

This area is critical for master planning to provide Star a sense of place in its 

downtown understanding that the current small central business district area has 

served well for many years but as development occurs, and State Highway 44 is 



  

CITY OF STAR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – CP/M-20-00 10 

 

widened an expansion of the activity center of the city will be needed.  Expanding 

south incorporates the beautiful Boise River with a significant amount of floodway 

area which can serve the new Heart of the City Sub Area well with many acres of 

parkland and public access to the river understanding that existing property owner 

property rights are not to be infringed.   

Revise Policies to recognize Estate Residential in the Urban Residential Planning Areas. 

8.5.3  Policies Related Mostly to the Urban Residential Planning Areas 

A. The Estate and Neighborhood Residential Land Use is to encourage 

urban style development densities to limit urban sprawl. 

B. Low densities within the Estate and Neighborhood Residential Land Use 

are to be designed within the floodplain, ridgeline developable areas, 

hillside developable areas and where new residential lots are proposed 

adjacent to existing residential lots of one acre and larger where those 

existing larger lots are not likely to be subdivided in the future. 

Revise Policies to recognize the “South of the River” Sub Area Plan instead of the “Heart of 

the City” plan as the City moves towards completion of the plan currently underway. 

8.5.5 Policies Related Mostly to The Central Business District Planning 

Areas 

A. The CBD zoning district should allow for a mix of commercial, office, 

institutional, and civic type uses with specific provisions for residential 

use in appropriate locations with compatible densities. 

B. High density residential is suitable within the CBD in mixed use buildings 

with commercial or office type uses on the first floor and high density 

residential on upper floors. 

C. Main Street, generally south of Tempe Lane extended, consists of 

several lots which are about one acre in size created by “Dixon 

Subdivision” almost a century ago.  Many of the existing home sites on 

these lots are rural in nature, including farm animals.  As redevelopment 

of this area occurs, a transition consisting of a compatible mix of lower 

intensity commercial and office type uses mixed with residential should 

be encouraged.  Within the Heart of the City South of the River Sub Area 

Plan recommended herein, this Main Street area needs to be studied to 

provide for special care guiding future development understanding that 

the rights consisting of the existing rural use of residential lots are not 



  

CITY OF STAR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – CP/M-20-00 11 

 

to be infringed.  Furthermore, Main Street is to be studied for the 

provision of traffic calming measures and to provide for a connection for 

horseback riders to access an equestrian trail which should be planned 

along the Boise River.    

Revise Policies to the Commercial Planning Areas to allow for Light Industrial land use 

options.  

8.5.6 Policies Related Mostly to The Commercial Planning Areas 

A. Assist in the provision of coordinated, efficient, and cost effective public 

facilities and utility services, carefully managing both residential and non-

residential development and design, and proactively reinforcing downtown Star’s 

role as the urban core while protecting existing property rights. 

B. Encourage commercial facilities to locate on transportation corridors. 

C. Locate neighborhood services within walking distance to residential 

development. 

D. Discourage the development of strip commercial areas. 

E. Maintain and develop convenient access and opportunities for shopping and 

employment activities. 

F. Commercial areas of five acres or less should be encouraged in residential land 

use designations with appropriate zoning to allow for commercial services for 

residential neighborhoods and to limit trip lengths.  Such commercial areas should 

be submitted for approvals with a Conditional Use Permit or Development 

Agreement to assure that conditions are placed on the use to provide for 

compatibility with existing or planned residential uses.  These areas should be 

oriented with the front on a collector or arterial street. 

G. Allow for some light industrial uses within the Commercial areas at the sole 

discretion of the City Council. 

Revise Policies to recognize Estate Residential in the Mixed Use Planning Areas. 

8.5.7 Policies Related Mostly to The Mixed Use Planning Areas 

E. Mixed use areas located between commercial and residential land use 

designations are to provide a compatible transition between the higher intensity 

use of commercial and the lower intensity use of Estate and Neighborhood 

Residential.  Uses for these mixed use areas could include multi-family housing 



  

CITY OF STAR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – CP/M-20-00 12 

 

and or office related uses if determined by the Council through the public hearing 

process, to be appropriate. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN EXHIBITS 

The following Exhibits in the Comp Plan will be updated as part of this Amendment 

process. Exhibits include the following: 

• Land Use Map – As proposed above with changes further made by Council. 

• Zoning Compatibility Matrix – To recognize new and modified land use 

designations as they relate to zoning districts. 

• 2019 Comp Plan Land Use Designation pie chart 

• 2019 Comp Plan Commercial vs. Residential pie chart 

• Street Classification Map – To recognize updated ECAMP Map 

• Natural Features Map – To recognize revised Area of Impact boundaries 

TRANSITIONAL LOT DISCUSSION 

Council has brought up concerns to staff regarding potential, conflicting policies and 

definitions for transitional lots as they abut established neighborhoods, or existing 

developments with the Special Transition Overlay Area land use designation. The 

following sections of the Comp Plan addresses this. The Council should review each 

identified section and determine if new, revised or removed text needs to be considered 

as part of this Amendment process. 

8.5.2  Policies Related Mostly to the Rural and Agricultural Planning 

Areas 

D. When an urban density residential development is planned with lots that 

directly abut lots within a Rural Residential area an appropriate transition is to 

be provided for the two abutting residential lot types.  A transition must take 

into consideration site constraints that may exist and may include clustering 

of the urban lots in order to provide an open space area avoiding urban lots 

directly abutting rural residential lots, or may include the provision of a buffer 

strip avoiding urban lots directly abutting rural residential lots, or may include 

setbacks within the urban lots similar to the rural residential lots directly 

abutting, or may include the provision of one half to one acre size lots directly 

abutting the rural residential lots.  



  

CITY OF STAR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – CP/M-20-00 13 

 

E. Larger setbacks should be required for new lots planned to abut existing 

Rural Residential lots. 

8.5.3  Policies Related Mostly to the Urban Residential Planning Areas 

B. Low densities within the Estate and Neighborhood Residential Land Use are to 

be designed within the floodplain, ridgeline developable areas, hillside 

developable areas and where new residential lots are proposed adjacent to 

existing residential lots of one acre and larger where those existing larger lots 

are not likely to be subdivided in the future.  

C. Site layout within the Special Transition Overlay Area is to provide for a 

transition in density and lot sizing. Base densities may be significantly reduced 

or home sites may be clustered to increase open space within a portion of a 

site when property is within this overlay. 

8.5.4  Policies Related to The Special Transition Overlay Areas 

A. Development adjacent to and within the Special Transition Overlay Area is to 

provide for an appropriate transition between existing and new home sites 

where new urban development is being planned adjacent to previously 

approved and constructed rural county developments of years past.  This may 

include new abutting lots to be one acre in size or may include buffering. 

B. Site layout is to provide for a transition in density and lot sizing with all policies 

regarding compatibility herein applying. 

C. Modified street sections, such as with no curbs gutters or sidewalks, should be 

encouraged for adjacent compatibility where determined appropriate. 

D. When an urban density residential development is planned with lots that 

directly abut lots within a Special Transition Overlay Area an appropriate 

transition is to be provided for the two abutting residential lot types.  A 

transition must take into consideration site constraints that may exist and may 

include clustering of the urban lots in order to provide an open space area 

avoiding urban lots directly abutting Special Transition Overlay Area lots, or 

may include the provision of a buffer strip avoiding urban lots directly abutting 

Special Transition Overlay Area lots, or may include setbacks within the urban 

lots similar to the Special Transition Overlay Area lots directly abutting, or may 

include the provision of one half to one acre size lots directly abutting the 

Special Transition Overlay Area lots.  

E. Larger setbacks should be required for new lots planned to abut existing 

Special Transition Overlay Area lots. 



  

CITY OF STAR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – CP/M-20-00 14 

 

AGENCY RESPONSES 

 

• City of Meridian October 15, 2020 

• City of Nampa  October 19, 2020 

• City of Eagle  Pending 

• City of Middleton Pending 

      

PUBLIC RESPONSES/PARTICIPATION 

 

• See Attached Sign-up Sheets for participants of Workshops and Open House. 

• See Attached Public Comments 

• See Attached letters from specific property owners regarding changes to specific 

property Land Use designations 

    

FINDINGS 

 

Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment (UDC 8-1B-3-B): 

 

1.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the other elements of the Comprehensive Plan. 

The Council should determine if the proposed amendments to the Plan are consistent 

with other elements of the Plan. 

 

2.  The proposed amendment provides an improved guide to future growth and development  

      of the City. 

The Council should determine if the properties and areas in the proposed amendment 

improve the guidelines for future growth and development in the City. 

 

3.  The proposed amendment is internally consistent with the goals, objectives and policies of  

      the Comprehensive Plan and the Comprehensive Plan future land use map. 

The Council should determine if the proposed amendments are consistent with the 

goals, objectives and policies of the existing Comprehensive Plan.     

          

4.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the Unified Development Code. 

The Council will direct staff to update the UDC to make sure that it is consistent with any 

changes to the Comprehensive Plan that may be in conflict with the current Code. 

5.  The proposed amendment is in the best interest of the City of Star. 

The Council should determine whether the approval of the amendment would provide 

the City with a continued growth pattern in the area, expanded public services, 

improvements to the transportation system and a continued tax base.  

  



STUMP LANE

RIVER RANCH SUBDIVISION

McMILLAN ROAD

HIGHWAY 20/26 (CHINDEN BVLD)

JOPLIN ROAD

HIGHWAY 44

C
A

N
-A

D
A

   
R

O
A

D

B
LE

S
S

IN
G

E
R

 R
O

A
D

K
IN

G
S

B
U

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

LA
N

S
IN

G

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 1
6

P
LU

M
M

E
R

 R
O

A
D

S
T

A
R

 R
O

A
D

FLOATING FEATHER ROAD

FOOTHILLS ROAD

GALLOWAY ROAD

PURPLE SAGE ROAD

EDNA LANE

B
LE

S
S

IN
G

E
R

 R
O

A
D

CHAPARRAL ROAD

BEACON LIGHT ROAD

P
A

LM
E

R
 R

O
A

D

J:
\2

03
01

0.
27

4 
S

ta
r 

M
ap

pi
ng

\c
_D

E
S

N
\_

C
A

D
\P

LA
N

S
\P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 L

A
N

D
 U

S
E

 M
A

P
.d

w
g 

A
pr

 2
3,

  2
01

9 
- 

4:
07

pm

LAND USE MAP

T
H

E
 

S
E

A
L  O F  T H E  C

I T
Y

 
O

F

S
T A R  I D A H OI NCORPORATED  19 0 5

T
H

E
 

S
E

A
L  O F  T H E  C

I T
Y

 
O

F

S
T A R  I D A H OI NCORPORATED  190 5

CITY OF STAR
LEGEND

NEIGHBORHOOD
RESIDENTIAL

COMPACT
RESIDENTIAL

HIGH DENSITY
RESIDENTIAL

NEIGHBORHOOD
CENTERS COMMERCIAL

COMMERCIAL

MIXED USE

EXISTING PUBLIC USE /
PARKS & OPEN SPACE

FLOODWAY

 FUTURE BRIDGE
CROSSING

RURAL
RESIDENTIAL

AGRICULTURAL

LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

STEEP SLOPE > 25%

SPECIAL TRANSITION
OVERLAY AREA

FUTURE ROAD

ROAD
FIREBIRD
RACEWAY

PLANNED ARTERIAL
CONNECTION TO

INTERSTATE 84
(GOODSON ROAD)

ITD PLANNED
ARTERIAL HIGHWAY

TO INTERSTATE 84

TO FRANKLIN ROAD CONNECTION
TO INTERSTATE 84

ITD 44/16 R.O.W.

CENTRAL BUSINESS
DISTRICT

100yr FLOOD PLAIN

4/23/19

AutoCAD SHX Text
D R A I N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S L O U G H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D R A I N A G E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D I S T R I C T

AutoCAD SHX Text
#2

AutoCAD SHX Text
D R A I N

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDDLETON

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
M I L L

AutoCAD SHX Text
M I D D L E T O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
C A N A L

AutoCAD SHX Text
M I D D L E T O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
M I L L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D I T C H

AutoCAD SHX Text
M I D D L E T O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
C A N A L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D I T C H 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A D A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D R A I N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L A W R E N C E

AutoCAD SHX Text
K E N N E D Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
C A N A L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L E M P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D I T C H

AutoCAD SHX Text
B O I S E


















































































	1 Agenda 11-17-2020
	5A 08-18-20 Minutes FINAL DRAFT
	5A 09-01-20 Minutes FINAL DRAFT
	5A 09-15-20 Minutes FINAL DRAFT
	5A 10-01-20 SM Minutes FINAL DRAFT
	5B Claims Against the City Oct 2020
	5C1 Rosti Farms Final Plat 1 & 2 Council Packet
	5C2 Parkstone-Heron River Final Plat PH14 Council Packet
	5D Findings of Fact for Annexation-Rezone Saunders
	6A Updated Canvasback Subdivision Council Packet 11-17-20
	6B Updated Sunfield Subdivision Packet 11-17-20
	6C Greyloch Cabinetry-Mink Creek Prelim Plat Council Packet
	6D Davis Property 1133 Main Street Rezone Council Packet
	6E Comp Plan Amendment Council Packet

